L e

V1.

VIL.

VII.

TRI-VALLEY COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.3

Board of Education
Tri-Valley District Office
Wednesday, June 15, 2022- 6:00 P.M.
Board Meeting Agenda
Call to Order
Roll Call
Hear Public Comment to the Board
Consent Agenda

Approve the Minutes from May 2022

Approve the Board Bills from June 2022

Approve Student Activity Accounts for May 2022

Approve Treasurer’s Report for May 2022

Approve the Destruction of Executive Session Tapes dating back 18 Months

AYOwp

Visitors and Reports

A. Visitors:

B. Committee Reports: None
C. Administrator Reports: None

Action Items

A. Approve Board of Education Meetings: Dates & New Times for 2022-2023
Approve Hazardous Bus Routes for 2022-2023

Approve Commercial Insurance Renewal for 2022-2023

Approve the FY23 Consolidated District Plan

Approve Athletic Trainer Agreement for 2022-2023

Approve Behavioral Intervention Procedures

Approve 1¥ Reading of the 2022-2023 Handbooks: ES, MS,HS

Approve Contract for Little Viking Care Assistant

Approve New Bus Lease

MEOEMEINR

Discussion Items
CPPRT Revenue & Budget

Banners and Scoreboards

District Committee Work

Grounds and Maintenance Update
Facility Use for ES & MS Study: BLDD
Solar Energy

AEEOR

Executive Session
A. To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, resignation, discipline, performance or

dismissal of personnel, litigation or collective bargaining matters, pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the
Open Meetings Act

Approval of the Personnel Report

Adjournment



1I.

1L

VL

TRI-VALLEY COMMUNITY UNIT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3

OFFICIAL MINUTES

May 18, 2022

Call to Order

Roll Call

A meeting of the Tri-Valley Board of Education held at Downs, Illinois, on Wednesday, May
18, 2022, The meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.

Upon roll call, the following members answered present: Jessica Alt, IB Goff, Brian Myers, Jill
Messamore, Lori Stickling, and Bobby Brown. Others Present: Dr. David Mouser,
Superintendent. Those absent were: Carl Neubauer

Hear Public Comment from the Public
There was no public attendance.

Consent Agenda
Motion by Jill Messamore to approve the Consent Agenda that included the following items:;

L J

Board Meeting Minutes from April 2022;

Board Bills from May 2022;

Student Activity Accounts for April 2022;

Treasurer’s Reports for April 2022; and

Destruction of Executive Session Tapes Dating Back Eighteen Months.

Seconded by Lori Stickling, All members voted aye.

Vigitors and Reports

A, Visitors — Drew Schmidt (New HS SS Teacher), Valerie Walden (New ES Teacher), FFA
Officer Team provided a year-in-review

B. Board Committee Reports —

C. Administrator Reports: ES, MS, HS

ACTION ITEMS

A, Approve the 2021-2022 Budget Amendments
Motion by Bobby Brown that the Board approve the budget amendments. Seconded by
Jill Messamore. All members voted aye, and the motion carried.




Official Board Minutes
May 18,2022

Page 2

VIL

VIIL

B. Approve the 2™ Reading for New MS and HS Math Curriculum
Motion by Jessica Alt that the Board approve the curriculum. Seconded by IB Goff, All
members voted aye, and the motion carried,

C. Approve the Memorandum of Understanding for Education Support Employee
Motion by Jill Messamore that the Board approve the memorandum. Seconded by Lori

Stickling. All members voted aye, and the motion carried.

D. Approve the Contract for Executive Secretary and Payroll Coordinator
Motion by Lori Stickling that the Board approve the contract. Seconded by IJill
Messamore, All members voted aye, and the motion carried,

DISCUSSION ITEMS

A, HS Gym Banners

B. Graduation Overview

C. End of the Year Activities
D. Superintendent Transition
E. Solar Energy
EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board did not enter.

PERSONNEL REPORT

Motion by JB Goff that the Board approve the Personnel Report as presented. Seconded by
Bobby Brown. All members voted aye, and the motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Jill Messamore to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by JB Goff. All members voted
aye, and the motion carried,

The meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m,

Board President

Approved

Board Secretary



CHECK CHECK INVOLICE ACCOUNT
VENDOR DATE NUMBER DESCRIPTION NUMBER AMOUNT
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVI 06/10/2022 44605 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 434,99
3 06/10/2022 44605 SUPPLIES 10E010 2310 4010 00 000000 26.24
06/10/2022 44605 SUPPLIES 10KE010 2520 4010 00 000000 69.74
06/10/2022 44605 SUPPLIES 10E050 2220 4000 00 00000GC 1,370.05
06/10/2022 44605 SUPPLIES 10E05C 2220 4100 00 00CQCC 267.01
06/1.0/2022 44605 MS SUPPLIES, NURSE SUPPLIES 1CEG3C 112C 4010 00 COQO000 75.59
06/10/2022 44605 MS SUPPLIES, NURSE SUPPLIES 10E0LO 2134 4100 00 000000 92.94
06/10/2022 44605 MS CREDIT MEMO 10E030 112¢ 401C 00 000000 -7.78
AMEREN ILLINGIS 06/10/2022 44606 HS: FIRE PUMP 20E010 2540 4660 00 000000 26.72
B & B AWARDS AND REC 06/10/2022 44607 Senior Awards 10EDE0 1500 4120 00 000000 38.01
BLUE SPRINGS 66/10/2022 44608 WEEKLY RENTAL OF 1 WHEEL Z0E010 2540 3230 00 000000 450.00
CHATR BORTABLE RESTROCM
BSN SPORTS, LLC 06/10/2022 44609 BASKETBALL JERSEYS 10E060 1500 5100 00 000000 1,632.22
BUSHUE BACKGROURD SC 06/10/2022 44610 : . 80E0X0 2365 3000 00 000000 108.00
CENTRAL SUPPLY CO 06/10/2022 44611 SINGLE EDGE SCRAPER 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 40.60
06/10/2022 44611 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 000CCC 230.55
06/10/2022 44611 PAPER TOWELS 208010 2540 4010 00 0000GO 2,860.00
06/10/2022 44611 CLEANED AND CHECKED VACUUM 20E010 2540 3230 00 CCO000 49.00
CIRBN, LLC 06/10/2022 44612 MONTHLY: MAY & JUNE 20E01C 2540 3500 CC CO00Q0 2,496.76
CONSTELLATION NEW EN 08/10/2022 44613 MONTHLY 20EC10 254C 4650 00 000000 4,444 .68
CULLIGAN WATER CONDI 06/10/2022 44614 MS: SALT 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 102.68
06/10/2022 44614 ES: SALT 208010 2540 4010 00 000000 60.73
EDUCATTONAL CONSORTI 06/10/2022 44615 CATEGORY 2: 2019-2020 10E010 2310 3100 00 000000 1,670.17
SERVICES
06/10/2022 44615 2021-2022 E RATE SERVICES 10E010 2310 2100 00 000000 861.77
EVERGREEN FS, INC 06/10/2022 44616 FUEL: 40E0X0 2550 4640 00 000000 2,342.97
06/10/2022 44616 FUEL 40E010 2550 4640 00 000000 2,503.13
3R SERVICES, INC 06/10/2022 44617 FILTERS FOR DISTRICT 20E010 2540 4010 0C C0G000 Z,924.62
06/10/2022 44617 CREDIT MEMO: APPLIED TO 20E01¢ 2540 4010 00 000000 -183.76
INVOICE #300914
FIRST BANK CARD 06/10/2022 44619 AVANTI'S: STAFF LUNCH FOR 10E010 2310 4010 00 000000 1,011,850
TEACHER APPRECIATION
06/10/2022 4461% THE STATION: APPRECIATICH 10E0L0 2310 4010 00 000000 246.00
LUNCH FOR TRANS/MAINT/KITCHEN
06/10/2022 44619 BIAGGI'S: GIFT CERTIFICATE 10E0L0 2310 4010 00 000000 50.00
FOR STAFF SERVICE RECOGNITION
06/10/2022 44619 SIX FLAGS: AP HS TRIP, 10E010 2310 4010 0C 0C0OQ00 3,134.35
REIMBURSED SOME BY STUDENTS.
DEPOSITED IN OTHER REVENUE
06/10/2022 44619 USPS: MAIL SUPERINTENDENT 10B01C 252¢ 3230 00 000000 9.25
PLAQUE
06/10/2022 44619 CAR STICKERS: PARKING PASSES  10EC40 1130 4010 00 000000 231,00
FOR 2022-23
06/10/2022 44619 CASTLE SPORTS: 10E040 1130 4010 00 000000 460.62
06/10/2022 44619 TOBII DYNAVOX SYSTEMS: 10E010 1202 4010 00 0000CC 199.00
RENEWAL
06/10/2022 44619 HMCO BOOKS: MS SUPPLIES 10E030 1120 4010 00 COQO00 231.05
FIRST BANK CARD-1 06/10/2022 44621 SUPERINTENDENT 10E01C 2320 3120 CO C00000 30.83
MEETING
06/10/2022 44621 SUPERINTENDENT 16EC10 232C 3120 00 000000 167,11
LUNCH
06/10/2022 44621 CITY OF BLM: PARKING FOR 108010 2320 3120 00 000000 4.00
SUPERINTENDENT MEETING
06/10/2022 44621 PHEEASANT LANES: END OF YEAR 10E010 2310 4010 00 000000 $26.25
STAFF FUNCTION
06/10/2022 44621 CLEVERBRIDGE: ONLINE PAYMENT 10E0L0 2310 4010 00 0000CGC 59.99




CHECK CHECK INVQICE ACCOUNT
VENDOR DATE NUMBER DESCRIPTION HUMBER AMOUNT
RENEWAL
TIER 06/10/2022 44822 MONTHLY 20E010 2340 3400 00 000000 233.83
06/10/2022 44622 MONTHLY 20E010 2540 3400 00 000000 1,559.94
HEART TECHNOLOGIES  06/10/2022 44623 ES: CHECK VALCOM 10E050 2220 3100 090 000000 424,00
06/30/2022 44623 FINAL PAYMENT ON ES PAGING 10E050 2220 4100 00 000000 3,189.84
SYSTEM
HOLT SUPPLY 06/10/2022 44624 M5: SEPTIC TREATMENT 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 166,67
06/10/2022 44624 MS: BOTTLE FILL STATION & 20E010 2540 5400 00 000000 3,393.51
COOLER FILTER
06/10/2022 44624 HY: CONTROL BOX ASSY 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 §70.90
06/10/2022 44624 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 52.90
IASB 06/10/2022 44625 PRESS PLUS RENEWAL 10E010 2310 6400 00 000000 1,545.00
06/10/2022 44625 ANNUAL DUES 10E010 2310 6400 00 000000 4,967.00
IMPREST FUND 06/10/2022 44626 JUNE 2022 RETMBURSEMENT 10A000 1050 8000 00 000000 1,676.27
06/10/2022 44626 JUNE 2022 REIMBURSEMERT 40A000 1080 0000 00 000000 175,00
INTEGRATED SYSTEMS ¢ 06/10/2022 44627 MONTHLY: JULY 2022 10EQLO 2310 3100 00 000000 540,00
INTERSTATE BATTERIES 06/10/2022 44628 AUTO BATTERY 40ED10 2530 4010 00 000000 234 .80
JAKE RUNESTAD MUSIC 06/10/2022 44629 WILD FORCES, CHORUS MUSIC 10E060 1500 4120 00 000000 2.25
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY 06/10/2022 44630 ES: MOTORS 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 830.00
06/10/2022 44630 FUSE CARTRIDGE 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 131,16
JOSTENS, INC 06/10/2022 44631 SUPPLIES 10EQ40 1130 4010 00 000000 699.56
06/10/2022 44631 SUPPLIES 10E040 1130 4010 00 00QCCO 13.56
JW PEPPER & SON INC 06/10/2022 44532 Chorus Music - Invoice 10E060 1500 4120 00 GGOCGOQ 30.75
364209686
KASKASKIA SPECIAL ED 06/10/2022 44633 MAY 2022: 10E010 4121 6100 00 00QOCO 3,120.00
KINCAID IT 06/1.0/2022 44634 Google Workspace For 10E050 2220 3100 00 CGOQGO 5,400.00
Education Plus - 1 Year
WHOLESALE 06/10/2022 446315 ES: FOOD 10E010 2560 4020 00 0OQOCD 891,13
06/10/2022 44635 ES: FOOD 1CE0L10 2560 4020 00 000000 140.23
06/10/2022 44635 ES: FOOD 1GEC1C 2560 4020 0C 000000 1,500.74
KUBOTA CREDIT CORPOR 06/10/2022 44636 ACCOUNT #86100393 LEASH 10ECLG 2310 3250 ¢O 000000 3,401.52
PAYMENT JULY - SEPT
LEACH, GARY 06/06/2022 44588 DISTRICT VEHICLE PURCHASE: 40E010 2550 5400 00 000000 7,500.00
2000 CHEVY 2500 TRUCK
LEE ENTERPRISES- CEN 06/10/2022 44637 PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE FOR SP  10E010 231¢ 35CC 00 000000 99.80
ED
LEROY IGA 06/10/2022 44638 FOOD FOR HS SP ED CLASS 10E0L10 1202 4010 00 000000 20.65
LINDE GAS & EQUIMENT 06/10/2022 44639 MONTHLY 40EQL0 2550 3230 00 000000 32.45
LOWE ' § 06/10/2022 44640 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 72.80
MCT 06/10/2022 44641 MONTHLY 20E010 2540 3400 00 00000C 45,24
MENARDS 06/10/2022 44642 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000G 416.75
MILLER, TRACY, BRAUN 06/10/2022 44643 PROFESSIONAL, SERVICES 10E010 2310 3100 00 000006 412,50
NAPA AUTO PARTS 06/10/2022 44644 FILTER AND SUPPLIES 40E0L10 2550 4010 00 000000 47.57
NDSM HOLDINGS, LLC  06/10/2022 44646 MS: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 00 0CCOGO 157.9%
06/10/2022 44646 ES: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 00 00QCQCO 257.07
06/10/2022 44646 HY: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 00 COOGCO 87.15
06/:10/2022 44646 MS:; MILK 10E010 2560 4020 0C CO0CCOD 216.78
06/10/2022 44646 ES: MILX 10E010 2560 4020 00 000000 272.33
06/10/2022 44646 H8: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 0CG 000000 115.47
06/10/2022 44646 M5: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 00 000000 187.3%7
06/10/2022 44646 ES: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 GG 000000 286.49
06/:10/2022 44646 HS: MILK 10E010 2560 4020 0G 000000 101.31
T TON, JON 06/10/2022 44647 REIMBURSEMENT: FUEL FOR WHITE 40E010 2550 4640 00 000000 51,01
BUS
NEWS-2-YOU, INC 06/10/2022 44648 2022-2023 RENEWAT. 1CE010 1202 4010 GO 000000 439.3¢
NEXTERA ENERGY SERVI 06/10/2022 44649 MONTHLY: MAY 2022 20E0LQ 2540 4660 00 000000 11,436¢.30



CHECK CHECKE INVOICE ACCOUNT
VENDOR DATE NUMBER DESCRIPTION NUMBER AMOUNT
KICOR GAS 06/10/2022 44650 MONTHLY 20E010 2540 4650 00 000000 50.28
QUTDOOR POWER C 06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIEG 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 103.28
06/10/2022 44652 CREDIT MEMG: KUBOTA AIR 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 -16.96
FILTER
06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIES 20E0L0 2540 4010 00 000000 1,283.43
06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000C 282.56
06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 246,17
06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 129.78
06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 230.62
06/10/2022 44652 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 0C¢ Q00000 130.17
06/10/2022 44652 ASSY STARTER, BATTERY 208010 2540 4010 €0 000000 372.89
OSF OCC HEALTH 06/10/2022 44653 BUS EXAM: 40E010 2550 3390 ©C 000000 60.00
PHONAK 06/10/2022 44654 EXTEND WARRANTY ON FM 1QEQLO 1202 401¢ 00 000000 157.50
EQUIPMENT QUOTATICN
#5120184589
PROFESSIONAL ELECTRI 06/10/2022 44655 ES: BEARING Z0EQLO 2540 3230 00 000000 321,75
06/10/2022 44655 ES: BEARING 20B010 2540 4010 00 000000 84.80
06/10/2022 44655 ES: BEARING Z0E010 2540 3230 00 000000 321.75
06/10/2022 44655 ES: BEARING 20E010 2540 4010 00 000000 84,80
RICOH USA, INC. 06/10/2022 44656 ADD'L IMAGES: UNIT, HS 10E040 1130 4010 00 000000 15.80
06/10/2022 44656 ADD'L, IMAGES: UNIT, HS 10E01LO 252C 4010 00 000000 7.68
06/10/2022 44656 ADD'L IMAGES: ES, MS, HS 10E020 111¢ 4010 00 000000 775.10
06/10/2022 44656 ADD'L IMAGES: ES, Mg, HS 10EQ30 1120 4010 00 000000 317.29
06/10/2022 44656 ADD'L IMAGES: ES, M8, HS 10ECG40 1130 4010 00 000000 201.49
06/10/2022 44657 COPIER LEASE: 06/15/2022 - 10ECL0 2310 3250 00 00000C 2,531.49
7/14/2022
RNR 17 06/10/2022 44658 ... TSCORE TUTTION: 10EQ10 4220 6300 00 000000 7,015.80
3 MECHANICAL SER 06/10/2022 44659 MS: LEAKING HOT WATER PUMP 20E010 2540 2230 0C COCO0O 1,216.60
REBUILT PUMP
06/10/2022 44659 MS: LEAKING HOT WATER PUMP 20E010 2540 5400 00 000000 1,817.88
REBUILT PUMP
SAM'S CLUB 06/10/2022 44660 END OF YEAR LUNCH FOR STAFF 1OE0L0 2370 4010 0O 000000 3157.92
06/10/2022 44660 INTEREST 10EQLO 2310 4010 00 000000 7.31
06/10/2022 44660 SUPPLIES FOR SUMMER STAFF 10EQ10 2310 4010 00 000000 413,60
LUNCHES
SCHOLASTIC INC 06/10/2022 44661 SP ED RENEWAL LOEDLO 12¢2 4010 00 000000 439.34
SCHCOL, NURSE SUPPLY 06/10/2022 44662 SUPPLIES 10E010 2134 4100 00 000000 511.85
SECRETARY OF STATE 06/10/2022 44663 STICKER RENEWAL: 2013 40E010 2550 6400 00 000000 158.00
TRAILER
SPRINGFIELD ELECTRIC 06/10/2022 44664 FUSES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00000C 117.03
06/10/2022 44654 SUPPLIES 20E010 2540 4010 00 00COCO 98.28
STL BTS 06/10/2022 44665 MONTHLY: JUNE 2022 20E010 2540 3500 00 C0GOQO 160,00
SUPREME RADIC COMMUN 06/10/2022 44666 2 NEW RADIOS 40E010 2550 3230 00 000000 49,50
06/10/2022 44666 2 NEW RADIOS 40E010 2550 4010 00 000000 £§20.00
SWEARINGEN, TYLER 06/10/2022 44667 REIMBURSEMENT FOR CONFERENCE  10E010 2410 33206 G0 000000 398.00
REGISTRATIONS
T MOBILE 06/10/2022 44668 MONTHLY 20E0L0 2540 3500 00 000000 58.80
TASC 06/10/2022 44669 ADMINISTRATION FEES: 10E010 2520 3230 00 000000 1,497.57
7/1/2022 - 3/20/2022
THOMPSON ELECTRONICS 06/10/2022 44670 PROGRAMMING ON DUCT DETECTORS 20E0L1C 2540 3230 00 000000 300.00
TRAFERA, LLC 06/10/2022 44672 Chromebook Repair -MS 10EO50 222G 3100 00 000000 47.00
Chromebooks
06/10/2022 44672 Chromebook Repair - 10E050 2220 4100 00 000000 77.99
EQ00065759 SN: LROSEKTR
06/1.0/2022 44672 Chromebook Repair - MS 10E050 2220 3100 00 000000 101.99
06/10/2022 44672 M8 Chromebook Repairs 10E050 2220 3100 00 000000 113.99



CHECK CHECK INVOICE ACCOUNT
VENDOR DATE NUMBER DESCRIPTION NUMBER AMOUNT
TRAFERA, LLC 06/30/2022 44672 MS Chromebook Repairs 10ED50 2220 3100 00 000000 11%.99%
o 06/10/2022 44672 MS Chromebook Repairs 10E050 2220 3100 00 00000C 102.88
06/10/2022 44672 HS Chromebook Repair - 1L0EQ050 2220 3100 00 000000 T7.588%
non-warranty repair
06/10/2022 44672 CHROMEBCOK REPAIRS 1I0EO050 2220 4100 00 000000 175.99
06/10/2022 44672 LAPTOP BATTERY 20E050 2220 4300 00 000000 345,00
TRI COUNTY SP ED 06/10/2022 44673 2021-2022 2ND SEMESTER 10E010 2200 3010 00 0GOGOC 18,245.20
BILLING: QT
06/1G/2022 44673 2021-2022 2ND SEMESTER 10EQ10 1200 3020 Q¢ QGGOOC 343.82
BILLING: PT
TRI-VALLEY HIGH SCHO 06/10/2022 44677 REIMBURSEMENT TO ATHLETIC 10E060 1500 30006 COC QOOQ0OC 850.00
OFFICTALS
TRI-VALLEY MIDDLE SC 06/10/2022 44678 REIMBURSEMENT FOR ATHLETIC 10EC60 1500 300G 00 Q00000 1,885.00
OFFICIALS
TUMBLEWEED PRESS, IN 06/10/2022 44672 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL: JUNE 10ECE0 2220 3100 00 000000 1,236.36
1, 2022 - JUNE 1, 2022
VILLAGE OF DOWNS 06/10/2022 44680 ES, MS, HS, UNIT: MONTHLY 20E010 2540 3700 00 000000 1,281.3%6

Totals for checks

137,415,

B4




FONDP SUMMARY

Whkhdhkhhhkkhhh bk kkwtkn End Of report sk wdkkdhhakkhhbhhkhhnwhw

FUND _ DESCRIPTION BLLANCE SHEET REVENUE EXPENSE TOTAL
’ly Education Fund 1,676.27 .00 79,887.60 81,563.87
20 Oper, Build, & Maint Fund 0.00 ¢G.c0 41,969,54 41,269.54
40 Trangportation Fund 175.00 G.00 13,589.43 13,774.43
80 TORT FUND 0.00 ¢.00 108.00 108.00
#%% Fund Summary Totals *** 1,852.27 ¢.00 135,564.57 137,415.84



00°0%L ZZ0Z/TE/SO  ZZOZ/TT/S0 NUYd REIVEd HIATTATIM d g B80S IOWSH ZZOZ/TT/SO0

00582 2202/TE/50 ZZOZ/O0T/S0 ONI ‘SNOIICKCYd YAMENIN q g LBOS ID¥SE ZZ0Z/01/50

00°QZL~ ZZOZ/TT/G0 ZZOZ/T11/S0 MYV FAIVEd SATTAIIH A g 2808 IOVSH 2Z0T/TT/S0

00" 0ZL ZZ0T/1T/50  ZZOZ/OL/S0 Wayd FuIvdd SAITATIN S q 9906 10Y¥S3E ZZ0Z/01/50

197808 ZZ0Z/TE/S0  ZTETOZ/60/S0 ONI ‘SHOTAMES TYLIAYD NOZVRY Y g $80¢ I0YST ZZ0Z/60/50

00°0ET ZI0Z/TESSO ET0EZ/50/6C TOOHIS WATH AITIVA-THI s g P80S IOYSHE TZOZ/S0/G0

61°00T EZ0Z/LE/S0  ZEDE/VO/S0 CT AUV TNNIM b1 g £BO§ IDY¥SZT ZZ0Z/F0/S0

62691 ZIOZ/TE/S0  TTOT/PO/S0 NESNILSTHHD YISAYA d g ZB0G LOYSH 2ZOZT/FO/S0

FLoOT 2Z0Z/TE/G0 2202/%0/S0 ATOYLS ‘NILIEYH d g 1805 IOVSdA 2Z20Z/%0/50

06°8E 220Z/1E/80 ZZTOZ/¥0/S0 ¥ HEATNNILD NOSTEN S g 080§ IDV¥SH Z20Z/F0/50

00" BEL TEZOT/IE/S0  EZ0EZ/%0/%0 0C7 M¥¥d YATTIH ! g 6.0 ID¥SH Z2Z0T/¥0/S0

00°¥86 zZ0e/1E/50 ZZ0Z/P0/S0 NOILIANOD ¥EIWM NYSITIND b g 8L0§ IO¥S3 ZZ0Z/v0/50

00716071 ZI0T/TE/S0  ZTOZ/8Z/FO ONI ‘SNOTIOWO¥d YAYENIH b= g LLOS IDVYSE ZZOEZ/8ZT/PO

¥Z 18 ZZOZ/TE/SO  TTOZ/LT/WO OTT ‘SNOIINTIOS SSANISNE 400 b4 g 940G ID¥SE ZZ0Z/L2/%0

00" 0SS ZZ0E/TE/S0  TTOT/LZ/EO WAESAM RYZAODSIA §,NIIQTIHD o g SL0S IOYSE TZ0Z/LI/F0

00°§7 ZZOZT/TE/S0  ZZOZ/BO/¥0 HYNNYH “D9IN o g £L0S LOVSE ZZOE/80/%0

ZZ0Z-TZ0Z A2W :HINCR SIHI CETIONODZN SMOEHD

£8°7S87ELS (SMOHHD NIJO $0Td HONYTYH ONIONE HSYD) ZE0Z-T1202 AeW ¥OJ FONYTIVE ONIUNT HSVD QIISNLTE sxxww
61°26L5 9 :INONOD TYIOL SNIGNYISLIO0 SHIEHD THIOL TNYED sx#x
6T 2GLE g INNOD TYIOL IO¥EE NVE ONIANEISLOO S$MOTHD TIYIOL ss#

1L ELT ZZOZ/6T/50 NESNILSIHHD YISAEM kS g 9605 IOVSHE ZE0L/ET/50

00" €Tk CZDE/EL/S0 ‘7 JIHY “HHSO0K d g ¥605 IOWSE ZZODZ/ET/SO

£5°9 ZI0Z/LO/ED “T OAQNIM ONINEH Y g ¥605 IDYWSHE ZTOZ/LO/ED

96702 TZ0Z/TT/E0 1qor ‘1714534 E: g 6267 LO¥YSH TZOZ/TT/TO

00" 8T 8T0Z/6T/0T FITSIT *SEHOOD | d G667 IOWSE B8T0Z/6T/0T

666 ST0Z/80/50 FAFEED NIREONEE 4 g 6p6E LOYST S10Z/80/50

720Z-TZ0Z AR (Q¥HI SMOTEHD OHNIGNYISINO
£9 20T 'EES FONTTIYE HEWD SNIANT TYIOL xxx

£9°20T'EE 000000 00 0000 66T 0Z0WS6 ZZ0T/TE/SO

ZZ0E-1202 AeW ¥M0d TONYIYE HSYD ONIGNA

LNOOWE "IY¥ELOL ¥OEED/LIATED LISOdET/IIEEC BLYd LNALS ALYd HEAYL /3 TNNODDY m.mm NIDIHEO # MDEHD HENVYd IIVAd ¥MOEHD

2202-120% APH;

SMILEOCE HSYO

nIGL 3
£ "ON IDIYISIC TOOHDEw.

§ Azrunmg qoaumaaﬂoﬂoomm..
<IN RITINOWKOD XETIVA-IHL .

e e 90007

0°00°20°22° 50
d-grasodeg




z
22/90/90

RFERFAARRXRSERLNF P2 R2% BTOTOT JO PUNM xaxs s ¥ F LA ¥ FEXFXXFXEFLFAHF

ZETCEV 'S 22 FLNACD THIOL QETIDNQOHY SMOEHD TYLOL ANUHD xx#»
EE TEV'9S €& *INACD THLOL LIOYSE “MNYE QATIONODZIYE SMDEHD TYLOL #xx

0g-geTt ZZOT/TE/S0  ZZOEZ/LI/SO CLd ATTTEA-THL b= g S609 IO¥SH ZZOT/LI/G0

0£-5HE TT0ZT/IE/S0  TZOT/ET/50 OTT ‘SHOIINTOS SSANISGE 410 o g £606 JOWSH ZZ0Z/E1/S0

Q0 "F8S ¢e0Z/TE/S0 EZAZ/ET/S0 007 M¥v¥d ¥ETIIH g =) <608 LO¥Sd Z20Z/€T/G0

00°€92 ZZ0T/1E/S0  €ZOZ/ET/S0 NOTNA FHI ¥ g 160§ IOVST ZZ0Z/E1/S0

G0°Lo ZEOZ/T1E/S0 EBOE/TTI/SO TAYD HANYE LSYId k-1 g 0608 IOW¥SHd ZZ0Z/TIT/S50

0o 0OkP ZEOZ/TE/SD  EEQZ/IT/S0 SHAYd ANYHAIAR k: g 6805 LO¥Sd ZZ0Z/TT/S0

MOEHD/LIATD LISOdEC/ILISEC ALTT IXGULS JI¥Qa HAI¥d S # THROQODDY HAXL NIOTEC & MOEHD MNYE ELWd MDIHD
] S, - C L. BRILSOA RSO L .. o

: 2202-1Z0Z AeW 0AUL 3° ¥ ATEWNMS UOTIRLTTOUODSY - 07007207227 50

80121

£ "ON IOTHISIO TOOHD:

s INO - ALINOWROD AETTYA-THT

9000

d-graodes



SE"E€88 T~ 0g 262 06°G1F"I- A0VED HI8-WYIL-SK 000060 00 0000 S056 0£07ISH
797756 ‘g- LLT9EY SL78TS g~ AOVED HLL-WYAIL-SK 000000 00 0000 POS6 0E0TSE
L276258 7T~ TL BEF PLTGOE- IAVED HIL9-HYII~SK 000000 G0 0000 €066 QL0786
88" TLG6- T2 PTT~ 7B 88— AGVID HLE~WYEL~SH Q00000 00 0000 2046 0£07TS6
£L7005 76~ £Q7C6 bETBLEZ- AATID HLP-WYEL-SH 000000 00 0000 T0Se OEQTSE
S6"698 €6~ 0L 126 i- 9ETTIET’ES- e e == 6 0E0TSE
29" TEh "Th- 817 2% 6 967 ‘Sh~ dIHL AEANSIQ-VYINIINAND~SKH Q00000 00 0000 8TFE 0E0TSE
dWYD ADIEN-HWIL-YYINOIHIND~GH 000000 00 0000 LTkE 0E0TISH
86°82C 'E- ' 96 GEG 2~ Gd TY2ISAHI-¥YINITHEN)-SH 0Qo000 00 0QOO £1be OE0TISE
€2°896 ‘b~ 6L 98y '2- ¥r 868 1- OWI-dYINIOTEENI-SH 000000 00 0000 60F¥6 DEQISS
SpPTp09- 9 H0E- LNIWHD TENI-UY TN IEE03-SH 000000 00 0000 BOFPE OE0TIGH
TLTS88L- TT 0LLw SMYOHD-YYINDIITENI~SR 0o0000 00 0OO00 GOFP6 OE0TISH
I LY -H9TADIHEN10-5H 000000 00 0000 POPE OE0TISE
¥ L9- 887 9¢ 60 FOT- UNYE-YYINOIHAND-5H 000000 00 0000 206 0E0TSH
TB EbL T~ BLTEQE LEE907E- JAY-YYTODITEN2-SH 000000 Q0 0000 TOP& 0E01G6
FBTLER ‘TE- SL Zze- 98 9g0’'zE- —————— e ———— ——£8 BE0T1SE6
0T MOCH AOCHWHLEIS ONIOYATES 000000 00 0000 TZ2té 0£07S6
99 EGT O~ Y6 8E070T- HOOIVIX-DIEEND TXT-SH 000000 00 0000 61£6 OEOIGE
£ 9ETE~ sl gge- Zv 85L T~ TIJONNCS INIANLE-2IHENZ LXI-SH 000000 00 0000 LICE O0£0TSE
BL"S5L7G- V6 LEE '2- VHTIAQ~-DI¥300 LXE-8H 000000 00 0000 SNEE 0EQTSE
OYWI NOIIWNIISIC-II¥IND IXI~SH 000000 00 DODOD FPOEE DEQISE
AZYT 9¥M TIAID-OIVHAD LXI-SH oOOUND Q0 0000 £0E6 DE0TSE
95" 16279~ 95 T6Z 79— SSEHI-IIMAAD IXI-S5H 000000 DO 0000 Z0te 0£01S8
00°698°T ooCo9g’I- e - —= ——~~ ~--Z8 DE0T5E
00°GBB’T 00°09€ T~ SIVIDIZI0-52TLATHLY~SH oooo00 00 0000 2026 DE0TIS6
LG 96678 LETBO9 T pgregkoOT- e == —-——— —=T1§ 0E01IG6
£EB B6T- ZLTLeE 69 E£92- PUOI-TRTOOG-5KH oooooo 00 0000 8TTE O0E0TISE
90" FoE- 90" F9E- T30 NOLOMIHSYM-DMIQTINE-SH 000000 Q0 0000 STTE 0£0TSE
8T 89F— 81°89F~ RONFTIYHD HINIIJS-INIJTING-SH 000000 00 0000 TTTE 0E0TSE
ZTEET T~ AT EEY 8L ThB~ GNAd YIMOTI-ONIGTING~EH 000000 Q0 0000 E0TE 0€07196
9E7 LT~ 9E°LT- HIIIZ0-9NIATING-SH 000000 Q0 Q000 Z0T6& 0E0TIHNG
EE HFLL 9~ 6% LLL'T hm.m.u_v._ml MON~ONIJTINT~SH Q00000 G0 0000 TOTé QEOTLSE
ittt A VEX D o1
JUBUYDTIUY 000000 Q0 0156 Q<eZ 0E0T86
Tid 000000 00 6066 022Z 0£07TSE
IoTasuncy 000000 00 LOS6 0ZZZ OL0TIS6
9E°STT'66 AT €99 ' 1- DT'2YT L6 ———mmm e e —e—— GEQYE6
9E"STT'66 8L €98 '1- T ZYLLE ———mmm e e ——BT JEOYSE
9€°G1T 66 BT°€997°1- 0T 2F¥T'LE HEYD ALIAYLIDVY~SH Q00000 00 COO0 S66T QEQYSE
20UERTEg AITATIOY ATUIUOW  junowy soueTeq UOTIATIDSR(] r's g0 ONGI O0TIAE
Burpuy 27-TZ0GZ ABR PaISOUnIEE Butuutbeg TaasT JUNOIDY
WY 5507 {zeoz/¢ s@led)  I40d¥d INOODOV ALIAILOY SHx Q000720722750

T:abeg 2Z/30/390 £ "ON IOTVISIA TOOHDS LIN{ ALINOWWOD AITIYA-IYEL

y~94 4T EIPOIIIE



9E"GT1 /66~ BL €39'T 01" 2bT L6~ msmimm == ——me ———— 0E£0156

|||||| —-= ———— —-L6 DEO0TISE

900-AdTHIHL-ALIATLOY-5H 000000 00 0000 0DLE DECTISE

VS BEEE- 28712V Iz e —= wen— —=39F 0E0756

000000 00 0000 6696 0DEDTSE

000000 00 0000 LB96 DEOTISE

68°6T- §5°9T- NWOOUSSYII 9 ~LHNYED-SH 000GD0 00 0000 G696 0£E0TIS6

8 01Z- 29 01Z~ HITYEH-HIZLYLE-SH 0po000 G0 0000 €696 OE0TSE

2 NOWWOD STINOQI-AFAL-LNTID-SH 0000n00 00 0000 2626 0EO0TISE

000000 ©0 0000 T16%6 Q€056

1052 T T-I AL~ LNTID-SH 000000 00 0000 0626 QE071S6

. 000000 00 C000 6896 0E07S6E

AJ0 LSYIE-JAAL-INTHED 000000 00 0000 88%6 9E0ISE

oxd Burpeoy T1TPNEI-JHAL-LNYHED 000000 00 G000 9896 0E0TS6

SHOLYINSTYD HIVH-JIHAL-INYED Q00600 00 0000 FBSE CEQISE

00" TEE- 60 1e2- SUINPENII-JTAL- LTI -SH gD0000 00 G000 0896 CE0TISE

€2 0~ S 0- SITITMIONII AW HIVH-JIAL-THYTID Q00000 00 DOOD B8LEE DEOTSE

€5 1I- 587 TE~ SOV4 I -I2AL-LNTII~5H poooo0 00 0000 9696 OE0TISE

66 GF T~ GE'6PT- MOEd BYEd-INYID 00000 00 2000 BS9%6 0E0TIS6

L3IA JILSYIOHIS-AEAL-INTID 000000 00 00CO 2596 0E£01SS

FE BC- SYACYTT ONNOA-JEAL-LNTID 000000 00 0000 0596 UEQTISE

26T~ 867 1- WYIEIT AYVIILIT HIv-JEAL-INVED 000QQ0 00 0000 B¥96 C0£07156

ST LT- . ST L1- BN3 LY DNISEIN-LNYID 000000 00 0000 LE96 0E0TSH

857 0T~ 9501~ SHAIINTINGINYH HIVA~-IZAL-LNTED 900000 00 0000 PE96 0E0ISE

GF 9T 5% 31 HEOM ¥NOX MOHS-JEAL~INTIO-SH 900000 00 0000 2796 QL07TS6

LS BET- LS 68T~ CIVHM AYS-JIAL-INTID--5H 000000 00 0000 0296 DEQISE

Z8TTE- g TE- 4n 50 I3INTA-dTAL-INTES-SH ¢Q0Q0C 00 000Q BT96 DE0ISE

66 BFZ 71— 100 INFIDS-LSAR-TdXE~JIAL-LNRES-SH 000000 00 0000 9196 DEOTSE

SO EG- 087 LTIT- SAI¥ b AWNIL-JIAL-INVEID-SH 000006 00 0000 FI96 0E07TS6

PETELT 9g° 28— TMOE DILSY¥ICHOS-IIAL-SNYED-SH 000000 Q0 0000 TT9E 0E0TSE

FEER BETEY HAAYAT NOON-IEAL-LNTED 000000 00 GOQ0 6026 OEQTISE

6078~ 607 8- AIWASHIOM NMQ AH-JZAL-LINTHD 000000 00 QOGO BO%6 QGEUTISE

9€°08L~ 00 08L- SHEAYIE WILSITNTE-JHAL~LNYIO-SH 000000 00 0000 $086 OLOTSE

£E0 9~ aIoNs z d¥id-JEAL-INTID-8H Q00000 00 0000 £0%6 QEOTSE

00°8TL- 00°8TL~ NIAAYD INIAIT-JFAL-LNTED Q00000 00 G000 TOS6 QEDTSE

98 LBE'ET- 92 6611 29 k9L - mmm——— = ———— —=G§ QE0IS6

S0'8LE- 007051~ HOTASNACY SW 400000 00 Q000 LOGAE QLOTSE

2 I8T'2- g0 kb J3 T¥IDAdS-HYIL-SH goo0s0o U0 0000 9056 0E£0TIGS

SoUETER AJTATIOY ATUIUOW  Junowy SVUETEY ueTIdTIDSA] £g 090 ONid DOTIa4
butpuy 22-1202 Ael paragunoug butuutbag T2ADT JUNOIDY

WY §5:01 (ZZOZ/s 193ed) IMOdTY INMOROJDVY RIIAILIVY SH=« Q0 0020722760

z:obeg 22/90/%0 £ "ON LOIYISIC TOCHDS IINO ALINOWWOD AITIVA-IHI

t-gL d°ZTPNAIIC



20" %FS—
£0°0T0 2~
0n-gs-
LLTPTE T
LT°§55 7T~
9T 6—
28°955"11-
£1°EFG 2~
£7°991‘2-
0¥ TLE T-
167251 v~
LI FBE 1T~
5T 606~
967 0¥8 ‘-
68727 ‘8-
0% ERE“TT~
po-oss
5685k -
€2 TFO0E-
00°EVE T~
00°98Z 8-
D¢ 00€~
867 ZEF T

Y8 ETE “S—
L0 PET~
[ =R
£LU66L T

B0 %5275~
9F"9k3 ‘g~

¥S TR0~
LG g-

T9 LI~
6F " 8TE T

TT-08% “LET
Z1 08P /LET
ZT e Lel

FoueLed

Burpum

TTYEII0S-SIILATELT~S5

867 6F1 00" 663~- 000600 00 0000

00" 5L 88 LT T~ TIVELINSYE STEID~SITLETHIV-SH 000000 00 00CD

00 BS~ FEINNGD SS0EO-SIILTTHEY-SH 000000 DO 0000

15T T~ ORIV I TED-FITLTTEEY ~SH 000000 00 COlC

05" IET- Z6 Ok ‘T- TIVALDISYE SAOS~SOIITIHIY-SH 000000 00 006D

LS ELE~ TIYEISYE-SOLLTTERY-SH 000000 00 0000

TE'OTL- - e TIYERITIOA~ED I L TTEIY-SE 000g00 00 0000

00 LT~ £6°£99 ‘L~ MOVEL-$IILIIRIV-SE ¢o0000 00 D060

86°93% b SL6 7T TI¥G5I0S-55TIHTELY-SH 00000 0C 0000

00°880°T ST 1252~ TIGO-SOLIETHIY-SH 000000 00 0900

E6T% TT€98 L~ TIYEIZHSYE STYIO-SOTLTIELY-SH 000000 00 000D

951022 £9°2%T'6- TIHEL0CI-SOI LT TREY—SH 00000 DO 0000

ST E0F— REINOOTY SSOND~SIILEIHIY-SH 000000 DO 0000

00°0TE°T 9L 58O 5- ONIAYFTEITHO-SOLLETHIV—5H 000000 00 4600

kLT 9EE- 0L"82Z 8- TTHELANSYE SACE-SOLEITHIY-SH 000000 30 000D

BL EZSE T- LLT 0805~ TIYEISYE~ ST IHIY-5H 000000 00 4000

00'SLT 2T~ STYIDLAIO-SOILETHIN~5H 000000 DO Q000

¥Z G5k £0°Z0E "B~ TEIENID~SOILITHIY-5H 000060 0O Q000

€1°902°8T T 996 “2E- —— e ———

00"EvE’T= SHOOHLAN-INIATING oooaono D0 DOOD

00°98Z'B- NOTIVHYLIORE IIG3Y0-ONIOTING G00C00 00 0O0GOD

AIA-ONIQTIIOE Qo000 00 0000

p5° 680~ 26 0TB- s¥ong I¥I-ONIQTIOE 00000¢ 00 0000

SATHE QTATI-ONIATING 060000 00 0000

00°282 ST ZE 85 'S~ ONIISTI~ONICTIOG 000000 0O 0000

Lo 00T~ TEIJOS-IIATLS-5H DOGROG 00 Q000

00" 6TE- GNOd FEEYM-ONIQIING-SH 00C000 D0 9020

€L7pSE T~ JOOND ACHNYSSTYNES-ONIAIINE-SH 900000 00 0020

WYESodd dI¥05-ONIATINE-SH 000050 00 0000

SIIWIES SHINIYI-aNTaTING-SE 000000 00 6000

Z1°vhe YT ETL B~ NOTLTONdE MOOCINO-SRIATIAG-SE 000800 00 BOCO

ARYTISVEH-ORI A 10S-SH CCO9De 00 bOCO

Fg 109~ HSOY aTO9-ONEQTINS~SH ©0A000 00 0000

06'S1E 0T L8- aNQE SEMOTI-ONIATInE~-SH | 00000 00 0800

TO"SLI~ NOIIWAORNI-SNIGTIIfE-SH 000000 06 0000

16" 696 61" 586 "6- EI13E0/MOR-ONITTING-SH 000000 00 0000

ZLTLOS’'E TLUESBTLLT ————— i ——

TLULOSE 2L 658 LLT e o e

ZLTLOSE TLESBLLT HEWD RILAILOY-~SH 000000 00 G000

IIATIOT A(UIEOR  FEnomy EEEGRES UGTIATIOS8] rs g0
ZZ-1I0% AWR pazsyunony Sutuutheg TRAST JUNOITY

9526
5526
BSTE
E£526
fA4]
I5¢6
6l
8TZ6
LTZ6
atze
S1E6
¥Id6
£1Z6
ZTZ6
1126
aTEs
2026
1028
~=T6
¥2T6
£216
ZTTE6
prAL]
0I16
6116
L1T6
a1té
¥116
FAR
0118
6016
80TE
LoTe
016
2016
10Te

DECEISE
CFOESE
0P0TISE
0P0956
0F0IS6
jak: 1ol
QF0ISE
0F0I56
0F0ISE
0p0I56
0F0ISE
oF0IsE
0FQTISE
OFPITSE
QFQI56
14 1)
QF0TIGE
0P0I5E
N¥0I56
0rQIse
0v0TIse
oroIse
0POISS
arOISs
0FOTISE
QFQISE
0¥0TS8
0F01I56
0%¥Q'L56
oFoIsE
oreIse
0% 0I56
0v 0156
0¥oI56
Qv0ISE
Q%0186

Qy0Y¥SE
arodse
O¥oRse
J0LIGE




9ETTHT I~
TZTEET 8~
LT"6ES T~
06 LEL=
P65 2EF ‘0T~
[{ihr41-8

FETLTT-
SLUOLT E~

F9TLYE-
0" 0582~

19 9LE~

L9 Tl
E049Z9 7 b-
LE"8EL-
§3°99¢ 19~
pL GG T
EZ2°Z687T-
Ot ELH 6=
Dote0z-

0E QLE P~

05 ETE-

CFTET6-
P2TLTIT-

LZTERT-

gy ez0 1~
GL ZBET-
92 09561
29°969 LT~

[Fh Y 1A

TE90L/EL-
U0"BES Z-

527895 "t

00705~

Ioueleg

SuTpug

FL°BLE ' BLTEED- YOINIS—SSYII~6H 000000 00 0000 £TS6 OFOTSE

€5 T0P— T8 E£E0 "€~ HOINAL-SSYID-SH 000000 00 Q00D TTS6 OFQISE

€5° 81T 'E- HIOHOEIOS~SSWIo-6H 00000C 0D 0000 0156 O¥0ISE

65 0GE~ oloid -3 A NERHSTEI-SSYIO-SH Qeooo00 D0 0000 5056 OFGTGS

v 278 T~ 2879869 ‘71— ————— e e wmb6 0F0TIGE

g0 o5L~ a3 SEIATEI-FVIODNNIOD oGO0 00 0000 6TFE QFPQISE

HHE~-EYI00I2400-5E 000000 CO D00C LTFE CPOISE

FETLIT- GF TYINEIS-¥¥INJIvEnl-5E 300000 00 0000 ST¥E OF0ESE

6LTEQY T~ 4% TYDISAHE-SYINOINN0-5H Q00000 00 0000 E£TFE OFOTISE

aNYS ONIEDEYH-YYIOOXMNAD—5H 400000 00 0000 it¥e CFOISE

Z0"SvE- HOEL TEIMLSNANTI-YYTADIEI0D-SH 00000 00 0000 0T¥6 OVQISE

20°05e~- IWI-EYia2IgEno-58 pooCes 00 0000 60%6 OROQTSE

H2E0IS TCOHDS-WYTIADINENI-5H 000000 00 DO0Q LOPS OROTSS

-IBTBLE~ SGOEI~FYIASIYEND-5H 000000 00 CCOD SOFG OFQTSE

¥9° 98T SSENISOI-FYINdIEND-SH pAGOZO 00 (00D EORS QFQTSE

00 0T0 ‘2~ L 66L L~ GHWE-IYIND A0 5H DODOQO C0 0ODD Z0W6 OFQISE

06°2T 8" 059- TEY-"eTaoIdEa0-51 o000 00 0000 LO¥E O¥OTSE

L3 6¥0 02~ 1T° 55829~ e e e ——E6 DYOTSE

LU 9L e SIITJALS HITIIH-SH Q00CD0 00 0000 TZEE O0FOTISE

PP RLE T BE"E19 "S- HAIYIHI~-DTIND LXE-SE 000000 00 000D 0ZE6 OFOTISE

00065 ‘T ST LZE 6~ HOOMIYIR-ONMENT IXI-SH ©00000 00 0CO0 6TEE OPOTISE

SILIOISH-DIWEND LXI~S5H 000000 00 0000 BTEE OPOTISE

¥o" 915~ LET98T E- TIJNQCD INNGNIS~-DINEND IXI-SH 00000C G0 000D LIES QWPISS

HSINYLE-0IWE0D LXI-SH 000000¢ 90 0000 91L8 0FOTGE

05" EL- TMOS JLLSYIOHDS-ITHEND IXI-SE 000800 00 0000 STEE 0¥0TSE

*STUTYTLS-0TRIAD EXE-SH 0GOS0 00 0000 BTEE CROTSE

HOQTTVE WIHIVIM - MO XS-SH 000000 0 9000 ETEE OFOTSE

PZTLIT- ENED FEV-OTHEND LXE~$H 000000 00 9000 21€6 0ROTEE

0" 000 ‘1~ HINZIDS ¢CGI ¥II-DTHEND IXNE-SH 000000 00 0000 TTES DPOIES

GL°892 [ s A D05 JONCOH IWN-IINEND IXI~SH 000000 C0 0000 Q1E6 QRATSS

§%°820 "1~ STYDTEAYA-ITNIND LXI~5H 000000 Q0 G0Q0 60E6 0FQISE

LT ThS T~ 2072 AMI-JTE¥0d IX3-SH Qoooo0 00 BOOC BOES QPOTSE

LS PEL 0T~ . 66" LLT BT ISNOENTTYD/LII-DTNEAD IXE~5H 00C000 oD 0000 LOEE OFOISE

50906 L 687196 'E1- VII-ITHEND LXI-SE 000000 00 00GO 90£6 Q¥QISE

YATIL SH-OTEND JRE-SH 000060 00 000D S0E6 QFOISE

00°28h- I0LS TOOHIS-I¥END IXE~EH 000000 00 0000 £0€6 QVOTSE

LOTTES'T 167 L917Z9- e e TG OPOTSE

00 BES ‘2~ FCYYD HI2 ELS SASH-SOILITHIVY ¢00000 00 0DGDG 09%6 OWQISE

127498 08" 7E0 "2~ TIYEATTICA-SOLLITHEY-SH 000000 om DO0D §%ZT& OFOTISE

09°0%- AOTII-FILLTIRET-SH 000000 00 0000 LST5 OQFPOTISE

AITALATY ATYILOR  FUNOWY sowered TOT30T30850 TS 80 J80d D0TEQI
Z22~T20T K2R pIISqUIOTY Sutwutbeg TOAST JIUNOIDY




¥0°LZT FQ"LET ) STPI0L PURID

80ESZ LAT~ LT LOSEm BYTZEITLLI~ sTeRel faTTTaRT] puess

ZTT08r LET ZLTLOSE TLUGYB"LLT S7e3ql 3355Y PUEAD

80" €52 LT~ TLTL08 ‘E- 89°ZES TLLT~ e o e ——eee QF0ISE

m————— e meee LE OFOTISE

000000 00 0000 00LE OVCISE

T1°8%e— 68°60Z- s e ——36 QFOTSE

’ HOERD Y~ LD~ SH 000000 00 0000 6696 OVQISE

00000C 00 0000 8636 OVOTISE

pOC0OG 00 00006 16%6 OF0TISE

06U00G 00 Q008 3696 OPUISE

000000 GO 0000 S696 0FQ0TSE

NOOO00 00 0000 PEYE 0FDXSS

DOO0LO 00 000D E696 O¥0ISE

000000 00 0000 1696 0¥0TISE

000000 00 0000 6896 0QYOISE

TEYASHEL SE¥Y ESHII=-JUAL-INVES 000000 00 0U0D 5£96 0¥OTSE

EDE3dS-IYAL-INVAD 000008 DO 0000 PL36 QVOTISE

HIVH SHAZ-IAAL~LIYED 000008 00 0000 ZL®6 OVDISE

ALIDOTIA ONTEOSYER-IEAL-INVID paOOCC G0 0000 OLB26 0F0TISE

ETHOFANTT-~IAAL~ENTID 0000U0 00 C0QD 8996 0FQISE

96T LT~ LT 9PT~ LIIES=ITNG~IRTID~SH 050000 00 0000 ZF96 0FOTSE

HIAL MOOTIYIA~JENT=TNTI0-SH 000600 00 0QC0 0P96 QPOTASE

SNWEL/0% D34S—-IEAL-INYID-SH 000000 00 0000 8£96 OYOTSE

IV  INYIOOTEN~JIAT-LNEED~SH 000000 06 0600 9E26 UFOISE

gL G- Va3 ONY DV-ZAAL-INVED 000000 Q0 000D T1E36 OFQISE

TTYMASI SIS~ IAL~INVED 000000 0§00 DOOO 6TSE 0FOTISE

NOTIUNEYD NI IWEM-IZAL-INYYD 000000 00 GOGD 9296 OROTISS

RAGO SH-ITAT~LNOESD 000000 0C 00CD SZ96 OKQTISE

L10- NFIO SH~-IBAI-LNTHI 008000 00 0000 EZ96 AHOISE

1T €~ THID MO¥D NOA-IEAL~LNVED 00000 00 0000 TZ9€ QYOISE

N340 SH-ITAL-INEED ©0000C 00 000 6T96 THOISE

5045 NEIC=3IAT— LTS 000000 0D 0000 LT36 GFOISE

ETLE- SHOLYINITED ONITANC-IFAT-LNVED 000000 DO Q000 ST%6 CFPOISE

29" L~ SINTINLS ¥AO JINDH-ITAL~INTID 00D0G0 3O €00 £T186 OFOTISE

O¥ NO SONYH ~ INWJD-SE 000000 00 COQ0 L096 OFOTISE

HOTEAR 400D F¥¥d BIVI$~INTIO-SH 00O0Co 00 0000 9096 OFQISE

PLOLGLITE- 2992t €1"SEL "5~ —m——em = == -—5§ (70156

SoweTed LZTATADY ALHAGOR  JUOSHY SoUETey P ECIEEEES] T8 0EC JRo3 DOIiAd
Butpuzg ZT~1702 ABR paxsunoug Buruurheyg TAST IUNCIIY




T L L T ] 2T0A9T JO DU rrrrsx sy xr et Xar ¥ xX¥xresss

POT :¥IUMOOSY IO TeqEmy

Junomy souRTed UOTIATAOSIA 0§ 09C JRAI DOTLOL

SouBTed FTALIOT ATCIUOR

Burpug ze=1207 AEW PRITUNDTE ButuatHag TIAD] JUNOVOY




Gov'29¢°.$  86¥'/9F'6%  €B0°001L'TS-
¥.6'511$ 202°L0L% 192718
1E0°LP$ 679'861% g19'151%-
908°6L0'2$  699'6G6'L$ .BL°09%
L$ A 0%
6¥8‘vors 2 TR LA GEV'BGS-
FRARTA % 129'0E¥S 000°G$-
696'765% 00Z'6£6% L£Z'98¢c%-
£19'¢1€% 296°220°L% 67 ¥9.$-
6OV LZV'€$  £BE'GET VS ¥Z6°L08%-
JUaLInD UC_CC_Umm ®ocms0 PIA

UvaA 2T Le0c

souejeg pund

¢c0c

Jainseal | AswuieH uliyiey

i, o,

880'Z6G LIS

65£'6S5%
€2e'15C$
[61'09%
0%
980'0/C%
80G'Cr9s
glo'eces
ge6'8Le LS
190°19L'8$

aNUBADY

AVYIN

181°269°¢c1$

L60°SY$
L¥620r$
0%

0%
125'62E$
805 2¥9%
0G8'v1Z'L$
¥82'€80'CS
G86'896'8$

Sosuadxg
ale(] 0] JesA

18L'€GS'2s 251 VOL'LS

050'61$ 0%
G/9'6.% LB6YLS
ESY'6LS 0%
0$ 0%
095°29% 8L9'0e$
(AN TS 861°GES
2T6'G9CS 0$
99¥'Gecs  989'¢Els
eLevrLle  €59'688%
anuanaay SosuUsdx]

a1 o} YIuo

S/dd
JH01L
OM
o%S
NI
‘suel]
189

W/O
uolesnpg

06
08
0L
09
0s
4
0t
0c
ot

1iodoy oouejeq punyj



TRI-VALLEY BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING DATES
2022-2023

Wednesday, July 20, 2022

July 2022 TBA BOARD RETREAT
Wednesday, August 17, 2022

Wednesday, September 21, 2022

Wednesday, October 19, 2022

October 2022 TBA BOARD RETREAT
Wednesday, November 16, 2022

Monday, December 19, 2022*

Wednesday, January 18, 2023

January 2023 TBA BOARD RETREAT
Wednesday, February 15,2023

Wednesday, March 15, 2023

Wednesday, April 19, 2023

Wednesday, May 17, 2023

Wednesday, June 21, 2023

All Board Meetings start at 6:00 p.m. except for the Board Retreats. The Retreats on Saturday
will start at 8:00 a.m.

*meeting on Monday instead of the usual Wednesday



A publication entitled "Schoof Safety Busing and instructions for Submittting Findinas

Two copias of this form are to be submitted to the IDOT Disirict Office ndlcated in the Instruction booklet, The IDOT District Office will approve or

llinois Department
of Transportation

disapprove the submittal within thirty (30) days and refurn one copy to the school district Indicating the actien {aken.

Serious Safety
Hazard Finding

" is available from the [llinois Departrment of Transporiation,

2300 South Dirksen Parkway, Springfield, Hitinols 62764. The school adminlstratar praparing this submittal should refer to the Instructions in the bookiet,

Nams of School Dirtrict

Address of Administrative, Office .

n-Vallea CUSH 1 410 . Washan

<

Distriot Number Counly,  llinols, Zip Code 1
_+Z ioLoomn. VerP T?W‘ ol Dihb I—
Tage " H&eThr 1ng “Tansporfahon Divecior 34378-2351

ildren are \ﬁ%lking

e Lenory [ Tevalle  Midde -

Annual Sequantial Number

(Use on Map and Attachments)

ype of
Canditlon

1. ] Single Hazard Type

2, [EL CGombination Hazard Type — I . _and Type ,JLL__

Location

{Atlach a map
showing the
dascribed
location(s).)

|

|

I

|

I

|

|

|

I

Nama of Schoo} to which C

I _V‘\“I)(IIIO&.'
‘ T
I

I

|

I

|

|

I

I

|

I

a Alnngw_am RDULIQ 0]

{Sireet or Road Name)

4. Typel from 2.000 e -m to ’I“-
5. Type il from IBOCI€ bﬁ I/p to ?\MK I‘SD
8. Type lli al

7. Type V at

Polnts

(Complete only for
Types fisted on
linas 1 or 2.)

I ————_— g L

— e i, T — e Sy —

_—=#o

Type | - Walking Along a Roadway

8. Highest qualifying grade leve! {through _i grade)

Points
Table 1
9, Locatlon of walkway {on shoulder faet from roadway, or)
{hehind curb or ditch feel from roadway) e Paints
10.  Speed of traffic { —is— mph) i Paolnts
1. Volume of traffic (m vehiclesthour) { 2«- lanas) — T Paints
12.  Length of hazardous section (_J_—. miles) — s Points
13.  Board's judgment points (attach explanation) Polnis
14.  Total of lines 8 through 13 Palnts
Typs il - Walking on a Roadway
18, Highest qualifying grade level {through i grade)
———— Points
46.  Reason for walking on roadway 1600 Toble &
{no shoutder or watkway off pavement for 1=~ feet, or
T Points
narrow bridge or underpassfor_____ feet) avle
17, Spesd of traffic (2O mph) g Points
18.  Volume of traffic { I OO vehiclesihour) (_L lanes} e Points
18. Length of hazardous section ( _‘_'%_ miles) ——— Points
Jable 10
20. Board's judgiment points {attach explahation} Points
21. Total of lines 15 through 20 Palnts

OPER 1945 (Rev. 1/02)




{Con'd} Type It - Crossing a Roadway (Name of roadway baing crossed )

22, Highest qualfying grade level {through grade) — _____ Points
Fabla 11
23. Confrol on roadway being crossed ( } Points
Table 12
24. Speed and valume of traffic { .. mph)
{____ vehicles/hour) : L Points
Tabla 13
25, Width of roadway { . feel) _ . Polnis
Tahie 14
26, Board's judgment polnts (attach explanation) . Points
27. Total of linas 22 through 26 Polnts
Type IV - Crossing Rallroad Tracks
28, Highest qualifying grade level (through ______grade) T Paints
abla
29. Crossing protection and number of tracks o Pois
B Table 16
{ prolection; tracks used)
30. Speed and numbar of tralns
mph; {rains e Points
( P ) Table 17
31. Board's Judgment points (attach explanation) — . Paints
32, Total of lines 28 through 31 — . Polnts
Finding 33, 7] Singie hazard qualifies since polnts InaType_—___situation equals or exceads 12
34. [ Combination hazard qualifies since the total of points
tn a Type situation and polntsinaType ____ situation equals or exceeds 20
a5, [ Hazard Is temporary for . school year {resubmil annually)

Certification | hereby certify that the data in this application, including accompanying maps and slatements, are true and corract

to the bes! of my knowladge and bellef, Board approval was given on dale of 20
and the minutes of this maeling bear evidencas of this approval.

Dale Slgnature of Secretary or President of
Board of Education or Board of Directors

Agtion by liihols Department of Transportatlon

Data Submittal Recelved 20 Serial No,

[J Approved
[} Disapproved for cotractlons, addliions or clarificatlons noted In transmitial letter,

[] Disapproved for reason or reasons noted in transmittal letier.

Date Signalure of IDOT District Englnesr

Relmbursement Estimate (This information will have no effect on IDOT's acfion on the submitlal)

1, Approximately how many students will annually be qualified for busing by this submitial that did not previously qualify for

reimbursablebusing? ________ siudents

2. What Is the projected addltional annual reimbursement that will result from this submittal? o

|
I
l
}
I
|
I
|
|
I
I
|
I
|
I
|
I
I
}
I
I
|
I
|
I
|
|
|
I
I
I
I
|
I
I
I
I
|
I
I
|
I
|
|
I
I
I
I
|
I
I
I
I
!
I
|
|
|

}%




Hlinois Department
/ of Transportation

Serious Safety
Hazard Finding

A publication entitled "School Safety Busing and Instructlons for Submittting Findings" Is available from tha fHinois Department of Transportation,
2300 South Ditksen Parkway, Springfield, lifinols 62784, The school adminlstrator preparing this submittal should refer to the instructions in the booklel.

Two coples of his form ara to be submitted to the IDOT District Office indicated in the instruction boakdet. The IDOT District Office will approve or
disapprove the submittal within thirty (30) days and return one copy to the school district indlcatlng the action taken.

MName of Schootl District Addrass of Administrative Office
“Tri-Villey cusD Joe W"f‘“‘(‘gﬁ‘g 2
District Number Caounty, |llinois, Zip Code
£ el oo W3\ ho It b

TR IR i ing Men Diveth 2187551 “ER”

“Tvans]
e of Schpol o which Children are Wa Annual Sequential Number {Use on Map and Allachments)
A-volley Blewigninin -1 Vo ey Middie = -

Typa of N Single Hazard Typa

Condition

2. [g\ Comblnation Hazard

Type ___1_\.____

and Typa _‘L_“

b

Along W\Qf i &+

Location 3.
{Strael or Road Nama)
{Altach a map
sgg\;vér‘]lgél&e 4, Typel fram to i
location(s). - 3
N s wen  wom AMavd L o ginan g &
8. Type il at &ﬁm \mm 0
7. Typelv  at J
Polrits Type | - Walking Along a Roadway
(C_%lgg!seliigtggigrf‘or 8.  Highest qualifylng grade lavel (through e grade) e FOintS
ines 1 or 2,
) 9, Location of walkway {on shoulder feet from roadway, or}
(behind curb or ditch faat from roadway) T Points
10.  Speed of traffie { mph) T Polnts
1. Volume of traffic ( vehicles/hour) ( lanes) T Polnts
12, Length of hazardous section { ——— mlles) ———— Polnts
13.  Board's judgment palnis {altach explanation) Points
14,  Total of ines 8 through 13 Polnts
Type |1 - Walking on a Roadway
15,  Highest qualifying grade level {through __5/._ gracde)
l Paoints
| 16,  Reason for walking on roadway & Table &
‘ {no shoulder or walkway off pavemnent for —=——foet, or
T Polnis
I narrow bridge or underpassfor______ feet)
i :
| 17, Spaed of traffic { &_ mph) T Polnts
| 8. Volume of trafflc { lm vehiclesihour) ( lahas} — e Polnts
l 19.  Length of hazardous section ( _li?:-__miles) —Ei Points
abia
i 20.  Board's judgment polnis {altach explanation) Puoints
} 21.  Total of lines 15 through 20 Points

OPER 1945 (Rev. 1/02)




b ]

{Con’d) Type Il - Crossing a Roadway {Name of roadway belng crossed Sﬂm lﬂa nal ]

22. Highesl qualfying grade level {through j_hl‘h_ grade) Points

Table 11
23, Controf on roadway being crossed { NO gTSD W\.’[—YDI ) o 1 Polnts
24, Speed and volume of trafflc { _ﬂl mph}
(jl vehicleshour) T Polnis
al
28, Widlh of roadway { _Zi_. feet) _s— Points

Tabla 14
26, Board's Judgment polnts (attach explanation) . Painls
27, Totat of lines 22 through 26 Paints
Type IV - Grossing Rallroad Tracks
28, Highes! qualifying grade level (through ... grade) e Points
Table 16
29. Crassing protection and number of tracks —____ Points
Tabia 16
{_ _ protection; tracks used)
30. Speed and number of fraing
{ mph; tralns) Palnls
Tabla 17
31, Board's judament polnts (attach explanation) e Points
32, Totat of lines 28 through 31 . e POINES
Finding 33. (] Single hazard qualifies since points InaType___ shuation equals or exceeds 12
34. OJ combination hazard qualifies since the tatal of points
in a Type sltuation and polnis in a Type sHuatlon equals or exceeds 20
35, [[] Hazard is temporary for ________ school year (resubmit annually)

Cartlfication { hereby certify that tha data in this application, Including accompanylng maps and statements, are trus and correct

ta the best of my knowledge and belief, Board approval was given on dale of 20
and the minutes of this meeling bear evidence of this approval.

Date Signature of Secratary or Prasidant of
Board of Education or Board of Directors

Actlon by lllinais Department of Transportatlon

Dats Submilital Received 20 Sarlal No.

(3 Approved
L] Disapproved for corrections, addilions or clarifications noted in transmittal letier,

{7 Disapproved for reason or reasons noted In transmittal letler,

Date Signature of IDOT District Engineer

Reimbursement Estlimate (This information will have no effect on IDOT's actlon on the submiital)

1. Approximately how many students will annually be qualified for busing by this submitial that did not previously qualify for

relmbursable busing? . students

2. What s the projected additional annual reimbursement that will result from this submittal? $




R ——— R

e

lllinois Department
/ of Transportation

Serious Safety
Hazard Finding

A publication entfiied *School Safety Busing and Instructlons for Submititing Findings" is avallabla from the Hilnois Depariment of Transportation,
2300 South Dirksen Parkway, Springfleld, linals 62764, The school adminisirator preparing this submiital should refer to the Instruclions |n the booklet.

Two copies of this form are to be submitted to the IDOT District Office Indicated In the Instruction booklet, The IDOT District Office will approve or
disapprove the submittal withln thirly (30} days and return one copy to the school district indicating the action taken.

Name of S{yml istrict

Address of Administrative Offlce

410 & Waoh |

Dis rlc Nymber / County, lllinals, Zip Gode
— 4 Haleain 13| Powwer It L3 b

arpe of Contac resentative Title {Area Code)
IR bring “wopsprtahon Divechy "$i8ast %68

ne of ol to which Childran ars Walkl . IAnnual Sequential Number (Use an Map and Altachmenis)
\/Weu eumqnm/ p -\ tleg Middle —

ch e “r;fn C Single Hozard  { Type |
2. g]_Comblnauon Hazard Type __H_Lm......and Type
Location 3. Along Q 0‘]% € ?Md and FRDUJ‘@ ].SD

(Attach a map

(Siresl or Road Name)

sgg:f(i:rr\i ége 4, Typel  from KOO Al Dd . to
locallon{s)) 8. Type il from FDX R L\.Y\ o (P\m X,le l‘SD
8, Type Kl at
7. Typa iV at
Polnts Type | - Walking Along 8 Roadway
(C?ngglselgtgm%;ar 8. Highes! qualifying grade leval (thraugh ..........L grade) Y] Paints
fhes 1 or2.) Location of walkway {on shoulder— * __ feat from roadway, or)
(behind curbor ditch > fest from roadway) —r— Polnts
10.  Speed of lrafflc (Si mph) e Polnts
1. Volume of trafflc (iOQ vehlclesfhaur} { 2- lanes) —— Points
12, Length of hazardous section (H_’_S— miles) — Points
13,  Board's judgment polnts (attach explanation) Paints
14,  Tolal of lines 8 through 13 Paints
Typs il - Walking on a Roadway
15, Highest qualifying grade level {through j_ grada)
16.  Reason for walking on roadway & s O
{no shouldar or walkway off pavement for fest, or
——__ Points
namow bridge or underpass for—___ fset) Tabla 7
17.  Speed of traffic { _&D_~ mph}) —eEeE— Polnts
18.  Volume of traffic { LDD_ vehiclesfhour) (_a_ lanes) Ty Points
19,  Langth of hazardous section { 4 mlfes) — T Points
20.  Board's judgment polnds (aftach explanation) Points
21, Total of lines 15 through 20 Polnts

OPER 1945 (Rev. 1/02)




{Con'd}

Type 1]l - Crossing a Roadway (Mame of roadway baing crossed

)

22, Highest qualfying grada lavsl! (through grads) e T Paints
2ol
23, Control on roadway being crossed ( } Points
Table 12
24, Speed and volume of traffic (... mph)
{ vehiclesfhour) Points
Table 13
25.  Width of roadway ( feet) —_ ___Paints
Table 14
26. Board's judgment polnts (attach explanation) Paoints
27. Total of lines 22 through 28 Polnts
Type IV - Crossing Rallroad Tracks
28. Highest qualifying grade level (through grade) Polnts
Table 15
29, Crossing protection and number of tracks - Points
Table 16
{_ protection; tracks used)
30. Speed and number of trains
mph; trains Poinis
¢ ¥ ) Table 17
31, Board's judgment points {attach explahation) Polnts
32, Total of ihes 28 through 31 Paints
Finding 33, [] Single hazard qualifies singe points | a Typa______situation equals or excesds 12

a4

35. [ Hazard|s temporaryfor

. 1 Combination hazard qualifies since the totai of

Ina Type situation and polnts in a Type

polnts

situation equals ar exceads 20

school year {resubmlt annuatly)

Cerlification

and the minutes of this meating bear evidence of this approval,

| hereby cattlify that the data in this applicafion, Including accompanying maps and stateirents, are true and correct
1a the bast of my knowiedge and balief. Board approval was given on date of 20

Date

Slgnalure of Secratary or President of
Hoard of Education or Board of Directors

Aclion by Hinos Department of Transpoitation

Date Submittal Recelved

20

Ul Approved

N Bisapproved for corrections, addltions or clarifications noted in transmittal letier,

1 Dlsapproved for reason or reasons noted In fransmiltal lstter.

Serlal No.

Date

Signature of IDOT Dislrict Engineer

Reimbuysement Estimate (This Information will have no sffect on IDOT's actlon on the submittal)

1. Approximately haw many students will annually be qualified for busing by this submiital that did not previously qualify for

reimbursable busing?

students

2. Whatis the projected addltional annual relmbursement that will result from this submittal? 3




BUSHUE

: (217) 342-56

June 9, 2022

Tri-Valley CUSD #3

410 E. Washington St.
Downs, IL 61736

Attention: Dr, David Mouser

Dear Dr. Mouser,
RE: PROPERTY/CASUALTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE RENEWALS

The attached summary illustrates the expiring and renewal coverages with the current insurance carriers,
Selective Insurance through VanGundy Insurance from Normal, IL., StarStone through Ramza Insurance Group
from Streator, IL., US Fire Insurance through Alliant Insurance from Chicago, 1L, and US Fire Insurance,
through Gallagher from Davenport, IA.

Our attached Renewal Worksheet Forms show the expiring and renewal coverage from Selective Insurance,
StarStone, and US Fire Insurance. The first column of each page is the expiring insurance coverage for the
District. The second column is the renewal coverage as presented by the current insurance carrier and agent.

US Fire Insurance is no longer handling Bonds. Therefore, a renewal quote was not provided. Alliant Insurance
obtained a quote from Liberty Mutual Surety for the 2022-2023 Term.

Following are some changes from the expiring:

¢ The Blanket Limit and Statement of Values (SOV) have been reviewed with Administration, and the
values have been increased to better reflect Replacement Cost Values. The Blanket Limit increased from
$75,097,215 to $77,350,121, per the District’s request.

» The following changes were made to the Inland Marine, per the District’s request.

o The value for Computer Hardware, Software, and Related Equipment increased from $430,000
to $530,000.

o A 2012 Snowplow for Kubota RTV with a value of $5,100 was removed,

o A RTV Rotary Sweeper with a value of $7,100 was removed.

o A 2021 Kubota Zero Turn was added for a value of $13,500.

» The Worker’s Compensation payrolls decreased for the renewal, per the District’s request. The 8868
Class Code (Colleges or Schools, Teachers) payroll decreased from $6,732,000 to $6,724,000; the 7380
Class Code (Drivers, Chauffeurs, & Their Helpers) payroll decreased from $275,000 to 270,000; and the
9101 Class Code (All Other Employees) decreased from $660,000 to $600,000.

» The Worker’s Compensation rates were modified for the renewal. The 8868 Class Code (Colleges or
Schools, Teachers) rate decreased from 0.31 to 0.30, the 7380 Class Code (Drivers, Chauffeurs, & Their
Helpers) rate increased from 7.84 to 7.86, and the 9101 Class Code (All Other Employees) rate
decreased from 3.23 to 3.18.

* The Experience Modification Rating increased from 0.76 in 2021 to 0.78 for 2022. The standard
Experience Modification Rating is 1.00.




e The Treasurer’s Bond Amount decreased from $5,000,000 to $3,750,000, per the District’s request,

The Alternate Proposal (1) reflects an increase in premium attributable to the Property value increase, overall
rate increases, and the current economic conditions. The premium increase is in the amount of $14,438, which
is 9.47% above the expiring.

The Alternate Proposal (2) reflects a premium increase of $2,1E}2, which is 1.38% above the expiring. This

proposal reflects the Property Deductible Per Occurrence of $2,500 with a $25,000 Wind / Hail Deductible Per
Occurrence.

We appreciate the opportunity to serve the District. If you have any questtons, please feel free to contact our
office.

Respectfully,

R L
Travis J. Bushue

President, Bushue HR, Inc.

BRE

ireed Risk Management C any Focusing on Humar

liéur:_u_lce,_Baci_&gfup'_nlS(_:___ ening and Fi_l_lggrp_l_'i_uting e




Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022

Property & General Liability Renewal Form

VanGundy Ins

Blanket, All Risk 75,097,213 77,350,121
Cverall Building Limit Engluded Included
Schoci District Personal Property Encluded Included
Replacement Cost/ ACY RC RC
Deductible Per Occurrence 1,000 §,000 ¥
Coinsurance % 100% 100%
Earthquake Coverage Limit 75,097,215 77,350,121
Earthquake Deductible Per Oucurrence 1% 10%
Rate Level Guaranteed (If yes, how lon - One {1) Yeur
; TOpE! remium: $49,860.00 564,192.00
Wil the policy provide full coverage, up to maximom policy Limits, for Backup of No No
Sewer/Surface Water coverage?
If no, please state the Limit, 180,800 104,000
Daoes the policy provide coverage for Flood Coverage? No No
If ves, please state the Linit, - -
If yes, please state the Flood Coverage Dedwciible Per Occurrence. - -
Does the pelicy provide coverage for Mine Subsidence? Mo No
If'yes, please state the Limit. - -
Blanket Limit, If Applicable. - -
Dues the policy provide Ordinance or Law coverage? Yes Yes
Limit Per Coverage A. Full Blanket Limit Full Bianket Limit
Limit Per Coverage B. 500,000 304,000
Limit Per Coverage C. 500,000 300,000
Limit Per Building, If Applicable. . -
Blanket Limit, {f Applicable. - -
Docs the policy have Time Eicment (Extra Expense) Coverage, If so please state the Yes Yes
Limit(s)?
Blawket Linit, If Applicable. Included Included
Per Location Limii, If Applicable, - -
Dacs the policy have Business Income Coverage, if so please state the Limit(s)? Yes Yes
Blanket Limit, If Applicable. - -
Per Location Linit, If Applicable. 550,000 350,000

General Aggrepate 2,000,000 2,000,000
Products Completed Ops. 2,000,000 2,000,000
Persenal & Advertising Injury 1,000,000 1,000,060
Each Occurrence Limit 1,000,000 1,000,000
Fire Damage Limit 1,000,000 1,000,900
Medical Expense Limit 20,000 20,600
Deductible Per Occurrence 0 ]
Employee Benefils Liability - —
Aggregate Limit 2,000,000 2,000,000
Oceurrence Limit 1,000,000 1,000,000
Deductible Per Occurronce £,000 1,000
Retroactive Date 7/1/2009 7/1/2009
Sexual Abuse and Molestation - -
Aggregate Limis 2,000,000 2,000,000
Occurrence Limit 1,060,600 £,000,008
Deductible Per Occurrence ] 0
Made or Occurrence Occutretice Oceurrence
$18,33%.00 $19,616.00




Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
Property & General Liability Renewal Form

Employee Theft - Blanket Limit 100,000 100,000
Deductible Per Occurrence 0 0
Inside Premises - Robbery or Safe Burglary of Other Propexty 25,001 25,001
Inside Premises - Theft of Money and Securities 25,001 25,001
Inside Premises Deductible Per Oceurrence 500 500
25,001 25,001
0 0
$1,546.00 $1,688.00

75,007,215

1,000 1,000
Included Encladed
Included Inciuded

d

Computer Hardware, SoRware and Related Equipment 430,000 530,000
Cameras - Limit-Motion Pictures 80,000 30,000
Musieal Instrumenis - All Other Bands 100,000 100,000
Radios and Satellite Dishes 30,000 30,000
2042 Snow Plow for Kubota RTY 5,100 -
2012 Kubota Zero Tum 331 Mower #35744% 13,700 13,700
2020 Kubota M5-09t HDC 12-1 w/Loader LA 1854 60,000 60,000
2012 Kubota RTV 1100 #35697 16,900 16,300
2012 Kubota 14 Batwing Finish Mower #755676 12,975 12,975
RTV Rolary Sweeper 1,100 -
2021 Kubota Zero Turn Mower - 13,500
Miscellaneous Tools and Equipment 57,000 57.000
Deductible Per Occurrence 1,000 1,000
Tolat Inland §3,855.60 3343100

: AREEN
Total Property Premiwn 49,860.00 64,192,600
‘Total Liability Premium 18,339.00 19,616.00
Total Crime Premium 1,946.00 1,688.00
Tatal Boiler & Machinery Premiuin Inciuded Incladed
Total Inland Marine Premivm 3,855.00 3,451.00
Totat Bremiiin: : $74,000.00 $88,947.00
Does the coverage & premiums include Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA) Yes Yes
coverage?

If ves, pleuse advise the total dollar amonnt. Included Tncluded

Note:
Selective Insurance

* Selective Insurance provided an Altemate Proposal for the District to consider. The District has the eption to increase the Properiy Deduetible Per Occursence from $1,000 te

$2,500 with a $25,000 Wind/Hail Deductible Per Oceurrence; for a savings in premium of $12,336,

These Proposal worksheets were provided and prepared as a service to Tri-Valley CUSD #3. These workshects or excerpts thereof contain information that (a) is or may be
LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and {b) is intended only for
the use of Tri-Valley CUSD #3, You are hereby notified that using, copying, or distributing any part of these proposat worksheets is strictly prohibited. Copyright 2022 Bushue

HR, Inc.




Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
Automobile Renewal Form

anGun Il}s

VanGundy Ins,

GiG Liab . G
Number of Vehicles 28 28
Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability 1,000,000 £,000,000
Medical Payments 5,000 5,000
Uninsured Motorist 1,000,000 1,000,000
Underinsured Motorists 1,000,000 1,000,000
Hired Auto 1,000,000 1,000,000
MNon-Owned Auto 1,000,000 1,000,000
Garage Liability - -
Garage Keepers Legal Liability - “

Comprehensive 500 500
Collision 1,000 1,000
$21,618.00 $23,316.00
Daes the coverage & premiums include Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA) Yes Yes
coverage?
Will the insurance carrier grant permission to operate the buses under conditions where a No No

charge would be made to the students?

Will the insurer provide coverage for ali additional insured's, including coverage for Board
of Education Members, Employees, and Volunteers while using their own vehicles on behatf
of the School District?

Does the medical payments coverage include students as passengess in vehicles?

Will the company accept this coverage without other lines?

Will the insurer furnish #special trips” coverage for tours, outings, picnics, games, and
similar activities? Also, the use of the buses by the elderly as permitted by law shall be
included. The carrier will confirm that coverage shall be available for these activities and
indicate the audit charge per trip in the proposal.

Will the insurance carrier provide coverage for rental vehicles?

Daes the policy include Replacement Cost on Buses?
If ves, please provide details.

Yes - Excess Basis

Yes
Ne

Case by Case Basis

Yes - Excess Basis

Yes
No

Case By Case Basis

Yes

No

These Proposal worksheets were provided and prepared as a service fo Tri-Valley CUSD #3. These worksheets or excerpts thereof contain information that (a) is or
may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and (b) is
intended only for the use of Tri-Valley CUSD #3. You are hereby notified that using, copying, or distributing any part of these proposal worksheets is strictly

prohibited. Copyright 2022 Bushue HR, Inc,




Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
Umbrella Renewal Form

Insurance Agency Name VanGundy Ins. VanGundy Ins.

mw ggo&xﬁ

(General Aggregate Limit 5,000,000 5,000,000

Self-Insured Retention (SIR) 0 0
The Qceurrence Limit is stated for each of the Underlying Coverages

General Liability 1,000,000 1,000,000
Employee Benefits Liability 1,000,000 1,060,000
Sexual Misconduct & Molestation 1,000,000 1,000,000
Automotive Liability 1,000,000 1,000,000
School Board Legal Liability (SBLL) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Employers Liability - Worker's Compensation 1,000,000 1,000,000
T m $15,313.00 $15,971.00
Does the coverage & premiums include TRIA Yes Yes
{Terrorism Risk Insurance Act) coverage?

If yes, please advise the total doflar amount. Included Included

These Proposal worksheets were provided and prepared as a service to Tri-Valley CUSD #3. These worksheets or excerpts thereof
contain information that (a) is or may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR
OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and (b) is intended only for the use of Tri-Valley CUSD #3. You

are hereby notificd that using, copying, or distributing any part of these proposal worksheets is strictly prohibited. Copyright 2022
Bushue HR, Inc.



Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
School Board Legal Liability Renewal Form

2,000,001

Each Claim Lirnit 1,000,000 1,000,000
Deductible Per Occurrence 5,000 5,000
5,000 5,000
$4,508.00 $4,522.00
* All taxes, surplus line charges, fees, ete, must be included in the Annual Premium.
Daes the coverage and premium include Terrorism Risk Insurance Act (TRIA) Yes Yes
coverage?
Does a Retroactive Date apply? : Yes Yes
If yes, please specify the date. 112005 7172605
Piease indicate whether coverage is on Claims Made or Occurrence Basis. Claims Made Claims Made
For Claims Made policies, is Prior Acls coverage available? Full Prior Acts - Up to the Retroactive Full Prior Acts - Up to the Retroactive
Date Date
Ifyes, please indicate the additional cost. Included Included
1f additionat requirements must be met prior to binding please indicate. N/A None
Dees the above proposal provide full coverage for Sexual Covered Under General Liability Covered Under General Liability
Misconduct/Abuse/Molestation/Harassment?
Does the policy provide coverage for Defense Costs, even if not successful? Yes Yes
Does the policy provide coverage for Due Process? No Ne
State Sub-Liniit for this, if any. - -
Does the policy provide a Consent to Settle Provision? No Ne
Are Defense Bxpenses within the Limit of Liability? Ne No

State Sub-Limit for Defense Expenses, if any. - -

Please Describe any pollcy Sub-Limits; (Please list other Sub-Limits not included in ¢his list below)

Limit/Sub-Limit for Speciat Education. Limited Civil Legal Liability Limited to Civil Liabitity
Limit/Sub-Limit for Breach of Centract. - -
Limit/Sub-Limi¢ for Sexual Abuse/Molestation. Covered Under General Liability Covered Under General Liability

These Proposal worksheets were provided and prepared as a service to Tri-Valley CUSD #3. These worksheets or ¢xcerpts thereof contain information that (a) is or
may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and (b)
is intended only for the vse of Tri-Valley CUSD #3. You are hereby notified that using, copying, or distributing any part of these proposal worksheets is strictly
prohibited. Copyright 2022 Bushue HR, Inc,



Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
Worker's Compensation Renewal Form

Insurance Agency Name

Ramnza Ins, Group Ramza Ins, Groug

Emiplo

mplg P
Bodily Injury Accident 1,600,000 1,000,000
Bodily Injury Disease 1,000,000 1,000,000
Bodily Injury Discase - Employee 1,600,000 1,000,000
Cod e iated
8868: Colleges or Schools, Teachers 56,732,000 0.31 $6,724,000 0.30
7380: Drivers, Chauffeurs, and Their Helpers $275,000 7.84 $270,000 71.86
91¢1: All Other Employees $660,000 3.23 $600,000 3.18
$32,926.00 §30,734.00
Experience Modification 0.76 Experience Modification 0.78

These Proposat worksheets were provided and prepared as a service to Tri-Valley CUSD #3, Thesc workshects or excerpts thereof contain information that (a) is or may be
LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and (b} is intended onky for

the use of Tri-Valley CUSD #3. You are hereby notified that using, copying, er distributing any part of these propesal worksheets is strictly prohibited. Copyright 2022 Bushue HR,
Inc.



Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
Treasurer's Bond Renewal Form

Alliant I

HSUY on A1t AL :
Principal on Bond Kathryn Hammer Kathryn Hatmmer
Limit of Bond 5,000,000 3,750,000
Term of Bond July 1, 2021 - July 1, 2022 July 1, 2022 - July {, 2023
Bond Number 612202550 285068646
£ $2,750.00 $2,063.00

Note:

US Fire Insurance
US Fire is no longer handling Bonds. Therefore, a renewal quote was not provided, Alliant Insurance obtained a quote from Liberty Mutual

Surety for the 2022-2023 Term.

These Proposal worksheets were provided and prepared as a service to Tri-Valley CUSD #3. These worksheets or excerpts thereof contain
information that (a) is or may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR OTHERWISE
PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and (b} is intended only for the use of Tri-Valley CUSD #3. You are hereby notified that
using, copying, or distributing any part of these proposal worksheets is strictly prohibited. Copyright 2022 Bushue HR, Inc.




Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022
Student Accident Renewal Form

GaHagher Gallagher

B

5,000,000 5,000,000
25,000 25,000
Ten (10) Ycars Ten (E0) Years
$1,298.00 $1,298.00
Is this Insurance Primary? No No
Is the Student Accident Insurance School Time Coverage Only? Yes Yes
If no, please explain the coverage time. - -
If School Time Coverage Only, please define School Time. School Sponsored To & From School Sponsored To & From
Does this Insurance cover Student Athletes for Football? Not Requested Not Requested
Does this Insurance cover Sunumer Sports Activities? Yes Yes
Dogs this Insurance cover Student Athletes for activities that start before the Yes Yes

actual School year begins?

These Proposat worksheets were provided and prepared as & service to Tri-Valley CUSD #3. These worksheets or excerpts thereof contain information that
(a) is or may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY IN NATURE, OR OTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM
DISCLOSURE, and (b) is intended only for the use of Tri-Valley CUSD #3. You are hereby notified that using, copying, or distributing any part of these
proposal worksheets is strictly prohibited. Copyright 2022 Bushue HR, Inc.




'Tri-Valley CUSD #3 - Renewal Date: 07/01/2022

Totals

VanGundy Ins, / Ramza Ins, Group/  VanGundy Ins. / Ramza Ins, Group /
Alllant Ins_.l Gallag

Insurance Agency Nanwe Alliant Ins, f Gallag

ifeeh)

her _

VanGundy Ins, / Ramza Ing, Group /
Alliant Ins. / Gallagher

9,860.00 £4,192.00 51,836.00
Total Liabitity Premium 18,339.00 19,616.00 19,616.00
TFotal Crime Premium 1,546,00 1,688.00 1,688.00
Tota! Boiler & Machinery Premium Iaclided Included Inchaded
Totat Inland Maring Premium 3,855.00 345100 3,451.00
21,6§8.00 23,316.00 23,316.00
15,313.00 15,971.00 15,971.00
4,508.00 4,522.00 4,522.00
32,926.00 30,734.00 30,734.00
2,750.00 2,063.00 2,063.60
1,298.00 1,298.00 1,298.00
o $152,413.00 5166,851.00 $154,515.00
Savings (514,438.00) {52,102.00)
Percentage of Increase 0.47% 1.38%

Notes:
Selective [nsurance

Selective Insurance provided an Altemate Proposat for the District to cansider, The Districl has the oplion to increase the Property Deductible Per Occurrence from $1,000 (o $2,500 with a $25,000 Wind/Hail

Peductible Per Oceurrence; for a savings in premium of $12,336. This preposal is included in the "Alternate Proposat (2)" shown
US Fire Insurance

abave.

'US Fire is no fonger handling Bonds, Therefore, a tenewal quote was not provided. Alliant Insurance obtained a quote from Liberty Mutual Surety for the 2022-2023 Term.

Thess Proposal worksheets were provided and prepared as a service to Fri-Vatley CUSD #3. These worksheels or sxcerpls thereof contain information that (7) is or may be LEGALLY PRIVILEGED,
CONFIDENTIAL, PROPRIETARY TN NATURE, OR GTHERWISE PROTECTED BY LAW FROM DISCLOSURE, and (b) is intended otsly for the use of Tri-Velley CUSD #13, You are hereby notified that

using, copying, or disteibuting any part of these proposat worksheets is sirictly prohibited. Copyright 2622 Bushue HR, Tne.

For your reviews, wo hava proparad an illustrative summary which grovides a briol aulling of coverages providad,
“Tris summary Is for laslrative purposes only, and dogs not provide & comprehensive ovendew of your comglale polcies,

ploase refer ta your complate policy for reviswy of alf s, and i T you Feal that any of ihese coverages
or limits are not comect, inagdequate, please lel us know.




618122, 2:31 PM

Grant Application

[ Close Printer Friendly Page

Applicant: TRI VALLEY CUSD 3 County: Mclean Consolidated District Plan

\pplication: 2022-2023 Consolidated District Plan - 00

Cycle: Original Application

Printer-Friendly

Click to Return to Application Select

Project Number: 23-CDP-00-17-064-0030-26

Boarp GoALs:

FY 2023
Included
Programs:

LEGISLATION:

Overview
PROGRAM: Consolidated District Plan
PurpPOSE: The District Plan shall be developed with timely and meaningful consultation with teachers,

principals, other school ieaders, paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,
charter school leaders, administrators, other appropriate school personnel, and parents of
children in schools served under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) legislation, and as
appropriate, is coordinated with other programs under ESSA, the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.), the Rehabhilitation Act of 1973 (20 U.S5.C. 701 et seq.),
the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (20 U.5.C.2301 et
seq.), the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act {29 U.S.C. 3103 et seq.), the Head Start
Act (42 U.S.C. 9831 et seq.), the McKinney-Vente Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C, 11301
et seq.), the Adult Education and Family Literacy Act {29 U.5.C. 3271 et seq.}, and other Acts
as appropriate.

« Student Learning: Every child will make significant academic gains each year, increasing
their knowledge, skills, and opportunities so they graduate equipped to pursue a successful
future, with the state paying special attention to addressing historic inequities.

« Learning Conditions: All schools will receive the resources necessary to create safe, healthy,
and welcoming learning environments, and will be equipped to meet the unique academic and
social and emational needs of each and every child.

s Elevating Educators: Illinois’ diverse student population will have educators who are
prepared through multiple pathways and are supported in and celebrated for their efforts to
provide each and every child an education that meets their needs.

Title I, Part A - Improving Basic Programs
Title 1, Part A - School Improvement Part 1003
Title I, Part D - Delinguent

Title I, Part D - Neglected

Title I, Part D - State Neglected/Delinquent

Title 11, Part A - Preparing, Training, and Recruiting High-Quality Teachers, Principals, and
Other School Leaders

Title I1I - Language Instruction Educational Program (LIEP)

Title III - Immigrant Student Education Program (ISEP)

Title 1V, Part A - Student Support and Academic Enrichment

Title V, Part B - Rural and Low Income Schools

IDEA, Part B - Flow-Through

IDEA, Part B - Preschool

Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Grant [I

American Rescue Plan - LEA (Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Grant III)
Foster Care Transportation Plan

Every Student, Succeeds Act {(ESSA)

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

Rehabilitation Act

Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act
Workforce Inngvation and Opportunity Act

Head Start Act

https:ffapps.isbe.net/eGrant_Web/ApplicationShell.aspx

1/2



6/8/22, 2:31 PM

DuE DaTE:

DURATION:

AMENDMENTS:

INSTRUCTIONS!

CoMMON
ABBREVIATIONS!:

Grant Application

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act

Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021 (CRRSA) ESSER II
American Rescue Plan Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ARP ESSER)
Adult Education and Family Literacy Act

District plans must be submitted to the Illinois State Board of Education and approved before
any FY 2023 grant applications for included programs can be approved.

Submission by April 1 is recommended.

The District Plan was submitted initially for the school year 2022-2023 and must be updated
annually thereafter.

Each Local Education Agency {LEA) shall periodically review and, as necessary, revise the plan
throughout the year. Plan amendments may necessitate amendment of the associated grant
application{s) as well.

Instructions in PDF format

ESSA - Every Student Succeeds Act (also referenced as the Elementary and Secondary
Education Act [ESEA] of 1965 as Amended)

IDEA - Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
ISBE - IHinois State Board of Education

LEA - Local Educational Agency

LIEP - Language Instruction Educational Program
SEA - State Education Agency

https:/fapps.isbe.net/eGrant_Web/ApplicationShell.aspx

202



Athletic Trainer Services Agreement

THIS EXCLUSIVE ATHLETIC TRAINER AGREEMENT (the ‘AGREEMENT’ is made as of June 6™, 2022 {the
“Effective Date”) by and between Orthopedic and Sports Enhancement Center, (OSEC) and Tri-Valley
High School! { the “School *). OSEC and Schoa! are each referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as
the “Parties”.

WHEREAS, OSEC, AS PART OF ITS MISSION TO PROMOTE THE HEALTH OF THE COMMUNITY, WITH TO
PROVIDE Its COMMUNITY WITH COMPREHENSIVE, AND EFFICIENT Athletic Training services (the
”Services”) and assures the coordination and sound administration for such Services for the benefit of
School and its student athletes (the “Student Athlete”) and,

WHEREAS, OSEC maintains a staff of certified and licensed athletic trainers (the “ ATHLETIC TRAINERS”)
and desires to provide Services to School and it’s Student Athletes; and,

WHEREAS, School maintains and the Student Athletes participate in a variety of sports programs at
Schaol sports facilities; and,

WHEREAS, Schoal, desires to utilize OSEC’s Services for the benefit of its Student Athletes, and OSEC
desires make available the Trainer to provide such Services pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements of the Parties
contained herein and the mutual benefits to be gained by the performance thereof and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiently of which is hereby acknowledge, the Parties do
covenant and agree as follows:

l. Recitals

1.1 The parties agree that the foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and are an integral part
of this agreement.

Il. OSEC Obligations

2.1 OSEC will arrange to make the Athletic Trainer available to provide Services at School
athletic competitions and practices from the opening day of the IHSA Fall Sport Season through the end
of the IHSA Spring Sport Season for all Tri-Valley High School athletic teams. The School and Athletic
Trainer will meet prior to the start of each season to discuss which sports and practices the Athletic
Trainer will Service. Athletic Trainer shall not be scheduled to provide Service for more than 1500 hours
for the year at School’s athletic competitions and practices; consistent with the High School’s schedule
of athletic competitions and practices as provided in Section 3.1 of this Agreement.

2.2 The Athletic Trainer shall maintain all appropriate state and federal licenses and
certifications required to provide Services consistent with their respective professions. The Service
provided by the trainer shall be consistent with the standard of care for the respective profession and
the policies and procedures of OSEC and the School.



2.3 The Athletic Trainer shall appropriately document the Service provided to School’s Student Athletes
in a manner consistent with the documentation standards of the respective profession. OSEC shall
retain sole ownership and possession of such records and maintain and preserve the confidentiality of
such records as required by state and federal law. OSEC, with the consent of Student Athlete’s parent or
guardian, and the Student Athletes and the Student Athlete’s parent or guardian may reguest copies of
these records as permitted by law and pursuant to OSEC’s policies and procedures in that regard.

2.4 OSEC and the Athletic Trainer shall both maintain professional liability insurance coverage with
respect to their professional duties in providing Services to School and School’s Student Athletes during
the term of this Agreement. School shall maintain at its sole expense general liability insurance
coverage during the term of this Agreement.

. School Obligations.

3.1 Consistent with the Parties’ Agreement and at least ten (10) days prior to the commencement of
each semester, School will provide the Athletic Trainer with a complete schedule of School’s athletic
competition and practice for which the School will require the Service of the Athletic Trainer, not to
exceed forty (40) hours per week. If two events are occurring at the same time, the Athletic Trainer and
the School will decide what event the Athletic Trainer will attend. School and Athletic Trainer will meet
monthly to confirm and update the schedule. The Athletic Trainer must have 48 hours of notice prior to
the event changing if not due to weather cancellation. Notification of game additions must be sent via
email to the Athletic Trainer 5 days prior to competition. Both parties understand the importance of the
Athletic Trainer's schedule for School and coordinating it with the Athletic Trainers’ weekly schedule in
OSEC office setting.

3.2 The School shall obtain an appropriate consent for treatment form agreed to by the Parties and
then signed by a Student Athlete’s parent or guardian prior to the commencement of the sports season
in which the Student Athlete participles., permitting the Student Athletes to receive Services from the
Trainer,

3.3 School agrees to provide all sports medicine supplies for the Athletic Trainer. The School will give the
Athletic Trainer a budget to be able to purchase all necessary supplies as deemed by the Athletic
Trainer.

3.4 School agrees to “Advertise/Market” OSEC as a sports medicine provider for the School. School
agrees to display a banner identifying OSEC as the provider of Services at the School at the School’s
athletic venues. School agrees to identify the OSEC and its physicians; Dr. Robert Seidl, Dr. Anthony
Dustman, Dr. Bryce Paschold, Dr. Tyler Neal as providing the services during pre-game, in-game and / or
during halftime public announcements at all home sporting events where an announcer is present.
School agrees to provide opportunities for the Athletic Trainer and OSEC physicians/staff to address
parents and Student Athletes during the academic school year.

1. Compensation

4.1 OSEC Shall provide the Services through an Athletic Trainer for the School in return for School's
agreement to advertise the Services provided and an annual fee of $7500. This fee does not include




post-season tournament coverage. If the School would like Athletic Training services for post-season
tournament coverage, the School will be invoiced at $30 an hour.

V. Term and Termination

5.1 The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue in effect for an
initial term of 1 year {The Initial term”)}. If still in effect at the end of the Initial Term, this Agreement
shall automatically renew for additional consecutive 1 terms absent written Notice by either Party of
non-renew to the other party 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or any subsequent
Renewal term of this Agreement, If athletics do not occur due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the school is
responsible for full payment of Athletic Training services.

5.2 Events of Termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated upon
the occurrence of any one (1) of the following events:

5.2.1 This Agreement may be terminated upon the mutual written agreement of the parties;

5.2.2 This Agreement may be terminated for cause upon thirty (30) days written Notice of
termination by either Party in the event of material breach of this Agreement by the other Party. In
such event, the non-breaching Party shall describe the specific nature of the breach in said Notice and
shall request that said breach be cured within the {30) day Notice period. If the breaching Party does
not cure the breach within said thirty (30) day Notice period, the non-breaching party may terminate
the Agreement immediately after completion of the thirty (30) day Notice period. Such termination
shall not preclude the non-breaching Party from pursuing any and all additional remedies it may have at
law or in equity.

5.3 Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not release or discharge either
Party from any obligation, debt or liability which shall have previously accrued and remain to be
performed upen the date of termination.

V1. Exclusivity

6.1 OSEC and Schoo! have determined that an exclusive arrangement for the provision of the
Services is necessary to assure consistent and quality Services to School and its Student Athletes.
Therefore, OSEC shall be the exclusive provider of Services at School. During the term of this agreement
and any extension or renewal thereof, no other provider shall be permitted to perform Services at
School.

Vil. Confidentiality of Records

7.1 Each Party shall maintain the confidentiality of all Student Athlete records as required by
each party’s policies and procedures and all applicable federal and state laws, rules and regulations.

Viil. Indemnification

8.1 A Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify and hold the other party {the
“Indemnified Party”) harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages,
costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees directly resulting from any negligent or willful



act or omission of the Indemnifying Party, its agents, or employees. Motwithstanding anything to the
contrary of this section, an Indemnifying Party shall not be liable to the Indemnified Party for
consequential, exemplary, or punitive damages. An Indemnifying Party’s duty to indemnify, defend and
hold harmless the Indemnified Party shall only apply to the extent that the Indemnified Party’s loss is
not covered by insurance. The indemnification provisions of this Section are in addition to, and in lieu
of, any common law rights of contribution existing under the laws of the state of lllinois, which a party
may have against the other Party or its agents or employees.

IX. Independent Contractor.

9.1 In performing Services hereunder, each party is acting as an independent contractor. No
relationship of employer and employee or principal and agent is created by this Agreement. Neither
Party nor any of its respective employees or agents shall be entitled to the other Party’s employee
henefits of any kind. Any compensation set forth in this Agreement shall not be subject to any
withholding for income ore occupations taxes, FICA, or similar deductions, it begin understood that the
employing Party is responsible for paying any and all such items. Each Party shall indemnify and hold
the other Party harmless from any and all liability resulting directly or indirectly from the employing
Party’s failure to withhold or pay and such items.

X. Miscellaneous Provision

10.1 Change in Law. Neither Party shall take any action required or permitted hereunder, if any
judicial decision, legislative action, regulatory or other administrative interpretation, whether federal or
state, would render unlawful the conduct of either Party hereunder (“change in faw”). In the event of
such a Change in Law, The Parties shall be required to act in good faith to restructure the business
arrangement between the Parties to conform to then existing Laws. If the Parties have not reached an
agreement regarding the material terms of the restructured business arrangement within thirty (30)
days following the date both Parties are on notice of a Change in Law (the “restructuring Discussions”),
this Agreement shall immediately and automatically terminate, whereupon neither party shall
thereafter have any further duty of obligation hereunder, except for rights, duties, or obligations arising
prior to the effective date of such termination.

10.2. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed and original, but all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

10.3. Waiver. Any waiver of any terms and conditions hereof must be in writing, and signed by the
Parties hereto, A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shali not be construed as a waiver of
any other terms and conditions hereof.

10.4 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable, and, if any portion shall
be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this Agreement shall be
effective and binding upon the Parties.



10.5 Headings. All headings herein are inserted only for convenience and ease of reference and are not
to consideration the construction or interpretation of any provisions of this Agreement,

10.6 Governing Law. This Agreement and any dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to
this Agreement or a breach thereof, shall be construed under the laws of the State of lllinois. The
exclusive venue for any disputes, controversies or claims between the parties arising out of the
performance or non-performance of this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of Mclean County,
iliinois.

10.7 Notices. Any Notice herein required or permitted to be given shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to be duly given on the date of service if served personally on the other party, or on the (2"
business day after mailing, if mailed to the other Party by certified mail, return receipt requested,
postage pre-paid, and addressed to the Parries as follows:

To OSEC:

Orthopedic and Sports Enhancement Center
2406 East Empire St.

Bloomington, 1L 61704

Attn: Manager

To School:
Tri-Valley High School
503 E Washington St

Downs, 1L 61736

10.8 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement among the Parties with
respect to the Services described herein. This Agreement supersedes any and all other prior agreements
either written or oral, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

Signature (OSEC): Date:

Signature (School}: Date:

|
x
|
|



Tri-Valley CUSD #3
Behavioral
Intervention
Procedures

Proposed for Approval

by Board of Education
at June 15, 2022 Meeting



Table of Contents

Introduction to General POliCy «......cccoiiiiii 2
Behavioral Oversight Committee .................c i 3
Staff Development on Behavior Strategies and Behavioral Interventions ............... 5
Multi-Tiered System of Supports for Behavior Management.............................. 6
Tier 1 Behavioral Proactive Strategies ... 7
Tier 2 Behavioral Inferventions ... e 8
Tier 3 Behavioral Interventions ... 12
Decision Guidelines for Highly Restrictive Interventions.................................. 14
Notifications and Parent Rights................. o 16
Time Limits of Restrictive Interventions ... 18
Prohibited Interventions ... 19
Staff Training. ... ..o 20
District Review of Policyand Data..................... e 21
Appendices
FBA/BIP Form Template (A). ..ot s 23
Documenting the Use of Physical Management - ISBE Form (B).........ccccciiiiinne 25

State Board of Education Guidelines for Dissemination of Procedures/Policies(C)....26
District Student Discipline Policies and Procedures {D).........c.cccvoiiiniiciannnns 27

District Use of isolated Time Qut and Physical Restraint Policy (E).......cooccovinii 28



Introduction to General Policy

While all students with special needs enrolled in Tri-Valley CUSD #3 have individual
education plans, our district utilizes the multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS)
framework when addressing student behavior. At Tier 1, all students participate in
program-wide proactive systems which are specific to the elementary, middle, or high
school level (e.g. Leader in Me, Vikings of Valor, Student of the Month). At Tiers 2 and
3, behavioral interventions are implemented that are developed to support students
beyond what is provided within the program-wide system.

A fundamental principle is that positive, non-aversive strategies and interventions
designed to develop and strengthen desirable student’s behaviors should be used
whenever possible at Tiers 2 and 3. In accordance with this policy, positive
interventions shall be given the highest priority and shall always accompany the use of
more restrictive procedures.

Tier 3 behavioral intervention procedures may occur when a student’'s behavior is
such that it poses a danger to themselves or others, results in destruction of
property, demonstrates noncompliance with the program's rules and regulations,
and/or is unable to access Free and Appropriate Public Education (FAPE).

When behavioral interventions are used, they will be used in consideration of the pupil’s
physical freedom and social interaction. They will be administered in a manner that
respects human dignity and personal privacy that will ensure a pupil’s right to placement
in the Least Restrictive Environment (LRE).

District procedures are developed in accordance with 105 ILCS 5/14-8.05 and address
student discipline, suspension and expulsion procedures, bus conduct, student
misconduct, and the use of accompanied time out and physical restraint. Please see
Appendices for specific policies.



Behavioral Oversight Commitfee

A five-member Behavioral Oversight Committee (BOC) was created consisting of the
Superintendent or their designee, three district staff (with specializations in behavior
management and behavioral supports) and a parent of a student.

The duties and responsibilities of the Behavior Oversight Committee are as foliows:

1. Develop and review district policies and procedures on the use of behavioral
interventions for students with disabilities who require such intervention.

2. Ensure that district policies and procedures emphasize proactive strategies and
positive interventions designed to develop and strengthen desirable behaviors.

3. Review and monitor incidents involving the emergency use of restrictive
interventions.

4. Ensure there is a procedure for the distribution of policy and procedures to
parents and guardians of all students with individualized educational plans. These
policies and procedures will be distributed:

o Within 15 days after the policies and pracedures have been adopted by
the Board of Education.

o Within 15 days after the Board of Education has amended its policies and
procedures.

o At the time an individualized education plan is first implemented for a
student.

5. Ensure there is a procedure to inform its students annually of the existence of
Tri-Valley CUSD #3 behavioral intervention procedures and policies.

6. Advise district administrators regarding issues arising from the use of behavioral
interventions.

7. Advise the Board of Education regarding staff development in the area of
behavioral strategies and interventions.

8. Ensure the dignity and privacy of students.

9. Ensure that Tri-Valley CUSD #3 adopts and maintain high professional standards
and recommended practices in the use of behavioral interventions.



10. identify staff or consultants qualified in the area of behavior interventions.

11. Review, at least twice yearly, student behavior and social emotional data (e.qg.,
discipline referrals, physical management, social-emotional learning goal
attainment), staff data (e.g., surveys, performance evaluation), and program
administrator data (e.q., surveys) to determine professional development needs.

12. ldentify guidelines for IEP teams regarding the consideration of a Functional
Behavior Analysis and the potential development of a Behavior Intervention Plan for
a student.



Staff Development on Behavior Strategies and Behavioral Interventions

On an annual basis, Tri-Valley CUSD #3 will ensure staff are adequately trained to
implement proactive strategies and behavioral interventions by using available data
and recommendations from the Behavior Oversight Committee to determine ongoing
professional learning needs. In order to support staff with the implementation of
Tri-Valley CUSD #3's behavioral intervention procedures, the following professional
learning opportunities will be made available on a regular basis:

e Training and coaching opportunities in Tier 1 Proactive Strategies, including:

o Annual new staff induction training/mentoring for all entering certified and
noncertified staff in the behavior intervention/strategies specific to the
elementary, middle, or high school level (e.g. Leader in Me, Vikings of Valor,
Student of the Month), as well as training/mentoring on program specific
social-emotional learning curriculum and materials, and classroom
expectations and incentive systems
o Biennial refreshers, updates, and targeted coaching in the behavior
intervention/strategies specific {o the elementary, middle, or high school level,
program specific social-emotional learning curriculum and materials, and
classroom expectations and incentive systems.

e Training and coaching opportunities in Tier 2 Nonrestrictive Interventions,

including:

o Annual new staff induction training/mentoring for all entering certified and
noncertified staff in nonrestrictive environmental, instructional, and
consequence strategies.
o Biennial refreshers, updates, and targeted coaching in nonrestrictive
environmental, instructional, and consequence strategies.

e Training and coaching opportunities in Tier 3 Restrictive Interventions, including:
o Annual new staff induction training/mentoring for all entering certified and

non certified staff in restrictive environmental, instructional, and
consequence strategies, including CP1 and/or certification training.

o Annual physical management recertification training (i.e., CPi) for all
certified and noncertified staff that may need to use physical restraint

o Biennial refreshers, updates, and targeted coaching in restrictive
environmental, instructional, and consequence strategies.



Multi-Tiered System of Supports for Behavior Management

Behavior management should be considered within the context of a muilti-tiered system
of support framework. For all students, Tier 1 strategies will be implemented that focus
upon the teaching and reinforcement of prosocial behavior. These strategies will be
taught and reinforced consistently in all school environments {e.g., classroom,
hallways, common areas, bus pick-up/drop-off) by all school personnel. Behavior can
be taught within the context of a social- emotional learning curriculum, academic
instruction, and informal and ongoing incidental instruction.

For students in need of interventions outside of those provided within Tier |, small group
or individualized interventions will be developed to address these students’ needs. Tier
I, or small group interventions are designed for those students who require
supplemental behavioral support. Tier 1!l interventions are developed for specific
students who require more intensive support. Tier lll interventions are most often
documented within a specific or formalized behavior intervention plan and may include
restrictive procedures.

The graduated implementation of more intensive and potentially restrictive interventions
will be implemented within a system’s framework. As such, specialized supporis {(e.g.,
related services personnel) are to be considered as appropriate at each tier.



Tier 1 Behavioral Proactive Strategies
Definition of Proactive Strategies:

Proactive strategies are strategies designed to be implemenied with all students
in which prosocial behaviors are taught, recognized, and promoted across all
school environments. -

The implementation of proactive strategies, specifically at Tier 1, are documented at
both the teacher/program level and the student level. To ensure compliance with the
tenets of the Tier 1 program, Fidelity Checklists are completed at least on an annual
basis. The data from the checklists are aggregated and are reviewed by the Behavioral
Oversight Committee to identify areas in which program implementation may need to
be improved. In addition, student participation in Tier 1 activities and a review of
student discipline referrals provide information pertaining to the success of the
students' response to implementation. Student data is periodically reviewed by the
Behavioral Oversight Committee to identify areas in which Tier 1 systems may need to
be maodified.

Examples of Tier 1 Strategies:

o Leaderin Me
o Vikings of Valor
o Student of the Month

o Social-emotional lessons taught by guidance counselors and classroom
teachers

o Principal luncheons and small-group or individualized positive time with
students

o Mindfulness strategies

o Curriculum Maps

o bLesson Plans

o Classroom/program recognition of prosocial behaviors

o Classroom behavior management plans

o School-wide coordination of behavior expectations and plan implementation
o School-wide assemblies focusing on character traits

o Incentive systems



Tier 2 Behavioral Interventions

Definition of Tier 2 Nonrestrictive Interventions:

Tier Il interventions are interventions that are more targeted and must be implemented
by a staff member that is specifically trained in these interventions. These interventions
may be used without the development of a written individual behavioral management
plan or inclusion in the student individualized education plans. In addition to the
proactive strategies, these interventions should be given the highest priority when
selecting behavioral interventions for students. They are preferred, as they reduce
potential for negative side effects from intervention, given that the emphasis is placed
on positive behavior change(s) rather than behavioral control.

Depending upon the student's needs, IEP, etc., these interventions may actually be
restrictive in nature. Certain interventions that are basically nonrestrictive could be
considered restrictive in these circumstances:

o When they are used with a student on a frequent basis;

o If the procedure adversely affects student learning, or the learning environment;
o If extreme negative behavior occurs in response fo the use of the procedure; and
o If the emphasis is on behavior control rather than behavior change.

Tier Il intervention strategies are monitored for intervention effectiveness and
implementation fidelity by each program's grade level team and/or program leadership
team on a routine basis. Data is collected to determine students' response to
intervention to the Tier |l strategies.

Examples of Tier 2 Interventions:

Re-Teach Expectations

Remind students of Outcomes/Rewards
Proximity Control

Verbal Redirection

Positive Reinforcement
Planned Ignoring

Acknowledge Effort

Offer Calming Break/Quiet Time
[f/Then Statements
Sensory/Movement Breaks
Offer Choices

00 OO0 0COoCO0OO0



o Reduction in Stimuli

o Check-In/Check-Out

o Activity Checklists

o Peer Modeling

o Visual Scripts

o Pre-Teaching

0 Non-Contingent Reinforcement
o Jump Starts

o Take 2 -temporary removal from the classroom with supervision by staff that does
not exceed 2 minutes

0 Response Cost

Functional Behavior Assessment (FBA):

A functional analysis of the target behavior of concern is critical to the understanding of
the structure and function of the behavior and the development or strengthening of mare
appropriate replacement or desired behaviors.

In conducting a functional analysis, a wide range of procedures should be utilized o
gain a valid understanding of the target behavior, This may include direct observation of
the student across times and settings, interviews with the student as well as their
teachers and parents, systematic manipulation of the student's environment, and
completion of other assessment measures to gain a more complete understanding of
the behavior. A functional analysis should include the foliowing components:

o A detailed description of the target behavior of concern including data on the

intensity, frequency, and duration of the behavior,

o Adescription of the settings in which the behavior occurs and an analysis of

antecedents to and consequences of the behavior,

o A description of other environmental variables that may affect the behavior (e.g.,

medication, medical conditions, sleep, diet, schedule, social factors);

o An examination and review of the known communicative behavior and functional

or practical intent of the behavior;

o A description of environmental modifications made to change the target behavior;

and

o An identification of appropriate behaviors that could serve as functional

alternatives to the target behavior.

Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP}:

Section 14-8.05 requires that policies and procedures include criteria for determining
when students with disabilities may require a behavior intervention plan. Each student
receiving special education services who requires the use of a restrictive behavioral



10
intervention (e.g., more than two days in a thirty day period) should have a written
behavioral intervention plan developed by the IEP team and included in the student's
IEP. Prior to writing the new behavior intervention plan, the IEP team should review
previous |EPs and discuss previous interventions attempted and their results. This plan
should include the following:

o A summary of the functional analysis findings;

o A summary of previous interventions attempted;

o A detailed description of the behavior intervention(s) to be used to develop or
strengthen alternative, more appropriate, behaviors (e.g., personnel involved in the
intervention, all procedures used, data coliection and monitoring procedures);

o Alist of measurable behavior changes expected and method(s) of evaluation;

o A schedule for review of intervention effectiveness;

o Alist of provisions for coordinating with the home (as needed).

Selection of Strategies:

A behavior intervention pian is a critical element of any successful behavioral
intervention. Before an intervention is selected, a continuum of possible interventions
designed to produce the desired behavioral change(s) will be considered. The least
restrictive intervention that is reasonably calculated to produce the desired effect will be
selected for implementation. When evaluating an intervention for possible use, Section
14-8.05 requires that the impact of an intervention on the student's physical freedom,
social interaction, personal dignity, and privacy must be carefully considered. The
following additional issues will be considered when evaluating a potential intervention:

e Speed and degree of effect (e.g., how rapidly and to what extent will the
intervention impact the presenting problem(s)?).

e Durability (e.g., is the influence exerted by the intervention likely to be
long-lasting or permanent?).

e Generalization {e.g., is the influence exerted by the intervention likely to
extend to a range of settings?).

e Side effects (e.g., what negative side effects are likely to occur as a result of
the intervention?).

¢ Empirical/Clinical validity (e.g., does the intervention have a reasonable
scientific and clinical basis for use in attempting to influence the behavior of
the student?).

e Social acceptability (e.g., how easily can the intervention be implemented
without stigmatizing or otherwise devaluing the person experiencing the
intervention?).

Section 14-8.05 requires that the district ensure that a behavioral intervention is carried
out as prescribed in the behavior intervention plan, in accordance with generally



11
accepted professional practices, and consistent with written district policies and
procedures. This involves training teachers, teaching assistants, and other personnel in
the use of behavioral interventions and the angoing monitoring of the intervention
procedures. The use of more restrictive interventions requires greater planning,
documentation, and supervision.

(See Appendix A for FBA/BIP Form Templates).



12
Tier 3 Behavioral Interventions

Restrictive and Highly Restrictive interventions

Definition of Restrictive Interventions

Tier 3 interventions are those interventions that are considered appropriate during
emergency situations or when less restrictive interventions have been attempted but
have been shown to be ineffective. In general, restrictive interventions significantly
impact delivery of instruction, change the environment where delivery occurs, or
change the length of the academic day.

Restrictive interventions will only be used when less restrictive interventions have not
been effective in addressing the problem or changing behavior. Restrictive interventions
will be implemented for the minimum amount of time necessary to manage the student's
behavior, be used only in conjunction with positive interventions designed to strengthen
competing behaviors, and be replaced by less restrictive procedures as soon as
reasonably possible. If restrictive interventions are implemented routinely for chronic
behaviors (e.g., target behavior exhibited more than 3 times per week requiring
restrictive intervention), a functional analysis of behavior (FBA) will be completed and
documented, and a behavior intervention plan (BIP) will be written. Appropriate
modification of the student's |IEP should be completed.

Exampies of Tier 3 Restrictive Interventions:

o Lunch detention

e In-school suspension - designated placement and predetermined amount of time
during which the student has access fo all services

e Detention

e Exclusion from academic field trips

e Imposed physical guidance {escort)

e« Temporary removal from the classroom

Definition of Tier 3 Highly Restrictive Interventions:

Highly restrictive interventions should only be utilized after a functional analysis of
behavior (FBA) has been completed and documented, a behavior intervention plan
(BIP) has been written, and appropriate modification of the student’s |EP has been
completed. In the event of an emergency, highly restrictive interventions can be
implemented without the completion of an FBA/BIP; however, consideration of the need
for the FBA/BIP should be made subseguent to the emergency situation in which one or
more of the highly restrictive interventions have been implemented.



13
Examples of Tier Ill Highly Restrictive Interventions:

e Out of School Suspension e.g. Crisis Intervention Behavior Stabilization (CIBS)
e Physical Management (Restraint)- CPI Only Any physical restraint model used
by a school district or serving entity must adhere to 23 IAC 1.285. The model
must follow training requirements per 23 1AC 1.285(i).
Expulsion with continuing access to special education services
Time Out (must comply with lllinois State School Code and approval from
Behavior Oversight Committee}

In-School and Out-of-School suspensions are considered to be Tier |1t Restrictive
and Highly Restrictive Interventions.

Per Illinois State Statute 105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, the length of an out-of-school
suspension (e.g., 1-3 days; 4 days; 5-10 days) requires differing levels of due diligence
when responding to the severity of the student’s behavior. In all instances, the impact of
the student’s behavior on others must be considered when identifying the length of the
suspension. What (if any) interventions or services and supports have been
implemented must be articulated; and a re-engagement plan/meeting for the student
upon return to school must be facilitated. (See Appendix for Sample Suspension Letters
and Forms).

Zero tolerance policies are prohibited; all out-of-school suspensions will be determined
on a case by case basis. For students who are suspended from school or from the bus,
opportunities will be provided to make up missed school work and receive equivalent
credit.

Tier 1ll intervention strategies are monitored for intervention effectiveness and
implementation fidelity by each program's grade level team and/or Behavioral Oversight
Committee on a routine basis. Data are collected to determine the student’s response to
intervention to the Tier Il strategies.



14

Decision Guidelines for Highly Restrictive Interventions

(The most recent ISBE guidance was considered in the creation of the following
procedures. If iflinois Law or ISBE guidance changes, those laws and guidance will
supersede these procedures until this document can be revised.)

e Overarching rule is an immediate danger of serious physical harm to self or
others.
Please note — the standard intervention for removal is an escort (CPI)
Impact of student size on Physical Management Decisions

o

When a student is too large for staff to safely physically manage (e.qg.,
student is larger than staff), physical management technigues will not be
used without an approved plan from the program administrator

Upon student enroliment in the program, if student size is an issue of
concern, an approved plan will be developed together with Administration
that outlines Tier 3 Highly Restrictive Interventions that may or may not
include physical management techniques -In the event that physical
management cannot be safely performed on an individual student, then
building protocol will be followed, including, but not limited to calling 911.

e When not to use

O

Students will not be subjected to physical restraint for using profanity or other
verbal displays of disrespect for themselves or others. A verbal threat shall
not be considered as constituting a physical danger unless a student also
demonstrates a means of or intent to carry out the threat. For exampie, if a
student uses profanity or verbal threat but is not escalating and/or is not
disruptive to the other students.

There is medical contraindication to the use of physical management.

The student is physically non-compliant (e.g., student slides to floor) but there
is no risk of potential harm to self or others or ongoing disruption to the
learning environment.

By staff who have not been trained in a District endorsed training (CP1).
Disruption is repeated and escalating behavior (e.g., significant physical,
verbal, or nonverbal) that impedes the learning of the other students and
requires support beyond momentary periods of physical restriction {e.g., brief
escort). For example, student's behavior escalates from tapping desk to
pounding desk while direct instruction is taking place and other proactive and
minimally restrictive interventions have not been effective (e.g., request that
student leave the area)

What is guiding versus what is brief escort? Guiding is defined as physically



assisting an individual who is willing to move while brief escort is defined as

physically moving an individual who is unwilling to move.

The following individuals must be informed of the student's BIP, including crisis plan
discussions:

o Building leadership o Other building personnel as designated by the building
principal o IEP team o Program administrator o Liaison officer o General Ed.
teachers or paraprofessionals that work with the student.

The use of a restrictive or highly restrictive procedure will be documented and
includes the following elements:

A. Description of the time, place, events, and participants in the
incident that required the use of a restrictive or highly restrictive
intervention(s);

B. Description of the restrictive or highly restrictive intervention(s)
used, including all the staff involved with the intervention(s);

C. Description of injuries and/or property damage;

D. Description and dates of previous incident(s) leading to present
event;

E. Student’s response to the restrictive or highly restrictive
intervention; and

F. Recommendations for avoiding similar incidents in the future.

(See Appendix B for Documentation of the Use of Physical Management Form to be
completed when an incident occurs and given to parent/guardian, following the
timeline and procedures of the lllinois State Board of Education.)

(See Appendix C for State Board of Education Guidelines for Dissemination of
Procedures/Policy)

(See Appendix D for District Student Discipline Policies and Procedures)

(See Appendix E for District Use of Isolated Time Out and Physical Restraint Policy)

15



Naotifications and Parent Rights

Tri-Valley CUSD #3 will notify parents/guardians of the district’s policy for the use of
isolated time out, time out, or physical restraint as part of the information distributed
annually or upon enrollment pursuant to Sections 105 ILCS 5/10-20.14(a) and 105
ILCS 5/14-8.05(c) of the School Code.

Tri-Valley CUSD #3 will make a reasonable attempt to notify the student's parent or
guardian on the same day the isolated time out, fime out, or physical restraint is
imposed. Documentation will be provided to the parent within one business day, which
may be accomplished by personal service, electronic delivery, or by mailing the
documentation within one business day. Documentation should be completed by the
school district or serving entity. The documentation must include, at a minimum, a
copy of the form required to be submitted to the State Superintendent. The school
district or serving entity must designate an official to receive and maintain these
records [23 IAC 1.285 (j)(3)]. The school official designated must be notified of the
incident as soon as possible, but no later than the end of the school day on which it
occurred, [23 IAC 1.285(f){2)]and the record described below should be completed by
the beginning of the school day following the episode of time-out or physical restraint.
A written record must be maintained in the student's temporary record for each
incidence of isolated time out, time out, or physical restraint.[23 IAC 1.285(f)(1)]

No later than two school days after the use of isolated time out, time out, or physical
restraint occurred, the school district, or other entity serving the student will notify the
State Superintendent of these highly restrictive procedures being used.

Family Involvement: Parents and/or guardians have the right to be involved in the
development of any behavioral intervention/management plan utilizing restrictive
procedures. Such involvement includes, but is not limited to, participating in the
designing, implementation, and evaluation of interventions. Parents and guardians will
be provided with copies and/or explanations of the functional analysis conducted and
the behavioral management plan developed for their child.

Notification: The student’s parents or guardian will be provided written notification of
the rationale, procedures, and possible outcomes of a behavioral intervention/
management plan developed at an IEP meeting, in accord with the special education
requirements.

Documentation in the IEP: Ali children with disabilities have a right to a free and

16

appropriate public education, as specified in the federal and state statutes. For students

receiving special education services, the |EP is the linchpin for ensuring that a student
is provided appropriate educational and related services. Because behavioral



17
procedures represent powerful interventions designed to enhance the benefits a
student derives from the educational setting, the use of such procedures will be
documented in the child’s IEP. The behavior intervention plan (BIP) will be developed to
address a specific behavior, with a copy of the plan attached to the IEP document.
Under no circumstances shall a behavior intervention plan (BIP) be implemented
without its inclusion in the child's {EP. For a student who already has an |EP
established, an |[EP meeting will need to be reconvened for the purpose of modifying
the existing IEP.

Appeal and Due Process Procedures: All procedural safeguards, including rights to
conflict resolution, mediation, and an impartial due process hearing, as required
through the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and the School Code, shall be
applicable to the resolution of disputes involving behavioral intervention plans.

If the parent or guardian disagrees with a proposed restrictive behavioral intervention,
Tri-Valley CUSD #3 will work with the parent to attempt resolution of the dispute. The
parents may request a due process hearing as provided by Section 226,605 and
226.615 of 23 lllinois Administrative Code.

Parents Educational Rights and Responsibilities can be found at the following website:
https://lwww.isbe net/Documents/parent_guide_english.pdf



18
Time Limits of Restrictive Interventions

Whenever an episode of isolated time out or time out exceeds 30 minutes, an episode
of physical restraint exceeds 15 minutes, or repeated episodes have occurred during
any three-hour period:

A. Alicensed educator or licensed clinical practitioner knowledgeable about the
use of isolated time out or time out or trained in the use of physical restraint, as
applicable, will evaluate the situation.

B. The evaluation will consider the appropriateness of continuing the procedure in
use, including the student's potential need for medication, nourishment, or use
of a restroom, and the need for alternate strategies (e.g., assessment by a
mental health crisis team, assistance from police, or transportation by
ambulance).

C. The results of the evaluation will be committed to writing and copies of this
documentation will be placed into the student's temporary student record and
provided to the official designated under subsection (j)(3)" [23 IAC 1.285(f)(3)].

Additional meetings required if multiple restrictive interventions are used.

When a student experiences instances of isolated time out, timeout or physical
restraint on three days within a 30-day period, the school personne! who initiated,
monitored, and supervised the incidents will initiate a review of the effectiveness of the
procedures used and prepare an individual behavior plan for the student that provides
either for continued use of these interventions or for the use of other, specified
interventions,” according to 23 IAC 1.285(f)(4). The school district or serving entity will
invite the student’s parents to a review and provide 10 days’ notice of its date, time,
and location. The notification will also “inform the parents or guardians that the
student’s potential need for special education, an alternative program, or for students
already eligible for special education, the student’s potential need for a change in
program, will be considered and that the results of the review will be entered into the
temporary student record,” per 23 IAC 1.285(f}(4)(B). 34 This review does not require
a full IEP or Section 504 team meeting, but the requirements could be met by
conducting an IEP or Section 504 meeting, as appropriate. As with any other
meetings, parents may agree to waive the requirement that they attend, may agree to
waive the requirement for ten days’ notice, or may agree to waive the meeting
altogether. If the parent agrees to waive the meeting altogether, the IEP team or
Section 504 team must still conduct their review and complete the required forms for
amending the IEP or 504 plan.



19

Prohibited Interventions
Definition of Prohibited Interventions:

Prohibited interventions are those that are illegal or inappropriate for the student
population and should not be implemented under any circumstances.

Examples of Prohibited Interventions:
o Corporal Punishment*
o Physical manipulation or procedure that causes pain and/or tissue damage when
used as an aversive procedure®.
o Expulsion with cessation of special education services*®
o Mechanical Restraints (excludes restraints prescribed by physician or used as a
safety procedure for transportation).
o Chemical restraints

o Denial or restriction of access to regularly used equipment/devices that facilitate
the child's educational functioning, except when this equipment is temporarily at risk
for damage.

o Supine or prone physical management



20

Staff Training

For all staff who will be called upon to utilize highly restrictive interventions, Tri-Valley
CUSD #3 will provide, at a minimum, “at least eight hours of developmentally
appropriate training annually” Developmentally-appropriate training is training that
takes into consideration children's age, grade level, and disabilities.

Training is required in the following areas:

crisis de-escalation;

restorative practices;

identifying signs of distress during physical restraint and time out;
trauma-informed practices; and

behavior management practices

moow>

isolated time ouf, time out, or physical restraint will be applied only by individuals
who have received annual systematic training on less restrictive and intrusive
strategies and techniques to reduce the use of isolated time out, time out, and
physical restraint based on best practices and how to safely use time out and
physical restraint when those alternative strategies and techniques have been tried
and proven ineffective. requirements and investigation of injuries and complaints;
and ix) demonstration by participants of proficiency in administering isolated time
out, time out, and physical restraint.



21

District Review of Policy and Data

School districts and other entities should review their current policies and
procedures that may be required in light of the new regulations on restraint and
timeout. In addition, the written procedures must include “a description of the
district's or other entity's annual review of the use of isolated time out, time out, or
physical restraint, which, at a minimum, shall include: A) the number of incidents
involving the use of these interventions; B) the location and duration of each
incident; C) identification of the staff members who were involved; D) any injuries or
property damage that occurred; and E) the timeliness of parental or guardian
notification, timelines of agency notification, and administrative review” [23 |AC
1.285(j}(5)].

If Parents or Staff Have Complaints:

Any parent or guardian, individual, organization, or advocate may file a signed,
written complaint with the State Superintendent alleging that a local school district or
other entity serving the student has violated this Section. The complaint shali include
all of the foliowing: A) the facts on which the complaint is based; B) the signature
and contact information for the complainant; C) if known, the names and addresses
of the students involved and the name of the school of attendance; D) a description
of the nature of the problem, including any facts relating to the problem; and 38 E) a
proposed resolution of the problem to the extent known.



22



23

Appendix A: Functional Behavioral Analysis/Behavior Intervention Plan Forms

Functional Behavioral Assessment

Student Name: « Dale: . ..._..._ Grade
Gen. Ed, Teacher: Sp, Ed, Teacher:
School: i gr: [ Yes [ No

Functional Behavlor Assessment: Student Strengths & Preferances:

4. Setting Event: What are the enviranmental avanis that make problem behavior ceour?

¥

2. Trigger/Antecedent: What happens immediately betore problem behavior ccours?

§, Expected Behavior 1, Problem Behavior(s} 7. Replacement Behavior
Long Term Goals: Short Team Goals: List small sleps to
raach dasired behavior:

i ]
6. Expectad Unlversal Conseduences 4. Malntaining Consetuenee/Function
What happens when desired behaviors ocours? Whal happens Immediataly aftor problom hehavior ocours (pay off

for student)?




Behavior Intervention Plan

24

Student Name: Date: Grade:
Gen. Ed. Teacher: Sp. Ed, Tescher:
School: ) EP: O Yes [0 No

Behavior Inlervention Plan; List Previous Interventions Attempted:

Selling Event Strategies Antecedent Strategies Teachlng Stategles Consequence Slrategles
Behavior

How can you modify 1 skill Deflclt o

environmental events to What can we do lo prevant [0 Perfarmance Deficil Whal Positives will you do
prevent behavior from problem behavior from What |s needed to teach 10 reward deslred
oeelirting? accurring? deslred behavior? hehavior?

Whal will you do to
minlmlize vewards of
problem behavlor?

Is & reslrictive interventlon neaded? If so, describe; 1 Yes 7 Ne

Is & crlsls plan required? !f so describe or attach: [ Yes [ No




25

Appendix B: Documentation of Use of Physical Management - ISBE Form

https: /iwww.isbe.net/Documents/11-01-Physical-Restrajint-Time-Out-Form.pdf

Utilize this link to view the illinois State Board of Education’s Documentation Form, to be
completed when an incident occurs, following the timeline and procedures
of the lllinocis State Board of Education.



26

Appendix C: State Board of Education Guidelines for Dissemination of
Procedures/Policies

Copies of this document, and any other policies and procedures adopted in relation to
the use of behavioral interventions for students with disabilities who require behavior
intervention, shall be provided to parents and guardians of all students with
individualized education plans within fifteen {15) days after they are adopted by the
Board of Education, and at the beginning of each school year thereafter. Copies of such
policies and procedures shall be provided to the parents and guardians of a student at
the time an individualized education plan is first implemented for the student. In
addition, the administrator or designee shall be responsible for informing students of the
existence of such policies and procedures on an annual basis.

References:
http:/Awww.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K14-8.05
SB100: http://iwww.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=099-0456
ISBE |EP Forms: http://www.isbe.net/spec-ed/pdfs/34-54-iep-forms.pdf

District policy is in accordance with 105 ILCS 5/14-8.05 Sec. 14-8.05
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=010500050K14-8.05



27

Appendix D: District Student Discipline Policies and Procedures

The handbooks of Tri-Valley Elementary School, Tri-Valley Middle School, and

Tri-Valley High School are approved annually by the Tri-Valley CUSD #3 Board of
Education.

Refer to these handbooks for sections outlining student discipline policies and

procedures, including suspension and expulsion procedures, student bus conduct,
and discipline of students with disabilities.



28

Appendix E: Use of Isolated Time Out and Physical Restraint Policy

Purpose and Definitions

The purpose of this Policy is to govern the use of isolated time out and/or physical
restraint with students to ensure the safety of self or others. Isolated time out
(commonly referred to as “seclusion”) means the confinement of a student in a
time-out room or some other enclosure, whether within or outside the classroom,
from which the student's egress is restricted. Secluding a student by placing a
student in a room alone and closing the door is prohibited by the lllinois State
Board of Education. Physical restraint means holding a student or otherwise
restricting his or her movements. Physical restraint includes only the use of
specific, planned techniques. Physical restraint does not include momentary
periods of physical restriction by direct person-to-person contact without the aid of
material or mechanical devices, accomplished with limited force and designed to:
(1) prevent a student from completing an act that would result in potential physical
harm to him/herself or another, or damage to property, or (2) remove a disruptive
student who is unwilling to leave the area. Isolated time out and physical restraint,
as defined in this Policy, are permitted only as a response to behavior that impacts
a safe and orderly environment for learning, and only to the extent that their use is
necessary to preserve the safety of students and others. Neither isolated time out
nor physical restraint shall be used to administer discipline (i.e.,punish) to
individual students. The use of isolated time out or physical restraint shall comply
with the Illinois State of Education (ISBE) rules, “Requirements for the Use of
Isolated Time Out and Physical Restraint” at 23 lll. Admin. Code Section 1.285
and Tri-Valley CUSD #3's written procedures. This Policy does not apply to the
restriction of a student’'s movement when that restriction is for a purpose other
than the maintenance of a safe and orderly environment, such as the appropriate
use of a safety belt in motor vehicles or placement of student with physical
disabilities into devices to assist with standing, sitting, or movement within the
school environment.

Written Procedures

Tri-Valley CUSD #3's Behavior Oversight Committee will implement and monitor
the procedures on the use of behavioral interventions for students as outlined in
“Tri-Valley CUSD #3's Behavioral Intervention Procedures”. The committee shall
review and follow the State Board of Education's guidelines on the use of
behavioral interventions. Tri-Valley CUSD #3 staff must follow these written
procedures whenever isolated time out or physical restraint is used. District staff



29
shall document each use of isolated time out or physical restraint as set forth in
these written procedures.

Information to Parents/Guardians

Tri-Valley CUSD #3 will furnish a copy of “Tri-Valley CUSD #3's Behavioral
Intervention Procedures” which includes this Policy to parents/guardians of all
students within 15 days after their adoption or amendment by the Board of Education
or at the time an IEP is first implemented for a student. All students shall be informed
annually of the existence of “Tri-Valley CUSD #3's Behavioral Intervention
Procedures” which includes this Policy. At the annual IEP review, a copy of
“Tri-Valley CUSD #3’s Behavioral Intervention Procedures” which includes this Policy
shall be available and explained to parents/guardians.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 10-20.33, and 14-8.05(c) 23 lllinois Admin. Code
A.a. 1.280,1.285

DATE ADOPTED:



WELCOME!

The faculty and staff of Tri-Valley Elementary School welcome you te our school family. We will do
our best to offer your child the highest quality education, and we will strive to make that education
interesting and stimulating. We ask for your support and we expect that you will be an active
participant in your child’s education. The home-school partnership is essential to your child’s
attitude and success in school,

This handbook has been carefully prepared and presented in order that students and parents may
know and understand the policies and practices of Tri-Valley Elementary School. If you have any
questions or concerns, please contact the Elementary School Office at 378-2031. We are all looking
forward to a successful and joy-filled year of learning for your child.

It is the responsibility of every Tri-Valley student to:

Be prepared each day, Have what you need when you need it,

Be in the right place at the right time for the right reason.

Do what you are told to do by those in authority when you are told to do it.
Control your own actions.

Show tespect at all times to all persons.

e & © o© o

Make sure your actions and behavior do not interfere with another’s rights.



FACULTY AND STAFF
Superintendent — Ben Derges

Principal — Mr. Tyler Swearingen
Administrative Assistant- Mrs. Sheila Sonka

Athletic Director — Mr. Josh Roop

Director of Special Education Services — Mrs. Gail McCane
Building Technology Coordinatoy — Mr, Josh White

Guidance Counselor — Mrs, Kari Prochnow
Elementary Nurse — Mrs. Angela McCrary

Blended Pre-K Pre-K

Ms. Ali Flessner Mys. Krysta Christensen

Mrs. Crisann Gould - Paraprofessional Mrs. Chelsea Zychowski - Paraprofessional
Yiking Care Kindergarten

Mrs, Wendy Herring-Lead Teacher Mrs. Lauren Johnson

Mrs. Cari Korowicki-Paraprofessional Mrs. Jen Nelson

Mrs. Marie Winn
Mrs. Hanna Nigg

1% Gyade 298 Grade
Mys, Jodi Petrilli Ms. Holly Shempf

Mrs. Valerie Walden
Mrs. Sirena Brooks
Miss Lauren Conner

34 Grade

Mrs. Jeanette Clayton
Miss Regan Schaab
Ms. Mara Sokan

Ms. Sarah Johnson

Physical Education
Mrs. Katie Farney

Ms. Stacie Martin

Special Education
Mrs. Angie Cole

Mrs. Jen Kinkaid
Mrs. Janice Burch

Mrs. Barb Monical-Paraprofessional
Ms. Joanna Krauskopf- Paraprofessional

Myrs. Erin Stombaugh
Ms. Julie Williamson
Mrs. Jana Markwell

Library
Mrs. Amie Mouser

Music
Murs. Becky Marcotte

Speech Pathology
Mrs. Lydia Green

Jitle Teacher/RTI
Mrs. Jami Garber (Title 1)
Mrs. Susan Martell (RTT)



School Operations During a Pandemic or Other Health Emergency

A pandemic is a global outbreak of disease. Pandemics happen when a new virus emerges to infect
individuals and, because there is little to no pre-existing immunity against the new virus, it spreads
sustainably. Your child’s school and district play an essential role, along with the local health department
and emergency management agencies, in protecting the public’s health and safety during a pandemic or
other health emergency.

During a pandemic or other health emergency, you will be notified in a timely manner of all changes to
the school environment and schedule that impact your child. Please be assured that even if school is not
physically in session, it is the goal of the school and district to provide your child with the best
educational opportunities possible.

Additionally, please note the following:

1.

All decisions regarding changes to the school environment and schedule, including a possible
jnterruption of in-person learning, will be made by the superintendent in consultation with and, if
necessary, at the direction of the Governor, Illinois Department of Public Health, local health
department, emergency management agencies, and/or Regional Office of Education.

Available learning opportunities may include remote and/or blended learning. Blended learning
may require your child to attend school on a modified schedule.

Students will be expected to participate in blended and remote instruction as required by the
school and district. Parents are responsible for assuring the participation of their child. Students
who do not participate in blended or remote learning will be considered truant.

All school disciplinary rules remain in effect during the interruption of in-person learning.
Students are subject to discipline for disrupting the remote learning environment to the same
extent that discipline would be imposed for disruption of the traditional classroom.

Students and parents will be required to observe all public health and safety measures
implemented by the school and district in conjunction with state and local requirements.

During a pandemic or other health emergency, the school and district will ensure that educational
opportunities are available to all students.

School personnel will work closely with students with disabilities and other vulnerable student
populations to minimize the impact of any educational distuption.

Students who have a compromised immune system, live with an individual with a compromised
immune system, or have a medical condition that may impact their ability to attend school during
a pandemic or other public health emergency should contact school officials.

Duriag a pandemic or other health emergency, teachers and school staff will receive additional
training on health and safety measures.



10. In accordance with school district or state mandates, the school may need to conduct a daily
health assessment of your child. Parents and students will be notified of the exact assessment
procedures if this becomes necessary.

11. Parents should not send their child to school if their child exhibits any symptoms consistent with
the pandemic or other health emergency.

12. Please do not hesitate to contact school or district officials if you have any concerns regarding
your child’s education, health or safety.

ATTENDANCE PROCEDURES
Attendance and Punctuality

Illinois law requires that whoever has custody or control of any child between six (by September
1st) and seventeen years of age shall assure that the child attends school in the district in which he or
she resides, during the entire time school is in session (unless the child has already graduated from
high school). Illinois law also requires that whoever has custody or control of a child who is
enrolled in the school, regardless of the child’s age, shall assure that the child attends school during
the entire time school is in session.

School Arrival/Start/Dismissal Times
Tri-Valley Elementary School starts at 8:10 a.m. and is dismissed at 3:10 p.m., on regular school days.
Students may be dropped off and picked up at the Washington Street entrance. Parents are also asked
to say goodbye to children outside the building and allow them to enter themselves. Please follow
all signage in the drop off/pick up area. Early arriving students must wait at the front entrance.

Please do not pavk or pick up students along the East Drive. For the safety of our students, this
area is for buses only. (Pre-K and Viking Care parents are the exception). With the drive through
drop off and pick up lune, we ask that parents enter that designated zone from the west while driving
on Washington Street. This will allow for the students to exit safely out of the vehicle onto the
school sidewalk. The same is true of families picking up at school dismissal time. This will ensure
a safe and efficient student drop off and pick up procedure for all. We highly recommend
compliance with this procedure to minimize the chance of an accident by walking across

Washington Street, You may park in the designated parking spots in the drop off lane or at the Unit
Office parking lot.

All students are to be in their classroom by 8:10 a.m. Habitual tardiness will not be tolerated and
will be dealt with appropriately. Students who arrive late must report to the school office with their
parents. The parent must sign them in.

If you have a change to the after school schedule, please notify the teacher by writing a note or by
email or call the school office. If we do not receive notification, we will send the student home using
his or her regular mode of transportation.

Walking Students

All walking students are admitted and dismissed at the front school door. Parents should discuss the
safest route to school emphasizing the use of sidewalks and not trespassing on private property. Children
should NOT arrive at school before 7:50 a.m. Once students arrive, they are to stay lined up at the




front door until they are admitted into the building at 8:00 a.m,

Early Dismissal

On days when there is an early dismissal, students will ride their regular bus route home (unless
stated differently on the form the district uses). Parent(s)/guardian(s) will need te make
arrangements, if they will not be at home, at the time the bus arrives. It is important to check the
calendar for these dates.

In the event it becomes necessary to close school because of weather, or any other emergency
situation, an announcement will be made, hopefully between 6:00 am and 6:30 am, on the following
stations:

Radio: WIBC (1230 AM), WBNQ (101.5 FM)

Television: NBC 25, HOI 19, WMBD 31 — Peoria

Website: www.tri-valley3.org ,on the Tri-Valley Facebook Page, Tri-Valley Twitter Page,
Tri-Valley App for iPhone and Android

Notification System: In the event a decision is made to cancel school or dismiss early during the
day, the above stations will be contacted. We also have the School Messenger System which
consists of a phone call to cell phones and home phones. Please do not call the radio stations or
the schools regarding school closing and dismissals. Listen to the radio. Also, the Tri-Valley
website, www.tri-valley3.org, Tri-Valley Twitter Page, or Tri-Valley App will have all the latest
cancellations. The school offers a feature that will automatically notify parents via email in case of
cancellations due to inclement weather.

For your child’s safety, make certain your child knows ahead of time where to go in case of an early
dismissal.

If school is dismissed carly for an emergency or weather, all after-school functions are cancelled.

Student Absence
There are two types of absences: excused and unexcused. Excused absences include: illness (including
mental or behavioral health of the student), observance of a religious holiday or event, death in the

immediate family, family emergency, situations beyond the control of the student, circumstances that

cause reasonable concern to the parent/guardian for the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or
safety, attending a military honors funeral to sound TAPS{}], or other reason as approved by the building

principal,

Additionally, a student will be excused for up to 5 days in cases where the student’s parent/guardian is an

active duty member of the uniformed services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has
immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or combat-support postings. The Board of

Education, in its discretion, may excuse a student for additional days relative to such leave or deployment.
A student and the student’s parent/guardian are responsible for obtaining assignments from the student’s

teachers prior to any excused absences and for ensuring that such assignments are completed by the
student prior to his or her return to school.

Students who are excused from school will be given a reasonable timeframe to make up missed
homework and classwork assignments.

All other absences are considered unexcused. Pre-arranged excused absences must be approved by the
building principal.



The school may require documentation explaining the reason for the smdent’s absence.

All other absences are considered unexcused. Pre-arranged excused absences must be approved by the
building principal.

The school will require documentation explaining the reason for the student’s absence.

Regular and prompt attendance at school is extremely important, but an ill student should not be in school
since this may result in his/her health being impaired, and may result in other students being exposed to a
communicable disease. Whenever a student is absent the following procedures should be followed:
Failure to do so shall result in an unexcused absence. Upon request of the parent/guardian, the reason for
an ahsence will be kept confidential.

1. In the event of any absence, the student’s parent/guardian is required to call the school at [phone
number] before 8:00 a.m. o explain the reason for the absence. If a call has not been made to the
school by 10:00 a.m. on the day of a student’s absence, a school official will call the home to
inquire why the student is not at school. If the parent/guardian cannot be contacted, the student will
be required to submit a signed note from the parent/guardian explaining the reason for the absence.
Failure to do so shall result in an unexcused absence. Upon request of the parent/guardian, the
reason for an absence will be kept confidential.

2. In situations where a parent/guardian does not notify the school by phone, when a student is absent,
a written note is required from the parent/gnardian, within one school day, or the absence will be
considered unexcused. The note should contain:

a. The date(s) of absence
b. The specific reason for the absence/tardiness
¢. The parent/guardian’s signature.

Chronic Absenteeism
Student attendance is critical to the learning process, therefore it is important for your child to be
present at school. The State of [lfinois rates each school, in part, based on overall student attendance.
Chronic Absenteeism is identified when a student has had 18 or more excused or unexcused absences.
Students who accumulate 18 absences are identified as Chronically Absent by the Illinois State Board Of
Education in the Student Information System. Students who have multiple excused or unexcused absences
will be counseled to offer support services and resources aimed at correcting the attendance issue. If
absences continue, the school and district could take further action, including:

* Conference with parents

*» Referral to the truancy officer

» Appropriate school discipline

Fxcused Absences

An excused absence is one that is due to illness, or injury, religious exemption, death of a family
member or close friend, medical/dental appointments, court appointments, school business, or an
emergency situation acceptable to the administration. Each semester, students will be allowed five (5)
incidents of absence for medical reasons that may be certified by a parental phone call or note only.
Any additional medical absence in that semester will require a doctor’s excuse or it will be classified
as an unexcused absence.



All absences from school will be either excused or unexcused. If the reason for the absence is such that it
can be cxcused, the required note or call from a parent/guardian will allow the student to make-up the
missed work for credit. The work must be made-up in a period of time equal to the number of days the
student was absent.

For example:
A student has known for weeks of a test on Wednesday, but has an Excused Absence that day.
In this scenario, the student would be required to take the test on Thursday.

Another example:
A student has an Excused Absence on Monday, when an assignment is given that is due
Tuesday. In this scenario, the student would be required to turn in the work on or before
Wednesday.

If the work has not been turned in after the given number of days, zeros will be recorded for the work no
matter what the reason for the absence. After the fifth Excused Absence in a semester, a written
physician’s note, court document, or funeral statement will be required to obtain make-up work for credit.

Unexcused Absences

Any absence other than those outlined in the excused absence section is an unexcused absence. All
unexcused absences impact students in various ways depending on grade level. All K-3 students will
be allowed to make up any missed work without teacher assistance. However, all unexcused
absences will accrue towards the state limit of 5% or more of the 180 regular school days, which
indicates a legally chronic truant child.

Students are expected to be in attendance daily at Tri-Valley Elementary School. Parents will be informed
by mail of a student’s fifth, eighth, and tenth Unexcused Absences from school. A note or phone call
shall be required from the parent or guardian indicating they are aware of the absence.

Any absence from class without permission is rated as being an unexcused absence. It is important that
students study and complete material missed during unexcused absences even though credit may not be
given for the work. Such study prepares the student for unit tests later. The following are examples of
unexcused absences, but not an all-inclusive list:
k. Car trouble
Hair appointments
Shopping
Studying
Skipping
Babysitting
Oversleeping
Missing the bus
Work
Any absence during the day if the student fails to check out through the office. Repeated
violations of these rules will bring strong consequences including suspension.

R A il

H
=

Planned Absences

The school calendar has vacation periods established at regular intervals during the year. Those intervals
should be adequate to meet the students’ and/or parent/guardians’ needs. If parent/guardian or student
needs are such that the student must be absent from school, they must make arrangements for such



absences in advance. All make-up work for these absences is the responsibility of the student and/or
parent/guardian to arrange with the teacher. The following may be types of anticipated absences that
can be approved, provided the outlined procedures are followed:

@ Family approved vacation
e Special religious events
@ School business

Steps that must be taken for the absence to qualify as prearranged include:

1. A parent/guardian must notify the building principal and teacher in writing at least one
(1) week before the date of intended absence.

2. Prior to the planned absence, the student or parent must make arrangements with the teacher
for all work missed. The classroom teacher will determine if missed work will be assigned
cither before or after the planned absence.

3. Unless otherwise arranged with the tcachers in advance, all work is due the day the student
returns from a planned absence.

4, Teachers are responsible for grading all work.

5. As the school does not condone family vacations during the school year, all such days missed
count towards truancy calculations.

6. If all of the above criteria are not properly satisfied, then any days missed will be counted as
UUnexcused Absences.

Truancy
Student attendance is critical to the learning process. Truancy is therefore a serious issue and will be dealt
with in a serious manner by the school and district.

Students who miss more than 1% but less than 5% of the prior 180 regular school days without valid
cause (a recognized excuse) are truant. Students who miss 5% or more of the prior 180 regular school
days are considered chronic truants. Students who are chronic truants will be offered support services and
resources aimed at correcting the truancy issue.

If chronic truancy persists after support services and other resources are made available, the school and
district will take further action, including:

* Referral to the truancy officer

« Reporting to officials under the Juvenile Court Act

« Referral to the State’s Attorney

« Appropriate school discipline

A student who misses 15 consecutive days of school without valid cause and who cannot be located or,
after exhausting all available support services, cannot be compelled to return to school is subject to
expulsion from school.

A parent or guardian who knowingly and willfully permits a child to be truant is in violation of State law.
GENERAL INFORMATION/GUIDELINES

Accidents

If a student becomes ill or injured at school, and the nurse or principal determines the student is not in



condition to stay in school, the parents will be contacted to pick up the child. All emergency
information in the office should be kept updated with phone numbers and addresses.

Assignments
If your child is ill you may request assignments when you phone in the absence. We will do our best to
have them ready by the end of that day.

When students wish to have assignments before leaving on vacation, a written request must be made by
the parent to the principal at least one week before leaving. When approved by the principal, the student
must present the note to each of his/her teachers who will prepare the assignments. The classroom
teacher will determine if missed work will be assigned either before or after the planned absence. Unless
otherwise arranged with the teacher in advance, all work is due the day the student returns from a planned
absence.

If a student’s absence is excused or if a student is suspended from school, he/she will be permitted to
make up all missed work, including homework and tests, for equivalent academic credit. Students who
are unexcused from school will not be allowed to make up missed work.

Bicycle Riding
Bicycles must be walked on the school grounds and parked in the bicycle rack. Bicycles brought to
school should be locked. These same rules apply to scooters, roller blades and boards.

CARES

(Collaborative Action & Resources for Educational Success)

The Student Assistance Team is a group of educators who meet monthly to identify, intervene, make
appropriate referrals both in and out of school, and follow through with at-risk youth in the areas of
academics, attendance, health, behavior and performance. Parents wishing to have a child evaluated and
assisted by the team should contact the classroom teacher.

Class Placement Policy
Tri-Valley Elementary School does not accept parental requests for class placement.

Conferences

Conferences are an excellent way of keeping you informed of the overall progress of your child in school.
You will be contacted at least once during the school year by your child’s teacher to schedule a formal
conference. You may also request a conference any time you have questions or concerns,

Student Dress Code and Appearance

Students are expected to wear clothing in a neat, clean, and well fitting manner while on school property
and/or in attendance at school sponsored activities. A student’s appearance, including dress and hygiene,
must not disrupt the educational process or compromise standards of health and safety. The school does
not prohibit hairstyles historically associated with race, cthuicity, or hair texture, including, but not
limited to, protective hairstyles such as braids, locks, and twists. Students who disrupt the educational
process or compromise standards of health and safety must modify their appearance. Students are to use
discretion in their dress and are not permitted to wear apparel that causes a substantial disruption in the
school environment.




1. Student dress (including accessories) may not advertise, promote, or picturc alcoholic
beverages, illegal drugs, drug paraphernalia, violent behavior, or other inappropriate
images.

2. Student dress (including accessories) may not display lewd, vulgar, obscene, or offensive
language or symbols, including gang symbols.

3. Hats, coats, bandanas, sweatbands, and sunglasses may not be worn in the building
during the school day.

4, Hairstyles, dress, and accessories that pose a safety hazard are not permitted in the shop,
laboratories, or during physical education.

5. Clothing with holes, rips, tears, and clothing that is otherwise poorly fitting, showing skin
and/or undergarments may not be worn at school.

6. The length of shorts or skirts must be appropriate for the school environment.

7. Appropriate footwear must be worn at all times.

8. Ifthere is any doubt about dress and appearance, the building principal will make the
final decision.

9. A student whose dress causes a substantial distuption of the orderly process of school
functions or endangers the health or safety of the student, other students, staff or others
may be subject to discipline.

10. Halter tops, spaghetti strap tops, see-through tops, bare midriff shirts or blouses, or
tube tops are not allowed.

11. Shorts should be worn underneath skirts and dresses.

Students are also required to wear closed toe shoes at P.I.. and recess.

Emergency Drills — Fire, Tornado, Other

Drills are held to acquaint all personnel and students with the necessary emergency procedures. Each
teacher will instruct the students on the procedures to be followed in case of an emergency; such
directions are posted in each classroom.

Safety drills will occur at times established by the school board. Students are required to be silent and
shall comply with the directives of school officials during emergency drills. There will be a minimum of
three (3) cvacuation drills, a minimum of one (1) severe weather (shelter-in-place) drill, a minimum of
one (1) law enforcement lockdown drill to address a school shooting incident, and a minimum of one (1)
bus evacuation drill each school year. There may be other drills at the direction of the administration. The
faw enforcement lockdown drill will be announced in advance and a student’s parent/guardian may elect
to exclude their child from participating in this drill. All other drills will not be preceded by a warning to
stadents,

Equipment (School)

Students are required to take proper care of school property. If at the end of the year school property is
damaged or lost, students will be required to reimburse the school. The value of the property will be
determined by the principal.

Field Trips

Field trips are a part of the educational program and will be taken periodically. School buses are used.
Parents will be asked to sign a Field Trip Permission form. All sfudents are expected to go on these trips.
Adequate supervision will be provided and safety precautions will be taken. Children not enrolled at
Tri-Valley Elementary or are in other grade levels should not accompany parents that volunteer to
chaperone. The children must return to school under teacher supervision after the field trip, unless prior
approval by the principal.



All students who wish to attend a field trip must receive written permission from a parent or guardian
with authority to give permission. Students may be prohibited from attending field trips for any of the
following reasons:

Failure to receive appropriate permission from parent/guardian or teacher;

Failure to complete appropriate coursework;

Behavioral or safety concerns;

Denial of permission from administration;

Other reasons as determined by the school.

bl

Accelerated Placement

The District provides for an Accelerated Placement Program (APP) for qualified students. It provides
students with an educational setting with curriculum options that are usually reserved for students who are
older or in higher grades than the student. Accelerated placement includes but may not be limited to: carly
entrance to kindergarten or first grade, accelerating a student in a single subject and grade acceleration.
Participation is open to all students who demonstrate high ability and who may benefit from accelerated
placement. It is not limited to students who have been identified as gified or talented. Please contact the
building principal for additional information.

Requests for Accelerated Advancement must be made to the school administrators between January
15-March 15 of the preceding year.

Insurance Program

A low-cost insurance policy is offered to all Tri-Valley students. This is a limited policy with definite
indemnities set for each type of injury. Please understand that neither the school nor anyone connected
with the school will profit in any way from the insurance. For a small fee, a student can be insured during
the school year for accidents which occur while he/she is engaged in any school sponsored activity.
Injuries resulting from brawling or fights are not covered by this policy. All injuries must be promptly
reported to the office or to the teacher in charge.

Leaving School Grounds

Students are not to remain at school after dismissal unless attending a school sponsored activity, or unless
a teacher or the school arranged with a parent/guardian for the student to remain after school. All
students who are not under the supervision of a staff member must be out of the building by 3:15 p.m.
Students must be accompanied by a staff member whenever they use the building outside of the regular
school day.

Students are not permitted to leave the school grounds during school hours without the permission of the
building principal. Parent(s)/ guardian(s) should contact the principal, by note or telephone, in advance to
arrange for dismissing a student when school is in session. Students leaving the school during the school
day must sign out at the office by a parent or guardian.

Library / Media Services

The Library/Media Center is open to students during the day and all kindergarten through 3" grade
classes are scheduled to visit twice per week. Materials may be borrowed for a period of ten school days.
Students are responsible for caring for all materials and lost or damaged materials must be replaced or
monetary reimbursement must be made to the school. Students, teachers and school activity leaders (i.e.
Scouts) may check out materials for their programs. Please refer to the IMC Handbook for additional
information.



Lunch Program

All students must eat in the cafeteria. They may bring lunch from home or they may purchase a cafeteria
lunch. Lunch accounts are established for each child and not by family. Parents are expected to deposit
money into their child’s debit lunch account. Please make payments at the beginning of the week / month
whenever possible. All payments can be made on the Tri-Valley website for your convenience.

Keeping lunch accounts updated and paid is important to the financial functioning of our lunch
program. Though it is understood that from time to time a lunch account may become overdrawn,
we strongly encourage parents to keep the accounts current. To ensure that our accounts are up to
date, it is policy that any student that falls delinquent twenty or more dollars in a given lunch
account will be served a basic lunch of a cheese sandwich, fruit, and milk until the account is made
current.

Students are expected to behave in a courteous manner in the lunchroom. They should remain seated
during lunch and request permission to get up from an adult. Trays, utensils, and paper are to be disposed
of properly. Students must clean up unnecessary messes. Lastly, students may not share their food with
other children under any circumstances.

Parent Calls to Students

If parents or other persons have reason to contact a student while that student is in school, they must do so
by first contacting the office. In all non-emergency cases a message will be given to the student as soon
as possible. In case of serious emergencies, the student will be called to the office. To ensure that a
student receives a message by the end of the school day, call prior to 2:00 p.m. Parents are asked to make
after-school arrangements with their children before they leave home in the morning. It is not desirable to
interrupt classroom instruction to deliver messages.

Class Parties/Birthday Treats

Each room will have three holiday parties (Halloween, Christmas & Valentine's Day) per school year,
Parties are planned by parents and take place during the last hour of the school day. Visitors attending
class parties will need to sign in at the office and will be given a badge for identification purposes,
Students being taken home after parties will need to be signed out with the classroom teacher prior to
leaving.

Due to health concerns all ireats and snacks must be stow bought and prepackaged Tieats and snacks
must have a clearly pnnted list of ingredients on thc packaging. If you decide to purchase a treat from a
bakery, you must provide an ingr edient list for the item.

*%*Please be sensmve o student food alle1gles when bringing i in birthday treats or snacks. Please
communicaté your child’s needs with the school nurse and classmom teacher. %%

Personal Birthday Parties/Celebrations
Pessonal party invitations may not be passed out at school uniess the entire class or all boys/girls receives
an invitation.

Physical Education/Outdoor Recess
In order to be excused from participation in physical education, a student must present an appropriate




excuse from his or her parent/guardian or from a person licensed under the Medical Practice Act. The
excuse may be based on medical or religious prohibitions. An excuse because of medical reasons must
include a signed statement from a person licensed under the Medical Practice Act that corroborates the
medical reason for the request. An cxcuse based on religious reasons must include a signed statement
from a member of the clergy that corroborates the religious reason for the request. Upon written notice
from a student’s parent/guardian, a student will be excused from engaging in the physical activity
components of physical education during a period of religious fasting.

A student in grades 7-8 may submit a written request to the building principal requesting to be excused
from physical education courses because of the student’s ongoing participation in an interscholastic or
extracurricular athletic program. The building principal will evaluate requests on a case-by-case basis.

Students with an Individualized Education Program may also be excused from physical education courses
for reasons stated in Handbook Procedure 10.301.

Special activities in physical education will be provided for a student whose physical or emotional
condition, as determined by a person licensed under the Medical Practices Act, prevents his or her
participation in the physical education course,

State law prohibits the School District from honoring parental excuscs based upon a student’s
participation in athletic training, activities, or competitions conducted outside the auspices of the School
District.

Students who have been excused from physical education shall return to the course as soon as practical.
The following considerations will be used to determine when a student shall return to a physical education
course:?2

I. The time of year when the student’s participation ceases; and
2. The student’s class schedule

TV PTO PTO is a parent - teacher volunteer group with representation from all grade levels and special
interests. Meetings are held on the first Tuesday of the month (September - May). Volunteers from this
group assist with a variety of activities that enhance the school environment for students and statf. A list
of volunteers is generated at the beginning of each school year. Any parent / guardian with a student in
this building is a member of the PTO. This group operates in an advisory and fund raising-capacity.

Recess
Recess Rules:

1. Rough play (pushing, grabbing, tackling, etc.) or special protective equipment is not
permitted.

2. One child on the slide at a time. Children may not climb up the slides.

3. Except for Four Square and Basketball, ball-throwing games (kickball) are to be played
on the grassy areas.

4. Throwing objects (tire chips, snowballs, rocks, etc.) or playing with sticks is not allowed.




5. One child per swing. Sit at all times. Do not jump from a moving swing. Do not play
near swings.

6. Bascball is played only under supervision of a teacher - not during recess.

7. No sitting on pull-up or monkey bars.

8. Students should use the bathroom and get drinks before going outside. They must ask for
permission from the supervisor before returning to the building for any reason.

9. Students are not allowed to leave the gym or playground without permission.

0. Supervisors will warn students who do not follow rules. The second violation will result
in the student's remaoval from recess.

11. Severe, ongoing behavior problems will result in principal intervention and/or parent
notification.

12. Students must wear snow pants, boots, mitiens/gloves, hat, and coat in order to play in
the snow. If the student does not have the required clothing, the student will stay on the
blacktop.

13. Line up prompftly when a signal is given.

14. No standing or walking on the Butterfly garden wall and benches. Stay on the pavers
while walking through the garden.

Inclement Weather
When there is inclement weather or the wind chill is less than 20 degrees, students will have indoor lunch
TECESS.

Religious Observance

A student shall be released from school as an excused absence for the purpose of observing a religious
holiday. The parent(s)/guardian(s) must give written notice to the district five (5) days before the
student’s anticipated absence. The parent(s)/guardian(s) written notification of the students’ anticipated
absence will satisfy the district’s requirement of a written excuse when the student returns to school.

Report Cards

Report cards are distributed after each nine-week grading period. Report cards can also be accessed
online through Family Access. Sign up for Family Access through the district website
(www.tri-valley3.org). Parent/teacher conferences will be scheduled after the first grading period. When
a student is doing unsatisfactory work, a parent will be contacted and a conference is encouraged, A
conference may be scheduled at ANY time by either a parent or teacher.

Retention of Students

In grades K-3 promotion and retention shall be based on the academic progress of the student. To be
considered for promotion, a student must show readiness for the next grade level. Social promotion is no
longer acceptable by Illinois State Code. Because this step is emotional for everyone involved, every
effort will be made to keep parents apprised of student progress throughout the school year. The decision
for retention of a student shall be made only after a conference has been held with the child’s teacher, the
principal, and the parent(s)/guardian(s). The final decision shall rest with the school administration.

RTI (Response to Intervention)

RTI is a process designed to help schools focus on high quality interventions that are matched to student
needs and monitored on a frequent basis. The information gained from the RTI process is used by school
personnel and parents to adapt instruction and to make decisions regarding the student’s educational
program.



Skateboard Policy

Students are not to use or be riding on skateboards on school property at any time. Those who violate
this rule will have the skateboard confiscated and will be subject to discipline. Parents may pick up any
confiscated skateboards from the building principal.

Special Education & Remedial Services

Tri-Valley offers five programs that provide extra support and learning experiences for children who have
special needs which cannot be remediated through regular classroom instruction. Our programs in
Speech & Language, LD Resource Instruction, Inclusion, Student Assistance, and Title 1 are used to aid a
child's classroom teacher in providing each child with the best possible educational program.

Speech and Language Therapy

Speech and Language services are available for children who are three years old and older. These
services assist children with: articulation of speech sounds, understanding or using language, fluency, and
voice quality. Parents and/or teachers may contact the Speech-Language Pathologist with any
communication concerns. Eligibility for the Speech-Language Program will be determined following an
evaluation.

Texthooks

Textbooks are assigned to students at the beginning of each school year. Fees are established yearly and
paid at registration. Free/reduced textbook rental forms are available upon request. All textbooks have
been checked and are considered to be in good condition when assigned. It is expected that you will
return them in good condition at the end of the school year. If any assigned book requires replacement,
rebinding, or repair due to abusive use, it will be the responsibility of the student to pay for replacement
or repair. If replacement is necessary, you will own the damaged book. Please check your books
carefully. If you question the condition of any book, please speak to your child's teacher immediately.

Title I Program

Students in need of additional reading support and instruction can receive assistance from the Title [
reading specialist. Parents of students who qualify for assistance will be contacted annually or as students
are referred.

Visitors
Parents and citizens of the community are encouraged to visit the school any time during the school year.

All visitors including parents and siblings are required to enter through the front door of the building and
proceed immediately to the main office. Visitors should identify themselves and inform the office
personnel of their reason for being at the school by signing in with the administrative assistant. Visitors
will be given a visitor badge to be worn at alf times when in the building to ensure security of our staff
and students.

Visitors must sign in, identifying their name, the date and time of arrival, and the classroom or location
they are visiting. Visitors are required to proceed immediately to their location in a quiet mammer. All
visitors must return to the main office and sign out before leaving the school.

Visitors are expected to abide by all school rules during their time on school property. A visitor who fails
to conduct himself or herself in a manner that is appropriate will be asked to leave and may be subject to
criminal penalties for trespass and/or disruptive behavior.



Children not enrolled at school may not visit classes.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The primary function of the school nurse is to promote student health and safety and maintain student
records. If a student becomes ill or injured at school when the nurse is not present, another school official
will provide care. Please contact the school nurse any time you have questions or concerns.

All accidents that occur at school or at a school function are to be reported to the office. If the accident is
considered serious or remains in question to the school nurse or office staff, parents will be notified.

Physicals and Immunizations

Tlinois law requires that all students entering an early childhood program, kindergarten, sixth, or ninth
grades, or transferring from out of state, have a physical examination within one calendar year prior to the
date of entry. The examination must include a complete immunization record and medical history.
Students transferring from another Illinois school must present copies of their current Illinois health
records.

Section 27-8.1 of the Illinois School Code states: “If a child does not comply...then the local school
authority shall exclude that child from school unti] such time as the child presents proof of having had
cither the health examination or those required immunizations which are medically possible to receive
immediately.”

All students entering ECE, Pre-K, Viking Care, Kindergarten, 6th grade, 9th grade or transferring
from out of state must submit a current physical exam and complete immunization record by the FIRST
DAY OF SCHOOL.. Children without physicals and immunizations will be excluded from school until
the school nurse receives the records. Sports physicals are NOT accepted for this requirement.
Immunizations are also required BEFORE THE FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL for several grades.

Parents or guardians who object to health examination or immunizations on religious grounds must
present a signed statement detailing the specific grounds for objection. If a child cannot be fully
immunized because of health reasons (medical contraindication), the physician must state this fact on the
health examination certificate.

The following immunizations are required by the State of Illinois. The specific requirements for cach are
determined in Section 665.240 (Basic Immunization) and Section 665.250 (Proof of Immunity) of Title
77 of the Illinois Administrative Code.

DPT/DTaP

OPV/IPV

Measles

Mumps

Rubella

Hepatitis B

Hib (Mandated for ECE and Pre-Kindergarten only)
Pneumococcal (Mandated for ECE and Pre-Kindergarten only)
Varicella

Meningococcal

® & ¢ © @ ® & & & ©




Ilnesses and Communicable Diseases

For everyone’s protection, sick children must be at home, not at school. When reporting the student’s
absence, please report the reason for the child’s absence. The school needs to be informed of any student
having a special health problem or communicable disease. Children with the following conditions should
not be in school:

A fever within the last 24 hours without fever reducing medication

Vomiting or diarrhea within the [ast 24 hours

A frequent or disruptive cough or other signs of an acute respiratory infection

Any contagious illness such as “strep throat” that requires antibiotic therapy. Once a student has been

fever free without use of fever-reducing medications and on antibiotics for at least 24 hours, he/she

may return to school.

e Any undiagnosed skin rash. A student with a rash may attend school upon presenting a physician’s
note stating the rash is not contagious.

e Pronounced lethargy or fatigue that interferes with participation in learning activities.

e & @& @

If a child has been ill with a fever, he/she needs to remain at home until he/she has been fever-free
for 24 hours without fever-reducing medication.

The school will observe recommendations of the Illinois Department of Public Health regarding
communicable diseases. In the event of a diagnosed case of a communicable disease the school nurse will
consult with the McLean County Health Department to determine the need to exclude students not
protected by immunizations, utilizing the most current Illinois Department Public Health Rules and
Regulations.

If students have vomiting or diarrhea, they must be symptom free for 24 hours prior te returning to
school.

Dental Exams

Public Act 93-946 requires all Illinois children in kindergarten, second or transferring from out of
state to have an oral health exam, FEach child shall present proof of exam by a dentist prior to May 15 of
the school year.

Vision Exams

Illinois law requires all children in kindergarten or transferring from out of state must have an eye
examination completed by a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches who provides
eye examinations or a licensed optometrist must perform the required eye examination.

Vision and Hearing Screenings

Vision and hearing screenings will be conducted at state~-mandated grade levels. Vision screening is not a
substitute for a complete eye and vision evaluation by an eye doctor. Your child is not required to undergo
the mandated vision screening. If a report of an eye examination within the last 12 months by an
optometrist is on file at the school. The vision examination report must be completed and signed by the
optometrist. This section of the student handbook constitutes notice to parents and guardians of students
in the grades mandated for vision and hearing screenings. Vision and hearing screenings will be




conducted for all students in the mandated grades unless the parent provides a written request that the
student not be screened, or, in the case of vision screening, provides a current eye examination repott.

Head Lice
The school will observe recommendations of the Illinois Department of Public Health and the American
Academy of Pediatrics regarding head lice.

&
@
(]

Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has head lice.

Infested students will be sent home following notification of the parent or guardian.

The school will provide resources to the parent/guardian regarding appropriate treatment for the
infestation.

A student excluded because of head lice will be permitted to return to school only when the
parent or guardian brings the student to school to be checked by the school nurse or building
principal and the child is determined to be free of the head lice.

Infested children are prohibited from riding the bus to schoo] until the child has been cleared by
the school nurse.

Medication at School

Do not send medication to school with children. Any medication will not be administered without
proper documentation from a physician.

If a student must receive prescription or non-prescription medication at school, a written request
completed by both the licensed prescriber (physician, dentist, etc.) and the parent/guardian, must be on
file at their school. The appropriate form *“Tri-Valley Medication Authorization Form” is available in the
back of this handbook, in each school office, and in the offices of all licensed prescribers in the McLcan
County area,

All medication must be self-administered by the student under supervision of the school nurse, other
certified staff member, or Principal or designee. Students are not allowed to carry medication on their
person or keep it in their classroom. Exceptions will be allowed only with the approval of the building
administrator and the nurse.

All medications will be kept locked in the nurse’s office. Exceptions will be made to allow a student with
asthma to carry their rescue inhaler, or a student with severe allergies to carry their Epi-pen per [llinois
law, once the “School Medication Authorization Form” is on file at the school. This form is available
upon request at each school,

Prescription medication must be in the original package or appropriately labeled container. The container
shall display:

e & & 0 & @

Student’s name

Prescription number

Medication name and dosage
Administration route and/or other direction
Dates to be taken

Licensed prescriber’s name

Pharmacy name, address, and phone number




Non-prescription medication must be in the original container with the label indicating the ingredients and
the student’s name affixed to the container.

All requests for self-administration of medication will expire at the end of the school year, unless ordered
for a short term, If the parent/guardian does not pick up any unused medication, the certified school nurse
shall dispose of the medication in the presence of a witness and both shall document the act.

Care of Students witli Chronic Health Conditions

State faw requires our school district to annually inform parents of students with life-threatening allergies
or life-threatening chronic illnesses like Diabetes of the applicable provisions of Section 504 of the
Rehabifitation Act of 1973 and other applicable federal statutes, State statutes, federal regulations and
State rules.

Special Diets

Students requiring an individual diet from the school cafeteria for a related reason must have an annual
order from a licensed physician and must file a physician statement for food substitution form with the
school nurse. Some diets require a student to avoid certain foods because of allergies or intolerance but
do not require special preparation by the school cafeteria. Parents/guardians can obtain the physician
statement for food substitution form from the school nurse. The form must include:

Identification of the condition requiring the menu modification ot substitute;

Explanation of the restriction to the child’s diet;

ILdentification of the specific food or foods that must be omitted from the child’s diet; and
Identification of the specific food or foods that must be substituted and/or modified.

& & ¢ @

The school nurse will notify the District’s Food Service Director of the need for a special diet and forward
that office a copy of the physician statement for food substitution form.

Information about product allergens is obtained solely from vendors and manufacturers of the product.
The District does not warrant or guarantee the information provided by vendors and manufacturers or that
foods are free of allergens.

BEHAVIOR AND DISCIPLINE
Please also refer to Tri-Valley's "Behavioral Intervention Procedures”, which are available on the
district websife or in the district office.

Prohibited Student Conduct
Students may be disciplined for gross disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to the
following:

1. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, selling or offering for sale tobacco or nicotine
materials, including electronic cigarettes or e-cigarettes. -

2. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages. Students who are
under the influence of an alcoholic beverage are not permitted to attend school or school
functions and are treated as though they had alcohol in their possession.

3. Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, selling or offering for sale:

a. Any illegal drug, controlled substance, or cannabis (including marijuana, medical
cannabis and hashish).



b. Any anabolic steroid unless it is being administered in accordance with a physician’s or
licensed practitioner prescription.

¢. Any performance-cnhancing substance on the Tinois High School Association’s most
current banned substance list unless administered in accordance with a physician or
licensed practitioner prescription.

d. Any prescription drang when not prescribed for the student by a physician or licensed
practitioner, or when used in a manner inconsistent with the prescription or prescribing
physician’s or licensed practitioner’s instructions. The use or possession of medical
cannabis, even by a student for whom medical cannabis has been prescribed, is
prohibited.

a. Any inhalant, regardless of whether it contains an illegal drug or controlled substance: (a}
that a student believes is, or represents to be capable of, causing intoxication,
hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system; or (b) about which
the student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the
student intended the inhalant to cause intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling
of the brain or nervous system. The prohibitien in this section does not apply to a
student’s use of asthma or other legalty prescribed inhalant medications.

“ ook-alike” or counterfeit drugs, including a substance that is not prohibited by this policy, but
one: (a) that a student believes to be, or represents to be, an illegal drug, controlled substance, or
other substance that is prohibited by this policy; or (b) about which a student engaged in behavior
that would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student expressly or impliedly represented
to be an illegal drug, controlled substance or other substance that is prohibited by this policy.
Drug paraphernalia, including devices that are or can be used to: (a) ingest, inhale, or inject
cannabis or controlled substances into the body; and (b) grow, process, store, or conceal cannabis
or controlled substances.

Any substance inhaled, injected, smoked, consumed or otherwise ingested or absorbed with the
intention of causing a physiological or psychological change in the body, including without
limitation, pure caffeine in a tablet or powdered form.

a. Students who are under the influence of any prohibited substance are not permitted to
attend school or school functions and are treated as though they have the prohibited
substance, as applicable, in their posscssion.

Using, possessing, controlling or transferring a “weapon” or violating the procedures listed below
under the Weapons Prohibition section of this handbook procedure.

Using or possessing an ¢lectronic paging device.

Using a cellular telephone, smartphone, video recording device, personal digital assistant (PDA),
or similar electronic device in any rmanner that disrupts the educational environment or violates
the rights of others, including using the device to take photographs in locker rooms or bathrooms,
cheat, or otherwise violate student conduct rules. Prohibited conduct specifically inciudes,
without limitation, creating and sending, sharing, viewing, receiving or possessing an indecent
visual depiction of oneself or another person through the use of a computer, electronic.
communication device or cellular telephone, commonly known as “sexting.” Unless otherwise
banned under this policy or by the building principal, all cellular phones, smartphones and other
electronic devices must be kept powered-off and out-of-sight during the regular school day
unless: (a) the supervising teacher grants permission; (b) use of the device is provided in a
student’s individualized education program (IEP); (c) it is used during the student’s lunch period;
ot (d) it is needed in an emergency that threatens the safety of students, staff, or other individuals,

Using or possessing a laser pointer unless under a staff member’s direct supervision and in the
context of instruction.




10.

11

12.
13.

i4

15.
16,
17.
18,

19.

20,

21,

22,

Disobeying rules of student conduct or directives from staff members or school officials.
Examples of disobeying staff directives include refusing a staff member’s request to stop, present
school identification or submit to a search.

Engaging in academic dishonesty, including cheating, intentionally plagiarizing, wrongfully
giving or receiving help during an academic examination, altering report cards and wrongfully
obtaining test copies or scores,

Engaging in bullying, hazing or any kind of aggressive behavior that does physical or
psychological harm to a staff person or another student or encouraging other students to engage in
such behavior. Prohibited conduct specifically includes, without limitation, any use of violence,
intimidation, force, noise, coercion, threats, stalking, harassment, sexual harassment, public
humiliation, theft or destruction of property, retaliation, hazing, bullying, bullying using a school
computer or a school computer network or other comparable conduct.

Engaging in any sexual activity, including without limitation, offensive touching, sexual
harassment, indecent exposure (including mooning) and sexual assault.

Engaging in tcen dating violence.

Causing or attempting to cause damage to, stealing, or attempting to steal, school property or
another person’s personal property.

Entering school property or a school facility without proper authorization. In the absence of a
reasonable belief that an emergency exists, calling emergency responders (calling 9-1-1);
signaling or setting off alarms or signals indicating the presence of an emergency; or indicating
the presence of a bomb or explosive device on school grounds, school bus or at any school
activity.

Being absent without a recognized excuse.

Being involved with any public school fraternity, sorority, or secret society.

Being involved in a gang or engaging in gang-like activities, including displaying gang symbols
or paraphernalia.

Violating any criminal law, including but not limited to, assault, battery, arson, theft, gambling,
eavesdropping, vandalism and hazing.

Engaging in any activity, on or off campus, that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the
school environment, school operations, or an educational function, includiag but not limited to,
conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of a
staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property.

Making an explicit threat on an Internet website against a school employee, a student, or any
school-related personnel if the Internet website through which the threat was made is a site that
was accessible within the school at the time the threat was made or was available to third partics
who worked or studied within the school grounds at the time the threat was made, and the threat
could be reasonably interpreted as threatcning to the safety and security of the threatened
individual because of his or her duties or employment status or status as a student inside the
school,

Operating an unarmed aircraft system (AUS) or drone for any purpose on school grounds or at
any school event unless granted permission by the building principal.

For purposes of these rules, the term “possession” includes having control, custody, ox care,
currently or in the past, of an object or substance, including situations in which the item is: (a) on
the student’s person; (b) contained in another item belonging to, or under the control of, the
student, such as in the student’s clothing, backpack, or automobile; (¢) in a school’s student
locker, desk, or other school property; (d) at any location on school property or at a
school-sponsored event; or (e) in the case of drugs and alcohol, substances ingested by the
person.



23,

24,

Efforts, including the use of positive interventions and supports shall be made to deter students,
while at school or a school-related event, from engaging in aggressive behavior that may
reasonably produce physical or psychological harm to someone else.

No disciplinary action shall be taken against any student that is based totally or in part on the
refusal of the student’s parent/guardian to administer or consent to the administration of
psychotropic or psychostimulant medication to the student.

When and Where Conduct Rules Apply
The grounds for disciplinary action also apply whenever the student’s conduct is reasonably related to
school or school activities, including but not limited to:

1. On, or within sight of, school grounds before, during, or after school hours or at any time; Off
school grounds at a school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a
reasonable relationship to school;

2. Traveling to or from school or a school activity, function, or event; or

3. Anywhere, if the conduct interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school
environment, school operations, or an educational function, including but not limited to,
conduct that may reasonably be considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of
a staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of students, staff, or school property.

Disciplinary Measures

School officials shall limit the number and duration of expulsions and out-of-school suspensions to the
sreatest extent practicable, and, where practicable and reasonable, shall consider forms of
non-exclusionary discipline before using oui-of-school suspensions or expulsions. School personnel shall
not advise or encourage students to dropout of school voluntarily due to behavioral or academic
difficulties. Potential disciplinary measures include, without limitation, any of the following measures:

1.

R

oo

10.
L1.

12.

13.

14.

Notifying parents/guardians.

Disciplinary conference.

Withholding of privileges.

Temporary removal from the classroom.

Return of property or restitution for lost, stolen or damaged property.

In-school suspension.

After-school study or Saturday study provided the student’s parent/guardian has been notified. (If
transportation arrangements cannot be made in advance, an alternative disciplinary measure will
be assigned to the student.)

Community service.

Seizure of contraband; confiscation and temporary retention of the personal property that was
used to violate schoo! rules.

Suspension of bus riding privileges.

Suspension from school and all school activities for up to 10 days. A suspended student is
prohibited from being on school grounds.

Expulsion from school and all school activities for a definite time period not to exceed 2 calendar
years. An expelled student is prohibited from being on school grounds.

Transfer to an alternative program if the student is expelled or otherwise qualifies for transfer
under State law.

Notifying juvenile authorities or other law enforcement whenever the conduct involves criminal
activity, such as, illegal drugs (controlled substances), “look-alikes,” alcohol or weapons or in



other circumstances as authorized by the reciprocal reporting agreement between the District and
{ocal law enforcement agencies.

The above list of disciplinary measures is a range of options that will not always be applicable in every
case. In some circumstances, it may not be possible to avoid suspending or expelling a student because
behavioral interventions, othet than a suspension or expulsion, will not be appropriate and available, and
the only reasonable and practical way to resolve the threat and/or address the disruption is a suspension or
expulsion.

Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment is itlegal and will not be used. Corporal punishment is defined as slapping,
paddling, or prolonged maintenance of students in physically painful positions, or intentional infliction of
bodily harm. Corporal punishment does not include reasonable force as needed to maintain safety for
students, staff, or other persons, or for the purpose of seif-defense or defense of property.

Weapons Prohibition

A student who is determined to have brought one of the following objects to school, any
school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school
shall be expelled for a period of not less than one year but not more than 2 calendar years:

(1) A firearm, meaning any gun, rifle, shotgun, weapon as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the
United States Code, firearm as defined in Section 1.1 of the Firearm Owners ldentification Card Act, or
firearm as defined in Section 24-1 of the Criminal Code of 1961. The expulsion period may be modified
by the superintendent, and the superintendent's determination may be modified by the board on a
case-by-case basis.

(2) A knife, brass knuckles or other knuckle weapon regardless of its composition, a billy club, or any
other object if used or attempted to be used to cause bodily harm, including “look alikes™ of any firearm
as defined above.

The expulsion requirement may be modified by the superintendent, and the superintendent's
determination may be modified by the board on a case-by-case basis.

Gang & Gang Activity Prohibited

“Gang” is defined as any group, club or organization of two or more persons whose purposcs include the
commission of illegal acts. No student on or about school property or at any school activity or whenever
the student’s conduct is reasonably related to a school activity, shall: (1) wear, possess, use, distribute,
display, or sell any clothing, jewelry, paraphernalia or other items which reasonably could be regarded as
gang symbols; commit any act or omission, or use either verbal or non-verbal gestures, or handshakes
showing membership or affiliation in a gang; or (2) use any speech or commit any act or omission in
furtherance of the interest of any gang or gang activity, including, but not limited to, soliciting others for
membership in any gangs; (3) request any person to pay protection or otherwise intimidate, harass or
threaten any person; (4) commit any other illegal act or other violation of district policies, (5) or incite
other students to act with physical violence upon any other person.




Re-Engagement of Returning Students

The building principal or designee shall meet with a student returning to school from an out-of-school
suspension, expulsion or alternative school setting. The goal of this meeting shall be to support the
student’s ability to be successful in school following a period of exclusion and shall include an
opportunity for students who have been suspended to complete or make-up missed work for equivalent
academic credit.

It is the responsibility of every Tri-Valley student to:
e Be prepared each day. Have what you need when you need it.
Be in the right place at the right time for the right reason.
Do what you are told to do by those in authority when you are told to do it.
Control your own actions.
Show respect at all times to all persons.

e & & e ©

Make sure your actions and behavior do not interfere with another's rights.

Sexual Harassment

It is the policy of Tri-Valley Community Unit District #3 that its educational and extra-curricular
programs, aclivities, services, and benefits will be provided to students without discrimination on the
basis of sex and that no student shall, on the basis of sex, be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege,
advantage, or opportunity.

The school and district shall provide an educational environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct
or communications constituting harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by
State and federal law.

Sexual harassment is unwanted and unwelcome sexual behavior which interferes with a person’s right to
get an education or to participate in school activities. It may result from words or conduct that offend,
stigmatize, or demean a student on the basis of sex.

The target of the harassment and the perpetrator do not have to agree about what is happening; sexual
harassment is subjective. Harassment can be one-time or multiple occurrences. Examples of sexual
harassment include but are not limited to; touching, pinching and grabbing body parts, sexual notes or
pictures, sexual graffiti, being cornered and subjected to suggestive or sexual gestures, looks, verbal
comments (including —mooing, ~barking, and other noises) or jokes, spreading sexual ramors or
making sexual propositions, pulling someone’s clothes off, pulling your own clothes off, attempted rape
and rape.

Some forms of sexual harassment may also be crimes and should be reported to police or prosecutors.
Any person, who feels, on the basis of sex, they have been excluded from participation in, have been
denied the benefits of, or have been subjected to discrimination under any activity or program of
Tri-Valley High School, may appeal such discrimination, in person or in writing to the district Title IX
coordinator, Dr. Mouser.

Search and Seizare

In order to mainiqin order, safety. and security in the schools, school authorities are authorized to conduct
reasonable searches of school property and equipment, as well as of students and their personal effects.
“School authorities” inclades school liaison police officers.




School Property and Equipment as well as Personal Effects Left There by Students
School authorities may inspect and search school property and equipment owned or
controlled by the school (such as, lockers, desks, and parking lots), as well as personal
effects left there by a student, without notice to or the consent of the student. Students
have no reasonable expectation of privacy in these places or areas or in their personal
effects left there.

The building principal may request the assistance of law enforcement officials to conduct inspections and
searches of lockers, desks, parking lots, and other school property and equipment for illegal drugs,
weapons, or other illegal or dangerous substances or materials, including searches conducted through the
use of specially trained dogs.

Students

School authorities may search a student and/or the student’s personal effects in the student’s possession
(such as, purses, wallets, knapsacks, backpacks, lunch boxes, etc.) when there is a reasonable ground for
suspecting that the search will produce evidence the particular student has violated or is violating either
the law or the school or district’s student rules and policies. The search will be conducted in a manner that
is reasonably refated to its objective of the search and not excessively intrusive in light of the student’s
age and sex, and the nature of the infraction.

Seizure of Property

If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or the school or
district’s policies or rules, evidence may be seized and impounded by school authorities and disciplinary
action may be taken. When appropriate, evidence may be transferred to law enforcement authorities.

Bulilying
Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment1

Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student’s ability to lcarn and a school’s ability to
educate. Preventing students from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal
access to a safe, non-hostile learning environment are important district and school goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable
discharge status from the military service, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity
or expression, ancesiry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, order of protection status, status aof
being homeless, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy, association with a
person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or any other
distinguishing characteristic is prohibited in each of the following situations:

1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.

2. While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at
designated school bus stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or
school-sanctioned events or activities. '

LI

Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer
network, or other similar electronic school equipment.

4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a
non-school-related location, activity, function, or program or from the use of technology or




an electronic device that is not owned, leased, or used by the school district or school if the
bellying causes a substantial disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a
school.

Bullying includes cyber-bullying and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct,
including communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has
or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student’s or students’
person or property;

2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student’s or students’ physical or mental
health;

3. Substantjally interfering with the student’s or students’ academic performance; or
Substantially interfering with the student’s or students” ability to participate in or benefit
from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Cyberbullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic comnunication, including
without limitation any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any
nature transmitted in whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, photo-electronic system,
or photo-optical system, including without lmitation clectronic mail, Internet communications, instant
messages, or facsimile communications. Cyberbullying includes the creation of a webpage or weblog in
which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person
as the author of posted content or messages if the creation or impersonation creates any of the effects
enumerated in the definition of bullying. Cyberbullying also includes the distribution by electronic means
of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that may
be accessed by one or more persons if the distribution or posting creates any of the effects enumerated in
the definition of bullying.

Bullying may take various forms, including without limitation one or more of the following: harassment,
threats, intimidation, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public
humiliation, destruction of property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying. This list is
meant to be illustrative and non-exhaustive.

Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the
building prineipal, nondiscrimination coordinator, district complaint manager or any staff member with
whom the student is comfortable speaking. All school staff members are available for help with a bully or
to make a report about bullying. Anyone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has
information about actual or threatened bullying is encouraged to report it to the district complaint
manager or any staff member. Anonymous reports are also accepted by phone call or in writing.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator:



Name

Address

Phone Number

TFmail Address

Complaint Managers:2

Name

Address

Phone Number

Email Address

Name

Address




Phone Number

Email Address

A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying is prohibited. A student’s act of
reprisal or retaliation will be treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other
appropriate rernedial actions.

A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the school’s
investigation concludes that no bullying occurred. However, knowingly making a false accusation or
providing knowingly false information will be treated as bullying for purposes of determining any
conseguences or other appropriate remedial actions.

Harassment Prohibited

No person, including a school or school district employee or agent, or student, shall harass, intimidate, or
bully a student on the basis of actual or perceived: race; color; national origin; military status; unfavorable
discharge status from military service; sex; sexual orientation; gender identityl; gender-related identity or
expression; ancestry; age; religion; physical or mental disability; order of protection status; status of being
homeless; actual or potential marital or parental status, inciuding pregnancy; association with a person or
group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics; or any other
distinguishing characteristic. The District will not tolerate harassing, intimidating conduct, or bullying
whether verbal, physical, sexual, or visual, that affects the tangible benefits of education, that
unreasonably interferes with a student’s educational performance, or that creates an intimidating, hostile,
or offensive educational environment. Examples of prohibited conduct include name-calling, using
derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual violence, causing psychological harin, threatening or causing physical
harm, threatened or actual destruction of property, or wearing or posscssing items depicting or implying
hatred or prejudice of one of the characteristics stated above.

Equal educational and extracurricular opportunities are available to all students without regard to race,
color, nationality, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental
disability, status as homeless, immigration status, order of protection status, or actual or potential marital
or parental status, including pregnancy.

No student shall, based on sex, sexual orientation, or gender identity be denied equal access to programs,
activities, services, or benefits or be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege, advantage, or denied
equal access to educational and extracurricular programs and activities.

Making a Report or Complaint

Students are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of bullying, intimidation, harassment,
sexual harassment, or any other prohibited conduct to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building
Principal, Assistant Building Principal, Dean of Smdents, a Complaint Manager, or any cmployee with



whom the student is comfortable speaking. A student may choose to report to an employee of the
student’s same gender.

Discipline for Mishehavior or Misconduct

Maintaining a safe, orderly environment for our students is an important part of providing quality
education. The classroom teacher will maintain classroom discipline. Teachers will inform their students
of classroom rules and routines and the consequences that will result from not obeying those rules.
Students will be sent to the principal for disciplinary action after the teacher has first taken steps to
change and/or stop the inappropriate behavior. Any student involved in a fight or threatening another
student will be sent to the principal immediately, and their parents will be notified.

The procedures followed when a student is sent to the principal for disciplinary action are:

1. First offense: The student will discuss the problem with the principal who will record
the offense for future reference. Privileges will be taken away.

2. Second offense: The student will discuss the problem with the principal who will record
the offense, contact the parent(s) and revoke privileges.

3. Third offense: The student will discuss the problem with the principal who will record
the offense and contact the parent(s). An after-school detention will be given and/or
privileges revoked.

4. Fourth offense: The student will discuss the problem with the prinecipal who will record
the offense and contact the parent(s) to arrange a conference. Appropriate disciplinary
action will take place after this conference.

In cases of serious misconduct that threatens the health, safety, or well-being of the student or others,
pareni(s) will be contacted immediately to arrange a conference. In-school or out-of-school suspensions
will be assigned until such time as the conference is held and disciplinary actions determined. In these
cases, the first three steps of the above disciplinary process may be waived.

Detention - if assigned, every effort will be made to contact parents by phone concerning the incident
which caused the need for a detention. Arrangements will be made for the detention to be served as soon
as possible.

Suspension / Expulsion - State statutes charge the school with maintaining discipline and safety in the
school. This discipline shall extend to all activities connected with the school program and may be
exercised at any time for the safety and supervision of the pupils in the absence of their parents or
guardians.

Any student who is flagrantly disobedient or insubordinate may be suspended from school, by the
principal, for a period not to exceed 10 days. THinois law requires a Schooi District to provide the
information, found in Appendix A, to a parent/guardian of a child who is suspended from school due to
an act of gross disobedience or misconduct for a duration of 1-3 days and Appendix B for suspensions of
4-10 days.

A pupil may be expelled only by action of the Board of Education upon recommendation of the
Superintendent.

Behavior Intervention Guidelines - Students with an IEP (Individual Education Program) are advised
that a copy of this district's behavior intervention guidelines is available from the office upon request.



Bus Conduct
Students are expected to follow all school rules when riding the school bus. A student may be suspended
from riding the bus for up to 10 consecutive school days for engaging in gross disobedience or
misconduct, including but not Hmited to, the following:
1. Violating any school rule or school district poticy.
Willful injury or threat of injury to a bus driver or to another rider.
Willful and/or repeated defacement of the bus.
Repeated use of profanity.
Repeated willful disobedience of a directive from a bus driver or other supervisor.

o W

Such other behavior as the building principal deems to threaten the safe operation of the bus
and/or its occupants.

If a student is suspended from riding the bus for gross disobedience or misconduct on a bus, the School
Board may suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety
reasons.

A student suspended from riding the bus who does not have alternate transportation to school shall have
the opportunity to complete or make up work for equivalent academic credit. It shall be the responsibility
of the student’s parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have alternate
transportation. The district shall have a plan in place to allow the smdent access to school if
transportation is an issue.

Bus Rider Rules

The district provides bus transportation to and from school for all students living 1.5 miles or more from
the school. A list of bus stops will be published at the beginning of the school year before student
registration. Parents must, at the beginning of the school year, select one bus stop at which a student is to
be picked up, and one stop at which a student is to be dropped off. Students arc not permitted to ride a
bus other than the bus to which they are assigned. Exceptions must be approved in advance by the
building principal.

While students are on the bus, they are under the supervision of the bus driver. In most cases, the bus
driver can handle bus discipline problems. In the case of a written disciplinary referral, student bus
problems will be investigated and handled by the building principal.

Students are expected to follow all school rules while on the bus. Students may be suspended from
riding the school bus for up to 10 consecutive school days for violating school rules or for engaging in
other gross disobedience or misconduct. The school board may suspend the student from riding the
school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety reasons. The district’s regular suspension
procedures shall be used to suspend a student’s privilege to ride a school bus.

A student who is suspended from riding the school bus and who does not have alternative transportation
to school shall be allowed the opportunity to make up all missed work for equivalent academic credit. It



is the responsibility of the student’s parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have
alternative transportation to school.

In the interest of the student’s safety and in compliance with State Jaw, students are also expected to
observe the following:

1. Dress property for the weather. Make sure all drawstrings, ties, straps, ctc. on all clothing,
backpacks and other items, are shortened or removed to lessen the likelihood of them
getting caught in bus doors, railings or aisles.

Arrive on time at the bus stop and stay away from the street while waiting for the bus.

3. Stay away from the bus until it stops completely and the driver signals you to board. Enter
in a single file without pushing. Always use the handrail.

4. Take a seat right away and remain seated facing forward. Keep your hands, arms, and
head inside the bus.

5. Talk quietly on the bus. No shouting or creating loud noises that may distract the driver.
Tablets, iPods®, iPads®, smartphones, and other electronic devices must be silenced on
the bus unless a student uses headphones.

6. Help keep the bus neat and clean. Keep belongings out of the aisle and away from
emergency exits. Bating and drinking are not allowed on the bus.

7. Always listen to the driver’s instructions. Be courteous to the driver and other students,
Sit with your hands to yourself and avoid making noises that would distract the driver or
bother other passengers. Remain seated, keeping your hands, arms, and head inside the
bus at all times.

8. Wait until the bus pulls to a complete stop before standing up. Use the handrail when
exiting the bus.

9. Stay out of the danger zone next to the bus where the driver may have difficulty seeing
you. Take five giant steps away from the bus and out of the danger zone, until you can
see the driver and the driver sces you. Never crawl under a bus.

10. If you must cross the street after you get off the bus, wait for the driver’s signal and then
cross in front of the bus. Cross the street only after checking both ways for traffic.

11. Never run back to the bus, even if you dropped or forgot something.

Video and audio cameras may be active on buses to record student conduct and may be used for the
purposes of investigation into misconduct or accidents on the bus.

For questions regarding school transportation issues, please contact the Cade Hasselbring, Transportation
Director, at (309) 378-2351.

Students are allowed to ride a bus home other than their regular bus route, providing a slip signed by the
parents is presented to the principal; or in an emergency, if a phone call is made to the office. If space
permits, students may be permiited to ride buses other than their own if a transportation change request
slip is secured from the principal's oftice in advance,

Change request slips will be issued for illness, employment, necessary parental absence from home, or
other situations deemed necessaty by the principal.

If a parent will pick up a student who normally rides the bus, please notify the teacher and office in
writing on the day(s) of the change.

Vandalism



Vandalism will result in cancellation of privilcges and other disciplinary action. Vandalism is defined as
any malicious attempt to harm or destroy data of another user, the Internet, or any other network. This
includes, but is not limited fo, the uploading or creation of computer viruses.

TECANOLOGY USE POLICY
Alf use of technology and the Internet shall be consistent with the District's goal of promoting educational
excellence by resource sharing, innovation, and communication. Students and parent(s)/guardian(s} must
sign the Authorization for Internet Access once while the student is enrolled in the Elementary School. A
copy of District Policy #6166.2 containing the appropriate use and ethics for district technology is
available upon request.

Access to Student Social Networking Passwords & Websites

School officials may conduct an investigation or require a student to cooperate in an investigation if there
is specific information about activity on the student’s account on a social networking website that violates
a school disciplinary rule or policy. In the course of an investigation, the student may be required to share
the content that is reported in order to allow school officials to make a factual determination.

Cell Phone Policy

Electronic paging devices and cellular telephones may not be used in the school building during the
school day unless the building principal has first expressly authorized the use of such a device. While at
school, students must keep their cell phones in their backpack and not on their person. Cell phones will
not be permitied to be used at recess.

Copyright Web Publishing Rules
Copyright law prohibits the republishing of text or graphics found on the Web without explicit written
perntission.

a. For each re-publication (on a Web site or file server) of a graphic or text
file that was produced externally, there must be a notice at the bottom of
the page crediting the original producer and noting how and when
permission was granted. If possible, the notice should also include the
Web address of the original source.

b. Students engaged in producing web pages must provide library media
specialists with e-mail or hard copy permissions before the Web pages are
published, Printed evidence of the status of “public domain” documents
must be provided.

¢. The absence of a copyright notice may not be interpreted as permission to
copy the materials. Only the copyright owner may provide the permission,
The manager of the Web site displaying the material may not be considered
a source of permission.

d. The “fair use” rules governing student reports in classrooms are less
stringent and permit limited use of graphics and text.

¢. Student work may only be published if there is written permission from
both the parent/guardian and student.

E-Reader Policy

Electronic readers, simply called “e-Readers”, are digital devices that can store books, periodicals,
magazines, apps and other electronic media. E-Readers like Amazon’s Kindle, Barnes and Noble’s Nook,
Apple’s iTouch, iPhone, and iPad are quickly becoming ever-present in our digital culture and they simply
cannot be ignored. Tri-Valley Elementary, in striving to maintain technological relcvance in education, is




providing the opportunity for students to use these devices in accordance with our Acceptable Use Policy.
This opportunity is a privilege that requires extra caution and responsibility on the part of the students and
their parents. A student who violates any portion of the e-Reader Policy may immediately lose the
privilege to use their e-Reader at school for a length of time commensurate with the nature of the
violation.

a. e-Readers are to be used gnly for the reading of school appropriate material (books, etc.) and
not for other purposes such as communication,

b. e-Readers cannot be used during outdoor recess. E-Readers may be allowed during indoor
recess but will be under the discretion of the teacher.

c.  All e-Readers must be stored in the child’s backpack or in a location in the classroom that is
approved by the teacher.

d.  All e-Readers must have cellular and network capabilities disabled (furned off) while the
device is at school. Students will not be granted Internet access due to the web filter’s
inability to authenticate users on e-readers.

e. e-Readers must be used at appropriate times in accordance with teacher instructions. The
e-Reader must not be a distraction for the student or those around him/her nor be a source of
any classroom disruption.

f. The student is responsible for knowing how to properly and effectively use their e-Reader
and this should not be a burden for the teachers.

Parents and guardians understand that if his/her child brings an e-Reader to school that the student must
comply with the above requirements and the Tri-Valley Acceptable Use Policy. You also understand that
Tri-Valley Elementary is not responsible for any damage or loss associated with your child’s e-Reader.
You also understand that a violation of the e-Reader policy may result in your child losing the privilege to
bring their e-Reader to school for a length of time commensurate with the nature of the violation.

Indemnification

The user agrecs to indemnify the school and district for any losses, costs, or damages, including
reasonable attorney fees, incurred by the school or district relating to, or arising out of, any violation of
these procedures.

Network Etiquette
The user is expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network etiquette. These include, but are
not limited to, the following:

a. Be polite. Do not become abusive in messages to others,

b. Use appropriate language. Do not swear, or use vulgarities or use other inappropriate
language.

¢. Do not reveal personal information, including the address or telephone numbers, of students
or colleagues.

d. Recognize that electronic mail (e-mail) is not private. People who operate the system have
access to all mail. Messages relating to or in support of illegal activities may be reported to
the authorities.

e. Do not use the network in any way that would disrupt its use by others.

f Consider all communications and information accessible via the network to be private

property.

No Warranties

The school and district make no warranties of any kind, whether expressed or implied, for the service it is
providing. The school and district are not responsible for any damages the user suffers. This includes
loss of data resulting from delays, non-deliveries, missed-deliveries, or service interruptions caused by its




negligence or the user’s errors or omissions. Use of any information obtained via the Internet is at the
user’s own risk. The school and district specifically deny any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of
information obtained through ifs services.

Security

Network security is a high priority. If the user can identify a security problem on the Internet, the user
must notify the system administrator or building principal. Keep your account and password confidential.
Do not use another individual’s account without written permission from that individual. Any user
identified as a security risk may be denied access to the network.

Unacceptable use
The user is responsible for his or her actions and activities involving the network. Some examples of
unaceceptable use are:
1. Using the network for any illegal activity, including violation of copyright or other contracts, or
transmitting any material in violation of any State or federal law;
Unauthorized downloading of software;
Downloading copyrighted material,
Using the network for private or financial gain;
Wastefully using resources, such as file space;
Hacking or gaining unauthorized access to files, resources, or entities;
Invading the privacy of individuals, that includes the unauthorized disclosures, dissemination, and
use of information about anyone that is of a personal nature including a photograph or video,
8. Using another person’s account or password,
9. Posting material authored or created by another without his/her consent,
10. Posting anonymous messages;
11. Using the network for commercial or private advertising;
12. Accessing, submitting, posting, publishing, or displaying any defamatory, inaccurate, abusive,
obscene, profane, sexually oriented, threatening, racially offensive, harassing, or illegal material;
13. Using the network while access privileges arc suspended or revoked.

Mok L

Use of Electronic Mail
The E-mail system is owned and controlled by the school and district. E-mail is provided fo aid students
in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities, and as an educational tool.

a. The school and district reserve the right to access and disclose the contents
of any account on its system, without prior notice or permission from the
account’s user. Unauthorized access by any student or staff member to
an electronic mail account is strictly prohibited.

b. Each person should use the same degree of care in drafting an electronic
mail message as would be put into a written memorandum or document.
Nothing should be transmitted in an e-mail message that would be
inappropriate in a memorandum or document.

c. Electronic messages transmitted via the school district’s Internet gateway
carry with them an identification of the user’s Internet “domain.”” This
domain name is a registered domain and identifies the author as being with
the school district. Great care should be taken, therefore, in the
composition of such messages and how such messages might reflect on the
name and reputation of the school and district. Users will be held
personally responsible for the content of any and all electronic mail
messages transmitted to external recipients.



d. Any message received from an unknown sender via the Internet should
either be immediately deleted or forwarded to the system administrator.
Downloading any file attached to any Internet-based message is prohibited
unless the user is certain of the message’s authenticity and the nature of the
file so transmitted.

e. Use of the electronic mail system constitutes consent to these regulations.

PARENTAL RIGHTS
Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities
Individuals with disabilities will be provided an opportunity to participate in all school-sponsored
services, programs, or activities. Individuals with disabilities should notify the superintendent or building
principal if they have a disability that will require special assistance or services and, if so, what services
are required. This notification should occur as far in advance as possible of the school-sponsored
function, program, or meeting.

Discipline of Students with Disabilities

The school will comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) when disciplining
students. Behavioral interventions will be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen
desirable behaviors and reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. No special education student shall be
expelled if the student’s particular act of gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her
disability as determined through a manifestation hearing. Any special education student whose gross
disobedience or misconduct is not a manifestation of his or her disability may be expelled pursuant to the
expulsion procedures.

Education of Children with Disabilities

It is the intent of the district to cnsure that students who are disabled within the definition of Section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act are identified,
evaluated and provided with appropriate educational services,

The School provides a frec appropriate public education in the least restrictive environment and necessary
related services to all children with disabilities enrolled in the school. The term “children with
disabititics” means children between ages 3 and the day before their 22nd birthday for whom it is
determined that special education services arc needed, except those children with disabilities who turn 22
years of age during the school year are cligible for special education services through the end of the
school year. Tt is the intent of the school to ensure that students with disabilitics are identified, evaluated,
and provided with appropriate educational services.

A copy of the publication “Explanation of Procedural Safeguards Available to Parents of Students with
Disabilities” may be obtained from the school district office.

Students with disabilities who do not qualify for an individnalized education program, as required by the
federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and implementing provisions of this [llinois law, may
qualify for services under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 if the student (i) has a
physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, (i) has a record
of a physical or mental impairment, or (iii) is regarded as having a physical or mental impairment.

For further information, please contact:




Gail MeCance
1-309-378-3414

Tri-Valley Middle School (office location)

English Learners

The school offers opportunities for English Learners to develop high levels of academic attainment in
English and to meet the same academic content and student academic achievement standards that all
children are expected to attain,

Parents/guardians of Engiish Learners will be: (1) given an opportunity to provide input to the program,
and (2) provided notification regarding their child’s placement in, and information about, the District’s
English Learners programs.

Instructional Material
A student’s parent/guardian may inspect, upon their request, any instructional material used as part of
their child’s educational curriculum within a reasonable time of their request.

Homeless Child’s Right to Education

When a child loses permanent housing and becomes a homeless person as defined at law, or when a
homeless child changes his or her temporary living arrangements, the parent or guardian of the homeless
child has the option of either: '

1. Continuing the child’s education in the schoo! of origin for as long as the child remains homeless
or, if the child becomes permanently housed, until the end of the academic year during which the
housing is acquired; or

2. Enrolling the child in any school that non-homeless students who live in the attendance area in
which the child or youth is actually living are eligible to attend.

Mandated Reporfers

Al school personnel, including teachers and administrators, arc required by law to immediately report
any and alf suspected cases of child abuse or neglect to the Il{inois Department of Children and Family
Services.

School Visitation Rights

The School Visitation Rights Act permits employed parents/guardians, who are unable to meet with
educators because of a work conflict, the right to time off from work under certain conditions to attend
necessary school functions such as parent-teacher conferences. Letters verifying participation in this
program are available from the school office upon request.

Sex Offender & Violent Offender Community Notification Laws
State law requires that all school districts provide parents/guardians with information about sex offenders
and violent offenders against youth.

You may find the Illinois Sex Offender Registry on the THinois State Police’s website at:
http://www.isp.state.il.us/sor/.




You may find the Illinois Statewide Child Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Registry on the
llinois State Police’s website at: hitp:/www.isp.state.il.us/cmvo/

Sexual Predator Notification Law
State law prohibits a convicted child sex offender from being present on school property when children

under the age of 18 are present, except for in the following circumstances as they relate to the individual’s
child(ren):

e To attend a conference at the school with school personnel to discuss the progress of their child.

e To participate in a conference in which evaluation and placement decisions may be made with
respect to their child‘s special education services.

e To attend conferences to discuss issues concerning their child, such as retention or promotion.

In all other cases, convicted child sex offenders are prohibited from being present on school property
unless they obtain written permission from the superintendent or school board,

Anytime that a convicted child sex offender is present on school property for any reason-— including the
three reasons abave — he/she is responsible for notifying the principal's office upon arrival on school
property and upon departure from school property. It is the responsibility of the convicted child sex
offender to remain under the direct supervision of a school official at all times he/she is in the presence or
vicinity of children.

A violation of this law is a Class 4 felony.

Standardized Testing
Students and parents/guardians should be aware that students will take standardized tests throughout the
year. Parents are encouraged to cooperate in preparing students for the standardized testing, because the
quality of the education the schoaol can provide is partially dependent upon the school’s ability to continue
to prove its success in the state’s standardized tests. Parents can assist their students in achieving their best
performance by doing the following:

1. Encourage students to work hard and study throughout the year,

2. Ensure students get a good night’s sleep the night before exams;

3. Ensure students eat well the morning of the exam, particularly ensuring they eat sufficient
protein;

4, Remind and emphasize for students the importance of good performance on standardized
testing;

5. Ensure students are on time and prepared for tests, with appropriate materials, including

nurmber 2 pencils;
6. Teach students the importance of honesty and ethics during the performance;
7. Encourage students to relax on testing day.

Student Privacy Protections

Surveys by Third Parties

Before a school official or staff member administers or distributes a survey or evaluation created by a
third party to a student, the student’s parent/gnardian may inspect the survey or evaluation, upon their
request and within a reasonable time of their request. This applies to every survey: (1) that is created by a
person or entity other than a district official, staff member, or student, (2) regardless of whether the



student answering the questions can be identificd, and (3) regardless of the subject matter of the
questions.

Parents who object to disclosure of information concerning their child to a third party may do so in
writing to the building principal.

Surveys Requesting Personal Information

School officials and staff members will not request, nor disclose, the identity of any student who
completes any survey or evaluation (created by any person or entity, including the school or district)
containing one or more of the following items:

Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student’s parent/guardian.

Menta] or psychological problems of the student or the student’s family.

Sexual behaviors or attitudes.

Ilegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior.

Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom students have close family relationships.
Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those with lawyers, physicians,
and ministers.

Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or the student’s parent/guardian.

e Income other than that required by law to determine program eligibility.

e & @& & & ®

&

The student’s parent/guardian may inspect the survey or evaluation upon, and refuse to allow their child
to participate in the survey. The school will not penalize any student whose parent/guardian exercised this
option.

Student Records

A schoo! student record is any writing or other recorded information concerning a student and by which a
student may be identified individually that is maintained by a school or at its direction or by a school
employee, regardless of how or where the information is stored, except for certain records kept in a statf
merrber’s sole possession; records maintained by law enforcement officers working in the school; video
and ather electronic recordings (including electronic recordings made on school busses) that are created in
part for law enforcement, security, or safety reasons or purposes, though such electronic recordings may
become a student record if the content is used for disciplinary or special education purposes regarding a
particular student.

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the Illinois Student Records Act afford
parents/guardians and students over 18 years of age (“eligible students™) certain rights with respect to the
student’s school records. They are:

1. The right to inspect and copy the student’s education records within 10 business days of
the day the District receives a request for access.

The degree of access a student has to his or her records depends on the student’s age. Students
less than 18 years of age have the right to inspect and copy only their permanent record. Students
18 years of age or older have access and copy rights to both permanent and temporary records. A
parent/guardian or student should submit to the building principal a written request that identifies
the record(s) he or she wishes to nspect. Within 10 business days, the building principal will
make arrangements for access and notify the parent/guardian or student of the time and place
where the records may be inspected. In certain circumstances, the District may request an




additional 5 business days in which to grant access. The District charges $.35 per page for
copying but no one will be denied their right to copies of their records for inability to pay this
cost. These rights are denied to any person against whom an order of protection has been entered
concerning the student.

2. The right to have one or more scores received on college entrance examinations included
on the student’s academie transcript.l

Parents/guardians or eligible students may have one or more scores on college entrance
examinations included on the student’s academic transeript. The District will include scores on
college entrance examinations upon the written request of the parent/guardian or eligible student
stating the name of each college entrance examination that is the subject of the request and the
dates of the scores that are to be included.

3. The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent/
guardian or eligible student belicves are inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper.

A parent/guardian or eligible student may ask the District to amend a record that is believed to be
inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. Requests should be sent to the building principal and should
clearly identify the record the parent/guardian or eligible student wants changed and the specific
reason a change is being sought.If the District decides not to amend the record, the District will
notify the parent/guardian or eligible student of the decision and advise him or her of their right to
a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing
procedures will be provided to the parent/guardian or eligible student when notified of the right to
a hearing,

4. The right to permit disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the
student’s education records, except to the extent that the FERPA or IHinois School Student
Records Act authorizes disclosure withont consent.

Disclosure without consent is permitted to school officials with legitimate educational or
administrative interests. A school official is a person employed by the District as an administrator,
supervisor, instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law
enforcement unit personnel); a person serving on the School Board. A school official may also
include a volunteer, contractor, or consultant who, while not employed by the school, performs an
institutional service or function for which the school would otherwise use its own employees and
who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of
personally identifiable information from education records (such as an attorney, auditor, medical
consultant, therapist, or educational technology vendor); or any parent/guardian or student
serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting
another school official in performing his or her tasks, A school official has a legitimate
educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her
professional responsibility or contractual obligation with the district.Upon request, the District
discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in which a
student has enrolled or intends to enroll, as well as to any person as specifically required by State
or federal law. Before information is released to these individuals, the parents/guardians or
eligible student will receive prior written notice of the nature and substance of the information,
and an opportunity to inspect, copy, and challenge such records.

Academic grades and references to expulsions or out-of-school suspensions cannot be challenged
at the time a student’s records are being forwarded to another school to which the student is
transferring,

Disclosure is also permitted without consent to: any person for resecarch, statistical reporting or



planning, provided that no student or parent/guardian can be identified; to another school district
that overlaps attendance boundaries with the District, if the District has entered into an
intergovernmental agreement that allows for sharing of student records and information with the
other district, any person named in a court order; appropriate persons if the knowledge of such
information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other persons; and
juvenile authorities when necessary for the discharge of their official duties who request
information before adjudication of the student.

5. The right to a copy of any school student record proposed to be destroyed or deleted.
The permanent record is maintained for at least 60 years after the student transfers, graduates, or
permanently withdraws. The temporary record is maintained for at least 5 years after the student
transfers, graduates, or permanently withdraws. Temporary records that may be of assistance to a
student with a disability who graduates or permanently withdraws, may, after 5 years, be
transterred to the parent/guardian or to the student, if the student has succeeded to the rights of
the parent/guardian. Student temporary records are reviewed every 4 years or upon a student’s
change in attendance centers, whichever occurs first.

6. The right to prohibit the release of directory information.

Throughout the school year, the District may release directory information regarding students,
limited to:e Name

+ Address

» Grade level

= Birth date and place

» Parent/guardian names, addresses, electronic mail addresses, and telephone numbers

= Photographs, videos, or digital images used for informational or news-related purposes (whether
by a media outlet or by the school) of a student participating in school or school-sponsored
activities, organizations, and athletics that have appeared in school publications, such as
yearboaoks, newspapers, or sporting or tine arts programs

« Academic awards, degrees, and honors

» Information in relation to schoof-sponsored activitics, organizations, and athletics

» Major field of study

» Period of atiendance in schoolAny parent/guardian or eligible student may prohibit the relcase
of any or all of the above information by delivering a written objection to the building principal
within 30 days of the date of this notice.

7. The right to request that military recruiters or institutions of higher learning not be
granted access to your student’s information without your prior written consent.2

Federal law requires a secondary school to grant military recruiters and institutions of higher
learning, upon their request, access to secondary school students’ names, addresses, and
telephone numbers, unless the student’s parent/guardian, or student who is 18 years of age or
older, submits a written request that the information not be released without the prior written
consent of the parent/guardian or eligible student. If you wish to exercise this option, notify the
building principal.

8. The right contained in this statement; No person may cendition the granting or
withholding of any right, privilege or benefits or make as a condition of employment, credit,
or insurance the securing by any individual of any information from a student’s temporary
record which such individual may obtain through the exercise of any right secured under
State law,

9. The right to file a complaint with the U.S, Department of Education concerning alleged
failures by the District to comply with the requirements of FERPA.



The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:U.S. Department of Education
Student Privacy Policy Office

400 Maryland Avenue, SW

Washington DC 20202-8520

Parent Notices Required by the Every Student Succeeds Act
L. Teacher Qualifications

A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a timely mannet, the professional
qualifications of your student’s classroom teachers, including, at a minimum, whether:

L. The teacher has met the State qualifications and licensing criteria for the
grade levels and subject areas in which the teacher provides instruction.

2. The teacher is teaching under cmergency or other provisional stagus.

3. The teacher is teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the
teacher,

4. Paraprofessionals provide services to the student and, if so, their
qualifications.

I1. Testing Transparency

The State and District requires students to take certain standardized tests. For additional information, see
handbook procedure 12:20 2

A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a timely manner, information regarding
student participation in any assessments mandated by law or District policy, which shall include
information on any applicable right you may have to opt your student out of such assessment.

II. Annual Report Card

Each year, the District is required to disscminate an annual report card that includes information on the
District as & whole and each school served by the District, with aggregate and disaggregated information
for each required subgroup of students including: student achievement on academic assessments
(designated by category), graduation rates, district performance, teacher qualifications, and certain other
information required by federal law. When available, this information will be placed on the District’s
website at .3

[V. Parent & Family Engagement Compact 4
V. Unsafe School Choice Option

The unsafe school choice option allows students to transfer to another District school or to a public
charter school within the District under certain circumstances. For additional information, see handbook
procedure 12:100. 5

V1. Student Privacy



Students have certain privacy protections under federal law, For additional information, see handbook
procedure 12,105, 6

VI1I. English Learners

The school offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at lﬁgh levels in academic
subjects and to meet the same chatlenging State standards that all children are expected to meet.

Parents/Guardians of English Learners will be informed how they can: (1) be involved in the education of
their children; (2) be active participants in assisting their children to attain English proficiency, achieve at
high levels within a well-rounded cducation, and meet the challenging State academic standards expected
of all students; and (3) participate and serve on the District’s Transitional Bilingual Education Programs
Parent Advisory Committee.

For questions related to this program or to express input in the school’s English Learners program, contact

Gaif McCanc at gmecane@tri-valley3.org.

VIIL Homeless Students
For information on supports and services available to homeless students, see handboak procedure 12:30. 8

For further information on any of the above matters, please contact the building principal.



Appendix A

Dear Parent(s)/Guardian(s):

I1linois law requires a School District to provide the following information to a parent/gnardian of a child
who is suspended from school due to an act of gross disobedience or misconduct.

Student:
Incident Date:

Student handbook rules and/or Board policy violated:

Date and time of pre-suspension conference with student:

(If this conference was not held because the student s conduct posed an immediate danger fo persons or
property, list the date and time the pre-suspension conference will be conducted.)

Date(s) of suspension:

Date student is eligible to return to school:

Description of incident: (List all pertinent information, including the date, time and location, regarding
the specific act(s) of gross disobedience or misconduct resulting in the decision io suspend.)

Rational for the specific for duration of the suspension:

It has been further determined that: (4f least one of the following must be completed.)

Your child’s continued presence at school poses a threat to school safety. Due to the egregious nature
of your child’s conduct (i.e., physical harm, violence, threat) and/or the history or record of your child’s
past conduct, schoot officials have determined that your child is likely to engage in similar conduct in the



future. These determinations include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following: (Lis
explanation below)

Your child’s continued presence at school poses a disruption to other students’ learning
opportunities. Duc to the egregious naturc of your child’s conduet (i.c., physical hanmn, violence, threat)
and/or the history or record of your child’s past conduct, school officials have determined that {a) your
child is likely to engage in similar conduct in the future, and/or (b) the presence of your child at school
will foster a culture that his or her behaviox(s) at schoel is/are acceptable or tolerated. These
determinations include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following: (List explanation helow.)

The school is required to make all reasonable efforts to resolve threats or disruptions and minimize the
length of out-of-school suspensions. The following behavioral and disciplinary interventions have been
exbausted. (List all behavioral and disciplinary interventions and resources previously ulilized to address
the student s behavior or indicate if there are no appropriate and availuble interventions and resources;
e.g., any previous corvespondence with parents or guardians about the behavior, check-in/check-oul,
functional behavioral analysis (FBA), behavioral improvement plan (BIP), social academic instructional
group (SAIG), in-school suspension, oul-of-school suspension and/or other interventions and FeSOUFCES.)

During the period of suspension, your child may not be present at school, on grounds owned or
controlled by the School District or at any School District activity. Failure to comply with this
directive constitutes a trespass and will be dealt with accordingly.



Upon returning to school, your child will be given an opportunily to make up work missed during the
suspension for equivalent academic credit.

To discuss this matter, you may contact the Building Principal. Alternatively, you have the right to have
the suspension reviewed by the School Board or a hearing officer acting on the Board’s behalf. To
schedule a Board hearing, please send a written request within ten (10) calendar days to (insert name and
address of the superintendent).

Building Principal

Date




Appendix B

Dear Parent(s)/Guardian(s):

flinois law requires a School District to provide the following information to a parent/guardian of a child
who is suspended from school due to an act of gross disobedience or misconduct.

Student:
Tncident Date:

Student handbook rules and/or Board policy violated:

Date and time of pre-suspension conference with student:

(If this conference was not held because the students conduct posed an immediate danger lo persons or
property, lisi the date and time the pre-suspension conference will be conducted.)

Date(s) of suspension:

Date student is eligible to return to school:

Description of incident: (List all pertinent information, including the date, time and location, regarding
ihe specific act(s) of gross disobedience or misconduct resulting in the decision to suspend.)

Rational for the specific for duration of the suspension:

It ias been further determined that: (At least one of the following must be completed.)

Your child’s continued presence at school poses a threat to school safety. Due (o the egregious nature
of your child’s conduct (i.c., physical harm, violence, threat) and/or the history or record of your child’s
past conduct, school officials have determined that your child is likely to engage in similar conduct in the



future. These determinations include, but arc not limited to, one or more of the following: (List
explanation below.)

Your child’s continued presence at schioo) poses a disruption to other students’ learning
opportunities. Due to the egregious nature of your child’s conduet (i.e., physical harm, violence, threat)
and/or the history or record of your child’s past conduct, school officials have determined that (a) your
child is likely to engage i similar conduct in the future, and/or (b) the presence of your child at school
will foster a culture that his or her behavior(s) at school is/are acceptable or tolerated. These
determinations include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following: (List explanation below.)

The school is required to make all reasonable efforts to resolve threats or disruptions and minimize the
fength of out-of-school suspensions. The following behavioral and disciplinary interventions have been
exhausted, (List all behavioral and disciplinary interventions and resources previously utilized to address
the student’s behavior or indicate if there are no appropriate and available interventions and resources;
e.g., any previous corvespondence with parents or guardians about the behavior, check-in/check-oul,
functional behavioral analysis (FBA), behavioral improvement plan (BIP), social academic instructional
group (SAIG), in-school suspension, out-of-school suspension and/or other interventions and resources.)

During the period of suspension, your child may nof be present at school, on grounds owned or
controlled by the School District or at any School District activity. Failure to comply with this
directive constitutes a trespass and will be dealt with accordingly.



Upon returning to school, your child will be given an opportunity to make up work missed during the
suspension for equivalent academic credit.

To discuss this matter, you may contact the Building Principal. Alternatively, you have the right to have
the suspension reviewed by the School Board or a hearing officer acting on the Board’s behalf. To
schedule a Board hearing, please send a written request within ten {10) calendar days to (insert name and
address of the superintendent).

Building Principal

Date



Tri-Valley Middle School
Student Handbook
2022-23

Tri-Valley Middle School
505 E. Washington Street Downs, IL 61736
(309) 378-3414
FAX (309) 378-3214
http:/fwww.tri-valley3.org/




Statement of Philosophy and Purpose

Tri-Valley schools are dedicated to helping individuals help themselves to (1) meet and solve life’s problems, (2)
participate according to their age and abilities in the understanding and building of better communities, (3) become as
good and capable in every way as native endowment permits, and (4} acquire skills and characteristics which a majority
of the community deems worthwhile. To these ends, the Tri-Valley Board of Education dedicates it’s time and energy.
Policies, which they establish, shall at all imes be enacted with the best interests of the children of the district in mind.
The Tri-Valiey Board of Education hereby agrees that it will attempt to provide those conditions that will enable the
persons who carry out these policies to do so to the best of their ability. To this end we establish these written policies
that will serve to judge the district in its business and human dealings.

Tri-Valley Middle School is committed to developing responsible citizens through a mentally, socially, and emotionally
diverse curriculum stressing transitional growth through teamwork. Tri-Valley Middle School Concept embraces the
foliowing:

Grades are divided into teams for learning.

Teams teach a core of common knowledge to all students.

School is organized to ensure success for all students.

The school is staffed by teachers who are experts at teaching young adolescents.

Promotion of good health: the education and health of young adolescents are inextricably linked.
Families are allied with schooi staff through mutual respect, trust, and communication.

TVMS and the community are partners in educating young adolescents,

The provisions of this handbook are not to be considered as irrevacable contractual commitments between the school
and the student. Rather, the provisions reflect the current status of the rules, practices, and procedures as currently
practiced and are subject to change. Any changes to the handbook would then be subject to subsequent approval by the
Board of Education. Teachers may create additional classroom rules as long as they are fully explained to the students
and are uniformly enforced within their own classroom.

School Operations During a Pandemic or Other Health Emergency
A pandemic is a global outbreak of disease. Pandemics happen when a new virus emerges to infect individuals and,

because there is little to no pre-existing immunity against the new virus, it spreads sustainably. Your child’s school and
district play an essential role, along with the local health department and emergency management agencies, in
protecting the public’s health and safety during a pandemic or other health emergency.

During a pandemic or other health emergency, you will be notified in a timely manner of all changes to the school
environment and schedule that impact your child, Please be assured that even if school is not physically in session, it is
the goal of the school and district to provide your child with the best educational opportunities possible.

Additionally, please note the following:

1. All decisions regarding changes to the school environment and schedule, including a possible interruption of
in-person learning, will be made by the superintendent in consultation with and, if necessary, at the direction of



the Governor, lllinois Department of Public Health, local health department, emergency management agencies,
and/or Regional Office of Education.

2. Available learning opportunities may include remate and/or blended learning. Blended learning may require
your child to attend school on a modified schedule.

3. Students will be expected to participate in blended and remote instruction as required by the school and district.
Parents are responsible for assuring the participation of their child. Students who do not participate in blended
or remote learning will be considered truant.

4. Al school disciplinary rules remain in effect during the interruption of in-person learning. Students are subject to
discipline for disrupting the remate learning environment to the same extent that discipline would be imposed
for disruption of the traditional classroom.

5. Students and parents will be required to ohserve all public health and safety measures implemented by the
school and district in conjunction with state and local requirements.

6. During a pandemic or other health emergency, the school and district will ensure that educational opportunities
are available to all students.

7. School personnel will work closely with students with disabilities and other vulnerable student populations to
minimize the impact of any educational disruption.

8. Students who have a compromised immune system, live with an individual with a compromised immune system,
ar have a medical condition that may impact their ability to attend school during a pandemic or other public
health emergency should contact schaol officials.

9. During a pandemic or other health emergency, teachers and school staff will receive additional training on health
and safety measures.

10. In accordance with school district or state mandates, the school may need to conduct a daily health assessment
of your child. Parents and students will be notified of the exact assessment procedures if this becomes necessary.

11. Parents should not send their child to school if their child exhibits any symptoms consistent with the pandemic
or other health emergency.

12. Please do not hesitate to contact school or district officials if you have any concerns regarding your child’s
education, health or safety.

Introduction

This handbook is a summary of the school’s rules and expectations and is not a comprehensive statement of school
procedures. The Board’s comprehensive policy manual is available for public inspection at the District office located at
410 E. Washington in Downs, IL. 61736.

The School Board governs the school district, and is efected by the community.

The School Board hired the following Administrative Staff to operate the district:

Ben Derges, Superintendent

Frank Arnolts, High School Principal

Sara Burnett, Middle School Principal
Tyler Swearingen, Elementary Principal
Cade Hasselbring, Transpartation Director
Gail McCane, Special Education Director
losh White, Technology Director

Josh Roop, Athletic Birector



Visitors

A. All visitors including parents and siblings must enter through the front door of the building and proceed
immediately to the main office and identify themselves and inform the office personnel of their reason for being
at the school.

B. Visitors must sign in, identifying their name, the date and time of arrival, and the classroom or location they are
visiting. Approved visitors must take a guest ID tag and place the tag to their outer clothing in a clearly visible
iocation.

C. All visitors must return to the main office and sign out before leaving the school.

D. The only lunch visitors allowed for students are immediate family members. The parent of the student must
contact the main office in advance to approve this lunch visit.

E. No visitors (including parents and former students) may meet with teachers during the school day unless they
have scheduled that meeting in advance with the specific teacher(s).

F. Visitors are expected to abide by all school rules during their time on school property. A visitar who fails to
conduct himself or herself in a manner that is appropriate will be asked to leave and may be subject to criminal
penalties for trespass and/or disruptive hehavior.

Volunteers

Alt school volunteers must be approved by the building principal prior to assisting in the school. Some teachers utitize
volunteers in the classroom and will notify parents when needed. All visitors must return to the main office and sign out.
For school-wide volunteer opportunities, please contact the building principal.

Video Monitoring Systems

A video monitoring system is in use on school busses and in public areas of the school building. These systems have
been put in place to protect students, staff, visitors and school property. If a discipline problem is captured on videotape,
these recordings may be used as the basis for imposing student discipline. If criminal actions are recorded, a copy of the
recording may be provided to law enforcement personnel.

Animals on School Property

tn order to assure student health and safety, animals are not allowed on school property, except in the case of a service
animal accompanying a student or other individual with a documented disability. This rule may be temporarily waived by
the building principals in the case of an educational opportunity for students, provided that (a) the animal is
appropriately housed, humanely cared for, and properly handled, and {b} students will not be exposed to dangerous
animals or an unhealthy environment.

Accelerated Placement

Tri-Valley School District provides for an Accelerated Placement Program (APP) for qualified students. it provides students
with an educational setting with curriculum options that are usually reserved for students who are older or in higher
grades than the student. Accelerated placement includes but may not be limited to: early entrance to kindergarten or
first grade, accelerating a student in a single subject and grade acceleration. Participation is open to all students who
demonstrate high ability and who may benefit from accelerated placement. It is not limited to students who have been
identified as gifted or talented. Please contact the building principal for additional information. Requests for Accelerated
Advancement must be made to the school administrators between January 15-March 15 of the preceding year.

Fines, Fees and Charges; Waiver of Student Fees

The school estahlishes fees and charges to fund certain school activities. Some students may be unable to pay these
fees. Students will not be denied educational services ar academic credit due to the inability of their parent or guardian
to pay fees or certain charges. Students whose parent or guardian is unable to afford student fees may receive a fee
waiver. A fee waiver does not exempt a student from charges for lost or damaged books, locks, materials, supplies,
and/or equipment.

Application for fee waivers may be submitted by a parent or guardian of a student who has been assessed a fee. A
student is eligible for a fee waiver if the student currently lives in a household that meets the income guidelines, with the
‘same limits based on the household size, that are used for the federal free meals program.



The building principal will give additional consideration where one or more of the following conditions are present: an
illness in the family; unusual expenses such as fire, flood, storm damage, etc.; seasonal employment; emergency
Situations; or when ane or more of the parents/guardians are invoived in work stoppage.

Within 30 days, the building principal will notify the parent/guardian if the fee waiver request has been denied, along
with the appropriate appeal process. If you have any questions regarding the fee waiver process, you may contact the
building principal.

I. Attendance Procedures

A. Philosophy

It is the belief of Tri-Valley Schools that frequent absences of pupils from regular classroom learning experiences disrupt
the continuity of the instructional process. The benefit of regular classroom instruction is lost and cannot be entirely
regained, even by extra after-school instruction. Consequently, pupils who miss school frequently usually experience
great difficulty in achieving the maximum benefits of schooling and are able to achieve only mediocre success in their
academic programs. The school cannot teach pupils who are not present. The entire process of education requires a
regular continuity of instruction, classroom participation, learning experiences, and study in order to reach the goal of
maximum educational benefits for each student. The regular contact of the pupils with one another in the classroom and
their participation in well-planned instructional activities under the tutelage of a competent teacher are vital to this
purpose. This is the well-established principle of education that underlies and gives purpose to the requirement of
compulsory schooling in this and every other state in the nation. This handbook section acts in accordance with Board
policy 5115,

lllinois Law requires that whoever has custody or control of any child between six and seventeen years of age (shall
assure that the child attends school in the district in which he or she resides, during the entire time schoal is in session.
Hlinois law also requires that whoever has custody or control of a child who is enrolled in the school, regardless of the
child’s age, shall assure that the child attends school during the entire time school is in session.

B. Attendance and Punctuality
Students are expected to attend school all days that it is in session, unless the student is ill, or his/her absence is required
for a good reason. lt is the responsibility of parents/guardians to see that students are in school.

lllinois law requires that whoever has custody or control of any child between six {by September 1st) and seventeen
years of age shall assure that the child attends school in the district in which he or she resides, during the entire time
school is in session {unless the child has already graduated from high schoal). lllinois faw also requires that whoever has
custody or contro! of a child wha is enrolled in the school, regardless of the child’s age, shall assure that the child attends
school during the entire time school is in session.

C. School Arrival/Start/Dismissal Times

Tri-Valley Middle School starts at 8:15 a.m. and dismisses at 3:15 p.m., on regular school days. Tri-Valley Middle School
students can be dropped off starting at 7:50 a.m. On days that the temperature is below 20 degrees we will be inside, all
other days 4-6th grade will go to the back playground and 7-8th grade will stay out front. Tri-Valley High School starts at
8:15 a.m. and dismisses at 3:10 p.m., on regular school days. Students arriving late will need to sign in at the school
office, befare entering class.

D. Snow Days/Early Dismissal

On days when there is an early dismissal, students will ride their regular bus route home, (unless stated differently, on
the form the middle school uses). Parent(s)/guardian(s) will need to make arrangements, if they will not be home, at the
time the bus arrives. It is important to check the calendar for these dates.

In the event it becomes necessary to close school because of weather, or any other emergency situation, an
announcement will be made through the following media:
e Social Media: Facebook page (“Tri-Valley CUSD #3"), Twitter Account (@ TVDIST3), and Tri-Valley CUSD #3 App for
smartphanes
e Radio: WIBC {1230 AM}, WBNQ (101.5 FM), WBWN (B104.1 FM) - Bloomington
& Television: WEEK-TV {NBC Channel 25) — Peoria




Messaging system: In addition the school offers a feature that will automatically notify parents via e-mail and
telephone voice messaging system in case of cancellations due to inclement weather. The link to this service can
be found under the Community portion of the website. For your child’s safety, make certain your child knows
ahead of time where to go in case of an early dismissal. If school is dismissed early for an emergency or weather,
all after-school functions are cancelled.

E. Student Absences
Regular and prompt attendance at school is extremely important, but an ill student should not be in school since this

may result in his/her health being impaired, and may result in other students being exposed to a communicable disease.
Whenever a student is absent the following procedures should be followed.

1.

Reporting an absence: Parent(s)/guardian(s) are to call the school by 9:00 AM each day of a student’s absence,
and indicate the reason for the absence. State law requires the school to call parent({s)/guardian(s) at home or
work, if the school has not been notified about a student’s absence. Tri-Valley Middle School shall make a
reasonable effort to telephone parent(s}/guardian(s) within two hours, after the first class, to notify a student’s
absence, If such student is absent without valid cause.
Changing attendance to excused: In situations where a parent/guardian does not notify the school by phone
when a student is absent, a written note is required from the parent/guardian, the absence will be considered
unexcused. To change the absence to excused, a written note is required from the parent/guardian, within one
school day. The note should contain: Dates of Absence; Specific Reason for the absence/tardiness;
Parent/Guardian signature.
Doctor’s Notes: If a student has seen a doctor during the absence, a note from the doctor stating the date and
time of the office visit, when the student may return to schoot, and any restrictions required, should be sent to
school with the student to be turned into the office. In addition for multiple days of absence, the doctor’s note
must include each day absent for all days absent to be considered as a doctor’s excuse.
Make-up Work: If a student’s absence is excused or if a student is suspended from school, he/she will be
permitted to make up all missed work, including homework and tests, for equivalent academic credit. 1t shall be
the responsibility of the student to present make-up work to his/her teacher within a reasonable period of time,
usually within a period of time equal to the number of days absent. With today’s technology, students are
encouraged to contact teachers during their absence to obtain the work missed on those days.
a. Parent{s)/guardian(s) should check to make sure their child has completed ali make-up work and that
the work has been turned in.
b. An example: A student has known for weeks of a test on Wednesday, but the student has an excused
absence that day. In this scenario, the student would be required to take the test on Thursday.
c. Another example: A student has an excused absence on Monday, then an assignment is given that is
due Tuesday. In this scenario, the student would he required to turn in the work on or before
Wednesday.
d. [f the work has not been turned in after the given number of days, zeros will be recorded for the
work no matter what the reason for the absence,

F. Types of Absences
There are two types of absences: excused and unexcused -Excused: absences mclude itiness (mcludmg mental or

behayloral health of the student}, ohservance of a religious holtday or event, death in the immediate famliy, famlly
emergency, situations - beyond the control of ‘the student, circumstances that : cause reasonabie ‘concern. 1o the
parent/guardlan for the student’s mental, emotional, or phys:cal health or safety, attending a mn!utary honors funeral to
sound TAPS, or other reason as approved by the building principal.

Addlt;onaliy, a student will be excused for up to5 days in cases where the student’s parent/guardsan is an active-duty
member of the unlformed ser\nces and has. been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has tmmedmtely returned from
deployment to a combat zone or combat—support pos’ongs The Board of Education, in its discretion, may excuse a
student for additional days relative to such leave of deployment A student and the student’s parent/guardian are

6



respons:ble for-obtaining assignments from the student s teachers prior. to any excused absences and for ensuring that
such asmgnments are completed by the student przor to his or her return to school.

Students who are excused from ‘school wili be given a reasonable. hmeframe to make. up missed homework and
classwork ass;gnments

All other absences are considered unexcused Pre arranged excused ‘absences must be approved by the - bUIldlng
prmmpal.

The school may require documentation explaining the reason for the student’s absence.

In the event of any absence, the student’s parent/guardian is required to call the school at 309-378-3414 hefore 9:00
a.m. to explain the reasan for the absence. If a call has not been made to the school by 9:00 a.m. on the day of a
student’s absence, a school official will call the home to inquire why the student is not at school. If the parent/guardian
cannot be contacted, the student will be required to submit a signed note from the parent/guardian explaining the
reason for the absence. Failure to do so shall result in an unexcused absence. Upon request of the parent/guardian, the
reason for an absence will be kept confidential.

1. Excused Absences = Excused absences include: iliness, injury, observance of a religious holiday, death in the
immediate family, family emergency, medical and dental appointments, situations beyond the control of the student,
circumstances that cause reasonable concern to the parent/guardian for the student’s mental, emotional, or physical
health or safety, or ather reason as approved by the building principal. Each semester, students will be allowed five {5)
ahsences for medical reasons that may be certified by a parent phone call or note only. Any additional medical absence
in that semester will require a doctor’s excuse or it will be classified as an unexcused absence. Students are required to
make-up all work missed in order to receive credit (see above: make-up work). Additionally, a student will be excused
for up to 5 days in cases where the student’s parent/guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed services and
has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or
combat-support postings. The Board of Education, in its discretion, may excuse a student for additional days relative to
such leave or deployment. A student and the student’s parent/guardian are responsible for obtaining assignments from
the student’s teachers prior to any excused absences and for ensuring that such assignments are completed by the
student prior to his or her return to school.

2. Unexcused Absences = Any absence other than those outlined in the “Excused” or “Planned” absence sections is an
unexcused absence. All unexcusad ahsences impact students in various ways depending on grade levels:
e All 7th & 8th grade students will receive fifty (50%) percent for any grades recorded on the date of the
unexcused absence provided the work is submitted according to the above timeline
a All 4th-6th grade students will be allowed to make up any missed work without teacher assistance, however, all
unexcused absences will accrue towards the state limit of (10} which indicates a legally, chronic truant child.

Any absence from class without permission is rated as being an unexcused absence. It is important that students study
and do make-up efforts for material missed during unexcused absences even though credit may not be given for the
work. Such study does prepare the student for chapter or unit tests later. The following are examples of unexcused
absences, but not an all-inclusive list;
e car trouble, hair appointments, shopping, studying, skipping, babysitting, oversleeping, missing the bus, work
(unless prearranged), any absence during the day if the student fails 1o check out through the office.

Repeated violations of these rules will result in consequences including suspension.



Students who have exceeded five {5) parental call ins for the semester will be marked unexcused for each additional
absence. If the student has a doctor’s excuse, it must be turned into the office to be changed to an excused absence
within one week of the date of the absence to receive credit for make-up worlk. If it is after that one week time period, it
will be the teacher’s discretion whether or not the student will be allowed to make up the work missed.

3. Pianned Absences

1. The school calendar has vacation periods established at regular intervals during the year. Those intervals should
be adequate to meet the students’ and/or parent/guardian's needs. If parent/guardian or student needs are
such that the student must be absent from school they must make arrangements for such absences in advance.
All make-up work for those absences is the responsibility of the student and/or the parent/guardian to arrange.
The following may be types of anticipated absences that can be approved, provided the outlined procedures are
followed.

a. Family approved vacations

b. Special Religious events

c. School business

d. Steps that must be taken for a Planned Absence:

i A parent/guardian must notify the MS office and Teacher in writing at least two (2} days before
the date of the intended absence and get the planned absence sheet signed by all assigned
teachers.

ii.  Priortothe planned absence, the student and parent must make arrangements with the
teacher for all work missed.

iii. Unless otherwise arranged with the teacher in advance, all work is due the day that a student
returns from a planned ahsence.

2. Asthe School does not condone family vacations during the school year, oll such days missed count towards
truancey cajculations and could be submitted to the Regional Office Truancy Officer.

3. A student shall be released from school as an excused ahsence for the purpose of observing a religious holiday.
The parent/guardian must give written notice to the district five (5) days before the student's anticipated
absence, The parent/puardian’s written notification of the student’s anticipated absence will satisfy the district’s
requirement of a written excuse when the student returns to school.

If ali of the above criteria are met, the days missed will be counted as excused absences. If the above criteria are not
properly satisfied, any days missed will be counted as unexcused absences.

G. Chronic Absenteeism
Student attendance is critical to the learning process, therefore it is impartant for your child to be present at school. The
State of Illinois rates each school, in part, based on overall student attendance. Chronic Absenteeism is identified when a
student has had 18 or more excused or unexcused absences. Students who accumulate 18 absences are identified as
Chronicaily Absent by the lllinois State Board Of Education in the Student Information System. Students who have
multiple excused or unexcused absences will be counseled to offer support services and resources aimed at correcting
the attendance issue. If absences continue, the school and district could take further action, including:

» Conference with parents

= Referral to the truancy officer

= Appropriate school discipline

H. Middle School 10-Day Rule

Students are expected to be in attendance daily at Tri-Valley Middle School. In the unlikely event a student accumulates
more than ten (10) Unexcused Absences in a class per semester and still has a passing grade, no academic credit will be
granted for that semester. The only exceptions to this rule will be when there is a death in the immediate family, required
court appearance, approved school activities, or when a student is confined to a hospital or home by a doctor's orders.
Parents will he informed by mail of a student’s fifth, eighth, and tenth Unexcused Absences from school. Students who



arrive at school any time during the school day without written permission will be counted tardy to school as well as
absent for those classes missed.

1. Tardiness

All students are to be in the place of their activity before the beli rings marking the beginning of that activity. There is
ample time for students to go from one classroom to the next by way of their lockers, but there is no extra time
permitted for loitering and talking in the hallways. Habitual tardiness will not be tolerated and will be dealt with
appropriately. Students who arrive {ate to school should report to the office.

Continued and regular instances of being tardy to class will bring negative consequences. A regular pattern of tardiness
will be dealt with according to the student handbook. Students will be required to meet with the principal on the 5th
tardy.

J. Truancy
Student attendance is critical to the learning process. Truancy is therefore a serious issue and will be dealt with ina
serious manner by the school and district. Students who miss more than 1% but less than 5% of the prior 180 regular
school days without valid cause (a recognized excuse) are truant. Students who miss 5% or more of the prior 180 regular
school days without valid cause (a recognized excuse) are considered chronic truants. Students who are chronic truants
will be offered support services and resources aimed at correcting the truancy issue. If chronic truancy persists after
support services and other resources are made available, the school and district witl take further action, including:

« Referral to the truancy officer

= Reporting to officials under the Juvenile Court Act

= Referral to the State's Attorney

= Appropriate school discipline
A student who misses 15 consecutive days of school without valid cause and who cannot be located oy, after exhausting
all available support services, cannot be compelled to return to school is subject to expulsion from school. A parent or
guardian who knowingly and willfully permits a child to be truant is in violation of state faw. A parent or guardian who
knowingly and willfully permits a child to be truant may be convicted of a Class C misdemeanor, which carries a
maximum penalty of thirty days in jail and/or a fine of up to $1500.00.

K. Leaving School Grounds

Students are not to remain at school after dismissat unless attending a school sponsored activity, or unless a teacher or
the school arranged with a parent/guardian for the student to remain after school. All students who are not under the
supervision of a staff member must be out of the building by 3:30 p.m. Students must be accompanied by a staff
member whenever they use the building outside of the regular school day.

Students are not permitted to leave the school grounds during school hours without the permission of the building
principal. The building office will always attempt to contact parent{s}/guardian(s}) before sending a student home during
school hours. Parent(s)/guardian(s} should contact the principal, by note or telephane, in advance to arrange for
dismissing a student when school is in session. Students leaving the school during the school day must sign out at the
office, Failure to sign out may result in disciplinary action.

L. Pass Slips
Students must have a pass slip to be in hallways during classes.

M. Entering and Leaving School
The school day will begin at 8:15 and end at 3:15. All students who are not under the direct supervision of a teacher or
coach are to leave the building and grounds.

Il. Curricular Offerings
A. Required and Elective Courses
Listed below are course requirements, enrichment classes, and electives{optional) for each grade level,



REQUIRED COURSES

4th Grade Reading

Language Arts/Writing

Math

Sacial Sciences

PE, Art, Library, Music

5th Grade Reading

Language Arts

Math

Sacial Science

PE, Art, Library, Music

Electives (opticnal)- Band & Chorus

6th Grade English Language Arts

Math

Science

Social Studies

PE, Art, Library, Health

Electives {optional}- Band & Chorus

7th Grade English Language Arts (Reading & Writing)
Math

Sclence

Secial Studies

PE, Art, Digital Literacy, STEM

Electives {optional}- Band & Charus

8th Grade English Language Arts {Reading & Writing}
Math

Science

Soclal Studies

PE, Art, Digital Literacy, Careers

Electives (optional)- Band & Chorus & Spanish

B. Student Recognition

To be recognized as a student at Tri-Valley Middle School, a student must be enrolled as a full time student. Any deviation
from the above must be submitted in writing prior to May 1st for approval by the Board of Education. Any student that is
less than full time is not permitted to participate in any extracurricular activities (crass country, softball, baseball,
basketball, scholastic bowl, and track}.

C. Student Schedule Changes

Student’s core schedules shall not be changed after the first five days of each semester. All electives must be dropped
according to the teacher’s policy. Parents must submit a written request for students to change schedules. Students will
remain in the class until the change is formally made.

D. Student Study Halls/Viking Power

Ali Middle School Students may be assighed to a study hall during the day. Some students who are enrolled in band,
chorus, or Spanish, may be exempt from a study hall.

Viking Power is a building-wide intervention time. Students are given support or enrichment in subject areas according to
need. Some students who are enrolled in band, chorus, or Spanish, may be exempt from a Viking Power.

E. Regional Alternative School (RAS)

Students who struggle with the traditionat classroom and may need a different educational setting may be referred to
the Regional Alternative School and/or SAVE program. This program is held under the direction of teachers, and gives the
student opportunities to complete course requirements. Students who are behind in their progress, chronically truant,
and/or a concern to the safety and well being of the student body will be considered for the Alternative Program.

[il. Promotion and Retention of Students

In grades 4th-8th pupil promotion or retention will be based on the academic progress of the child. To be considered for
promotion, a student is only permitted to fail one core academic subject. The decision to promote a student to the next
grade level is based on successful completion of the curricutum, attendance, performance on standardized tests, and
other testing. A student will not be promoted based upon age or any other sacial reason not related to academic
performance.

10



IV. Grade Reporting

A. Grades

Grades, which are cumulative throughout the quarter, are updated frequently and are available on Family and Student
Access on Tri-Valley's web page. The letter grades shown below are intended only as a guide.

A 93-100
A- 90-92
B+ 83-89
B 83-87
B- 80-82
C+ 78-79
C 73-77
C- 70-72
D+ 6&8-69
D 63-67
D- 60-62
F 0-59

If a student receives an incomplete on his or her report card, that student has five school days from the date the report
cards were distributed in which to make up the work or the student will receive a 0 for that work.

B. Cheating/Academic Dishonesty
Cheating is a violation of alf principles of education. The student involved loses ali self-respect and the grades of other
students may be affected. During the school year, student learning will be measured by taking tests and quizzes, writing
papers and completing projects. The grades received for these efforts should inform students how much has been
learned from the course. We recognize that there are some students wha may try to improve their grades by cheating.
Cheating is dishonest, degrades character and reputation, and impedes individual learning. Students found cheating will
receive no credit on that material or test and may receive additional discipline according to this handbook. Some, but not
all, examples of cheating are listed below:
1. Obtaining a copy of a test ar scoring device.
Accepting a copy of a test or scoring device.
Copying another student’s answers during an examination.
Providing another student with answers or copies of examination questions.
Using notes or other un-permitted materials during —closed book examinations.
Duplicating another student’s project for submission as one’s own work.
Having someone other than the student prepare the student’s homework paper, project, lab report, or
take-home examination for which credit is given.
8. Permitting another student to copy the student’s homework, project, computer program, lab report, or
take-home examination other than for a teacher-approved collaborative effort.
9. Any other action intended to obtain credit for work not one’s own. Electronic tampering or other misuse of
computer equipment in the academic setting will be considered a form of cheating.

Nou ke~

A Student found cheating is subject to the following consequences at Teacher and Administrator discretion:
no credit, behavior referral, reduction in points, or alternative assignment/assessment.

V. Conferences and Progress Reports

Parents may schedule an appointment with any teacher or counselor by calling the office (378-3414) to leave a message
for an appointment.

Any titme parents have guestions regarding the progress of a student, a conference is recommended, Student grades are
available through Skyward access. Formal progress reports are no longer mailed out. Parents seeking a hard copy of a

11




report card should contact the school office and make this request. Parents who receive an unsatisfactory report should
contact the school for a conference. Poor attendance is one of the major causes of unsatisfactory progress.

Vi. Students with Disabilities

Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities

Individuals with disahilities will be provided an opportunity to participate in all school-sponsored services, programs, or
activities. Individuals with disabilities should notify the superintendent or building principal if they have a disability that
will require special assistance or services and, if so, what services are required. This notification shouid occur as far in
advance as possible of the school-sponsored function, program, or meeting.

A. Education of Children with Disabilities

It is the intent of the district to ensure that students who are disabled within the definition of Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act are identified, evaluated and provided with
appropriate educational services. The School provides a free appropriate public education in the least restrictive
environment and necessary related services to all children with disabilities enrolled in the school. The term “children
with disabilities” means children between ages 3 and the day before their 22nd birthday for whom it is determined that
special education services are needed. It is the intent of the school to ensure that students with disabilities are identified,
evajuated, and provided with appropriate educational services. A copy of the publication “Explanation of Procedural
Safeguards Availahle to Parents of Students with Disabilities” may be obtained from the school district office.

Students with disabilities who do not gualify for an individualized education program, as required by the federal
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and implementing provisions of this Hlinois law, may qualify for services under
Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 if the student (i) has a physical or mental impairment that
substantially limits one or more major life activities, (ii) has a record of a physical or mental impairment, or (iii} is
regarded as having a physical or mental impairment.

For further information, please contact:

Gail McCane 378-3414

Sara Burnett 378-3414

B. Discipline of Students with Disabilities

The school will comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act {IDEA) when disciplining students. Behavioral
interventions will be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen desirable behaviors and reduce
identified inappropriate behaviors. No special education student shall be expelled if the student’s particular act of gross
disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her disability as determined through a manifestation hearing.
Any special education student whose gross disobedience or misconduct is not a manifestation of his or her disability may
be expelled pursuant to the expulsion procedures.

VIi. Equal Opportunity/Harassment/Teen Dating Violence Policy

It is the policy of Tri-Valley Community Unit District #3 that its educational and co-curricuiar programs, activities,
services, and benefits will be provided to students without discrimination on the basis of sex and that no student shall,
on the basis of sex, be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege, advantage, or opportunity.

Equal educational and extracurricular opportunities are available to all students without regard to race, color, nationality,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, status as homeless,
immigration status, order of protection status, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy.

No student shall, based on sex, sexual orientation, or gender identity be denied equal access to programs, activities,
services, or benefits or be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege, advantage, or denied equal access to educational
and extracurricular programs and activities.

Harassment Prohibited

No person, including a school or school district employee or agent, or student, shall harass, intimidate, or bully a student
on the basis of actual or perceived: race; color; national origin; military status; unfavorable discharge status from military
service; sex; sexual orientation; gender identityl; gender-related identity or expression; ancestry; age; religion; physical

12



or mental disability; order of protection status; status of being homeiess; actual or potential marital or parental status,
including pregnancy; association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual or perceived
characteristics; or any other distinguishing characteristic. The District will not tolerate harassing, intimidating conduct, or
bullying whether verbal, physical, sexual, or visual, that affects the tangible benefits of education, that unreasonably
interferes with a student’s educational performance, or that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational
environment. Examples of prohibited conduct include name-calling, using derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual violence,
causing psychological harm, threatening or causing physical harm, threatened or actual destruction of property, or
wearing or possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of one of the characteristics stated above.

Saxual Harassment Prohibited

The school and district shall provide an educational environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct or
communications constituting harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and federal
law.

Teen Dating Violence Prohibited

Engaging in teen dating violence that takes place at school, on school property, at school-sponsored activities, or in
vehicles used for school-provided transportation is prohibited. For purposes of this policy, the term teen dating violence
occurs whenever a student who is 13 to 19 years of age uses or threatens to use physical, mental, or emotional abuse to
control an individual in the dating reiationship; or uses or threatens to use sexual violence in the dating relationship.

Making a Report or Complaint

Students are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of bullying, intimidation, harassment, sexual
harassment, or any other prohibited conduct to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant Building
Principal, Dean of Students, a Complaint Manager, or any employee with whom the student is comfortable speaking. A
student may choose to report to an employee of the student’s same gender.

Any person making a knowingly false accusation regarding prohibited conduct will likewise be subject to discipline.

Vil Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation & Harassment
Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment

Bullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student’s ability to learn and a school’s ability to educate. Preventing
students from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal access to a safe, non-hostile
learning environment are important district and school goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge status from
the military service, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity ar expression, ancestry, age, religion,
physical or mental disability, order of protection status, status of being homeless, or actual or potential marital or
parental status, inciuding pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned actual
or perceived characteristics, or any other distinguishing characteristic is prohibited in each of the following situations:

1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.

While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school bus
stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.

3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or other
similar electronic school equipment.

4. Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a non-school-refated
location, activity, function, or program or from the use of technology or an electronic device that is not
owned, leased, or used by the school district or school if the bullying causes a substantial disruption to the
educational process or orderly operation of a school.

i3



Bullying includes cyber-butlying and means any severe or pervasive physical or verhal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be reasonably

predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1.

Placing the student or students in reascnable fear of harm to the student’s or students’ person or
property;

Causing a suhstantially detrimental effect on the student’s or students’ physical or mental health;

Suhstantially interfering with the student’s or students’ academic perfarmance; or

Substantially interfering with the student’s ar students’ ability to participate in or benefit from the
services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Cyberbullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, including without
limitation any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitied in whole
or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system, including without
imitation electronic mail, Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile communications. Cyberhullying
includes the creation of a webpage ar weblog in which the creator assumes the identity of another person or the
knowing imperscnation of another person as the author of posted content or messages if the creation or impersonation
creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying. Cyberbullying also includes the distribution by
electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the posting of material on an electronic medium that
may be accessed by one or more persons if the distribution or posting creates any of the effects enumerated in the
definition of bullying.

Bullying may take various forms, including without limitation one or more of the following: harassment, threats,
intimidation, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiiiation, destruction of
property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying. This list is meant to be illustrative and non-exhaustive.

Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the building
principal, nondiscrimination coordinator, district complaint manager or any staff member with whom the student is

comfortable speaking. All school staff members are available for hetp with a bully or to make a report about bullying.
Anvone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has information about actual or threatened bullying is
encouraged to report it to the district complaint manager or any staff member. Anonymous reports are also accepted by
phone call or in writing.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator: Kari Prochnow, School Counselor (kprochnow@tri-valley3.org; (309) 378-3414)

Complaint Managers: Kari Prochnow, School Counselor (kprochnow@tri-valley3.org; {309) 378-3414}; Sara Burnett,
Principal (shurnett@iri-valley3.org ; (309) 278-3414).

A reprisal or retaliation against any person who reports an act of bullying is prohibited. A student’s act of reprisal or

retaliation will be treated as hullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial

actions.

A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the school’s investigation
concludes that no bullying occurred. However, knowingly making a false accusation or providing knowingly false
information will be treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial

actions.

14



Students and parents/guardians are also encouraged to read the following school district policies: 7:20, Harassment of
Students Prohibited and 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidution and Harassment.3

1. Discipline Paolicy

A. Teacher/Administrator Responsibility

Teachers and/or Principals are responsible for maintaining proper student hehavior during school hours and at
school-related activities. Teachers are responsible for ail disciplinary actions resulting from student misbehavior within
the classroom or while the student is under their supervision. Any repeated or gross incidents of misbehavior shall be
reported to the Principal.

B. Due Process

All students are assured of the protection of their rights through due process procedures. At the very least, the student
will be given oral or written notice of the charges against him/her, and, if he/she denies the charges, an explanation of
the evidence the authorities have and an apportunity to present his/her side of the story. If students or their parents
wish to appeal a suspension, they may pick up a copy of the due process procedures from the office and request a
conference with the principal to initiate the appeal process.

C. Purpose of Discipline Policy

School administrative procedures and teaching methods shall have as a fundamental objective the maintenance of an
environment in which self-discipline and contral are encouraged, learned, and expected. Controlled activities and
procedures are a part of this learning process and are a means of preventing and correcting abuses by anyone who is
unable or unwilling to exercise self-discipline and control for the common good and who, consequently, may infringe
upon the liberties of others, The student handbook lists acts of misbehavior or misconduct and punishments appropriate
for most disciplinary infractions. However, it is at the discretion of the administration and the School Board to deal more
sternly with those instances which, in their jJudgment, require a more severe punishment than listed.

Minimum Standards for Student Conduct
1. Students are to show courtesy and consideration to all members of the school community.
Students are to behave in a respectful manner that is not disruptive to the educational process.
Students are to comply with school and classroom rules, procedures and requirements.
Students are to respect and assume responsibility for school and personal property.
Students are to dress in a manner that is appropriate for the school setting and in keeping with board policy.
Students are to comply with local, state and school health, safety and attendance regulations.
Students are to comply with state statutes, local laws, and regulations.

NO s W

D. When and Where Conduct Rules Apply
The grounds for disciplinary action also apply whenever the student’s conduct is reasonably related to school or school
activities, including but not limited to:
1. On, or within sight of, school grounds before, during, or after school hours or at any time;
2. Off school grounds at a schooi-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable
relationship to school;
3. Traveling to or from school or a school activity, function, or event; or
4. Anywhere, if the conduct interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school
operations, or an educational function, including but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be considered
to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of a staff member; or (b) endanger the health or safety of
students, staff, or school property.

E. Student’s Personal Responsibility for Control and Conduct
Classroom behavior - Each student is responsible for his/her own behavior. If a student’s behavior in class is consistently
inappropriate, the teacher is requested to schedule a conference with the student. If the student’s behavior does not
improve, the student shall be referred to the principal, his/her parents shall be notified, and a conference arranged.
Among the forms of nunishment used to counteract misconduct are:
1. Detention - defined period of confinement assigned by a teacher or administrator (before school, after school, or
lunch)
2. Saturday Detention - same as above except the time is for a specified amount of time (1, 2, or 3 hours) on
Saturday (8:00 a.m. — 11:00 a.m.) at the high school building

15



3. Directed Study - isolation from classroom activities with study and/or work assigned by the teachers or
administrator, the work completed during this time will receive full credit if all work is turned in on time.

4. Restitution - Payment for damages

5. Suspension - temporary removal from the school facility by an administrator with the opportunity to make-up of
school work missed. All work must be turned in on the day the student returns from the suspension.

6. Expuision - permanent removal from the school facility by the Board of Education.

Violations and Punishments - Please also refer to fl_'_l_‘i_-Valley"s "Behavioral Intervention Procedures”; which are
available on the district website or in the district office.

If a student should violate proper conduct and come under the jurisdiction of this disciplinary manual, the parents of the
student shall be notified when the first offense occurs. This list of punishments is meant to be a guide. The principal, or
his designee, has the authority to exercise discretion in increasing or decreasing punishment according to circumstances.
Depending on the situation, this could mean possible expulsion for a first offense. Any student who willfully and/or
knowingly remains in an area where school rules are being violated runs the risk of being accused of violating the rules,
and they should expect to be held accountable for the actions taking place.

F. Discipfine Violations
The various acts of misbehavior have been separated into four tiers. Disciplinary actions for each tier will be a range of
outcomes (Levels 1-6). For a single disciplinary violation, the disciplinary action assigned will include the consideration of
the severity of the offense and/or previous offenses. Assigned discipline may also include consequences from any lower
level. In addition, violations of the TVMS discipline plan may also result in athletic participation penalties outiined in the
Student Activities Code of Conduct.

G. Disciplinary Actions
There are six levels of disciplinary actions or consequences as outlined below. Details of disciplinary actions are found in
Part E, Definitions.
Warning, Parent contact, confiscation of items, lunch detention.
Lunch Betention(s), After school, Saturday Detention, Loss of privilege, Bus Suspension, Restitution,
Directed Study, Parent conference, Non-curricular exclusion.
Qut-of-school Suspension 1-4 days, Bus Expulsion.

Level 1;
Level 2:
Level 3:
Level 4:
Level 5:
Level 6:

Out-of-school Suspension 5-10 days.

Continuing Suspension and Expulsion hearing

Tier1 (Levels 1-2) -

Tier2 (Levels 2:3) .

® 8 & & & o

Cell Phene Violation
Disrespect to staff membey,
minor

Dress cade viclation
Horseplay {e.g.
rough-housing, antics)
Misconduct/disruptive
behavior, minor

No hall pass

Public display of affection
Swearing, minor

Tardy to school

Tardy to class

Technology Violation, minor

Cheating, minor*

Cyber bullying

Disrespect to staff member,
major

Diversity intolerance, minor
Harassment/Intimidation/Bull
ying®

Electronic tampering, minor*
Misconduct/disruptive
behavior, major

Missing teacher detention
Skipping class*

Spontaneous threatto a
student

Swearing, major {e.g.
vulgarity towards a staff
member}

Technology Violation, major

& & & ©

Assault to a school employee
ar student

Cheating, major

Diversity intolerance, major
Electronic tampering, major
{e.g. unauthorized use of staff
network}

Fighting, battery to a student
Grass
disrespect/disobedience or
Miscanduct™®

Premeditated threatto a
student or staff member*
Sexual harassment

Stealing*

Suspension violation
Tobacco/E-cigarette/Vaping:
use, possession, distribution,
purchase, or sales

16




Trespass to a teacher’s room
or desk

Truancy*

Unauthorized use of
building/grounds*

Unauthorized possession/use
of schoo! keys

Ongoing disrespect &
disruptive behavior
Vandalism/Destruction of
Schoal Property (to school
property or property owned
by student/staff on schooi
grounds)

Tier 4 (Levels 5-6)

@ Battery of a school employee/volunteer

practitioner for medical purposes
@ (Gangs/gang activities

hashish}.

and supervision.

substances.

in the manner provided.
* = Definition provided below.

@ Being under the infiuence of any of the substances listed below, other than those prescribed by a licensed

o Possession, sale and/or use of a firearm/weapon®
e Sale, transmittal, or aiding in the possession, sale, or transmittal of drug paraphernalia (including any materials
which are represented as such or the student believes to be drug paraphernalia, regardless of true nature)

e  Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages.
Using, possessing, distributing, purchasing, or selling:
1.  Anyillegal drug, controlled substance, or cannabis {including marijuana, medical marijuana and

2. Any anabolic stercid or performance-enhancing substance not administered under a physician’s care

3. Any prescription drug when not prescribed for the student by a licensad health care provider or when
not used in the manner prescribed.
4. Anyinhalant, regardless of whether it contains an iflegal drug or controlled substance: (a) that a student
believes is, or represents to be capable of, causing intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of
the brain ar nervous system; or (b) about which the student engaged in behavior that would lead a
reasonable persan to believe that the student intended the inhalant to cause intoxication, hallucination,
excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system.
5. “Look-alike” or counterfeit drugs, including a substance not containing an illegal drug or controlied
substance, but one: {a) that a student believes to be, or represents to be, an illegal drug or controlled
substance; or (b) about which a student engaged in bhehavior that would lead a reasonable person to
believe that the student expressly or impliadly represenied to be an illegal drug or controiled substance.
6. Drug paraphernalia, including devices that are or can be used to: {a} ingest, inhale, or inject cannabis or
controlled substances inta the body; and {b) grow, process, store, or conceal cannahis or controlled

7. Any substance recognized as drugs in the official United States Pharmacopoeia, official Homeopathic
Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or official National Formulary, or any supplement to any of them,
unless specifically prescribed by a licensed practitioner for medical purposes for the use by the student

H. Definitions
Bus Suspension: an exclusion from riding a school bus for any length of time not exceeding ten (10} school days.
Bus Expulsion: an exclusion from riding a school bus for any length of time exceeding ten (10) school days,
imposed only by the Board of Education for safety reasons.
Certified Person: any person who is duly certified under the provisions of the lllinois School Code and who is
employed by the School District in a position requiring a certificate.
Detention: assigned time at lunch, after school, or at the high school on Saturday morning for 1-3 hours, If a
detention is missed you will be assigned a punishment from Tier 2 and make up for the detention that was

&
@

]

missed,

Directed Study {formerly in-School Suspension): an exclusion from the routine school day, except the student
shalt remain in school in a restricted or isolated area to be selected by the Superintendent or his designee.
Seventy-five percent credit shall be given for the work done in an in-school suspension. An in-school suspension
may be imposed in or carried forward to a succeeding school term when appropriate.

17



Emergency: a situation where the student’s presence poses an immediate or a continuing danger to himself,
other persons or property, or constitutes an ongoing threat of disrupting the educational process.

Exclusion: any denial of educational services, programs, or transportation, as the case may be, to which a
student would otherwise be entitled.

Expulsion: exclusion for a period of more than ten {10} school days. An expulsion may be imposed in or carried
forward to a succeeding school term when deemed appropriate.

Fighting: Students who are involved in fighting will have their parents contacted and will be sent home for the
rest of the school day or from the event in which the fighting occurred.

Gross Disobedience or Misconduct: specifically includes but is not limited to:

o Refusal to abey the policies, rules, and regutations of the Board of Education or administrative staff.

o Refusal to obey reasonable written or oral instructions of any member of the administrative staff,
teaching staff, designated non-certificated supervisory personnel, bus drivers, or any other district
employee.

Behavior which interrupts the orderly process of school affairs.

Conduct which is or may be physically injurious to persons or property.

Truancy - subject to the provisions of Section 26-12 of the lllinois School Code.

Repeated minor incidents of misbehavior which other disciplinary measures have failed to deter.
Repeated minor incidents of mishehavior which violate or attempt to vialate a Board of Education policy,
rute, or regulation.

Excessive unexcused absences,

o Behavior which constitutes gross disrespect for the property or rights of other students, teaching staff,

administrative staff, non-certificated staff, or school bus drivers.

o Use or aiding in the use of tobacco products.

o Destruction or damage to school property shall require restitution and/or suspension.
Harassment/intimidation/Bullving: repeated instances of threatening or detrimental behavior directed toward
another student. Examples of prohibited conduct include, but are not limited to, name-calling, using derogatory
sturs, pinching, tripping, wearing or possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of a student’s se,
color, race, religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, or other
protected group status. |If a teacher withesses any of the above mentioned actions he/she shouid,

m Acknowledge unacceptable behavior to student

B Issue appropriate classroom or office discipline
Major Electronic Tumpering (Tier 3) includes but is not limited to: malicious attempts to undermine the local
network or local website, malicious attempts to undermine any external network system or website,
unauthorized use of a teacher account, logging in or attempting to log in as a netwark administrator,
unauthorized use of the district student management system, using an email account for illegal, inappropriate, or
threatening purposes.
Minor Electronic Violation or Tampering {Tier 2) includes but is not limited to: logging in to a district system as
another student, accessing an email account without teacher permission, unauthorized installation of third party
software to any district system, removal of district software from any system, attempting to bypass the district's
internet filter. Students should not be on websites that are not educational and/or approved by the teacher. The
second attempt by a student will be considered major electronic tampering.
Premeditated threats are defined as being written down, sent electronically, or occurring more than once over a
period of time.
Skipping is defined as intentionally missing one or more class periods but remaining on school grounds.
Stealing: Items must be returned in the original state if possible or restitution for the value of the item must be
made.
Suspension: an exclusion for a period not to exceed ten {10} school days, provided that if an act justifying
suspension oceurs within ten (10} school days of the end of the current school term, the suspension may be
imposed in or carried forward to a succeeding school term when deemed appropriate.
Technology Use Violation: Students are on games or other sites that are not approved by the teacher or for
academic use during class periods or study hall.
Truancy is defined as intentionally missing one or more classes and leaving school grounds or never coming to
school at all.

o c 0O O ©

[®]

18




Unauthorized use of Buildings or Grounds: During the school day, no student is to be outside of the building
without supervision, At lunch time students may go outside for recess but are restricted to the playground area,
Students may not be in the IMC, academic areas, or a teacher’s room without permission and/or supervision.
Students at the middle school are not permitted to enter the building or playground prior to being directed by a
teacher.

Vandalism/Damage to Property: The regulations of our Board of Education are very specific with regard to
school property. These regulations state that students are required to pay for all damages which they have done
to school property. They may even be suspended from school for willful damage. All report cards, certificates of
credit, or graduation diplomas may be withheld until all obligations are met. The District is not responsible for
securing restitution for damages done to personal property.

Unauthorized Use of Buildings or Grounds: During the school day, no student is to be in the parking lot without a
parking lot pass from the office or outside of the building without a pass or supervision. At lunch time students
may go outside but are restricted to an area extending from the southeast corner of the gym south to the track
and from the track to the southeast corner of the greenhouse. Students may not go outside this area without the
permission and supervision of a staff member. Students may not be in the IMC, academic area, or a teacher’s
room without permission and/or supervision.

Weapon: Any insttrument or object capable of inflicting bodily harm which has no other usefu! school purpose,
including but not limited to: knives, razor blades, guns, metal knuckles, broken pieces of glass or metal,
self-defense apparatus, clubs, chains, etc. All weapons will be taken away from a student. Refusal to give up a
weapon to a staff member will result in an additional suspension from school.

1. Disciplinary Measures

School officials shall limit the number and duration of expulsions and out-of-school suspensions to the greatest extent
practicable, and, where practicable and reasonable, shall consider forms of non-exclusionary discipline before using
out-of-school suspensions or expulsions. School personnel shall not advise or encourage students to drop out of schoaol
voluntarily due to behavioral or academic difficulties. Potential disciplinary measures include, without limitation, any of
the following measures:

1.

Noe e

10.
11.

12.

i3.
14.

Notifying parents/guardians.

Disciplinary conference.

Withholding of privileges,

Temporary removal from the classroom.

Return of property or restitution for lost, stolen or damaged property.

In-school suspension {Directed Study).

After-school study or Saturday study provided the student’s parent/guardian has been notified. (If
transportation arrangements cannot be made in advance, an alternative disciplinary measure will be assigned to
the student.)

Community service.

Seizure of contraband; confiscation and temporary retention of the personal property that was used to violate
school rules.

Suspension of bus riding privileges.

Suspension from school and all school activities for up to 10 days. A suspended student is prohibited from being
on school grounds.

Expulsion from school and ali school activities for a definite time period not to exceed 2 calendar years. An
expelled student is prohibited from heing on school grounds.

Transfer to an alternative program if the student is expelled or otherwise gualifies for transfer under State law.
Notifying juvenile authorities or other faw enforcement whenever the conduct involves criminal activity, such as,
iliegal drugs (controlled substances), “look-alikes,” alcohol or weapons or in other circumstances as authorized by
the reciprocal reporting agreement between the District and local law enforcement agencies.

The abave list of disciplinary measures is a range of options that will not always be applicable in every case. Ih some
circumstances, it may not be possible to avoid suspending or expelling a student because behavioral interventions, other
than a suspension or expulsion, will nat be appropriate and available, and the only reasonable and practical way to
resalve the threat and/or address the disruption is a suspension or expulsion,

19



J. Prohibited Use of Electronic Devices

Cell phones are prohibited in the academic environment, upon entering the school all personal cell phones should be
stored in a backpack. Students are prohibited from using laptops, tablet computing devices, iPods, smartwatches and
other devices of technology for any non-academically related purpose during class. This includes, but is not limited to,
_ having conversations, texting, playing games, and accessing the Internet, if not directly instructed to by the teacher. In
addition, any device may only be used if it is connected to the “Authorized Tri-Valley Wireless Network.” Qutside and
unfiltered networks may not be accessed during the school day. Any students using any electronic device is subject to
the guidelines outlined in Tri-Valley CUSD #3 acceptable use policy and the Electronic Violation/Tampering section of the
discipline policy.

In addition, cell phones are to be in the “off” position during the school day, so as to negate the possibility of interruption
from received calls, texts, messages, notifications, alarm sounds, etc. Finally, students are prohibited from using
electronic camera devices to take any pictures or videos during the course of the day unless directly instructed to do
so by the teacher or administration. Violation of these policies will be dealt with at a minimum as a Group 1 discipline
violation for a first offense. In addition, any device may be confiscated by the administration if violation of this policy is
suspected. Finally, Tri-Valley CUSD #3 and its employees are not responsible for any electronic device that is misused,
lost, damaged, or stolen.

K. Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment is illegal and will not be used. Corporal punishment is defined as slapping, paddling, or prolonged
maintenance of students in physically painful positions, or intentional infliction of bodily harm. Corporal punishment
does not include reasonable force as needed to maintain safety for students, staff, or other persons, or for the purpase
of self-defense or defense of property.

L. Weapons Prohibition

A student who is determined to have brought one of the following objects to schoot, any school-sponsored activity or
event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school shall be expelled for a period of not less
than one year but not more than 2 calendar years:

{1) A firearm, meaning any gun, rifle, shotgun, weapon as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code,
firearm as defined in Section 1.1 of the Firearm Owners ldentification Card Act, or firearm as defined in Section 24-1 of
the Criminal Code of 1961. The expulsion period may be maodified by the superintendent, and the superintendent's
determination may be modified by the board on a case-by-case basis.

(2} A knife, brass knuckles or other knuckle weapon regardless of its composition, a billy club, or any other object if used
or attempted to be used to cause hodily harm, including “look alikes” of any firearm as defined above.

The expulsion requirement may be modified by the superintendent, and the superintendent’s determination may be
modified by the board on a case-by-case hasis.

M. Gang & Gang Activity Prohibited

“Gang” is defined as any group, club or organization of two or more persons whose purposes include the commission of
illegal acts. No student on or about school property or at any school activity or whenever the student’s conduct is
reasonably related to a school activity, shalk: (1) wear, possess, use, distribute, display, or sell any clothing, jewelry,
paraphernalia or other items which reasonably could be regarded as gang symbols; commit any act or omission, or use
either verbal or non-verbal gestures, or handshakes showing membership or affiliation in a gang; or (2} use any speech or
commit any act or omission in furtherance of the interest of any gang or gang activity, including, but not limited to,
soliciting others for membership in any gangs; {3} request any person to pay protection or otherwise intimidate, harass or
threaten any person; (4) commit any other illegal act or other violation of district policies, (5} or incite other students to
act with physical violence upon any other person.

N. Re-Engagement of Returning Students

The building principal or designee shall meet with a student and/or parent returning to school from an out-of-school
suspension, expulsion or alternative school setting. The goal of this meeting shall be to support the student’s ability to
be successful in school following a period of exclusion and shall include an opportunity for students who have been
suspended to complete or make-up missed work for equivalent academic credit.

20




0. Access to Student Social Networking Passwords & Websites

The Superintendent and/or Principal{s} may require a student or his/her parent or guardian to provide a password or
other related account information in order to gain access to the student’s account or profile on a social networking
website if school authorities have reasonable cause to believe that a student’s account on a social networking website
~ contains evidence that a student has violated a school disciplinary rute or procedure.

P. Internet Threats

Making an explicit threat on an Internet website against a school employee, a student, or any school-related personnel if
the Internet website through which the threat was made is a site that was accessible within the school at the time the
threat was made or was available to third parties who worked or studied within the school grounds at the time the
threat was made, and the threat could be reasonably interpreted as threatening to the safety and security of the
threatened individual because of his or her duties or employment status or status as a student inside the school.

X. Student Rules & Regulations

A. Student Dress & Appedrance

students are expected to dress in accordance with commonly acceptable standards of decency and with regard to
standards for health and safety. Students will be required to change clothing if they are not in compliance with the dress
cade, Students who refuse to comply with this expectation will be subject to disciplinary measures as deemed necessary
by the administration. A student s appearance, mcludmg dre S d.-hyglene must not dlSi’upt the educationai process or
compromtse standards of health and-safety. The school does, not prohiblt halrstyles hiStOFICH“\/ assocnated WIth race,
ethnicity, or ‘hairtexture, mcludmg, but not. llmlted to protec’ﬂve hairstyles such as braids Jocks, and tw:sts Students
who dlsrupt the: ‘educational process or compromise standards of health and safety must modlfy their appearance.

1. Shoes or other appropriate footwear must be worn.

2. Students will not wear hats or head covering in the building during schoo! days or detention time.

3, Words or pictures on articles of clothing which advertise weapons, iliegal drugs, alcohol or alcohol products,
cigarettes or other tobacco products, or any other items not legally usable by students will nat be permitted.

4. Dress and appearance must be such that all students are covered from shoulders to mid-thigh. Clothing which
fails to adequately cover the body or which is torn or altered in an explicit or suggestive manner will not be
permitted. Shorts or skirts should reach mid-thigh on the student. There is to be no skin at the waist or
shoulder: no spaghetti strap tanks/tees. Tops and shirts should touch the top of the pants, shorts, or skirts at
all times.

5. Clothing which conveys a demeaning or sexual message, whether explicit or implied, may not be worn at
school. Schoal Dress Code Garments will be issued to students to wear far the day if an improper item is worn
to school. if you have any questions regarding acceptability of a particular item of clothing, check with the
Principal before you wear the item to school.

6. Gang related words or symbols, or gang paraphernalia, will not be permitted at school or on clothing worn
at school, or on the person of anyone on school property.

B. Care of Personal Property

During the course of the school year, school personnel hear reports from students and parents regarding items belonging
to students which have been lost or stolen at school. On some occasions, the items lost are the result of carelessness on
the part of the owner. The school is NOT responsible for items lost or stolen from lockers. To help protect personal
property, we offer the following suggestions.

Mark all personal property with your name in permanent marker.

Do not bring large amounts of money ar other valuables to school.

Do not borrow or loan money or items of value to other students.

Report any lost or stolen items to the office as soon as possible and check the lost and found.

Keep your backpack zipped up at all times.

Keep your locker closed and secure at all times. Do not share your locker combination with other students,

SIS

C. Study Hall Guidelines
1. A firm control of students and a study atmosphere should be maintained at all times.
2. No games or card playing unless given permission by the teacher.

21



3. No student should be out of study hall unless they have a pass. The study hall teacher should know exactly
where the students are going and when they will return. Students should move directly to the intended location
written on the pass and present the pass to the staff member at that location.

4. No electronic devices will be allowed unless direct teacher approval, Electronic devices should not disrupt others
and be used for academic purposes, games are not permitied.

5. Al students are required to work in the classrooms, students should not be dismissed to the hall.

Xl. General Information

A. Sales and Collection of Money

Any school organization or class wishing to raise money must submit the idea to the principal for approval prior to the
event being held or the contract signed. The organization or class must indicate why the money is needed, how it will be
raised, and how it will be spent.

B. Announcements
All-school announcements will be made over the PA once a day at the beginning of the day if necessary. Announcements
are also available via the Middle School Documents Section the the TV3 App.

C, Field Trips and Co-Curricular Trips

1. Al field trips and co-curricular trips must be approved in advance by the principal. Transportation must be
arranged with the Transportation Director after approval for the trip has been received.

2. Field trips are a privilege for students. Students must abide by all schaal policies during transportation and
during field-trip activities, and shall treat all field trip locations as though they are school grounds. Failure to
abide by school rules and/or location rules during a field trip may subject the student to discipline.

3. Students planning to attend a school-sponsared field trip must meet the eligibility requirements outlined for
Academic Eligibility.

4. Students may be refused participation for the following reasons:

a. Poor academic record

b. Excessive school or class absenteeism

c. Chronic tardiness

d. Numerous suspensions or other disciplinary violations

All students who wish to attend a field trip must receive written permission from a parent or guardian with authority to
give permission.

D. School Dances

1. There will be a limited number of school dances during the year. School dances are a privilege, not a right.
Therefore all dances must be planned in advance and must be chaperoned by teachers. All dances and other
activities must be approved and placed on the calendar at least two (2) weeks prior to the event.

2. School dances held at Tri-Valley are for the pleasure and recreation benefit of Tri-Valley students. Students from
other schools will not be permitted to attend middle school dances. Only students who are currently in 7th and
8th grade may attend a middle school dance at Tri-Valley Middle School. All students must remain in the school
for the entire time of their dance or activity unless picked up by a parent.

3. Violations of school policies such as drinking, smoking, destruction of property, vulgarity, insubordination, or
other unfit conduct will be reason for eliminating students from dances and/or canceling all dances.

4. All student conduct & discipline policies apply during dances. Furthermore, misconduct on the part of any
student or their date may result in a loss of privilege in attending future dances.

5. Students may be refused participation for the following reasons:

a. Excessive school or class absenteeism
b. Numerous suspensions or other disciplinary violations

E. Fire Drilis and Emergency Drifls

Drills are held to acquaint all students and personnel with the necessary emergency procedures. Each teacher will
instruct their students on the procedures to be followed in case of an emergency; such directions are posted in each
classroom,

Safety drills will occur at times estabhshed by the school board. Students are requsred to be Slient and shall comply with

the directives of school officials during emergency drills. There will be a minimum of three (3) evacuation drills, a

22



m|mmum of one (1) severe weather {sheiter—m place) dritl, a mlnlmum of one (1) law. enforcement lockdown drill to
address a school shootmg incident, anda minimum of one (1) bus evacuat]on drill each school year..There may be other
dn%ls at the dtrectlon of the- admmlstraoon The law enforcement Eockdown drilt W|lt be. announced in advance and a
student’s parent/guardlan may elect to exclude their child from pamcnpanng in this drill. All other drills will not be
preceded by a warning to students.

F. School Lockers

Ali 6th through 8th grade students are assigned a locker equipped with a built-in combination lock. Padlocks are not to
be used. The locker is provided for the safeguarding of personal property and such school property as has been issued to
the student. It must be kept locked at all times when not in use. Each student shall be responsible for the locker assigned
and its condition. Doubling or sharing of lockers will not be permitted, and the combination should not be shared with
friends. f at any time the lock does not function properly or other problems arise, the facts should be reported to the
office at once. The school cannot be held responsible for lost or stolen items, Lockers are, and shall remain, the sole
property of Tri-Valley and students should have no expectation of privacy therein. The school reserves the right to open
the locker assigned to a student, with or without the student’s knowledge, for inspection with or without a reasonable
suspicion that the student has in the locker an illegal, harmful, or prohibited substance, or an object which could be
considered to be used as a weapon. To maintain order and security in the school, school authorities are also authorized
to conduct reasonable searches of students and their personal effects, including purses, book/gym bags, and similar
paraphernalia. Any locker left tnopened with books and materials hanging out could result in confiscation of the locker
contents and Tier 1 discipline.

G. Search and Seizure

In order to maintain order safety and security in the schools, school authorities are

authorized to conduct reasonable searches of school property and equipment, as well as of students and their personal
effects. “School authorities” includes school liaison police officers.

1. School Property as well as Personal Effects Left There by Students: School authorities may inspect and search
school property and equipment owned or controlled by the school {such as, lockers, desks, and parking lots), as
well as personal effects left there by a student, without notice to or the consent of the student. Students have no
reasonable expectation of privacy in these places or areas or in their personal effects left there.

The building principal may request the assistance of law enforcement officials to conduct inspections and
searches of lockers, desks, parking lots, and other schoo! property and equipment for illegal drugs, weapons, or
other illegal or dangerous substances or materials, including searches conducted through the use of specially
trained dogs.

2. Students: School authorities may search a student and/or the student’s personal effects in the student’s
possession (such as, purses, wallets, knapsacks, book bags, lunch boxes, etc.) when there is a reasonable ground
for suspecting that the search will produce evidence the particular student has violated or is violating either the
law or the school or district’s student rules and policies. The search will be conducted in a manner that is
reasonably related to its objective of the search and not excessively intrusive in light of the student’s age and sex,
and the nature of the infraction.

3. Seizure of Property: If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or
the school or district’s policies or rules, evidence may be seized and impounded by school authorities, and
disciplinary action may be taken. When appropriate, evidence may be transferred to law enforcement
authorities.

H. Lost and Found
Lost articles should be reported to the office immediately. Found articles must be turned in to the office. All items left in
the lost and found will be donated to a charity on the last day of each quarter.

1. Physical Education Participation/Dress
Students in 4th, 5th, and 6th grades will not be required to wear a PE uniform. Students are required to have athletic
shoes with non-marking soles. Sandals and slip on shoes are not acceptable for physical education.

Students in 7" and 8" grade PE classes will be required to wear a standard uniform consisting of a standard uniform
purchased from school, shorts, socks, and gym shoes {No sandals or slip on shoes}. If you choose to have a sweatshirt
or sweatpants, you may bring your own. Sweat clothes must be carried rather than worn to class. Instructars will

23



indicate appropriate times to wear sweat clothes. All articles of clothing should be marked for identification. We
strongly recommend against expensive, name-brand sweat suits, shirts, shorts, or shoes for PE.

Success in PE requires active involvement in each class. Failure to dress in the proper uniform precludes healthy and
safe participation, and as such, “dress cuts” interfere with success. Department procedures will be implemented each
_‘semester to encourage all students to be properly dressed for participation each day. A loaner PE uniform may be
available on the first dress cut or for circumstances such as theft or temporary financial hardship. Students failing to
dress properly for PE class will be subject to lower grades and/or detentions.

Students must have a padlock available in order to lock street clothes in a PE locker while in class. Clothing and other
property should never be left unattended in the locker room or instructional areas. Tri-Valley is not responsible for lost
or stolen property.

Physical Education Exemption

in order to be excused from partu:tpatlon m phy51ca| educatlon ‘a student must present an approprsate excuse from _hgs_or
her parent/guardlan or from. a person I:censed under the Medical Practice Act The excuse may be- based on medecal or
religious prohlblhons An excuse because of medlcal reasons must mc!ude a s;gned statement from a person Ilcensed
unde "'he_Medical Practice Act that: corroborates the medlcal reason for. the request, An excuse based on reilglods _
reasons must include a 5|gned statement from a member of_the cEergy that corroborates the rei|g|ous reason for the
request. Upon written’ tice from-a student’s parent/guardian

activity components of phys:ca[ education during a period of rehgious fastmg

Students.wnh an Indnv;duaflzed Eciucatton Program may- also be excused from phystcai education courses for reasons
identified in their Individualized Education Plan.

Specnal actwmes m phy51cai education will be prowded for a student whose physncal ar emotaonai condmon, as
dete mlned bv a person Flcensed underthe Medical Practices Act, ‘prevents his or her pamc:patton inthe phys;cal
educatlon_ course:;

State law prohiblts the School Dlstrict from honoring parentai excuses based: upon a student’s parnupatlon in athletic
training, activities, or: competmons conducted outside the auspices of the School District.

Students who have been excused from physlcai educat‘lon shal! return to: the cours oon as :pra‘ctlcal' ThefoElowmg

conisiderations will be used to determine when a studeént shall return to a physical educa’non course:

1.--The time of year when the student’s participation ceases; and
2. The student’s class schedule.

J. Administering Student Medicine

Taking medication during school hours or during school-related activities is prohibited unless it is necessary for a
student’s health and well-being. When a student’s licensed health care provider and parent/guardian believe that it is
necessary for the student to take medication during school hours or school-related activities, the parent/guardian must
request that the schoot dispense the medication to the child by completing a “School Medication Authorization Form.”
No school or district employee is allowed to administer to any student, or supervise a student’s self-administration of,
any prescription or non-prescription medication until a completed and signed School Medication Authorization Formiis
submitted by the student’s parent/guardian. No student is allowed to possess or consume any prescription or
non-prescription medication on school grounds or at a school-related function other than as provided for in this
procedure.

Self-Administration of Medication

24



A student may possess an epinephrine auto-injector {(EpiPen®} and/or an asthma inhaler prescribed for use at the
student’s discretion, provided the student’s parent/guardian has completed and signed a School Medication
Authorization Form. The school and district shall incur no liability, except for willful and wanton conduct, as a result of
any injury arising from a student’s self-administration of medication or epinephrine auto-injector or the storage of any
medication by school personnel. A student’s parent/guardian must agree to indemnify and hold harmless the school
~district and its employees and agents, against any claims, except a claim based on willful and wanton conduct, arising out
of a student’s self-administration of an epinephrine auto-injector and/or asthma inhaler, or the storage of any
medication by school personnel,
Students who are diabetic may also self-carry and self-administer diabetic testing supplies and insulin. Students who are
diabetic must also have a Diabetes Care Plan on file with the school.

K. Communicable Diseases
The school will observe recommendations of the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding communicable diseases.
1. Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has a communicable disease,
2. In certain cases, students with a communicable disease may be excluded from school or sent hame from school
following notification of the parent or guardian.
3. The schoo) will provide written instructions to the parent and guardian regarding appropriate treatment for the
communicable disease.
4. Astudent excluded because of a communicable disease will be permitted to return to school only when the parent
or guardian brings to the school a letter from the student’s doctor stating that the student is no longer contagious
or at risk of spreading the communicable disease.

L, Head Lice
The schoo! will observe recommendations of the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) regarding head lice.
1. Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has head lice.
2. Infested students will be sent home following notification of the parent or guardian.
3. The school will provide written instructions to parent or guardian regarding appropriate treatment for infestation.
4. A student excluded because of head lice will be permitted to return to school only when the parent or guardian
brings the student to school to be checked by the school nurse or building principal and the child is determined to
be free of head lice and eggs (nits). Infested children are prohibited from riding the bus to school to be checked for
head lice.

M. Common Medical Concerns

If students experience vomiting or diarrhea they should remain out of school for 24 hours to prevent transmitting those
afflictions to other students.

Fever: If the student has been ill with a fever they need to remain at home until they have been fever-free for 24 hours
(without fever reducing medications).

Students must be excluded from schoo! when afflicted with any contagious infections or transmittable diseases according
to the laws of the State Health Deparchool only by presenting the proper certification (doctor’s note} to the building
principal, or secretaries.

N. Telephone
students will use the office phone with teacher permission during class hours. Students will be called to the phone only
for an emergency call, otherwise a message will be sent to the student.

. Hall and Locker Decarations

The decorations of lockers for birthdays, sporting events, or otherwise is not permitted without prior approval of the
principal. Hallway decorations are not permitted without prior principal approval. Any hall decorations or advertisement
not approved by the Principal will be removed immediately. A small name tag can be placed on lockers using only
magnetic fasteners. Tape is not permitted due to the damage it causes in removal,

P. Hall Passes
A student must have a pass to be in the halls during class time.

Q. Canceling Activities for Emergency Reasons

25



When the schools are closed or dismissed early for emergency reasons, all school-sponsored activities and programs will
automatically be cancelled or postponed. This includes social events, club meetings, and sports events at home or away,
practices, and adult education programs. Coaches will use their best judgment on whether it is safe to practice or not.
All practices held when school has been cancelled will be optional.

~XHI, Student Privacy Protections

A. Student Privacy

The District has adopted and uses several policies and procedures regarding student privacy, parental access to
information and administration of certain physical examinations to students. Copies of these policies are available upon
request.

Surveys by Third Parties

Before a school official or staff member administers or distributes a survey or evaluation created by a third party to a
student, the student’s parent/guardian may inspect the survey or evaluation, upon their request and within a reasonable
time of their request. This applies to every survey: {1) that is created hy a person or entity other than a district official,
staff member, or student, (2} regardless of whether the student answering the questions can be identified, and (3)
regardless of the subject matter of the questions.

Parents who object to disclosure of information concerning their child to a third party may do so in writing to the
building principal.

B. Student Records

A school student record is any writing or other recorded information concerning a student and by which a student
may be identified individually that is maintained by a school or at its direction or by a school employee, regardless of
how or where the information is stored, except for certain records kept in a staff member’s sole possession; records
maintained by law enforcement officers working in the school; video and other electronic recordings (including
electronic recordings made on school busses) that are created in part for law enforcement, security, or safety
reasons or purposes, though such electronic recordings may become a student record if the content is used for
disciplinary or special education purposes regarding a particular student.

. The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the Hllinois Student Records Act afford
parents/guardians and students over 18 years of age {“eligible students”) certain rights with respect to the student’s
school records. They are:

The right to inspect and copy the student’s education records within 10 business days of the day the
District receives a request for access.

The degree of access a student has to his or her records depends on the student’s age. Students less than
18 years of age have the right to inspect and copy only their permanent record. Students 18 years of age or
older have access and copy rights to both permanent and temporary records. A parent/guardian or student
should submit to the building principal a written request that identifies the record(s) he or she wishes 1o
inspect. Within 10 business days, the building principal will make arrangements for access and notify the
parent/guardian or student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. In certain
circurnstances, the District may request an additional 5 business days in which to grant access. The District
charges $.35 per page for copying but no one will be denied their right to copies of their records for inability
to pay this cost.These rights are denied to any person against whom an order of protection has been entered
concerning the student.

The right to have one or more scores received on college entrance examinations included on the student’s
academic transcript.

Parents/guardians or eligible students may have one or more scores on college entrance examinations
included on the student’s academic transcript. The District will include scores on college entrance
examinations upon the written request of the parent/guardian or eligible student stating the name of each
college entrance examination that is the subject of the request and the dates of the scores that are to be
included.

The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent/ guardian or eligible
student believes are inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper.

A parent/guardian or eligible student may ask the District to amend a record that is believed to be
inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. Requests should be sent to the building principal and should clearty

26




identify the record the parent/guardian or eligible student wants changed and the specific reason a change
is being sought.If the District decides not to amend the record, the District will notify the parent/quardian or
eligible student of the decision and advise him or her of their right to a hearing regarding the request for
amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will be provided to the
parent/guardian or eligible student when notified of the right 1o a hearing.

The right to permit disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student’s education
records, except to the extent that the FERPA or lllinois School Student Records Act authorizes disclosure
without consent.

Disclosure without consent is permitted to school officials with legitimate educational or administrative
interests. A school official is a person employed by the District as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or
support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a person
serving on the School Board. A school official may also include a volunteer, contractor, or consultant who,
while not employed by the school, performs an institutional service or funciion for which the school would
otherwise use its own employees and who is under the direct control of the school with respect to the use
and maintenance of personally identifiable information from education records (such as an attorney, auditor,
medical consultant, therapist, or educational technology vendor); or any parent/guardian or student serving
on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official
in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to
review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsibility or contractual obligation
with the district.Upon request, the District discloses education records without consent to officials of
another school district in which a student has enrolled or intends to enroll, as well as to any person as
specifically required by State or federal law. Before information is released to these individuals, the
parents/guardians or eligible student will receive prior written notice of the nature and substance of the
information, and an opportunity to inspect, copy, and challenge such records.

Academic grades and references to expulsions or out-of-school suspensions cannot be challenged at the
time a student’s records are being forwarded to another school to which the student is transferring.
Disclosure is also permitted without consent to: any person for research, statistical reporting or planning,
provided that no student or parent/guardian can be identified; to another school district that overlaps
attendance boundaries with the District, if the District has entered into an intergovernmental agreement that
allows for sharing of student records and information with the other district, any person named in a court
order; appropriate persons if the knowledge of such information is necessary to protect the health or safety
of the student or other persons; and juvenile authorities when necessary for the discharge of their official
duties who request information before adjudication of the student.

The right to a copy of any school student record proposed to be destroyed or deleted.

The permanent record is maintained for at least 60 years after the student transfers, graduates, or
permanently withdraws. The temporary record is maintained for at least 5 years after the student transfers,
graduates, or permanently withdraws. Temporary records that may be of assistance to a student with a
disability who graduates or permanently withdraws, may, after 5 years, be transferred to the parent/guardian
or to the student, if the student has succeeded to the rights of the parent/guardian. Student temporary
records are reviewed every 4 years or upon a student’s change in attendance centers, whichever occurs first.
The right to prohibit the release of directory information.

Throughout the school year, the District may release directory information regarding students, limited to::
Name

* Address

+ Grade level

+ Birth date and place

- Parent/guardian names, addresses, electronic mail addresses, and telephone numbers

- Photographs, videos, or digital images used for informational or news-related purposes (whether by a
media outlet or by the school) of a student participating in school or school-sponsored activities,
organizations, and athletics that have appeared in school publications, such as yearbooks, newspapers, or
sporting or fine arts programs

- Academic awards, degrees, and honors

« Information in relation to school-sponsored activities, organizations, and athletics

» Major field of study

27



- Period of attendance in schoolAny parent/guardian or eligible student may prohibit the release of any or all
of the above information by delivering a written objection to the building principal within 30 days of the date
of this notice.

The right to request that military recruiters or institutions of higher learning not be granted access 1o your
student’s information without your prior written consent.2

Federal law requires a secondary schoal to grant military recruiters and institutions of higher learning, upon
their request, access to secondary school students’ names, addresses, and telephone numbers, unless the
student's parent/guardian, or student who is 18 years of age or older, submits a written reguest that the
information not be released without the prior written consent of the parent/guardian or eligible student. If
you wish to exercise this option, notify the building principal.

The right contained in this statement: No person may condition the granting or withholding of any right,
privilege or benefits or make as a condition of employment, credit, or insurance the securing by any
individual of any information from a student’s temporary record which such individual may obtain through
the exercise of any right secured under State law.

The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Depariment of Education concerning alleged failures by the
District to comply with the requirements of FERPA.

The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:U.S. Department of Education
Student Privacy Policy Office

400 Maryland Avenue, SW

Washington DC 20202-8520

C. Student Biometric Information

Before collecting biometric information from students, the school must seek the permission of the student’s
parent/guardian or the student, if over the age of 18. Biometric information means information that is collected from
students based on their unigue characters, such as a fingerprint, voice recognition or retinal scan.

Xl. Extra-Curriculars

A. Tri-Valley Middle School Extra- Curricular Philosophy and Code of Conduct

Extra-curricular activities are privileges extended by the District to students who wish to participate and who agree to
comply with the code as well as the rules and regulations established for the respective activity. Students who participate
do so on a voluntary basis, and they are constantly in the eye of the public and represent the entire school as well as
themselves. Since the participant represents the entire school, his or her conduct at school, in the activity, and out of
school must be such that it will reflect favarably upon the entire school district. Compliance allows for ongoing
participation in the particular activity. The failure to comply with the rules and regulations shall resultin appropriate
sanctions such as removal from extra-curricular activities and additional sanctions as listed in the following pages.

Because these activities are regarded as privileges and not property interests of the students, only those procedural and
substantive considerations as provided for in this handbook shall be afforded the student when a disciplinary sanction
must be considered.

The Extra-curricutar program at Tri-Valley Middie School is a part of the total school program and thus comes under the
control and supervision of the Board of Education, Superintendent, and Principal to the same degree as any other part of
the program. Extra-curricular activities include but are not limited to all athletics, theater productions, music contests not
related to a student’s grade, and any other co-curricular group (for example Student Council). The Board is committed to
support a diversified and balanced program of co-curricular activities. It sees the goal of such activities as the life
enrichment of each participant through development of skilis, health, strength, self-reliance, emotional maturity, social
growth, and good sportsmanship. The Board intends that co-curricular programs be designed to meet the needs and
interests of students irrespective of sex, physical endowment, developed skills, or natural aptitude. It also intends that
resources be allocated in an equitable manner relative to said needs and interests.

28



The Board recognizes the values which students derive from participation in athletics. Therefore, the Board will make
every effort ta provide as wide a variety of athletic activities as is feasible. The Board further recognizes the value of a
successful program to the community, the student body and facuity, and the individual athlete; and, the value in

. generating participation in and support of the athletic program. It also recognizes that there may be times in competition
when not everyone will be able to play. Each athlete, however, who shows a positive work ethic, a cooperative attitude,
‘and a continual improvement in his/her physical skills will be given playing time as deemed suitable by the coach. The
rules and regulations created by the IESA and the local school district are established for the benefit of the participants
and the school. Those wha volunteer to participate are expected to follow all regulations as outlined by the 1ESA and the
local school district. The philosophy at Tri-Valley Middte School is to provide an interscholastic atmosphere for the
6th-8th grade students in the interscholastic sports and activities at the Middle School.

Code of Conduct:
As An Interscholastic Participant of Tri-Valley | Will Not:

1. Consume, possess, or distribute cigarettes, tobacco, or a tobacco substitute in any form (i.e. smokeless tobacco,
vaping).

2. Consume, possess, or distribute alcoholic heverages.

3. Consume, possess, or distribute illegal drugs or substances, including any substances that | believe or tell others
are illegal drugs or substances or possess or distribute drug paraphernalia.

4, Violate any criminal code or any law or ordinance of any jurisdiction, or violate school rules.

5. Consume or offer to any other person any substance which | say or believe will improve or alter my performance
(this does not apply to any medication prescribed by a physician, or any other substance, such as aspirin,
approved by the coach or sponsor in advance).

6. Engage in any conduct which is intended to cause damage to school property or to the property of school
personnel, or be disruptive to school activities.

7. Participate or observe in the hazing and/or initiation of any person.

8. Engage in other acts of gross misconduct.

Middle School Athletic Participation Policy Preface—All students, grades 5" — 8th, who try out for an athletic team
must meet the minimum requirements set by the district, coaches, and the IESA. The Tri-Valley School District cannot
guarantee that every student who tries out for a team will be accepted as part of the team, nor can we guarantee playing
time for each member of a team.

B. Interscholastic Offerings

Basebali— Seventh and eighth grade boys are eligible to compete on the Middle School teams. There will be two teams
with maximum 36 players in the program as chosen by the coach and submitted to the Athletic Director. Seventh and
eighth graders can be placed on the “A” or “B” team depending upon their skill level. For the state tournament series,
the team may consist of a roster of 18 players, as allowed by the IESA, from the seventh and eighth grades only as chosen
by the coaches. Only the “A” team will compete in the IESA state tournament series.

Softball—Seventh and eighth grade girls are eligible to compete on the Middle School teams. There will be two teams
with a maximum of 36 players in the program as chosen by the coach and submitted to the Athletic Director. Seventh and
eighth graders can be placed on the “A” or “B” team depending upon their skill level. For the state tournament series, the
team may consist of a roster of 18 players, as allowed by the IESA, from the Seventh and eighth grades only as chosen by
the coaches. Only the “A” team will compete in the [ESA state tournament series.

Cross-Country {boys/girls)—All sixth, seventh, and eighth grade students who go out and remain in good standing will be
part of the team. All athletes will participate in regular season meets and invitational meets, but only the top seven
runners will be scoring. For the state tournament series, our team will consist of our top seven runners based upon
season best times,

29



Track (boys/girls)—All seventh and eighth grade students who go out and remain in good standing will be part of the
team. Players will participate in meets based upon their skill level, although all athletes may participate in at least one
event at all home meets. For invitational meets and the state tournament series, participation is limited to the top two
athletes in each event based upon their season performance.In the event of low participation numbers, 6th graders may
be invited to participate. 6" graders will be permitted to perform at home meets only.

Basketball {8th grade)—Eighth grade girls and boys are eligible to compete on the eighth grade team. The eighth grade
girls and boys basketball teams will consist of a roster with a maximum of 15 players, as allowed by the IESA, as chosen
by the coach. The coach will secure the approval of the Athletic Director before the final roster is determined.

Basketball (7th grade)—Seventh grade girls and boys are eligible to compete on the seventh grade team. The seventh
grade girls and boys basketball teams will consist of a roster with a maximum of 15 players, as allowed by the IESA, as
chosen by the coach. The coach will secure the approval of the Athletic Director before the final roster is determined.

Volleyhall (8th grade)— Eighth grade girls are eligible to compete on the eighth grade team. The eighth grade girls and
boys teams will consist of a roster with a maximum of 15 players, as allowed by the IESA, as chosen by the coach. The
coach will secure the approval of the Athletic Director before the final roster is determined.

Volleyball (7th grade)—Seventh grade girls are eligible to compete on the seventh grade team. The seventh grade girls
and boys teams will consist of a roster with a maximum of 15 players, as allowed by the IESA, as chosen by the coach.
The coach will secure the approval of the Athletic Director before the final roster is determined.

Cheerleading—Seventh and eighth grade students will be eligible to try out for cheerleading. The 7th and 8th grade
cheerleading squad will consist of a maximum of 12 students chosen by a selection committee consisting of former
cheerleaders and/or cheerleading coaches and will cheer at all seventh and eighth grade home games, and designated
tournaments. The coach{es) will secure the approval of the Athletic Director before the final number of students on the
squads is determined.

Wrestling—Fifth, sixth, seventh and eighth grade girls and boys are eligible to compete.
Addenda—The procedures described below will be followed for moving athletes to the next level of competition:

An exception to the above guideline will be allowed if the number of players on the eighth grade roster is less than
optimum. In this case, the coach may move seventh graders to the eighth grade team, with administrative approval, so as
to have an optimum number of players available for competition. Seventh graders moved to the eighth grade team
under these circumstances will be allowed to play on both the seventh and eighth grade teams at the coach’s discretion,
including during the state tournament series.

In the event the number of participants at any given level falls below an optimum number, it may be decided that sixth
grade students will have the opportunity to participate. The coaches shall secure the approval of the Athletic Director
prior to making this decision. In order to fill the participant numbers 6th grade students will be invited to participate
based on the following criteria:

If, upon the first day of practice, a team has a number of participants that falls below the minimum participation
numbers {1.5 x the number of starters) listed below, sixth grade students will be invited to participate. However, there
will be no cuts. Any sixth grade student expressing an interest to participate in an activity will be provided that
opportunity on the 7th grade/B team. At no time should sixth grade students participate on the 8th grade/A team
without administrative approval.

30



Activity Minimum Participation Number

Softball 14

Baseball 14

Cross Country No Minimum Number

Girls Basketball 8

Boys Basketball 8

Volleyball L)

Track & Field No Minimum Number but 6th grade only
However 6th grade only participate in limited
meets,

C. Requirements for Participation in Extracurricular Activities:

1

4,

Academic Eligibility:

a. It is the responsibility of the student to maintain an acceptable academic grade for participation.

b. To be eligible to participate in any co-curricular activity or class office, a student must maintain a passing grade
in all subjects. For all IESA activities, athletic as well as non-athletic, passing work shall be checked weekly to
govern eligibility for the following Monday through Saturday. For fali sports, the first eligibility check shall be
made following the first full week of attendance at the beginning of the school year. During the succeeding
weeks of the school year, the eligibility check shall begin the week prior to the first contest in an activity. The
eligibility check shall be Friday each week unless school is not in session; then it will be taken on the last
attendance day.

c. A student who receives a failing grade on his/her report card will not be eligible to compete or perform for two
weeks, beginning the school day after the report cards are distributed, but may practice during that time. Two
failing grades on a report card will eliminate that student from any participation for a period of nine weeks
following the report card distribution. He/She may begin participation the day following the nine-week period, if
they are eligible. At the end of the first semester, the semester grade on the report card will be used to
determine a student’s eligibility. This period of ineligibility will be served beginning the first school day of the
second semester for the first semester grades, and the first day of practice for fail sports for second semester
grades.

d. Any failing grades during the eligibility check will result in the student athlete being ineligible Monday through
Saturday. if a participant is ineligible 3 times during a season, the student will be dismissed from the
activity/team. The grade average is to be based on the work for the 9 week period.

e. In addition to the above, all \ESA regulations concerning eligibility will be enforced.

School attendance:

a. To be eligible to participate in any scheduled event, a student must be present in school on the day of the
event, if on a school day. To fulfill this requirement, the student must be present for at least half of the school
day, unless approved by the building administrator. A student may not attend any athletic contest or
co-curricular event on a day in which they are absent from school for the entire day.

b. A student who consistently misses school on a day following an event will be subject to loss of the privileges to
participate, health and academic work are far more important than extra curricular activities.

¢. Student athletes that do not participate in PE class during the school day are not permitted to participate in
athletic contests on that day.

Registration & Fees; Must be done before practice begins.

a. Students must register for the sport and pay student athletic sports fees on Tri-Valley’s 8 to 18 athletic
website:http://il.8to18.com/TriValleyCUSD/

b. Athletes must secure a medical examination {physical) and file the completed form with the Athletic Director.
c. Athletes must secure school insurance or present a written statement from a parent indicating family
insurance coverage.

d. Athletes and their parents must sign and return the athletic participation form.

Rules for participation:

31




a. Participants must attend all practice sessions as scheduled by the sponsors/coaches.

b. Participants must comply with the sponsor’s/coach’s rules as explained during the pre-season meeting.
c. Participants must comply with the IESA Interscholastic Training Rules as well as the school Athletic &
Code of Conduct.

D. General Penalties for Violations:

1.

First offense - suspension from 50% of regutar season contests {fractions will be rounded up; for tournaments,
each day equals one contest). If the entire suspension is not served in a single interscholastic activity, the
remainder of the suspension will be served in the next interscholastic activity.

Returning to No Offense Status - Following the first offense, if a student completes one calendar year with no
additional violations, the student may return to a no offense status. The opportunity to return to a no offense
status will only be granted to a student one time during their middle school or high school career.

Second offense - suspension for one calendar year from all interscholastic activities. The calendar year will begin
with the first day of the suspension.

Third offense - suspension from all interscholastic activities for the remainder of the student’s middle school or
high school career.

Reinstaterment - Following the third offense, if the student completes one calendar year without any additional
violations, they may apply in writing at the discretion of the principal and athletic director, the consideration
regarding the seriousness of the prior offenses shall determine whether or not to reinstate the participant to a
second offense status. If any prior violation was dangerous to other persons or property, including but not
limited to hazing and/or initiation, or seriously disruptive to any school activity, then the student shall not be
reinstated. If a fourth offense occurs prior to reinstatement, then reinstatement is not available.

Fourth offense - If a fourth offense occurs prior to reinstatement, termination of privileges to participate in any
activity covered by this policy occurs without opportunity for reinstatement.

Out of Season Violations - Out of season violations will apply to the next activity in which the student
participates for up to one calendar year. If a student is participating in numerous activities during a season, the
penalties will be assessed to all the activities.

Any student that is in violation of the athletic code out of season and facing an extra-curricular suspension may
not join a team that has already held official practices and begin serving the suspension. He or she must wait
until the official beginning of the next athletic season to begin serving the suspension.

E. Penalties for Serious or Disruptive Offenses:

The limited penalties for first and second offenses may be by-passed if the student’s conduct involved the consumption,
possession or distribution of alcoholic beverages, drugs or illegal substances; was dangerous to other persons or
property; or was seriously disruptive to any school activity. In case of such an offense, the penalty may be, at the
discretion of the principal and athletic directoy, suspension from all activities covered by this policy for the remainder of
the student’s career.

F. Pracedure for Dealing with Major Violations

1.

Upon evidence or information that a major training rule violation has occurred, the athletic director and coach
will meet to discuss the alleged violation.

The athletic director shall conduct an investigation concerning the alleged violation.

The athletic director and coach shall select a date and time to meet the student to discuss the alleged violation.
This shall be done as soon as possible.
The athletic director and coach shall meet to discuss the penalty as enumerated in the Interscholastic Training
Rules. The student and parent(s)/guardian(s) will be informed of the decision concerning the penalty and its
administration within five {5) working days.
Rights of Review -
A. The student and parent(s)/guardian(s) may request in writing a hearing with the athletic director and
principal within seven (7) days of the administration of the penalty. A meeting will be held within five (5} days
of the notification, and an oral response must be made within five {5} days.
B. If a satisfactory solution is not reached, the grievant(s) may appeal the issue in writing to the office of the
superintendent within ten (10) days from the receipt of the response in step A. A meeting between the
parties will be held within ten (10) days and a written response made within (5) five days. A record of this
meeting shall be made.

32




C. If the issue is still not satisfactorily resolved in step B, the grievant({s} may appeal the issue in writing to the
Board of Education within five (5) days from the receipt of the written response. The Board shall consider the
appeal within thirty (30} days and a written response shall be given within five (5) days.

G. Minor Viclations
Any minor violation concerning practice, school conduct, diet, rest, care of equipment, grooming, travel, etc will be
“'decided by the staff of the activity with prior approval from administration. The guidelines for each team or activity will

be shared with the parent/guardian of the participant prior to the beginning of the season at the pre-season meeting. It
is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to attend this meeting and receive the guidelines. Procedures for dealing with
minor violations will be:

e Discipline will be administered by the supervising coach or administration.

e The athletic director will complete the interscholastic Training Rule Violation Form and file it. Parents will

be contacted and a copy will be mailed to parents.

H. General Rules and Regulations for School Activities

1.  All rules which apply during school hours apply at school activities also.

2. Students who are required to pay admission to an activity must do so. Students failing to pay when required will
be removed and barred from all future school activities for the remainder of the semester.
Students attending an activity must remain in the building.

4. Some middle school activities are appropriate for younger students and not for older students. Other activities
are appropriate for older students and not younger ones. The principal, with faculty input, will decide the
age-appropriateness of all school-sponsored activities including, but not limited to assemblies and field trips.
Only those grade levels for which the activity is deemed appropriate will be permitted to participate in the
activity,

1. Training Rules and Policies

The following training rules apply to all |.E.S.A. sanctioned interscholastic participants during their enrollment in the
Tri-Valley Schools, including summer vacation periods. An LE.S.A. sanctioned interscholastic participant is defined as an
individual who takes part in an athletic or non-athletic interscholastic activity or event that is governed by the Hiinois
Elementary School Assaciation. The Tri-Valley and L.E.S.A. sanctioned events include volleyball, cross country, basketball,
track, basehall, band, chorus, scholastic bowl, and cheerleading. Those students competing in co-op sports such as
cross-country and wrestling will fall under the home schoal’s rules for academic eligibility and the host school’s rules for
athletic training rules.

J. Transportation

Any student attending an extra-curricular event who arrives by school arranged transportation must go home by the
same mode of transportation unless a parent or guardian assumes direct control of the student at the event. All
participants must ride school transportation to the event except in extreme circumstances which must be approved by
the parent or guardian and cleared with the principal or his designee.

K. Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries

A student athlete who exhibits signs, symptoms, or behaviors consistent with a concussion in a practice or game will be
removed from participation or competition at that time. A student athlete who has been removed from an
interscholastic contest for a possible concussion or head injury may not return to that contest unless cleared to do so by
a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in Illinois or a certified athletic trainer. If not cleared to return
to that contest, a student athlete may not return to play or practice until the student athlete has provided his or her
schoo! with written clearance from a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in Wlinois or a certified
athletic trainer working in conjunction with a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in lllinois.

w

XIV. School Services

A. Book Rental/Lost Texthooks/Lost Library Books

Tri-Valley Community Unit #3, under the authority of the Board of Education, operates a rental system for books and
supplies in all grades. In requesting rental privileges, parents agree to accept responsibility to the extent of the value of
the books or other items which may be damaged or carelessly used by their children. If a student loses a rental book or a
library book which has been purchased by the district less than two years before the loss, the student is charged the full
school price for the book. For each year over two, a student is charged the school price less 10%. Students will be held
accountable for Jost textbooks or library books. Before a student is permitted to receive credit for semester and/or final
exams, all responsibilities for lost books must be met.

33




B. Cafeteria - Lunch Period
All students, whether purchasing school lunch or bringing lunch from home, must eat in the cafeteria. All students will
remain in the designated areas (cafeteria and back playground/gym) during the scheduled lunch period.
Students are not permitted to loiter in the hallways, classrooms, or bathrooms during the scheduled lunch period. All
students must dispose of all waste materials in the trash receptacles as they leave their tables. If a student spills a drink,

- they must clean it up immediately. The cafeteria supervisors may require students to pick up waste material at any time.
All students have the responsibility to cooperate with cleanup and proper disposal of all waste materials if we are to have
a safe and sanitary school.

C. Guidance Services

The guidance counselor is responsible for providing a variety of services and materials for the students; these include:
1. Personal counseling - sometimes students find it desirable to discuss a problem with another person. Possible
solutions can be examined in a confidential manner.

2. Educational planning - the counselor is responsible for each student’s schedule. It is often beneficial for students to
plan their high school program for the entire four years. The counselor is available to assist each student in this task.
7. Parent conferences - the school and the home have a mutual interest in the total development of the student. Cnly
through working together can the student best be served. The counselor welcomes calls or visits from parents on any
matter of cancern.

8. Scheduling student conferences - it is preferred that the students visit the counselor during their study hall period,
before or after school, or during funch period. If a student comes to the guidance office during a scheduled class period,
they must have a pass from the teacher.

D. Insurance Program

A low-cost insurance policy is offered to all Tri-Valley students. This is a limited policy with definite indemnities set for
each type of injury. Please understand that neither the school nor anyone connected with the school will profit in any
way from the insurance. For a small fee, a student can be insured during the school year for accidents which occur while
he/she is engaged in any school sponsored activity. Injuries resulting from brawling or fighting are not covered by this
policy. All injuries must be promptly reported to the office or to the teacher in charge.

E, Library Services

The Instructional Materials Center (IMC) is designed to provide services and materials for faculty and students in
conjunction with the curriculum,.

1. All students are eligible to use the IMC for study and to check out materials. This privilege may be suspended for three
reasons: a) the student has violated the rights of others to study or check out materials; b the student has overdue
materials; ¢} the student has lost materials.

2. Students who borrow books and other materials are responsible for them. If a person borrows a book and then loans
it to someone else, hefshe is still responsible for the book.

3. All materials leaving the IMC must be properly checked out. Failure to do so will be punishable,

4. Refer to the Tri-Valley IMC Handbook for more information.

XV. Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks

All use of the District’s electronic networks shall be consistent with the District’s goal of promoting educational
excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication. These procedures do not attempt to state all
required or prohibited behavior by users. However, some specific examples are provided. The failure of any user to
follow these procedures will result in the loss of privileges, disciplinary action, and/or legal action.

Terms and Conditions

The term electronic networks includes all of the District’s technology resources, including, but not limited to:

1. The District’s local-area and wide-area networks, including wireless networks (Wi-Fi), District-provided Wi-Fi
hotspots, and any District servers or ather networking infrastructure;

2. Access to the Internet or other online resources via the District’s networking infrastructure or to any
District-issued online account from any computer or device, regardless of location;

3. District-owned and District-issued computers, laptops, tablets, phones, or similar devices.

Acceptable Use - Access to the District’s electronic networks must be: (a) for the purpose of education or research, and
be consistent with the District’s educational ohjectives, or (b) for legitimate business use.

34



Privileges - Use of the District’s electronic networks is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use may result in a
cancellation of thase privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action. The system administrator or Building
Principal will make all decisions regarding whether or not a user has violated these procedures and may deny, revoke, or
suspend access at any time. His or her decision is final.

Unacceptable Use - The user is responsible for his or her actions and activities involving the electronic networks. Some
examples of unacceptable uses are:

a. Using the electronic networks for any illegal activity, including viclation of copyright or other intellectual
property rights or contracts, or transmitting any material in violation of any State or federal law;

b. Using the electronic hetworks to engage in conduct prohibited by board policy;

¢. Unauthorized downloading of software or other files, regardless of whether it is copyrighted or scanned for
malware;

d. Unauthorized use of personal removable media devices (such as flash or thumb drives);
¢. Downloading of copyrighted material for other than personal use;

f. Using the electronic networks for private financial or commercial gain;

g. Wastefully using resources, such as file space;

h. Hacking or attempting to hack or gain unauthorized access to files, accounts, resources, or entities by any
means;

i. Invading the privacy of individuals, including the unauthorized disclosure, dissemination, and use of
information about anyone that is of a personal nature, such as a photograph or video;

j. Using another user’s account ar password;

k. Disclosing any network or account password (including your own) to any other person, unless requested by
the system administrator;

|, Posting or sending material authored or created by another without his/her consent;
m. Posting or sending anonymous messages;

n. Creating or forwarding chain letters, spam, or other unsolicited messages;

o. Using the electronic networks for commercial or private advertising;

p. Accessing, sending, posting, publishing, or displaying any abusive, obscene, profane, sexual, threatening,
harassing, illegal, or knowingly false material;

g. Misrepresenting the user’s identity or the identity of others; and

r. Using the electronic networks while access privileges are suspended or revoked.

Network Etiquette - The user is expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network etiquette. These include,
but are not limited to, the following:

a. Be polite. Do not become abusive in messages to others.
b. Use appropriate language. Do not swear, or use vulgarities or any other inappropriate language.
c. Do not reveal personal information, including the addresses or telephone numbers, of students or colleagues.

d. Recognize that the District’s electronic networks are not private. People who operate District technology have
access to all email and other data. Messages or other evidence relating to or in support of illegal activities may
be reported to the authorities.

e. Do not use the networks in any way that would disrupt its use by other users.

35



f. Consider all communications and information accessible via the electronic networks to be private property.

No Warranties - The District makes no warranties of any kind, whether expressed or implied, for the service it is
providing. The District will not be responsible for any damages the user suffers. This includes loss of data resulting from
_delays, non-deliveries, missed-deliveries, or service interruptions caused by its negligence or the user’s errors or
omissions. Use of any information obtained via the Internet is at the user’s own risk. The District specifically denies any
responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through its services.

Indemnification - By using the District’s electronic networks, the user agrees to indemnify the District for any losses,
costs, or damages, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred by the District relating to, or arising out of, any violation
of these procedures.

Security - Network security is a high priority. If the user can identify or suspects a security problem on the netwaork, the
user must promptly notify the system administrator or Building Principal. Do not demonstrate the problem to other
users. Keep user account(s) and password(s) confidential. Do not use another individual’s account without written
permission from that individual. Attempts to log-on to the network as a system administrator will result in cancellation of
user privileges. Any user identified as a security risk may be denied access to the networks.

Vandalism - Vandalism will result in cancellation of privileges and other disciplinary action. Vandalism is defined as any
malicious attempt to harm or destroy data of another user, the Internet, or any other network. This includes, but is not
limited to, the uploading or creation of malware, such as viruses and spyware.

Telephone Charges - The District assumes ho respansibility for any unauthorized charges or fees, including telephone
charges, texting or data use charges, long-distance charges, per-minute surcharges, and/or equipment or line costs.

Copyright Web Publishing Rules - Copyright law and District policy prohibit the re-publishing of text or graphics found on
the Internet or on District websites or file servers/cloud storage without explicit written permission.

a. For each re-publication (on a website or file server) of a graphic or a text file that was produced
externally, there must be a notice at the bottom of the page crediting the original producer and noting how and
when permission was granted. If possible, the notice should also include the web address of the original source.

b. Students engaged in producing web pages must provide library media specialists with email or hard copy
permissions before the web pages are published. Printed evidence of the status of public domain documents
must be provided.

C. The absence of a copyright notice may not be interpreted as permission to copy the materials. Only the
copyright owner may provide the permission. The manager of the website displaying the material may not be
considered a source of permission.

d. The fair use rules governing student reports in classrooms are less stringent and permit limited use of
graphics and text.

e. Student work may only be published if there is written permission from both the parent/guardian and
student.

Use of Email - The District’s email system, and its constituent software, hardware, and data files, are owned and
controlled by the District. The District provides email to aid students in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities, and as
an education tool.

a. The District reserves the right to access and disclose the contents of any account on its system, without
prior notice or permission from the account’s user. Unauthorized access by any student to an email account is
strictly prohibited.

36



b. Each person should use the same degree of care in drafting an email message as would be put into a
written memorandum or document. Nothing should be transmitted in an email message that would be
inappropriate in a letter or memorandum.

c. Electronic messages transmitted via the District’s Internet gateway carry with them an identification of
the user’s Internet domain. This domain is a registered name and identifies the author as being with the District.
Great care should be taken, therefore, in the composition of such messages and how such messages might
reflect on the name and reputation of the District. Users will be held personally responsible for the content of
any and all email messages transmitted to external recipients.

d. Any message received from an unknown sender via the Internet, such as spam or potential phishing
emails, should either be immediately deleted or forwarded to the system administrator. Downloading any file
attached to any Internet-based message is prohibited unless the user is certain of that message’s authenticity
and the nature of the file so transmitted.

e. Use of the District’s email system constitutes consent to these regulations.

Internet Safety

internet access is limited to only thase acceptable uses as detailed in these procedures. internet safety is supported if
users will not engage in unacceptable uses, as detailed in these procedures, and otherwise follow these procedures.

Staff members will supervise students while students are using District Internet access to ensure that the students abide
by the Terms and Conditions for Internet access contained in these procedures.

Each District computer with Internet access has a filtering device that blocks entry to visual depictions that are: {1)
obscene, {2) pornographic, or (3) harmful or inappropriate for students, as defined by the Children’s Internet Protection
Act and as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

The system administrator and Building Principals shall monitor student Internet access.

XVI. Permanent Records

The school maintains a permanent record for each student enrolled at Tri-Valley Middle School. The information found
in this record includes: standardized test results, grades and credits earned in courses taken by the student, number of
days absent and tardy, limited family information including parents’ names, address, student’s date of birth, telephone
number, and other schools attended, extra-curricular activities, Parents of students under 18 years of age may request to
see the student’s permanent record while in the presence of a school official. A separate health record for each student
is maintained in the office.

XVIl. Transportation

A. Instructions to School Bus Riders

The district provides bus transportation to and from school for all students living 1.5 miles or more from the school. A
list of bus stops will be published at the beginning of the school year before student registration. Parents must, at the
beginning of the school year, select one bus stop at which a student is to be picked up, and one stop at which a student
is to be dropped off. Students are not permitted to ride a bus other than the bus to which they are assigned. Exceptions
must be approved in advance by the building principal.

While students are on the bus, they are under the supervision of the bus driver. In most cases, bus discipline problems
can be handled by the bus driver. In the case of a written disciplinary referral, student bus problems will be investigated
and handled by the building principal.

Students are expected to follow all school rules while on the bus. Students may be suspended from riding the school bus
for up to 10 consecutive school days for violating school rules or for engaging in other gross disobedience or misconduct.
The school board may suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety reasons.
The district’s regular suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a student’s privilege to ride a school bus.

A student who is suspended from riding the school bus and who does not have alternative transportation to school shall
be allowed the apportunity to make up all missed work for equivalent academic credit. It is the responsibility of the

student's parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have alternative transportation to school.

37



In the interest of the student’s safety and in compliance with State law, students are also expected to observe the
following:
1. Dress properly for the weather. Make sure all drawstrings, ties, straps, etc. on all clothing, backpacks and
other items, are shortened or removed to lessen the likelihood of them getting caught in bus doors, railings or
aisles.
2. Arrive on time at the bus stop, and stay away from the street while waiting for the bus.
3. Stay away from the bus until it stops completely and the driver sighals you to board. Enter in single file
without pushing. Always use the handrail.
4 Take a seat right away and remain seated facing forward. Keep your hands, arms, and head inside the bus.
5. Talk quietly on the bus. No shouting or creating loud noises that may distract the driver. Tablets, iPods, iPads,
smartphones, and other electronic devices must be silenced on the bus unless a student uses headphones.
6. Help keep the bus neat and clean. Keep belongings out of the aisle and away from emergency exits. Eating
and drinking are not allowed on the bus.
7. Always listen to the driver’s instructions. Be courteous to the driver and other students. Sit with your hands to
yourself and avoid making noises that would distract the driver or bother other passengers. Remain seated,
keeping your hands, arms, and head inside the bus at all times.
8. Wait until the bus pulls to a complete stop before standing up. Use the handrail when exiting the bus.
9, Stay out of the danger zone next to the bus where the driver may have difficulty seeing you. Take five giant
steps away from the bus and out of the danger zone, until you can see the driver and the driver sees you. Never
crawl under a bus,
10. If you must cross the street after you get off the bus, wait for the driver’s signal and then cross in front of the
bus. Cross the street only after checking both ways for traffic.
11. Never run back to the bus, even if you dropped or forgot something.
12. Treat bus equipment as you would valuable furniture in your own home. Never tamper with the bus or any of
its equipment.
13. Assist in keeping the bus safe and sanitary at all times.
14. Do not eat or drink on the bus.
15. Carry no animals on the bus without the permission of the school Transportation Director and the
Superintendent or Principal.
16. Keep boaks, packages, coats, and all other objects out of the aisles.
17. Leave no books, lunches, or other articles on the bus.
18, Be courteous to fellow pupils and the bus driver.
19. Help look after the safety and comfort of smaller children.
20. Do not ask the driver to stop at places other than the regular bus stop. The driver is not permitted to do this,
except by proper authorization from a school official.
21, Observe safety precautions at discharge points. When it is necessary to cross the highway, proceed to a point
at least 10 feet in front of the bus on the right shoulder of the highway where traffic may be observed in both
directions. Wait for a signal from the bus driver permitting you to cross.
22. Observe the same rules and regulations on other trips under schoal sponsorship as you observe between
home and school. Respect the wishes of the chaperone appointed by the school.
23. Athletic footwear equipped with cleats or spikes are not allowed on the bus.
24, Parents will be liable for any defacing or damage students do to the bus.
Students may be suspended from riding the school bus for up to 10 consecutive days for engaging in gross disobedience
or misconduct. If a student is suspended from riding the bus for gross disobedience or misconduct on a bus, the school
board may suspend a student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days for safety reasons. The
district’s regular suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a student’s privilege to ride a school bus.

Video and audio cameras may be active on busses to record student conduct and may be used for the purposes of
investigation into misconduct or accidents on the bus.

For questions regarding school transportation issues, please contact Cade Hasselbring, Transportation Director, at (309)
378-2351.

B. “Can I ride home with my friend?”
School Board policy is very specific about riders changing routes, stops, or having friends ride. You need to be familiar
with the procedures and policy given below. Students are allowed to ride a bus to homes other than their own regular

38



bus route, providing a slip signed by parents is presented to the Principal a day in advance, or in an emergency, a phone
call is made to him/her. If space permits, students may be allowed to ride buses other than their own provided a
—transportation change request)| slip is secured from the principal’s office in advance. Examples of approvable requests
are iliness, employment, necessary parental absence from the home, or other situations deemed to be necessities by the
Principal or Transportation Director. Examples of non-approvable requests include parties and overnight visits which are
mere social conveniences.

XVIli. Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention

Youth suicide impacts the safety of the school environment. It also affects the school community, diminishing the ability
of surviving students to learn and the school’s ability to educate. Suicide and depression awareness and prevention are
important goals of the school district.

The school district maintains student and parent resources on suicide and depression awareness and prevention. Much
of this information, including a copy of the school district’s policy, is posted on the school district website. Information
can also be abtained from the school office.

XIX. Parental Rights

Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities

tndividuals with disabilities will be provided an opportunity to participate in all school-sponsored services, programs, or
activities. Individuals with disabilities should notify the superintendent or building principal if they have a disability that
will require special assistance or services and, if so, what services are required. This notification should occur as far in
advance as possible of the school-sponsored function, program, or meeting.

Discipline of Students with Disabilities
Behavioral Interventions

Behavioral interventions shall be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen desirable behaviors and
reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. The School Board will establish and maintain a committee to develop,
implement, and monitor procedures on the use of behavioral interventions for children with disabilities.

Discipline of Special Education Students

The District shall comply with the Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 and the lllinais State
Board of Education’s Special Education rules when disciplining special education students. No special education student
shall be expelled if the student’s particular act of gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her
disahility.

Education of Children with Dlsablimes
it is the mtent of he ;stnct to ensu re that students who are dlsabled w;thm the deﬁnltlon of: Sectlon 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Individuals with Disabilities Education ‘Act are identified, evaluated and provided with
appropriate educational services.

T ecessary related

The Schoo! prowdes a free appropnate pu bhc educahon in the ieast restrlc‘ave enwronment
ser\nces to all chrldren with: d[sabﬂmes enrolted in the schoo! The term ”ch;ld o] wath dasabslmes ‘means. chtldren
between ages 3 and the day before their: 22nd blrthday for. whom it is: determmed that specsai _educatlon services are
needed except those ChlldrEﬂ wat_h d:sab;[mes who turn 22 years of age"d urmg-the school yea “are eligible for speczal
educatlon ser\nces through the end of the school year l i the lntent of the school to ensure that students wuth

A copy of the publscatton "Exp!anation of Procedural Safeguards Available to Parents of Students wuth Dlsabilmes may
be thBIHEd from the school dlstrlct office!

Students with. disabah’aes who do not quailfy for. an mdt\ndualized educa‘non program as requ:red by the federal

lndiwduals wath Dlsablilties Education Act and lmplementlng prowsmns of this lIEmOIS iaw, may quahfy for serwces under
Section 504 of the federa] Rehabflitatlon Act'of 1973 if the: student (1) has a physma[ or mental impairment that

39



substantially limits one or more major life activities, (i) has a record of a physical or mental impairment, or (ili) is
regarded as having a physical or mental impairment.

For further information, please contact: Gail McCane, Special Services Director (gmccane@tri-valley3.org)

English Learners

The school offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic subjects and to meet
the same challenging State standards that all children are expected to meet.

Parents/Guardians of English Learners will be informed how they can: {1) be involved in the education of their children;
(2) be active participants in assisting their children to attain English proficiency, achieve at high levels within a
well-rounded education, and meet the challenging State academic standards expected of all students; and (3} participate
and serve on the District’s Transitional Bilingual Education Programs Parent Advisory Committee.

For questions related to this program or to express input in the school’s English Learners program, contact Gail McCane

at gmccane@tri-valley3 org.

Instructional Material
A student’s parent/guardian may inspect, upon their request, any instructional material used as part of their child’s

educational curriculum within a reasonable time of their request.

Homeless Child’s Right to Education
When a child loses permanent housing and becomes a homeless person as defined at law, or when a homeless child
changes his or her temporary living arrangements, the parent or guardian of the homeless child has the option of either:
1. Continuing the child’s education in the school of origin for as long as the child remains homeless or, if the child
becomes permanently housed, until the end of the academic year during which the housing is acquired; or
2. Enrolling the child in any school that non-homeless students who live in the attendance area in which the child
or youth is actually living are eligible to attend.

Mandated Reporters
All school personnel, including teachers and administrators, are required by law to immediately report any and all
suspected cases of child abuse or neglect to the lllinois Department of Children and Family Services.

School Visitation Rights

The School Visitation Rights Act permits employed parents/guardians, who are unable to meet with educators because of
a work conflict, the right to time off from work under certain conditions to attend necessary school functions such as
parent-teacher conferences. Letters verifying participation in this program are available from the school office upon
request.

Sex Offender & Violent Offender Community Notification Laws
State law requires that all school districts provide parents/guardians with information about sex offenders and violent
offenders against youth,

You may find the Illinois Sex Cffender Registry on the Hlinois State Police’s website at:

hitp://www.isp.state.il.us/sor/.

You may find the lllinois Statewide Child Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Registry on the lilinois State
Police’s website at: http://www.isp.state.il.us/cmvo/

Sexual Predator Notification Law

40



State [aw prohibits a convicted child sex offender from being present on school property when children under the age of
18 are present, except for in the following circumstances as they relate to the individual’s child{ren):

To attend a conference at the school with school personnel to discuss the progress of their child.
To participate in a conference in which evaluation and placement decisions may be made with respect to their
child’s special education services.

e To attend conferences to discuss issues concerning their child, such as retention ar promotion.

In all other cases, convicted child sex offenders are prohibited from being present on school property unless they obtain
written permission from the superintendent or schoal board.

Anytime that a convicted child sex offender is present on school property for any reason— including the three reasons
ahove ~ he/she is responsible for notifying the principal's office upon arrival on school property and upon departure
from school property. It is the responsibility of the convicted child sex offender to remain under the direct supervision of
a school official at all times he/she is in the presence or vicinity of children.

A violation of this law is a Class 4 feleny.

Standardized Testing
Students and parents/guardians should be aware that students will take standardized tests throughout the year. Parents
are encouraged to cooperate in preparing students for the standardized testing, because the quality of the education the
schoot can provide is partially dependent upon the school’s ability to continue to prove its success in the state’s
standardized tests. Parents can assist their students in achieving their best performance by doing the following:

1. Encourage students to work hard and study throughout the year;
Ensure students get a good night’s sleep the night before exams;
Ensure students eat well the morning of the exam, particularly ensuring they eat sufficient protein;
Remind and emphasize for students the importance of good performance on standardized testing;
Ensure students are on time and prepared for tests, with appropriate materials, including number 2
pencils;
Teach students the importance of honesty and ethics during the performance;
Encourage students to relax on testing day.

ViR wnN

~N oo

Student Privacy Protections

Surveys by Third Parties

Before a school official or staff member administers or distributes a survey or evaluation created by a third partyto a
student, the student’s parent/guardian may inspect the survey or evaluation, upon their request and within a reasonable
time of their request. This applies to every survey: (1) that is created by a person or entity other than a district official,
staff member, or student, (2) regardless of whether the student answering the guestions can be identified, and (3)
regardless of the subject matter of the guestions.

Parents who object to disclosure of information concerning their child to a third party may do so in writing to the
building principal.

Surveys Requesting Personal Information

School officials and staff members will not request, nor disclose, the identity of any student who completes any survey or
evaluation (created by any person or entity, including the school or district} containing one or more of the following
items:

Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or the student’s parent/guardian.
Mental or psychological problems of the student or the student’s family.
Sexual behaviors or attitudes.

{lfegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior.

41



Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom students have close family relationships.

Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those with lawyers, physicians, and ministers.
Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or the student’s parent/guardian.

Income other than that required by law to determine program eligibility.

e & & ©

" The student’s parent/guardian may inspect the survey or evaluation upon, and refuse to allow their child to participate in
the survey. The school will not penalize any student whose parent/guardian exercised this option.

Student Records

A schaol student record is any writing or other recorded information concerning a student and by which a student may
be identified individually that is maintained by a school or at its direction or by a school employee, regardless of how or
where the information is stored, except for certain records kept in a staff member’s sole possession; records maintained
by law enforcement officers working in the school; video and other electronic recordings that are created in part for law
enforcement, security, or safety reasons or purposes; and electronic recordings made on school buses.

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act {FERPA) and the Illinois Student Records Act afford parents/guardians and
students over 18 years of age (“eligible students”) certain rights with respect to the student’s school records. They are:

1. The right to inspect and copy the student’s education records within 15 school days of the day the District
receives a request for access.

a. The degree of access a student has to his or her records depends on the student’s age. Students less
than 18 years of age have the right to inspect and copy only their permanent record. Students 18 years
of age or older have access and copy rights to both permanent and temporary records. A
parent/guardian or student should submit to the building principal a written request that identifies the
record(s) he or she wishes to inspect. The principal will make arrangements for access and notify the
parent/guardian or student of the time and place where the records may be inspected. The District
charges $.35 per page for copying but no one will be denied their right to copies of their records for
inability to pay this cost.

b.. These rights are denied to any person against whom an order of protection has been entered concerning
the student.

2. The right to request removal from the student’s academic transcript one ar more scores received on college
entrance examinations.'

a. A parent/guardian or eligible student may ask the District to remove certain scores of college entrance
exams from their student’s academic transcript. Students often take college entrance examinations
multiple times in order to improve their results. Test publishers provide the results from each
examination taken to the student’s high school. Schools must include each of these scores on the
student’s transcript, which may result in academic transcripts having multiple scores from a single
college entrance exam. A parent/guardian or eligible student may not want certain scores to be sent to
postsecondary institutions to which the student applies. To request the removal of scores on college
entrance examinations, the parent/guardian or eligible student must submit a written request stating the
name of each college entrance examination that is the subject of the request and the dates of the scores
that are to be removed.

3. The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent/ guardian or eligible
student believes are inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper.

a. A parent/guardian or eligible student may ask the District to amend a record that is believed to be
inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. Requests should be sent to the building principal and should clearly
identify the record the parent/guardian or eligible student wants changed and the specific reason a
change is being sought.

b. If the District decides not to amend the record, the District will notify the parent/guardian or eligible
student of the decision and advise him or her of their right to a hearing regarding the request for

1 This section is only applicable to high schools.

42



amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will he provided to the
parent/guardian or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.

4. The right to permit disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student’s education
records, except to the extent that the FERPA or lllinois School Student Records Act authorizes disclosure without

consent.
da.

Disclosure without consent is permitted to school officials with legitimate educational or administrative
interests. A school official is a person employed by the District as an administrator, supervisor, instructor,
or support staff member {including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a
person serving on the School Board; a person or company with whom the District has contracted to
perform a special task (such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or any
parent/guardian or student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance
committee, or assisting another school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a
legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or
her professional responsibility.

Upon request, the District discloses education records without consent to officials of another school
district in which a student has enrolled or intends to enroll, as well as to any person as specifically
required by State or federal law. Before information is released to these individuals, the
parents/guardians or eligible student will receive prior written notice of the nature and substance of the
information, and an opportunity to inspect, copy, and challenge such records.

Academic grades and references to expulsions or out-of-school suspensions cannot be challenged at the
time a student’s records are being forwarded to another school to which the student is transferring.
Disclosure is also permitted without consent to: any person for research, statistical reporting or planning,
provided that no student or parent/guardian can be identified; any person named in a court order;
appropriate persons if the knowledge of such information is necessary to protect the health or safety of
the student or other persons; and juvenile authorities when necessary for the discharge of their official
duties who request information before adjudication of the student.

5. The right to a copy of any school student record proposed to be destroyed or deleted.

a.

The permanent record is maintained for at least 60 years after the student transfers, graduates, or
permanently withdraws. The temporary record is maintained for at least 5 years after the student
transfers, graduates, or permanently withdraws. Temporary records that may be of assistance to a
student with a disability who graduates or permanently withdraws, may, after 5 years, be transferred to
the parent/guardian or to the student, if the student has succeeded to the rights of the parent/guardian.
Student temporary records are reviewed every 4 years or upon a student’s change in attendance centers,
whichever occurs first.

6. The right to prohibit the release of directory information.
7. Throughout the school year, the District may release directory information regarding students, limited to:

d.

@ ap o

T oo

Name

Address

Gender

Grade level

Birth date and place

Parent/guardian names, addresses, electronic mail addresses, and telephone numbers

Photographs, videos, or digital images used for informational or news-related purposes (whether by a
media outlet or by the school) of a student participating in school or school-sponsored activities,
organizations, and athletics that have appeared in school publications, such as yearbooks, newspapers,
or sporting or fine arts programs

Academic awards, degrees, and honors

Information in relation to school-sponsared activities, organizations, and athletics

Major field of study

Period of attendance in school

43



Period of attendance in school Any parent/quardian or eligible student may prohibit the release of any or ail of
the above information by delivering a written objection to the building principal within 30 days of the date of
this notice.

8. The right to request that military recruiters or institutions of higher learning not be granted access to your
student’s information without your prior written consent.”

a. Federal law requires a secondary school to grant military recruiters and institutions of higher learning,
upon their request, access to secondary school students’ names, addresses, and telephone numbers,
unless the parent/guardian, or student who is 18 years of age or older, request that the information not
be disclosed without prior written consent. If you wish to exercise this option, notify the building
principal.

9. The right contained in this statement: No person may condition the granting or withholding of any right,
privilege or benefits or make as a condition of employment, credit, or insurance the securing by any individual of
any information from a student’s temporary record which such individual may obtain through the exercise of
any right secured under State law.

10. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the District to
comply with the requirements of FERPA.

The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:

Family Policy Compliance Office
U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue, SW
Washington DC 20202-4605
Parent Notices Requlired hy the Every Student Succeeds Act

I. Teacher Qualifications

A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a timely manner, the professional qualifications of your
student’s classroom teachers, including, at a minimum, whether:

1. The teacher has met the State qualifications and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas
in which the teacher provides instruction.

2. The teacher is teaching under emergency or other provisional status.
3. The teacher is teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher.
4. Paraprofessionals provide services to the student and, if so, their qualifications.

1. Testing Transparency

The State and District requires students to take certain standardized tests. For additional information, see handbook procedure
12:202

A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a imely manner, information regarding student participation in
any assessments mandated by law or District policy, which shall include information on any applicable right you may have to
opt your stugdent out of such assessment.

1il. Annual Report Card

Each year, the District is required to disseminate an annual report card that includes information on the District as a whole and
each school served by the District, with aggregate and disaggregated information for each required subgroup of students
including: student achievement on academic assessments (designated by category), graduation rates, district performance,
teacher qualifications, and certain other information required by federal law. When available, this information will be placed
on the District’s website at .3

44



V. Parent & Family Engagement Compact 4

V. Unsafe School Chaice Option

The unsafe school cheice option allows students to transfer to another District schoo! or to a public charter school within the
District under certain circumstances. For additional information, see handbook procedure 12:100. 5

VI. Student Privacy
Students have certain privacy protections under federal law. For additional information, see handbook procedure 12.105. &
Vi, English Learners

The school offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic subjects and to meet the
same challenging State standards that all children are expected to meet,

Viil. Homeless Students

For information on supports and services available to homeless students, for further information, please contact Gail McCane
a gmccane@iri-valley3.org.

45



2022-2023 Student Handbook

Tri-Valley High School
503 East Washington St.
Downs, IL 61736
Phone: {309) 378-2911
Fax: (309) 378-3202
www.tri-valley3.org




V1.

VII.

viil.

Xl

XIilL

XMl

XV,

XV,

XVI,

XVIL.

XVIit.

XIX.

XX.

XX1.

XX11.

XXIll.

XXiv.

XXV

XXVI.

Table of Contents

Mission Statement

School Operations During a Pandemic ar Cther Health Emergency

Introduction

Attendance Procedures

Course Offerings

Graduation Requirements & Policies

Grade Reporting

Academic Recognition

Special Education

Conferences & Reports of Unsatisfactory Progress

Sexual Harassment/Nondiscrimination

Bullving & Harassment

Discipline Policy

Student Rules & Regulations

General Information

Student Privacy Protections

Co-Curriculars & Athletics

School Services

Technology & Internet Services

Permanent Records

Transporiation Services

Canceling Activities for Emergency Reasons

Scheduling of Extra-Curricular Events
Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention
Parental Rights

Parent Organizations and Booster Clubs

11

13

16

18

19

20

21

22

24

31

34

40

42

46

48

52

53

55

55

55

56

58



1. Mission Statement

It is our mission to provide students with a safe and nurturing environment with social and emotional support,
adequate facilities, and a competent, professional staff. We must develop in each student the capacity to think
critically and to solve problems logically, the ability to acquire knowledge and to apply it. To this end, we ensure an
education emphasizing fundamental skills in math, science, social studies, and written and oral communication. Our
students will be the leaders of a rapidly evolving, global society. We are committed to empowering them to lead
fulfilling, responsible, and productive lives in the 21st century.

The provisions of this handbook are not to be considered as irrevocable contractual commitments between the
schoo! and the student. Rather, the provisions reflect the current status of the rules, practices, and procedures as
currently practiced and are subject to change. Any changes to the handbook would then he subject to subsequent
approval by the Board of Education. Teachers may create additional classroom rules as fong as they are fully
explained to the students and are uniformly enforced within their own classroom,

II. School Operations During a Pandemic or Other Health Emergency

A pandemic is a global outbreak of disease. Pandemics happen when a new virus emerges to infect individuals and,
because there is little to no pre-existing immunity against the new virus, it spreads sustainably. Your child’s school
and district play an essential role, along with the local health department and emergency management agencies, in
protecting the public’s health and safety during a pandemic or other health emergency.

During a pandemic or other health emergency, you will be notified in a timely manner of all changes to the school
environment and schedule that impact your child. Please be assured that even if school is not physically in session, it
is the goal of the school and district to provide your child with the best educational opportunities possible.

Additionally, please note the following:

1. All decisions regarding changes to the school environment and schedule, including a possible interruption of
in-person learning, will be made by the superintendent in consultation with and, if necessary, at the
direction of the Governor, lllinois Department of Public Health, iocal health department, emergency
management agencies, and/or Regional Office of Education.

2. Available learning opportunities may include remote and/or blended learning. Blended learning may reguire
your child to attend school on a modified schedule.

3. Students will be expected to participate in blended and remote instruction as required by the school and
district. Parents are responsible for assuring the participation of their child. Students who do not participate
in blended or remote learning will be considered truant.

4. All school disciplinary rules remain in effect during the interruption of in-person learning. Students are
subject to discipline for disrupting the remate learning envirohment to the same extent that discipline wouid
be imposed for disruption of the fraditional classroom.




5. Students and parents will be required to observe all public health and safety measures implemented by the
school and district in conjunction with state and local reguirements.

6. During a pandemic or other health emergency, the school and district will ensure that educational
opportunities are available to all students.

7. School personnel will work closely with students with disabilities and other vulnerable student populations
to minimize the impact of any educational disruption.

8. Students who have a compromised immune system, live with an individual with a compramised immune
system, or have a medical condition that may impact their ability to attend school during a pandemic or
other public health emergency should contact school officials.

9. During a pandemic or other health emergency, teachers and school staff will receive additiona!l training on
health and safety measures.

10. In accordance with school district or state mandates, the school may need to conduct a daily health
assessment of your child. Parents and students will be notified of the exact assessment procedures if this
becoimes necessary.

11. Parents should not send their child to school if their child exhibits any symptoms consistent with the
pandemic or other health emergency.

12, Please do not hesitate to contact schoo! or district officials if you have any concerns regarding your child’s
education, health or safety.

I, Introduction

This handbook is a summary of the school’s rutes and expectations and is not a comprehensive statement of school
procedures. The Board’s comprehensive policy manual is available for public inspection at the District office located
at 410 E. Washington in Downs, 1L, 61736. The School Board governs the school district, and is elected by the
community. The School Board has hired the administrative staff to operate the district

Current school board members:

Carl Neubauer, President Jill Messamore
1.B. Goff, Vice-President Bryan Myers

Jessica Al Lori Stickiing
Bobby Brown

Current schoo! administrators:

Ben Derges, Superintendent Cade Hasselbring, Transportation Director
Frank Arnolts, High School Principal Gail McCane, Special Education Director
Sara Burnett, Middle School Principal losh Roop, Athletic Director
Tyler Swearingen, Elementary Principal tosh White, Technology Director

Visitors

A. Al visitors including parents and siblings must enter through the front door of the building and proceed
immediately to the main office.



B. All visitors including parents and siblings must enter through the front door of the building and proceed
immediately to the main office. Visitors should identify themselves and inform the office personnel of their
reason for being at the school.

C. Visitors must sign in, identifying their name, the date and time of arrival, and the classroom or location they
are visiting. Approved visitors must take a guest ID tag and place the tag to their outer clothing in a clearly
visible location.

All visitors must return to the main office and sign out before leaving the school.

E. The only lunch visitors allowed for students are immediate family members. The parent of the student must
contact the main office in advance to approve this lunch visit.

F. No visitors (including parents and former students) may meet with teachers during the school day unless
they have scheduled that meeting in advance with the specific teacher(s).

G. Visitors are expected to abide by all school rules during their time on school property. A visitor who fails to
conduct himself or herself in a manner that is appropriate will be asked to leave and may be subject to
criminal penalties for trespass and/or disruptive behavior.

H. No person on school property or at a school event shall perform any of the following acts:

1. Strike, injure, threaten, harass, or intimidate a staff member, board member, sports official or coach,
or any other person.
2. Behave in an unsportsmanlike manner or use vulgar or obscene language.

Unless specifically permitted by State law, possess a weapon, any ohject that can reasonably be

considered a weapon or looks like a weapon, or any dangerous device.

Damage or threaten to damage another’s property.

Damage or deface school property.

Violate any illinois law or municipal, local or county ordinance.

Smoke or otherwise use tobacco products.

w

o N oo

Distribute, consume, use, possess, of be impaired by or under the influence of an alcoholic beverage,

cannabis, other lawful product, or illegal drug.

9. Be present when the person’s alcoholic beverage, cannabis, other lawful product, or illegal drug
consumption is detectible, regardless of when and/or where the use occurred.

10. Use or possess medical cannabis, unless he or she has complied lilinois’ Compassionate Use of
Medica! Cannabis Act and district policies.

11. Impede, delay, disrupt, or otherwise interfere with any school activity or function (including using
cellular phones in a disruptive manner).

12. Enter upon any portion of school premises at any time for purposes other than those that are lawful
and authorized by the board.

13. Operate a motor vehicle: (a) in a risky manner, (b} in excess of 20 miles per hour, or (¢} in violation of
an authorized district employee’s directive,

1.4, Engage in any risky behavior, including roller-blading, roller-skating, or skateboarding.

15. Violate other district policies or regulations, or a directive from an authorized security officer or
district employee.

16. Engage in any conduct that interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the district or a school

function.

Volunteers

All school volunteers must be approved by the building principal prior to assisting in the school. Some teachers
utilize parent volunteers in the classroom. The individual teachers make this decision. Teachers who desire parent
volunteers will notify parents. All visitors must return to the main office and sign out. For school-wide volunteer
opportunities, please contact the building principal.



Video Monitoring Systems

A video monitoring system is in use on school busses and in public areas of the schoo! building. These systems have
been put in place to protect students, staff, visitors and school property. ifa discipline problem is captured on
videotape, these recordings may be used as the basis for imposing student discipline. If criminal actions are
recorded, a copy of the recording may be provided to law enforcement personnel.

Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities

Individuals with disabilities will be provided an opportunity to participate in all school-sponsored services, programs,
or activities. individuals with disabilities should notify the superintendent or building principal if they have a
disability that will require special assistance or services and, if so, what services are required. This notification
should occur as far in advance as possible of the school-sponsored function, program, of meeting.

Animals on School Property

In order to assure student health and safety, animals are not allowed on school property, except inthe case of a
service animal accompanying a student or other individual with a documented disability. This rule may be
temporarily waived by the buiiding principals in the case of an educational opportunity for students, provided that
{a) the animal is appropriately housed, humanely cared for, and properly handled, and (b} students will not be
exposed to dangerous animals or an unhealthy environment.

Fines, Fees and Charges; Waiver of Student Fees
The school establishes fees and charges to fund certain school activities. Some students may be unable to pay these
fees. Students will not be denied educational services or academic credit due to the inability of their parents or
guardians to pay fees or certain charges. Students whose parent or guardian is unable to afford student fees may
receive a fee waiver. A fee waiver does not exempt a student from charges for lost and damaged boaoks, locks,
materials, supplies, and/or equipment. Applications for fee waivers may be submitted by a parent or guardian of a
student who has been assessed a fee. As student is eligible for a fee waiver if at least one of the following
prerequisites are met:
1. The student currently livesina household that meets the free lunch or breakfast eligibility guidelines
established by the federal government pursuant to the National School Lunch Act; or
2. The student or the student’s family is currently receiving aid under Article IV of the lllinois Public Aid
Code (Aid to Families of Dependent Children).

The building principal will give additional consideration where one or more of the following factors are present: An
illness in the family; unusual expenses such as fire, flood, storm damage, etc.; unemployment; emergency situations;
or when one or more of the parents/guardians are involved in a work stoppage. The building principal will notify the
parent/guardian promptly asto whether the fee waiver request has been granted or denied. Questians regarding the
fee waiver application process should be addressed to the building principal.

Pursuant to the Hunger-Free student’s Bill of Rights Act, the school is required to provide a federally reimbursable
meal or snack to a student who requests one, regardless of whether the student has the ability to pay for the meal or
snack or owes money for earlier meals or snacks. Students may not be provided with an alternative meal or snack
and the school is prohibited from publicly identifying or stigmatizing a student who cannot pay for or owes money
for a meal or snack.




1V, Attendance Procedures

A. Philosophy

it is the belief of Tri-Valley Schools that frequent absences of pupils from regular classroom learning experiences
disrupt the continuity of the instructional process. The benefit of regular classroom instruction is lost and cannot be
entirely regained, even by extra after-school instruction. Consequently, pupils who miss school frequently usually
experience great difficulty in achieving the maximum benefits of schooling and are able to achieve only mediocre
success in their academic programs. The school cannot teach pupils who are not present. The entire process of
education requires a regular continuity of instruction, classroom participation, learning experiences, and study in
order to reach the goal of maximum educational benefits for each student. The regular contact of the pupils with one
another in the classroom and their participation in well-planned instructional activities under the tutelage of a
competent teacher are vital to this purpose. This is the well-established principle of education that underlies and
gives purpose to the requirement of compulsory schooling in this and every other state in the nation. This handbook
section acts in accordance with Board policy 5115.

fllinois law requires that whoever has custody or control of any child between six (by September 1st) and seventeen
years of age shall assure that the child attends school in the district in which he or she resides, during the entire time
school is in session {unless the child has already graduated from high school). lilinois law also requires that whoever
has custody or control of a child who is enrolled in the school, regardless of the child’s age, shall assure that the child
attends school during the entire time school is in session.

There are certain exceptions to the attendance requirement for children who: attend private school, are physically or
mentally unable to attend school {(including a pregnant student suffering medical complications as certified by her
physician), are lawfully and necessarily employed, are between the ages of 12 and 14 while in confirmation classes,
have a religious reason requiring absence, or are 16 or older and employed and enrolied in a graduation incentive
program.

B. Attendance and Punctuality
students are expected to attend school every day it is in session, unless the student is ill, or his/her absence is
required for a good reason. it is the responsibility of parents/guardians to see that students are in school.

C. School Arrival/Start/Dismissal Times

Tri-Valley Elementary School starts at 8:10 a.m. and dismisses at 3:10 p.m., on regular school days. Tri-Vatley Middie
School starts at 8:15 a.m. and dismisses at 3:15 p.m., on regular school days. Tri-Valley High School starts at 8:15 a.m.
and dismisses at 3:10 p.m., on regular school days. Students arriving late will need to sign in at the school office,
befare entering class.

D. Snow Days/Early Dismissal

On days when there is an early dismissal, students will ride their regular bus route home, {unless stated differently,
on the form the elementary school uses). Parent({s)/guardian(s) will need to make arrangements, if they will not be
home, at the time the bus arrives. It is important to check the calendar for these dates.

In the event it becomes necessary to close school hecause of weather, or any other emergency situation, an
announcement will be made through the following media:
e Social Media: Facebook page (“Tri-Valley CUSD #3”) and Twitter Accounts (@TVDIST3 and @trivalleyhs)
e Radio: WIBC {1230 AM), WBNQ, (101.5 FM), WBWN (B104.1 FM) - Bloomington
e TJelevision: WEEK-TV {NBC Channel 25} — Peoria




e Messaging system: In addition the school offers a feature that will automatically notify parents via a-mail
and telephone voice messaging system in case of cancellations due to inclement weather. The link to this
service can be found under the Community portion of the website. For your child’s safety, make certain your
child knows ahead of time where to go in case of an early dismissal. If school is dismissed early for an
emergency or weather, all after-school functions are cancelled.

E. Student Abhsences

Regular and prompt sttendance at school is extremely important, but an ill student should not be in school since this
may result in his/her health being impaired, and may result in other students being exposedtoa communicable
disease. Whenever a student is absent the following procedures should be followed.

1. Repaorting an absence: Parent(s}/guardian(s) are to call the school (at (309)-378-2911} by 9:00 AM each
day of a student’s absence, and indicate the reason for the absence. State law requires the school to call
parent(s)/guardian(s) at home or work, if the school has not been notified about a student’s absence. Tri-Valley High
school shall make a reasonable effort, to telephone parent(s)/guardian(s) within two hours, after the first class to
notify a student’s absence, if such student is absent without valid cause.

2. Changing attendance to excused: In situations where a parent/guardian does not notify the school by
phone when a student is absent, a written note is required from the parent/guardian, the absence will be considered
unexcused. To change the absence to excused, a written note is required from the parent/guardian, within ohe
school day. The note should contain: Dates of Absence; Specific Reason for the absence/tardiness; Parent/Guardian
signature.

3. Doctor’s Notes: If a student has seen a doctor during the absence, a note from the doctor stating the
date and time of the office visit, when the student may return to school, and any restrictions required, should be
sent to school with the student to be turned into the office. In addition for multiple days of absence, the doctor’s
note must include each day absent for all days absent to be considered as a doctor’s excuse.

4. Make up Work: Ifa student’s absence is excused or if a student is suspended from school, he/she will be
permitted to make up all missed work, including homework and tests, for equivalent academic credit. Students who
are unexcused from school will not be allowed to make up missed work. It shall be the responsibility of the student
to present make-up work to his/her teacher within a reasonable period of time, usually within a period of time equal
to the number of days absent. With today’s technology, students are encouraged to contact teachers during their
absence to obtain the work missed on those days.

a. Parent{s)/guardian{s) should check to make sure their child has completed all make-up work and that the

work has been turned in. _

b. An example: A student has known for weeks of a test on Wednesday, but the student has an excused

absence that day. In this scenario, the student would be required to take the test on Thursday.

c. Another example: A student has an excused absence on Monday, then an assignment is given that is due

Tuesday. In this scenario, the student would be required to turn in the work on or before Wednesday.

d. If the work has not been turned in after the given number of days, zeros will be recorded for the work no

matter what the reason for the absence. After the fifth excused absence in a semester a written physician’s

note, court document, or funeral statement will be required to obtain make-up work for credit.

F. Types of Absences: Excused, Unexcused, Planned absences, and College Visits
1. There are two types of absences: excused and unexcused. Excused absences include: illness, observance of a
religious holiday or event, death in the immediate family, family emergency, situations beyond the control of
the student, circumstances that cause reasonable concern to the parent/guardian for the student’s mental,
emotional, or physical health or safety, attending a military honors funeral to sound TAPS, or other reason as
approved by the building principal. Additionally, a student will be excused for up to 5 days in cases where
the student’s parent/guardian is an active duty member of the uniformed services and has been called to

duty for, is on leave from, or has immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or




combat-support postings. The Board of Education, in its discretion, may excuse a student for additional days
relative to such leave or deployment.

A student and the student’s parent/guardian are responsible for obtaining assighments from the student’s
teachers prior to any excused absences and for ensuring that such assignmenis are completed by the student
prior to his or her return to school.

All other absences are considered unexcused. Pre-arranged, or planned, absences must be approved by

the building principal in order to be considered excused. The school may require documentation explaining
the reason for the student’s absence.

a. Any absence from class without permission is rated as being an unexcused absence. lt is important
that students study and do make-up efforts for material missed during unexcused absences even
though credit may not be given for the work. Such study does prepare the student for unit or
semester tests later.

b. The following are examples of unexcused absences, but not an all-inclusive list: car trouble, hair
appointments, shopping, studying, skipping, babysitting, oversleeping, missing the bus, work {unless
prearranged), any absence during the day if the student fails to check out through the office.

students who have exceeded five (5) parental call ins for the semester will be marked unexcused for each
additional absence. Repeated violations of these rules will result in consequences including suspension.

If the student has a doctor’s excuse, it must be turned into the office to be changed to an excused absence
within one week of the date of the absence to receive credit for make-up work. If itis after that one week
Hime period, it will be the teacher’s discretion whether or not the student will be allowed to make up the
work missed.

planned Absences & College Visits: The school calendar has vacation periods established at regular intervals
during the year. Those intervals should be adeguate to meet the students’ and/or parent/guardian‘s needs.
If parent/guardian or student needs are such that the student must be absent from school they must make
arrangements for such absences in advance. All make-up work for those absences is the responsibility of the
student and/or the parent/guardian to arrange. The following may be types of anticipated absences that can
be approved, provided the outlined procedures are followed: family-approved vacations, college visits,
special religious events, <chool business, and court appearances.

Steps that must be taken for a Planned Absence:

a. A parent/guardian must notify the HS office in writing at least two (2) days before the date of the
intended absence.

b. Student must have all teachers sign the Planned Absence Form and return to the office prior to the
date of the intended absence.

c. Prior to the planned absence, the student must make arrangements with the teacher for all work
missed.

d. Unless otherwise arranged with the teacher in advance, all work is due the day that a student
returns from a planned absence.

e. Must return to school with a signed form from the college/university.

£ If all of the above criteria are met, the days missed will be counted as excused absences. If the
above criteria are not properly satisfied, then any days missed will be counted as unexcused
absences.

College Visits - All Coliege Days are to be treated as Planned Absences. If handled in accordance with the
aforementioned criteria, including submitting a sighed form from the college/university, College Days may be
Excused Absences. Seniors are allowed two (2) college days per year (including any required college entrance
testing). Juniors may make a request to the high school principal at least a week in advance to receive
permission to take one college day. In extremely unusual circumstances, additional college days may be
needed. If so, the administration may grant additional days upon reguest.




G. Excessive Absences

Students are expected to be present every day throughout the school year unless there is an appropriate reason for
being absent. Absences that exceed five (5) days per semester will not be excused and the student will have no
make-up privileges. Exceptions of the five (5) day absence rule and no make-up privileges may be reviewed by the
Principal with make-up privileges to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

H. High School 10-Day Rule

Students are expected to be in attendance daily at Tri-Valley High School. In the unlikely event a student accumulates
more than ten (10) Unexcused Absences in a class per semester and still has a passing grade, no academic credit will
be granted for that semester. The only exceptions to this rule will be when there is a death in the immediate family,
required court appearance, approved school activities, or when a student is confined to a hospital or home by a
doctor's orders. Parents will be informed by mail of a student’s fifth, eighth, and tenth Unexcused Absences from
school. Students who arrive at school any time during the school day without written permission will be counted
tardy to school as well as absent for those classes missed.

i. Tardiness

All students are to be in the place of their activity before the bell rings marking the beginning of that activity. There is
ample time for students to go from one classroom to the next by way of their lockers, but there is no extra time
permitted for loitering and talking in the hallways. Habitual tardiness will not be tolerated and will be dealt with
appropriately. Students who arrive late to school should report to the office.

Continued and regular instances of being tardy to class will bring negative consequences. A regular pattern of
tardiness will be dealt with according to the student handbook.

J. Trugncy

student attendance is critical to the learning process. Truancy is therefore a serious issue and will be dealt withina
serious manner by the school and district. Students who miss more than 1 % hut less than 5% of the prior 180
regular school days without valid cause (a recognized excuse} are truant. Students who miss 5% or more of the prior
180 regular school days without valid cause are chronic truants. students who are chronic truants will be offered
support services and resources aimed at correcting the truancy issue. If chronic truancy persists after support
services and other resources are made available, the school and district will take further action, including:

Referral to the truancy officer
Reporting to officials under the Juvenile Court Act
Referral to the State’s Attorney

AwNe

Appropriate school discipline

A student who misses 15 consecutive days of school without valid cause and who cannot be located or, after
exhausting all available support services, cannot be compelled to return to school is subject to expulsion from
school. A parent or guardian who knowingly and willfully permits a child to be fruant is in violation of State law.

K. Leaving School Grounds

Students are not to remain at school after dismissal unless attending a school sponsored activity, or unless a teacher
or the school arranged with a parent/guardian for the student to remain after school, All students who are not under
the supervision of a staff member must be out of the building by 3:30 p.m. Students must be accompanied by a staff
mermber whenever they use the building outside of the regular school day.

Students are not permitted to leave the school grounds during school hours without the permission of the building
principal. The building office will always attempt to contact parent(s)/guardian(s) before sending a student home
during school hours. Parent{s)/guardian(s) should contact the principal, by note or telephone, in advance to arrange

10




for dismissing a student when school is in session, Students leaving the school during the school day must sign out at
the office. Failure to sign out may result in disciplinary action.

L. Pass Slips
Students must have a pass slip to be in hallways during classes.

M. Withdrawal from School

When it has been determined that a student is to withdraw from school, he/she should present a statement from

the parent/guardian to the office stating the reason for the withdrawal. The office will issue withdrawal forms that
are to be signed by the people indicated on the forms. All books must be turned in or paid for and all fees must be
paid up-to-date.

N. Entering and Leaving School

The school day will begin at 8:15 and end at 3:10. There will be a warning bell 5 minutes before school starts. After
school is dismissed, all students who are not under the direct supervision of a teacher or coach are to leave the
building and grounds.

O. Leaving School During the School Day

students who have made advance arrangements to leave should sign out through the office at the designated time.
Those who have not made prior arrangements and must leave for emergency reasons must verify with the parent or
guardian the reason for leaving and then sign out through the office. Anyone leaving the campus without proper
clearance through the office will be considered truant. Students will not be allowed to go home to get school
materials, supplies, uniforms, money, etc. Students may not leave school to go out for lunch.

V. Course Offerings

A. Required and Elective Courses
Current course offerings, including required and elective courses for each grade level, and full course descriptions
can be found at our TVHS Counseling website. Click on “Course Descriptions” under the menu.

B. Bloomington Area Career Center (BACC)

The Tri-Valley Board of Education will strive to offer each student experiences appropriate to his/her individual
needs, interests, and capabilities. All students interested in vocational education shall be given the opportunity to
develop skills in a variety of vocalional areas at a rate and to an extent appropriate to their ability. As skills and
techniques are mastered, additional opportunities for exploration of other challenging, interesting, and rewarding
methods and subject matter shall be provided through student attendance at the Bloomington Area Career Center
{BACC}.

The decision for allowing a Tri-Valley student to attend BACC shall be based on his/her previous high school record,
including but not limited to: {1) good attendance, and (2) exhibit appropriate study hahits and citizenship traits.
Special education students who do not meet the normal criteria may be considered for an BACC program with the
written approval of their Tri-Valley vocational teacher(s), special education teacher(s), and the principal. Any student
that fails a course at the area vocational center will not be allowed to take a course at the area vocational center the
following year. Any student that is removed from a program by the BACC administration and staff will be expected to
reimburse Tri-Valley schools for enrollment fees. Many BACC programs are available in each of the vocational areas.
See the guidance counselor for more information.

11




C. Student Schedule Changes

student’s schedules shall not be changed after the first five days of each semester. Schedule changes must be made
in person. If a student does not have a study hall in their schedule, they can drop a course for a study hall up to six
weeks after the first day of school. After the sixth week, courses dropped as WF {withdraw failing).

D. Student Study Halls
Students, except those with an |EP, may schedule a maximum of one study hall. Students who wish to serve as a
student assistant must arrange to work for a teacher during the student’s study hall time.

E. Correspondence Courses
A student having attended six semesters of high school may earn no more than 2 credits through correspondence
courses or adult education courses to fulfill the total credits required for graduation. The pupi! will pay the costs for
such courses. Furthermore, eligibility to enroll in correspondence or adult ed courses will be limited to senior level
students: (1) whose education in certain content areas has been so accelerated that a special course is necessary but
unavailable in the high school program, or {2) who, because of scheduling conflicts, mid-term transfer into the
district, or failure of a first semester course, fack a required course to graduate. Credit for any correspondence course
must have written approval of the high school principal prior to enrollment in the course. The principal shall state in
the written approval a date by which the course must be completed, what course requirement shall be met, and
require that a letter or statement from the Correspondence School or other ed ucational institution be filed with him
certifying satisfactory completion of the course and the credit earned.

e No more than 1 credit through correspondence/online courses

e Enrollin only one study hall

e No weighted credit

e Not GPA credit

F. Community Service Program

To help Tri-Valley high school students develop social and community awareness, the Board of Education has
approved the creation of a Community Service Program. This program encourages high school students to participate
as volunteers in various activities within their respective communities or within the Tri-Valley School system. The
Community Service Program is an elective program which rewards the student volunteers with 1/2 credit for every
66 hours of documented service. Students may earn up to two full credits which can be applied toward the number
of credits required to graduate from Tri-Valley High School. The hours of community service must be earned during a
student’s study hall time or outside the hours of the regular schoo! day. The hours may be earned during the summer
as well as during the school year.

G. Credit Reclamation Opportunity (Summer School)
Upon arranging a Supervising teacher and paying a registration fee, any student wishing to reclaim credit for a failed
course(s) may take an online course(s) offered in the summer at TVHS. Students cannot take any credit reclamation
course until they have failed the course they wish to take and the enroliment semester is completed.

e Only enrolled in one class at a time

e Must finish by the start of school

H. Regionai Alternative Schaol (RAS)

Students who struggle with the traditional classroom and may need a different educational setting may be referred
to enrollment in one of the programs offered at the Regional Alternative School. These program are held under the
direction of teachers and gives the student opportunities to earn and re-claim credits. Students who are at Jeast 1
year behind (6 credits) in their progress towards graduation, chronically truant, and/or a concern to the safety and
well being of the student body will be considered for the Alternative Program.

12




V1. Graduation Requirements & Policies

A. State of lilinois High School Graduation Requirements:
To graduate from high school, unless otherwise exempted, each student is responsible for:
1. Completing all State mandated graduation requirements listed (see below, point B.)
2. Completing all District graduation requirements that are in addition to State graduation (see below, point D.)
3. Passing an examination on patriotism and principles of representative government, proper use of the flag,
methods of voting, and the Pledge of Allegiance.
4. Participating in the State assessment required for college entrance.

B. State Mandated Graduation Requirements

1. Four years of language arts.

2. Two years of writing intensive courses, one of which must be English and the other of which may be English
or any other When applicable, writing-intensive courses may be counted towards the fulfillment of other
graduation requirements.

3. Three years of mathematics, one of which must be Algebra 1 and one of which must include geometry
content and one of which may be an Advanced Placement computer science course.

4. Two years of science.

5. Two years of social studies, of which at least one year must be history of the United States or a combination
of history of the United States and American Within the two years of social studies requirement, one
semester of civics is required.

6. One year chosen from (A) music, (B} art, (C) foreign language, which shall be deemed to include American
Sign Language, or (D) vocational education.

7. One semester of health education.

8. Physical education.

9. A course covering American patriotism and the principles of representative government, as enunciated in the
American Declaration of Independence, the Constitution of the United States of America and the
Constitution of the State of lilinois, and the proper use and display of the American flag.

10. Nine weeks of consumer education.

The above requirements do not apply to students with disabilities whose course of study is determined by an
Individualized Education Pragram or students who are exempted from participation in certain courses in accordance
with State law.

C. Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) Graduation Requirement
As a prerequisite to receiving a high school diploma, the parent or guardian of each student or, if a student is at least
18 years of age or legally emancipated, the student must comply with either of the following:
1. File a FAFSA with the United States Department of Education o, if applicable, an application for State
financial aid.
2. Fila a waiver indicating that the parent or guardian or, if applicable, the student understands what the FAFSA
and application for State financial aid are and has chosen not to file an application.
Upon request, the school will provide a student and his or her parent or guardian any support or assistance
necessary to comply with this requirement. A school district may award a high school diploma to a student who is
unable to meet this requirement due to extenuating circumstances, as determined by the school district, if {i} the
student has met all other graduation requirements, and (ii) the principal attests that the school district has made a
good faith effort to assist the student or, if applicable, his or her parent or guardian in filing an application or a
waiver.

13




D. Tri-Valley School District Graduation Requirements
Credit requirements for graduation from the Tri-Valley High School and Tri-Valley school district are shown below. All
classes reward a student with a half (1/2) credit for each semester in which a passing grade is earned.

Subject Area Credits Required
English 4
Mathematics 3
Science 3

Social Studies 2.5
Physical Education® 3.5
Intro to Business 0.5
Health 0.5

Art, Music, Spanish, Vocational Ed 2
Electives 6.0

25 Total

* May include .5 driver education course credits if taken at Tri-Valley.

The following units of credit are required of all students by state law or by the Tri-Valley Board of
Education before a student will be allowed to graduate:

1.

A

10.

Four credits are required from the Language Arts department.

2 1/2 credits are required in Social Studies.

3 credits are required in Science, one of which must be Biology and another must be Chemistry.

3 credits are required in Mathematics: must complete Algebra 1 and Geometry,

Successful completion of Physical Education is required each year unless excused for medical, Board
of Education, or administrative reasons - see below.

Driver Education. State law requires that public and private schools offer students the opportunity to
take a driver education course. Students who desire to take Driver Education courses must receive a
passing grade in at least eight academic courses during the previous two semesters prior to taking
Driver Education. This requirement may be waived by the local superintendent of schools or
nonpublic chief school administrator.

Health Education is required.

2 credits are required in any combination of Art, Music, or Vocational Education.

Introduction to Business meets the state Consumer Ed requirement.

Dual credit opportunities exist for Heartland Community College for certain courses. Check with the
guidance office for more details.

The ahove requirements do not apply to students with disabilities whose course of study is determined by an
Individualized Education Program.

The decision to promote a student to the next grade level is based on successful completion of the curriculum,
attendance, performance on standardized tests and other testing. A student will not be promoted based upon age
or any other social reasons not related to academic performance.

E. Early Graduation Policy

Students satisfying the present requirements of Tri-Valley High Schoo! may graduate early, at the end of their junior
year or the end of the first semester of their senior year, providing these steps are followed and the necessary
approvals granted:

14




e The requesting parents and student must meet with the Counselor and the Principal to discuss the request.

e The student, with their parents’ written approval and request, must file a statement with the Principal and the
Counselor by August 1 prior to the student’s junior year. The written statement shall include the request to
graduate early, the anticipated graduation date, reasons for the request, pians for meeting graduation
requirements, and stating parental approval of both the request and plans.

e The request will be presented to the Board for final approval only if the Principal and the Guidance Counselor
deems such consideration appropriate.

students and their families are reminded that many colleges and universities maintain core course requirements for
admission beyond the minimum requirements needed to graduate from Tri-Valley High School. Students and parents
should check with the school counselor or the particular college about college requirements before application for
early graduation.

If a student is approved by the Board of Education for early graduation, the following policies will apply:

1. Early graduates who have completed all Tri-Valley credit requirements may participate in the next scheduled
graduation ceremony.

2. Early graduates who have completed all Tri-Valley credit requirements will receive academic recognition they
have earned on their own merit {Summa Cum Laude, Graduation of Distinctions, etc.).

3. Early graduates will not be eligible for any senior class graduation awards or end of the year class activities,
including but not limited to DAR & SAR awards; Superstar and | Dare You awards; and Senior Brunch.

4. Early graduates will not he eligible for Final Exam exemptions for seniors.

5. Early graduates relinquish all rights and privileges to attend all school activities and functions as a Tri-Valley
student once they graduate or leave school. This includes but is not limited to Prom, Homecoming, games, or
other extracurricular functions.

6. Students who graduate at the end of their junior year are choosing to forgo their senior year. Thusly, they will
remain classified as a junior throughout their final year of school.

7. Early graduates must take full responsibility to make arrangements with the high school office for anything
pertaining to the graduation ceremaony. (i.e. announcements, cap and gown rental, graduation practices,
etc.)

F. High Schoo!l Physical Education Options
The Tri-Valley Board of Education has elected to aliow its students to opt out of Physical Education in accordance
with guidelines established by the State Board of Education. Section 27.6 of the School Code provides three
circumstances by which school districts can authorize student exemption from daily physical education by official
board policy. Exemptions from physical education instruction at the 11th and 12th grade levels may be granted for
students in the following situations:
1. Any 11th or 12th grade student who participates in two interscholastic athletic
activities.

a. Interscholastic athletic programs do not include other activities such as outside of school activities,

swimming, karate, etc. unless specifically board approved under special circumstances.

b. The student athlete may take an extra class in place of physical education if he/she chooses to do 0.

2. Any 11th or 12th grade student who, in order to be granted admission 1o a specific institution of higher
learning, must complete a specific academic course not included in existing state or local graduation
standards. Exemptions cannot be given for general college prep coursework, accelerated courses, etc.

3. Any 11ith or 12th grade student who lacks sufficient course credit or lacks one or mare specific courses and
must enroll in a class other than physical education in order to meet state or local graduation reguirements.

G. Student Recognition
To be recognized as a student at Tri-Valley High School, a student must be enrolled in one of the foliowing programs:
1. Full time enrollment

15




2. Participation in at least 1/2 day of school and vocational school

3. Participation in at least 1/2 day of school and college education

4. Any deviation from the above must be submitted in writing prior to the start of the school year for
approval by the Board of Education.

H. Credit for Non-District Experiences
The District does not grant graduation credit for learning experiences that an enrolled student does not complete
through the District.

I. Proficiency Credit
The District does not grant graduation credit for learning experiences that an enrolled student does not complete
through the District.

J. Substitutions for Required Courses
A student in grades 9-12 may satisfy one or more high schoal courses {including physical education) ar graduation
requirements by successfully completing related vocational or technical education courses if:

1. The building principal approves the substitution and the vocational or technical education course is
completely described in curriculum materia!l along with its relationship to the required course; and

2. The student’s parent/guardian requests and approves the substitution in writing on forms provided by the
District.

VI, Grade Reporting

A. Grades

Grades, which are cumulative throughout the semester, are updated frequently and are available on Family and
Student Access on Tri-Valley’s web page. The letter grades shown below are intended only as a guide. The actual
grading scale used in a classroom may vary from teacher to teacher.

100-90 A = 4 excellent work

39-80 B = 3 above average work

79-70 C = 2 average work

69-60 D = 1 helow average work

59-0 F = 0 unsatisfactory/failing work

INC = Incomplete work
If a student receives an incomplete on his or her report card, that student has five school days from the date the
report cards were distributed in which to make up the work or the student will receive a 0 for that work.

B. Weighted Grades

Policy in effect for classes through graduating year 2022:

GPA/Weighting System:

in order to give adequate weighted credit to difficult and very difficult classes, the following four Hier system
will be implemented giving more weighted credit to very difficult classes, yet giving weighted credit to
difficult non-required courses. In order to be considered for a weighted class, classes must not be required

16




for graduation and must have prerequisites. Only classes taken at Tri-Valley High School will be given
weighted grades.

1.0 multiplier — All required courses; without prerequisites except for Spanish

1.1 multiplier - Plane Geometry, Probability & Statistics, Trigonometry, Spanish IV, Adv Algebra 2 (not listed in
handbook but weighted on the transcript)

1.2 Multiplier - Pre-Catculus

1.3 Multiplier - AP Calculus, AP Chemistry, AP Language, AP Literature, AP Physics 1, & AP Physics 2 (*Must
take AP Exam to earn Weighted Credit for ali AP classes)

Policy in effect for classes graduating 2023 and after:

GPA/Weighting System:

Starting with the Class of 2023, the only weighted classes are AP classes. AP classes would be on a 5 point
GPA scale so that a student taking that class will earn one GPA point more than what they wauld in a
standard class. AP Classes would earn a weighted grade and qualify for Graduate of Distinction only if they
take the AP test in May.

Weight System

Letter Grade Standard Class AP Weighted Class
A, A+ 4 5
A- 3.667 4,667
B+ 3.333 4.333
B 3 4
B- 2.667 3.667
C+ 2.333 3.333
C 2 3
C- 1.667 2.667
D+ 1.333 2.333
D 1 2
D- 667 1.667
F 0 0
C. Honor Roll
Superior Honor Roll = 3.75-4.00 Non-Weighted GPA
Regular Honor Roll = 3.25-3.749 Non-Weighted GPA

Grade Point Averages are calculated numerically with A = 4.0, A- =3.667, B+ = 3.333,B8=3.0,B-=2.667,C+=2.333, ¢
=2.0,C-=1.667, D+=1.333,D=1.0, D-=.667, F=0.0

17




D, Cheating/Academic Dishanesty

Cheating is a violation of all principles of education. The student involved loses all self-respect and the grades of
other students may be affected. During the school year, student learning will be measured by taking tests and
quizzes, writing papers and completing projects. The grades received for these efforts should inform students how
much has been learned from the course. We recognize that there are some students who may try to improve their
grades by cheating. Cheating is dishonest, degrades character and reputation, and impedes individual learning.
students found cheating will receive no credit on that material or test and may receive additional discipline
according to this handbook.

VIII. Academic Recognition
Tri-Valiey High School seniors, based on 8 semesters, will earn academic recognition levels as follows:

Policy in effect for classes through gradugting year 2022:

A. Graduate of Distinction: To be eligible for the Graduate of Distinction honor, students must attain a minimum of
3.75 cumulative grade point average {(non-weighted), complete all state and local required courses, and finish
with a prescribed curriculum and our most challenging courses that include:

e & ¢ © ¢

AP Literature and AP language (with Exam)

AP Chemistry ar AP Physics C (with Exam)

Pre-Calculus or AP Calculus {with Exam)

2 credits of the same foreign language

4 credits, any combination of Art, Music, Agriculture, Foreign Language (3 or 4}, Business, or [nd. Arts.

B. Summa Cum Laude (“with highest honor”): Students with a 3.98-4.0 non-weighted grade point average.

€. Magna Cum Laude (“with great honor”): Students with a 3.81-3.97 non-weighted grade point average.

D. Cum Laude (“with honor”): Students with a 3.50-3.80 non-weighted grade point average.

Policy in effect for classes graduating 2023 and after:

Graduate of Distinction: To be eligible for the Graduate of Distinction honor, students must attain a
minimum of 3.81 cumulative grade point average (non-weighted), complete all state and local required
courses, and finish with a prescribed curriculum and our most challenging courses that include:

2 courses from the following Humanities courses: AP Literature, AP Language, AP Psychology or AP US
History {Students must also take the corresponding AP exams)

2 courses from the following Math & Science course: AP Chemistry, AP Physics C, AP Calculus, AP
Computer Science Principles, AP Computer Science A (Students must also take the corresponding AP
exams)

an additional AP course of the student’s choosing from either the Humanities or Math & Sciences
(Students must also take the corresponding AP exam)

Pre-Calculus

2 credits of the same foreign language

4 credits of Fine Arts, Agriculture, Foreign Language (3 or 4}, Business, or Industrial Arts.

18



B. Summa Cum Laude (“with highest honor”): Students with a 3.98-4.0 non-weighted grade point average.
C. Magna Cum Laude {“with great honor”): Students with a 3.81-3.97 non-weighted grade point average.

D. Cum Laude {“with honor”): Students with a 3.50-3.80 non-weighted grade point average.

IX. Special Education

A. Education of Children with Disabilities

It is the intent of the district to ensure that students who are disabled within the definition of Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act are identified, evaluated and provided
with appropriate educational services. The School provides a free appropriate public education in the least
restrictive environment and necessary related services to all children with disabilities enrolled in the school. The
term “children with disabilifies” means children between ages 3 and the day before their 22nd birthday for whom it
is determined that special education services are needed. It is the intent of the school to ensure that students with
disabilities are identified, evaluated, and provided with appropriate educational services. A copy of the publication
“Explanation of Procedural Safeguards Available to Parents of Students with Disabilities” may be obtained from the
schoo! district office. Students with disabilities who do not qualify for an individualized education program, as
required by the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act and implementing provisions of this lllinois law,
may qualify for services under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973 if the student (i) has a physical or
mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities, (i} has a record of a physical or mental
impairment, or (iii} is regarded as having a physical or mental impairment. For further information, please contact:
Gail McCane, Special Services Director {gmccane@tri-valley3.org}

B. Discipline of Students with Disabilities

The school will comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act {IDEA) when disciplining students.
Behavioral interventions will be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen desirable behaviors
and reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. No special education student shall be expelied if the student’s
particular act of gross disobedience or misconduct is a manifestation of his or her disability as determined through a
manifestation hearing. Any special education student whose gross disobedience or misconduct is not a manifestation
of his or her disability may be expelled pursuant to the expulsion procedures.

C. Exemption from Physical Education Requirement
in order to be excused from participation in physical education, a student must present an appropriate excuse from
his or her parent/guardian or from a person licensed under the Medical Practice Act. The excuse may be based on
medical or religious prohibitions. An excuse because of medical reasons must include a signed statement from a
person licensed under the Medical Practice Act that corroborates the medical reason for the request. An excuse
based on religious reasons must include a signed statement from a member of the clergy that corroborates the
religious reason for the request.
A student in grades 9-12 may submit a written request to the building principal requesting to be excused from
physical education courses for the reasons stated below.

1. Enroliment in a marching band program for credit

2. Ongoing participation in an interscholastic athletic program

3. Enrollment in academic classes that are required for admission to an institution of higher learning

(must be in 11th or 12th grade)

19



4. Enrollment in academic classes that are required for graduation from high school, provided that
failure to take such classes will result in the student being unable to graduate {must be in 11th or 12th
grade).

Students with an Individualized Education Program may also be excused from physical education courses for reasons
stated in Handbook Procedure 10.30.1. Special activities in physical education will be provided for a student whose
physical or emotional condition, as determined by a person licensed under the Medical Practices Act, prevents his or
her participation in the physical education course. State taw prohibits the School District from honoring parental
excuses based upon a student’s participation in athletic training, activities, or competitions conducted outside the
auspices of the School District. Students who have been excused from physical education shall return to the course
as soon as practical. The following considerations will be used to determine when a student shall return to a physical
education course: the time of year when the student’s participation ceases; the student’s class schedule; and the
student’s future or planned additional participation in activities qualifying for substitutions for physical education, as
outlined above or in Handbook Procedure 10.30.

D. Certification of High School Completion and Diploma

A student with a disability who has an Individualized Education Program prescribing special education, transition
planning, transition services, or related services beyond the student’s 4 years of high school, qualifies for a certificate
of completion after the student has completed 4 years of high school. The student is encouraged to participate in the
graduation ceremony of his or her high school graduation class. Based on each individual student’s needs, the IEP
team will determine when the student is ready to exit high school. This time period can extend beyond four years of
high school up until the day before the student turns 22. Once the student exits high school based on his/her IEP,
the student will receive a diploma.

E. Request to Access Classroom or Personnel for Sp. Ed. Evaluation or Observation

The parent/guardian of a student receiving special education services, or being evaluated for eligibility, is afforded
reasonable access to educational facilities, personnel, classrooms, and buildings. This same right of access is afforded
to an independent educational evaluator or a qualified professional retained by or on behalf of a parent or child. For
further information, please contact the school principal.

F. Related Service Logs

For a child with an individualized education program (IEP), the school district must create related service logs that
record the type of related services administered under the child’s IEP and the minutes of each type of related service
that has been administered. The school will provide a child’s parent/guardian a copy of the related service log at the
annual review of the child’s IEP and at any other time upon request.

~ X. Conferences & Reports of Unsatisfactory Progress

Conferences may be arranged by the parent calling the office for an appointment with the teacher or counselor. Any
time parents have questions regarding the program of a student, a conference is recommended. Please log into
family access to follow student progress through our website.

XI. Sexual Harassment/Nondiscrimination
Harassment Prohibited

20



No person, including a schoo! or school district employee or agent, or student, shall harass, intimidate, or bully a
student on the basis of actual or perceived: race; color; national origin; military status; unfavorable discharge
status from military service; sex; sexual orientation; gender identity1; gender-related identity or expression;
ancestry; age; religion; physical or mental disability; order of protection status; status of being homeless; actual
or potential marital or parental status, including pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or more
of the aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics; or any other distinguishing characteristic. The District
will not tolerate harassing, intimidating conduct, or bullying whether verbal, physical, sexual, or visual, that
affects the tangible benefits of education, that unreasonably interferes with a student's educational
performance, or that creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. Examples of
prohibited conduct include name-calling, using derogatory slurs, stalking, sexual violence, causing psychological
harm, threatening or causing physical harm, threatened or actual destruction of property, or wearing or
possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of one of the characteristics stated above.

Sexual Harassment Prohibited

The school and district shall provide an educational environment free of verbal, physical, or other conduct or
communications constituting harassment on the basis of sex as defined and otherwise prohibited by State and
federal law.

Teen Dating Violence Prohibited

Engaging in teen dating violence that takes place at school, on school property, at school-sponsored activities,
ar in vehicles used for school-provided transportation is prohibited. For purposes of this policy, the term teen
dating violence occurs whenever a student who is 13 to 19 years of age uses or threatens to use physical,
mental, or emational abuse to control an individual in the dating relationship; or uses or threatens to use sexual
violence in the dating relationship.

Making a Report or Complaint

Students are encouraged to promptly report claims or incidences of bullying, intimidation, harassment, sexyal
harassment, or any other prohibited conduct to the Nondisciimination Coordinator, Building Principal, Assistant
Building Principal, Dean of Students, a Complaint Manager, or any employee with whom the student is
comfortable speaking. A student may choose to report to an employee of the student’s same gender.

Nondiscrimination Coordinator: Emily Howse, School Counselor (ehowse@tri-valley3.org; (309) 378-2911)

Complaint Managers: Emily Howse, School Counselor (ehowse@tri-valley3.org; (309) 378-2911); Frank Arnolts,
Principal {farnolts@tri-valley3.org ; (309) 278-2911).

XIIL. Bullying & Harassment

Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment1

gullying, intimidation, and harassment diminish a student’s ability to learn and a school’s ability to educate.
Preventing students from engaging in these disruptive behaviors and providing all students equal access to a safe,
non-hastile learning environment are important district and school goals.

Bullying on the basis of actual or perceived race, color, national origin, military status, unfavorable discharge status
from the military service, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender-related identity or expression, ancestry,
age, religion, physical or mental disability, order of protection status, status of being homeless, or actual or potential
marital or parental status, including pregnancy, association with a person or group with one or more of the

21



aforementioned actual or perceived characteristics, or any other distinguishing characteristic is prohibited in each of
the following situations:

1. During any school-sponsored education program or activity.

While in school, on school property, on school buses or other school vehicles, at designated school
bus stops waiting for the school bus, or at school-sponsored or school-sanctioned events or activities.

3. Through the transmission of information from a school computer, a school computer network, or
other similar electronic school equipment.

4, Through the transmission of information from a computer that is accessed at a non-school-related
location, activity, function, or program or from the use of technology or an electronic device that is
not owned, leased, or used by the school district or school if the bullying causes a substantial
disruption to the educational process or orderly operation of a school.

Bullying includes cyber-bullying and means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or electronically, directed toward a student or students that has or can be
reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

1. Placing the student or students in reasonable fear of harm to the student’s or students’ perscn or
property;

2. Causing a substantially detrimental effect on the student’s or students’ physical or mental health;

3. Substantially interfering with the student’s or students” academic performance; or

4. Substantially interfering with the student’s or students’ ability to participate in or benefit from the
services, activities, or privileges provided by a schoal.

Cyberbullying means bullying through the use of technology or any electronic communication, including without
limitation any transfer of signs, signals, writing, images, sounds, data, or intelligence of any nature transmitted in
whole or in part by a wire, radio, electromagnetic system, photo-electronic system, or photo-optical system,
including without limitation electronic mail, Internet communications, instant messages, or facsimile
communications. Cyberbullying includes the creation of a webpage or weblog in which the creator assumes the
identity of another person or the knowing impersonation of another person as the author of posted content or
messages if the creation or impersonation creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying.
Cyberbullying also includes the distribution by electronic means of a communication to more than one person or the
posting of material on an electronic medium that may be accessed by one or more persons if the distribution or
posting creates any of the effects enumerated in the definition of bullying.

Bullying may take various forms, including without limitation one or mare of the following: harassment, threats,
intimidation, stalking, physical violence, sexual harassment, sexual violence, theft, public humiliation, destruction of
property, or retaliation for asserting or alleging an act of bullying. This list is meant to be illustrative and
non-exhaustive.

Students are encouraged to immediately report bullying. A report may be made orally or in writing to the building
principal, nondiscrimination coordinator, district complaint manager or any staff member with whom the student is
comfortable speaking. Al school staff members are available for help with a bully or to make a report about bullying.
Anyone, including staff members and parents/guardians, who has information about actual or threatened builying is
encouraged to report it to the district complaint manager or any staff member. Anonymous reports are also accepted
by phone call or in writing.

22



Nondiscrimination Coordinator: Emily Howse, School Counselor {ehowse@tri-valley3.org; (309) 378-2911)

Complaint Managers: Emily Howse, School Counselor {ehowse@tri-vallev3.org; (309) 378-2911); Frank Arnolts,
Principal {farnolts@tri-valley3.org ; (309) 278-2911).

A reprisal or retaliation against any persan who reports an act of bullying is prohibited. A student’s act of reprisal or
retaliation wilt be treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial
actions.

A student will not be punished for reporting bullying or supplying information, even if the school’s investigation
concludes that no bullying occurred. However, knowingly making a false accusation or providing knowingly false
information will be treated as bullying for purposes of determining any consequences or other appropriate remedial
actions.

Students and parents/guardians are also encouraged to read the following school district policies: 7:20, Harassment
of Students Prohibited and 7:180, Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation and Harassment.3

XIil. Discipline Policy

A. Due Process

All students are assured of the protection of their rights through due process procedures. At the very least, the
student will be given oral or written notice of the charges against him/her, and, if he/she deny the charges, an
explanation of the evidence the authorities have and an opportunity to present his/her side of the story. If students
or their parents wish to appeal a suspension, they may pick up a copy of the due process procedures from the office
and request a conference with the principal to initiate the appeal process. Please also refer to Tri-Valley's
"Behavioral Intervention Pracedures”, which are available on the district website or in the district office.

B. Purpose of Discipline Policy

School administrative procedures and teaching methods shali have as a fundamental objective the maintenance of
an environment in which self-discipline and control are encouraged, learned, and expected. Controlled activities and
procedures are a part of this learning process and are a means of preventing and correcting abuses by anyone who is
unable or unwilling to exercise self-discipline and control for the common good and who, consequently, may infringe
upon the liberties of others. The student handbook lists acts of mishehavior or misconduct and punishments
appropriate for most disciplinary infractions. However, it is at the discretion of the administration and the School
Board to deal more sternly with those instances which, in their judgment, require a more severe punishment than
listed.

Efforts, including the use of positive interventions and supports, shall be made to deter students, while at school or a
school-related event, from engaging in aggressive behavior that may reasonably produce physical or psychological
harm to someone else. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the parent/guardian of a student who
engages in aggressive behavior is notified of the incident. The failure to provide such notification does not limit the
Board’s authority to impose discipline, including suspension or expulsion, for such behavior.

C. Discipline Violations

The various acts of misbehavior have been separated into four tiers. Disciplinary actions for each tier will be a range
of outcomes (Levels 1-6). For a single disciplinary violation, the disciplinary action assigned will include the
consideration of the severity of the offense and/or previous offenses. Assigned discipline may also include

23




consequences from any lower level. In addition, violations of the TVHS discipline plan may also result in athletic
participation penalties outlined in the Student Activities Code of Conduct {Section XVI}.

Tier 1 {Levels 1-2)

Disrespect to staff member, minor
Dress code violation

Horseplay (e.g. rough-housing, antics)
Misconduct/disruptive behavior, minor
No hall pass

Public display of affection

Swearing, minor

Tardy to schoo!

Tardy to class

Tier 2 {Levels 2-3)

Cheating, minor* {also see Section IV, Part D for policy)
Cyber bullying  (also see Section IX for definition}
Disrespect to staff member, major

Diversity intolerance, minor
Harassment/intimidation/Builying*

Electronic tampering, minor®*

Misconduct/disruptive behavior, major

Missing teacher detention

Reckless driving

Skipping class®

Spontaneous threat to a student

Swearing, major (e.g. vulgarity towards a staff member)
Trespass to a teacher’s room or desk

Truancy®

Unauthorized use of building/grounds*

Tier 3 (Levels 3-5)

Assault to a school employee or student

Cheating, minor* (also see Section IV, Part D for policy)

Diversity intolerance, major

Electronic tampering, major (e.g. unauthorized use of staff network)
Fighting, battery to a student

Gross disrespect/disobedience or Misconduct®

Premeditated threat to a student or staff member*

Sexual harassment

Stealing*

Suspension violation

Tobacco/E-cigarette/Vaping: use, possession, distribution, purchase, or sales
Unauthorized possession/use of school keys

Vandalism (to school property or property owned by student/staff on schoal grounds)

Tier 4 (Levels 5-6)
Battery of a school employee/volunteer

24



Being under the influence of any of the substances listed below, other than those
prescribed by a licensed practitioner for medical purposes

Gangs/gang activities

Possession, sale and/or use of a firearm/weapon®*

Sale, transmittal, or aiding in the possession®, sale, or transmittal of drug
paraphernalia (including any materials which are represented as such or the student believes to be
drug paraphernalia, regardless of true nature)

Using, possessing®, distributing, purchasing, or selling alcoholic beverages.

Using, possessing®, distributing, purchasing, or selling:
- Any illega! drug, controlled substance, or cannabis {including marijuana, medical marijuana and
hashish}.
- Any anabolic steroid or performance-enhancing substance not administered under a physician’s
care and supervision.
- Any prescription drug when not prescribed for the student by a licensed health care provider or
when not used in the manner prescribed.
- Any inhalant, regardless of whether it contains an illegal drug or controlled substance: (a) that a
student believes is, or represents to be capable of, causing intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or
dulling of the brain or nervous system; or (b} about which the student engaged in behavior that
would lead a reasonable person to believe that the student intended the inhalant to cause
intoxication, hallucination, excitement, or dulling of the brain or nervous system.
- “Look-alike” or counterfeit drugs, including a substance not containing an illegal drug or controlled
substance, but one: (a) that a student believes to be, or represents to be, an illegal drug or
controlled substance; or {(b) about which a student engaged in behavior that would lead a reasonable
person to believe that the student expressly or impliedly represented to be an illegal drug or
controlled substance.
- Drug paraphernalia, including devices that are or can be used to: (a) ingest, inhale, or inject
cannabis or controlled substances into the body; and (b) grow, process, store, or conceal cannabis or
controlled substances.
- Any substance recognized as drugs in the official United States Pharmacopoeia, official
Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or official National Formulary, or any supplement
to any of them, unless specifically prescribed by a licensed practitioner for medical purposes for the
use by the student in the manner provided.

* = Definition provided below.

D. Disciplinary Actions

There are six levels of disciplinary actions or consequences as outlined below. Details of disciplinary actions are
found in Part E, Definitions.

Level 1:
Level 2;
Level 3:
Level 4:
Level 5:
Level 6:

E. Definitions

Warning, Parent contact, confiscation of item.

Lunch Detention, Saturday Detention (1, 2, or 3 hours), Loss of privileges, Bus Suspension, Restitution.
Directed Study, Parent conference, Non-curricular exclusion.

Out-of-school Suspension 1-4 days, Bus Expulsion.

Out-of-schoo! Suspension 5-10 days.

Continuing Suspension and Expulsion hearing

Bus Suspension- an exclusion from riding a school bus for any length of time not exceeding ten (10) school days.
Bus Expulsion-|| an exclusion from riding a school bus for any length of time exceeding ten (10} schoo! days, imposed
only by the Board of Education for safety reasons.

25



Certified Person- any person who is duly certified under the provisions of the lllinois School Code and who is
employed by the School District in a position requiring a certificate.

Directed Study {formerly in-School Suspensign)- an exclusion from the routine school day, except the student shall
remain in school in a restricted or isolated area to be selected by the Superintendent or his designee. Seventy-five
percent credit shall be given for the work done in an in-school suspension. An in-school suspension may be imposed
in or carried forward to a succeeding school term when appropriate.

Emergency-|| a situation where the student’s presence poses an immediate or a continuing danger to himself, other
persons or property, or constitutes an ongoing threat of disrupting the educational process.

Exclusion-)| any denial of educational services, programs, or transportation, as the case may be, to which a student
would otherwise be entitled.

Expulsion-|| an exclusion for a period of more than ten (10) school days. An expulsion may be imposed in or carried
forward to a succeeding school term when deemed appropriate.

Fighting- Students who are involved in fighting will have their parents contacted and will be sent home for the rest
of the school day or from the event in which the fighting occurred.

Gross Disobedience or Misconduct-|| specifically includes but is not limited to:

a. Refusal to obey the policies, rules, and regulations of the Board of Education or administrative staff.

b. Refusal to obey reasonable written or oral instructions of any member of the administrative staff, teaching staff,
designated non-certificated supervisory personnel, bus drivers, or any other district employee.

Behavior which interrupts the orderly process of school affairs.

Conduct which is or may be physically injurious to persons or property.

Truancy - subject to the provisions of Section 26-12 of the lllinois School Code.

Repeated minor incidents of misbehavior which other disciplinary measures have failed to deter.

Repeated minor incidents of misbehavior which violate or attempt to violate a Board of Education policy, rule, or

m T ® o O

regulation.
h. Excessive unexcused absences.
i, Behavior which constitutes gross disrespect for the property or rights of other students, teaching staff,
administrative staff, non-certificated staff, or school bus driver.
j.  Use or aiding in the use of tobacco products.
k. Destruction or damage to school property shall require restitution and/or suspension.
Harassment/Intimidation/Bullying- repeated instances of threatening or detrimental behavior directed toward

another student. Examples of prohibited conduct include, but are not limited to, name-calling, using derogatory
slurs, pinching, tripping, wearing or possessing items depicting or implying hatred or prejudice of a student’s sex,
color, race, religion, creed, ancestry, national origin, physical or mental disability, sexual aorientation, or other
protected group status. If a teacher witnesses any of the above mentioned actions he/she should.

1) Acknowledge unacceptable behavior to student

2) Issue appropriate classroom or office discipline
Major Electronic Tampering (Tier 3) includes but is not limited to: malicious attempts to undermine the local network
or local website, malicious attempts to undermine any external network system or website, unauthorized use of a
teacher account, logging in or attempting to log in as a network administrator, unauthorized use of the district
student management system, using an e-mail account for illegal, inappropriate, or threatening purposes.
Minar Electronic Tampering (Tier 2) includes but is not limited to: logging in to a district system as another student,
accessing an e-mail account without teacher permission, unauthorized installation of third party software to any
district system, removal of district software from any system, attempting to bypass the district's internet filter. The
second attempt by a student will be considered major electronic tampering.
Premeditated threats are defined as being written down, sent electronically, or occurring more than once over a

period of ime.
Possession includes having control, custody, or care, currently or in the past, of an object or substance, including
situations in which the item is; {a) on the student’s person; {b} contained in another item belonging to, or under the

26



control of the student, such as in the student’s clothing, backpack, or automobile; (c} in a school’s student locker,
desk, or other school property; or {d} at any location on school property or at a school-sponsored event.

Skipping is defined as intentionally missing one or more class periods but remaining on school grounds.

Stealing- Items must be returned in the original state if possibie or restitution for the value of the item must be
made.

Suspension- an exclusion for a period not to exceed ten (10) school days, provided that if an act justifying suspension
occurs within ten {10) school days of the end of the current school term, the suspension may be imposed in or
carried forward to a succeeding school term when deemed appropriate.

Truancy is defined as intentionally missing one or more classes and leaving school grounds or never coming to school
at all.

Vandalism/Damage to Property- The regulations of our Board of Education are very specific with regard to school
property. These regulations state that students are required to pay for all damages which they have done to school
property. They may even be suspended from school for willful damage. All report cards, certificates of credit, or
graduation diplomas may be withheld until all obligations are met. The District is not responsible for securing
restitution for damages done to personal property.

Unauthorized Use of Buildings or Grounds - During the school day, no student is to be in the parking lot without a
parking lot pass from the office or outside of the building without a pass or supervision. At funch time students may
go outside but are restricted to an area extending from the southeast corner of the gym south to the track and from
the track to the southeast corner of the greenhouse. Students may not go outside this area without the permission
and supervision of a staff member. Students may not be in the IMC, academic area, or a teacher’s room without
permission and/or supervision.

Weapon - Any instrument or object capable of inflicting bodily harm which has no other useful school purpose,
including but not limited to: knives, razor blades, guns, metal knuckles, broken pieces of glass or metal, self-defense
apparatus, clubs, chains, etc. All weapons will be taken away from a student. Refusal to give up a weapon to a staff
member will result in an additional suspension from school.

F. When and Where Caonduct Rules Apply
The grounds for disciplinary action also apply whenever the student’s conduct is reasonably related to school or
school activities, including but not limited to:
1. On, or within sight of, school grounds before, during, or after school hours or at any time;
2. Off school grounds at a school-sponsored activity or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable
relationship to school;
3. Traveling to or from school or a school activity, function, or event; or
4. Anywhere, if the conduct interferes with, disrupts, or adversely affects the school environment, school
operations, or an educational function, including but not limited to, conduct that may reasonably be
considered to: (a) be a threat or an attempted intimidation of a staff member; or (b} endanger the health or
safety of students, staff, or school property.

G, Disciplinary Measures
School officials shall limit the number and duration of expulsions and out-of-school suspensions to the greatest
extent practicable, and, where practicable and reasonable, shall consider forms of non-exclusionary discipline before
using out-of-school suspensions or expulsions, School personnel shall not advise or encourage students to drop out
of school voluntarily due to behavioral or academic difficulties. Potential disciplinary measures include, without
limitation, any of the following measures:

1. Notifying parents/guardians.
Disciplinary conference.
Withholding of privileges.
Temporary removal from the classroom.
Return of property or restitution for lost, stolen or damaged property.

ok wm

27



10.
11,

12,

13,

14.

In-school suspension (Directed Study).

After-school study or Saturday study provided the student’s parent/guardian has been notified. {If
transportation arrangements cannot be made in advance, an alternative disciplinary measure will be
assigned to the student.)

Community service.

Seizure of contraband; confiscation and temporary retention of the personal property that was used to
violate school rules.

Suspension of bus riding privileges.

Suspension from school and all school activities for up to 10 days. A suspended student is prohibited from
being on school grounds.

Expulsion from schaol and all school activities for a definite time period not to exceed 2 calendar years. An
expelled student is prohibited from being on school grounds.

Transfer to an alternative program if the student is expelled or otherwise qualifies for transfer under State
law.

Notifying juvenile authorities or other law enforcement whenever the conduct involves criminal activity, such
as, illegal drugs {controlled substances), “look-alikes,” alcohol or weapons or in other circumstances as
authorized by the reciprocal reporting agreement between the District and local law enforcement agencies.

The above list of disciplinary measures is a range of options that will not always be applicable in every case. In some
circumstances, it may not be possible to avoid suspending or expelling a student because behavioral interventions,
other than a suspension or expulsion, will not be appropriate and available, and the only reasonable and practical
way to resolve the threat and/or address the disruption is a suspension or expulsion.

H. Persanal Electronic Devices Brought To School

Prohibited use in the ciassroom: Students are prohibited from using personal electronic devices such cell
phones, laptops, tablets, and smartwatches during instruction or while in the classroom setting. The only
exceptions can be through the direct, specific instruction to use the device by the attending classroom
teacher. In these exceptions, the use is to be limited to academically-related purposes only. Non-academic
uses such as having conversations, texting, playing games, and accessing the internet are not allowed whiie
in the classroom setting. Furthermore, outside and unfiltered networks may not be accessed during the
school day.

Storing devices in the classroom: Students will be provided an assigned location away from their body for
their cell phones to be stored in the classroom. This is to minimize the possibility of classroom interruptions
from notifications, messages, received calls, or other distractions. Students will place their devices at the
assigned location at the start of class and pick them back up at the conclusion of class.

Other limitations of electronic devices: Students are also prohibited from using electronic camera devices to
take any pictures or videos during the course of the day unless directly instructed to do so by the teacher or
administration.

Disciplinary action: Violation of these policies will be dealt with at a minimum as a Group 1 discipline
violation for a first offense. In addition, any device may be confiscated by the administration if violation of
this policy is suspected. Tri-Valley CUSD #3 and its employees are not respansible for any electronic device
that is misused, lost, damaged, or stolen.

1. Access to Student Social Networking Passwords & Websites
The Superintendent and/or Principal{s) may not request or require a student or his/her parent or guardian to provide
a password or other related account information in order to gain access to the student’s account or profile cn a

social networking website if school authorities have reasonable cause to believe that a student’s account on a social

networking website contains evidence that a student has violated a school disciplinary rule or procedure.

28



J. Corporal Punishment

Corporal punishment is illegal and will not be used. Corporal punishment is defined as slapping, paddling, or
prolonged maintenance of students in physically painful positions, or intentional infliction of badily harm. Corporal
punishment does not include reasonable force as needed to maintain safety for students, staff, or other persons, or
for the purpose of self-defense ar defense of property.

K, Weapons Prohibition

A student who is determined to have brought one of the following objects to school, any school-sponsored activity
or event, or any activity or event that bears a reasonable relationship to school shall be expelled for a period of not
fess than one year but not more than 2 calendar years:

(1) A firearm, meaning any gun, rifle, shotgun, weapon as defined by Section 921 of Title 18 of the Unites States
Code, firearm as defined in Section 1.1 of the Firearm Owners Identification Card Act, or firearm as defined in Section
24-1 of the Criminal Code of 1961. The expulsion period may be modified by the superintendent, and the
superintendent's determination may be modified by the board on a case-by-case basis.

{2) A knife, brass knuckles or other knuckle weapon regardless of its composition, a hilly club, or any other object if
used or attempted to be used to cause bodily harm, including “look alikes” of any firearm as defined above.

The expulsion requirement may be modified by the superintendent, and the superintendent's determination may be
modified by the board on a case-by-case basis.

L. Gang & Gang Activity Prohibited

“Gang” is defined as any group, club or organization of two or more persons whose purposes include the commission
of illegal acts. No student on or about school property or at any school activity or whenever the student’s conduct is
reasonably related to a school activity, shall: {1) wear, possess, use, distribute, display, or sell any clothing, jewelry,
paraphernalia or other items which reasonably could be regarded as gang symbols; commit any act or omission, or
use either verbal or non-verbal gestures, or handshakes showing membership or affiliation in a gang; or (2) use any
speech of commit any act or omission in furtherance of the interest of any gang or gang activity, including, but not
limited to, soliciting others for membership in any gangs; (3) request any person to pay protection or otherwise
intimidate, harass or threaten any person; (4) commit any other illegal act or other violation of district policies, {5) or
incite other students to act with physical violence upon any other person.

M. Re-Engagement of Returning Students

The building principal or designee shall meet with a student returning to school from an out-of-school suspension,
expulsion or alternative school setting. The goal of this meeting shall be to support the student’s ability to be
successful in school following a period of exclusion and shall include an apportunity for students who have been
suspended to complete or make-up missed work for equivalent academic credit.

N. Teacher/Administrator Responsibifity

Teachers and/or Principals are responsible for maintaining proper student behavior during school hours and at
school-related activities. Teachers are responsible for all disciplinary actions resulting from student misbehavior
within the classroom or while the student is under their supervision. Any repeated or gross incidents of misbehavior
shall be reported to the Principal.

O. Student’s Personal Responsibility for Control and Conduct
Classroom behavior - Each student is responsible for his/her own behavior. If a student’s behavior in class is
consistently inappropriate, the teacher is requested to schedule a conference with the student. If the student’s
behavior does not improve, the student shall be referred to the principal, his/her parents shall be notified, and a
conference arranged. Among the forms of punishment used to counteract misconduct are:

a. Detention - defined period of confinement assigned by a teacher or administrator

29




h. Saturday Detention - same as above except the time is for a specified amount of time on a Saturday (8:00
a.m.-11:00a.m.)

c. Directed Study - isolation from classroom activities with study and/or work assigned by the teachers or
administrator, the work completed during this time will receive no less than 75% of its normal value.

d. Restitution - Payment for damages

¢. Suspension - temporary removal from the school facility by an administrator with no make-up of school
work missed.

f, Expulsion - permanent removal from the school facility by the Board of Education.

Violations and Punishments - If a student should violate proper conduct and come under the jurisdiction of this
disciplinary manual, the parents of the student shall be notified in writing when the first offense occurs. This list of
punishments is meant to be a guide. The principal, or his designee, has the authority to exercise discretion in
increasing or decreasing punishment according to circumstances. Depending on the situation, this could mean
possible expulsion for a first offense. Any student who willfully and/or knowingly remains in an area where schoaol
rules are being violated runs the risk of being accused of violating the rules, and they should expect to he held
accountable for the actions taking place.

P. Internet Threats

Making an explicit threat on an Internet website against a school employee, a student, or any school-related
personnet if the Internet website through which the threat was made is a site that was accessible within the school
at the time the threat was made or was available to third parties who worked or studied within the school grounds at
the time the threat was made, and the threat could be reasonably interpreted as threatening to the safety and
security of the threatened individual because of his or her duties or employment status or status as a student inside
the school.

XiV. Student Rules & Regulations

A. Studlent Dress & Appearance

The administration, faculty, and staff expect the students of Tri-Valley High School to display good taste in individually
determining their approaches to school dress. Therefore, there shall be no restriction on a manner of dressing or a
hairstyle unless these present a clear and present danger to a student’s health and safety, or creates a disruption of
the educational process. It is the school’s expectations of students and parents to understand and follow the
guidelines provided below.

Students found to be in violation of these expectations will be given the opportunity to make the necessary changes
to comply with this expectation. Students who refuse to comply with this expectation will be subject to disciplinary
measures as deemed necessary by the administration. Student dress or appearance that causes severe or substantial
disruption to the orderly process of school functions or endangers the health or safety of the student, other
students, staff or others will be subject to discipline.
Guidelines:
e Clothing which is revealing, fails to adequately cover the bady, or is torn/altered in a sexually
suggestive manner will not be permitted.
e Clothing which is obscene, offensive, vulgar, defamatory, or that references (words or pictures)
tobacco, drugs, alcohol, or sexual innuendo will not be permitted.
e Clothing that displays gang-related words or symbols or gang paraphernalia will not be permitted.

30




e Hats, caps, hoods, head coverings, and sunglasses should not be worn upon entering the classroom
unless a teacher grants specific privilege or exception.

e If you have any questions regarding acceptability of a particular item of clothing, check with the
Principal before you wear the item to school.

B. Care of Personal Property

During the course of the school year, school personnel hear reports from students and parents regarding items
belonging to students which have been lost or stolenl| at school. On some occasions, the items lost are the result of
carelessness on the part of the owner. The school is NOT respansible for items lost or stolen from lockers.

C. Motor Vehicle Policy

The parking lots and the 25 area immediately around them are off limits to students at all times during the school
day - this includes during lunch times. The following policies are in effect during the school year concerning vehicle
usage on school grounds:

1. All vehicles will be driven in a safe manner. There will be no excessive spinning of tires or excessive speed
on school grounds.

2. Allvehicles must be registered in the school office. In order for students to park in the school parking
lots, students must purchase a parking permit from the school office. Students will be assigned a parking
spot and must park in that assigned spot during the school day and display their parking permit on their
vehicle,

3. When arriving at school, all students must leave their cars immediately upon parking them; no loitering
in the cars or the parking area will be permitted.

4. All motor vehicles will remain parked where they are for the day uniess permission is given from the
office. Students forgetting materials at home will not be allowed to drive home to get them. Students
will refrain from entering their vehicles during the day unless permission is received from the office.
Vocational students leaving school for AVC or Work Coop jobs may not return unless for a scheduled
class or practice.

5. Students are to be particularly careful when buses are present.

Vehicles parked on campus should be kept locked at all times. The school assumes no responsibility for toss of
personal property or damage to cars parked on the campus. Driving a motor vehicle to school is a privilege. Students
who violate the above rules will be disciplined as follows:

a. First offense - loss of driving privileges for one week and/or a Group | offense

b. Second offense - loss of driving privileges for one month and/or a Group |l offense.

¢. Third offense — loss of driving privileges far the remainder of the school and and/or a Group Ill offense.

D. Study Hall Guidelines

1. No games or card playing is to be permitted.

2. No student should be out of study hall unless they have a pass. The study hall teacher should know exactly where
the students are going and when they will return.

3. Individual electronic music devices may be allowed at the discretion of the study hall teacher as long the music is
not heard by or disturhing others.

E. High School Class Placement

A high school student shall be classified as a sophomore, junior, or senior according to the number of credits earned;
sophomore — minimum of 6 credits, junior — minimum or 12 credits, and senior — minimum of 17 credits and has
completed the PARCC Exams. Class placement will only be changed at the beginning of each school year with the

31



exception that any student who has accumulated 21 credits by the end of the seventh semester will be classified as a
senior.

F. Foreign Exchange Programs

Any student wishing to take part in a foreign exchange program must submit academic experience in writing a full
semester prior to the experience. The program must be approved by the building principal prior to the beginning of
the experience. In addition, students wishing to receive academic credit for the foreign exchange program will need
to have all requirements approved prior to leaving, and provide documentation from host school of courses
completed upon their return. Failure to provide attendance and grades earned will result in no academic credit being
provided to the student. Possible credits to be earned will be determined by the principal and superintendent as part
of the approval process prior to the exchange program. International study course work not meeting district
requirements may be placed in the student’s permanent record and recorded as an international study experience.

An exchange student will be granted a diploma if he or she completes the criteria for graduation established by the
State of Illinois and the School Board. The board may grant a certificate of attendance to exchange students.

G. Homebound and Hospital Instruction

A student who is absent from school, or whose physician, physician assistant or licensed advance practice registered
nurse anticipates his or her absence from school, because of a medical condition may be eligible for instruction in
the student’s home or hospital. Appropriate educational services from qualified staff will begin no later than five
school days after receiving a written statement from a physician, physician assistant, or licensed advanced practice
registered nurse. Instructional or related services for a student receiving special education services will be
determined by the student’s individualized education program. A student who is unable to attend school because of
pregnancy will be provided home instruction, correspandence courses, or other courses of instruction befare (1) the
birth of the child when the student’s physician, physician assistant, or licensed advanced practice nurse indicates, in
writing, that she is medically unable to attend regular classroom instruction, and (2) for up to 3 months after the
child’s birth or a miscarriage. For information on home or hospital instruction, contact the HS Counselor (Emity
Howse, {309) 378-2911 or ehowse@tri-valley3.org.

H. Required Health Exams & Immunizations

All students are required to present appropriate proof of a health examination and immunizations against, and
screenings for, preventable communicable diseases within one year prior to: entering kindergarten or the first grade;
entering the sixth and ninth grades; and enrolling in an illinois school for the first time, regardless of the student’s
grade,

Proof of immunization against meningococcal disease is required for students in grades 6 & 12. A diabetes screening
must be included as part of the health exam {though diabetes testing is not required). Students between the age of
one and seven must provide a statement from a physician assuring that the student was “risk-assessed” or screened
for lead poisoning. Beginning with the 2017-2018 school year, an age-appropriate developmental screening and an
age-appropriate social and emotional screening are required parts of each health examination.

Failure to comply with the above requirements by October 15 of the current school year will result in the student’s
exclusion from school until the required health forms are presented to the school, subject to certain exceptions. A
student will not be excluded from school due to his or her parent/guardian’s failure to obtain a developmental
screening or a social and emational screening.

New students who register mid-term have 30 days following registration to comply with the health examination and
immunization requirements. If a medical reason prevents a student from receiving a required immunization by
October 15, the student must present, by October 15, an immunization schedule and a statement of the medical

32



reasons causing the delay. The schedule and statement of medical reasons must be signed by an appropriate
medical professional.

Eye Examination
All students entering kindergarten or the school for the first time must present proof by October 15 of the current

school year of an eye examination performed within one year. Failure to present proof by October 15, allows the
school to hold the student’s report card until the student presents: {1) proof of a completed eye examination, or (2}
that an eye examination will take place within 60 days after Qctober 15.

Dental Examination

All students entering kindergarten, second, sixth and ninth grades must present proof by May 15 of the current
school year of having been examined by a licensed dentist within the last 18 months, Failure to present proof allows
the school to hold the child’s report card unti! the student presents: (1) proof of a completed dental examination, or
{2) that a dental examination will take place within 60 days after May 15.

Exemptions
A student will be exempted from the above requirements for:

1. Medical grounds if the student’s parent/guardian presents to the building principal a signed statement
explaining the objection;

2. Religious grounds if the student’s parent/guardian presents to the building principal a completed
Certificate of Religious Exemption;

3. Health examination or immunization requirements on medical grounds if a physician provides written
verification;

4. Eye examination requirement if the student’s parent/guardian shows an undue burden or lack or
access to a physician licensed to practice medicine in all of its branches who provides eye
examinations or a licensed optometrist; or

5. Dental examination requirement if the student’s parent/guardian shows an undue burden or a lack of
access to a dentist.

XV. General Information

A. Sales and Collection of Money

Any school organization or class wishing to raise money must submit the idea to the principal for approval prior to
the event being held or the contract signed. The organization or class must indicate why the money is needed, how it
will be raised, and how it will be spent.

B. Annguncements
All-school announcements will be made over the PA once a day at the beginning of the day if necessary.

C. Field Trips and Co-Curricular Trips

1. All field trips and co-curricular trips must be approved in advance by the principal. Transportation must be
arranged with the Transportation Director after approval for the trip has been received.

2. Field trips are a privilege for students. Students must abide by all school policies during transportation and
during field-trip activities, and shall treat all field trip locations as though they are school grounds. Failure to
abide by school rules and/or location rules during a field trip may subject the student to discipline.

3. Students planning to attend a school-sponsored field trip must meet the eligibility requirements outlined for
Academic Eligibility (page 47, Part 5). Two days prior to a trip, the faculty sponsor will review the list of
students to determine who will be eligible to attend.

33




4,

Students may be refused participation for the following reasons:
a. Poor academic record
bh. Excessive school or class absenteeism
c. Chronic tardiness
d. Numerous suspensions or other disciplinary violations

All students who wish to attend a field trip must receive written permission from a parent or guardian with authority
to give permission.

D. School Dances

1.

There will be a limited number of school dances during the year. School dances are a privilege, not a right.
Therefore all dances must be planned in advance and must be chaperoned by teachers. All dances and other
activities must be approved and placed on the calendar at least two (2} weeks prior to the event.

Schoo! dances held at Tri-Valley are for the pleasure and benefit of Tri-Valley students. Students from other
schools will be permitted to attend high school dances only if invited by at Tri-Valley student and provided
the student who gave the invitation is present. Only students who are currently in 9th grade through the age
of 20 may attend a high school dance at Tri-Valley. Neither middle school students nor high school students
will be allowed to invite the other as a guest to dances or other school activities provided for just one of the
groups. IF a student wishes to bring a guest, he/she must submit a completed dance form at least one week
prior to the dance or sock hop. Tri-Valley administration has the right to refuse any guest at any time. High
school students may not re-enter a dance once they leave the building. Students who violate these rules may
be prohibited from attending future dances or co-curricular activities.

Violations of school policies such as drinking, smoking, destruction of property, vulgarity, insubordination, or
other unfit conduct will be reason for eliminating visitors from dances and/or canceling all dances.

All student conduct & discipline policies apply during dances. Furthermore, misconduct on the part of any
student or their date may result in a loss of privilege in attending future dances.

E. Safety Drill Procedures & Conduct

Safety drills will occur at times established by the school board. Students are required to be silent and shall comply
with the directives of school officials during emergency drills. There will be a minimum of three (3} evacuation drills,
a minimum of one (1) severe weather {shelter-in-place) drill, a minimum of one (1) law enforcement drill to address
an active shooter incident, and a minimum of one (1} bus evacuation drill each school year. There may be other drills
at the direction of the administration. Drills will not be preceded by a warning to the students.

F. School Lockers & Backpacks

Schaool Lockers

Each student is assigned a locker with a combination lock. The locker is provided for the safeguarding of
personal property and such school property as has been issued to the student. It must be kept locked at all
times when not in use. Each student shall be responsible for the locker assigned and its condition. Doubling
or sharing of lockers will not be permitted, and the combination should not be shared with friends. If at any
time the lock does not function properly or other problems arise, the facts should be reported to the office
at once. The school cannot be held responsible for lost or stolen items. Lockers are, and shall remain, the
sole property of Tri-Valley and students should have no expectation of privacy therein (see G. Search &
Seizures).

Book bags & backpacks
students may bring book bags (i.e., hackpacks) to school but must keep them in their lockers until the end of
the schoo! day. To help ensure the safety of students, minimize space concerns, and eliminate distractions

34




within the classroom, students are not permitted to take book bags with them to class or into classrooms. A
book bag is defined as any carrier designed to transport textbooks, other books, or personal belongings.

e PE Lockers
o Standard Lockers: A standard locker will be issued to all students who are either in PE or participate
in a TVHS co-curricular athletic team. Each locker room has over 200 standard tockers which are a
suitable size for two outfits (PE and Athletic).

o Athletic Lockers: The larger “Athletic” lockers will be issued to students who are on TVHS
co-curricular athletic teams who use the on-campus fields/courts for games and have equipment
needs,

o Athletic Lackers will be assigned to students by the head coach of the in-season sport (Fall, Winter,
or Spring). The head coach is asked to share locker assignment information to the Athletic Director
and/or PE teachers.

B When their season is complete, the head coach is responsible for the clear out of these
lockers so the next season’s athletes can move into those lockers.

g The transition to the next season will take place once all sports from the previous season are
completed with postseason contests.

o The priority for Athletic Lockers is based upon (1) the use of an-campus fields/courts for athletic
contests and (2) need for equipment storage. Should there be available lockers after in-season
juniors and seniors have been issued lockers, the remaining lockers will then go to the next team on
the priority list (provided below).

Fall Girls Fall Boys Winter Girls Winter Boys Spring Girls Spring Boys
Volleyhall Football Basketball Basketball Softball Baseball
Golf Golf Cheerleading | Cheerleading | Track Track

Cross-Country

Cross-Country

Wrestling

Wrestling

Cheerleading

Cheerleading

G. Search and Seizure
In order to maintain order safety and security in the schools, school authorities are authorized to conduct reasonable
searches of school property and equipment, as well as of students and their personal effects. “School authorities”
includes school liaison police officers.

e School Property and Equipment as well as Personal Effects Left There by Students

Schaol authorities may inspect and search school property and equipment owned or controlled by the
school (such as, lockers, desks, and parking lots), as well as personal effects left there by a student, without
notice to or the consent of the student. Students have no reasonable expectation of privacy in these places
or areas or in their personal effects left there. The building principal may request the assistance of law

35



enforcement officials to conduct inspections and searches of lockers, desks, parking lots, and other school
property and equipment for illegal drugs, weapons, or other illegal or dangerous substances or materials,
including searches conducted through the use of specially trained dogs.

e Students Searches

School authorities may search a student and/or the student’s personal effects in the student’s possession
{such as, purses, wallets, knapsacks, book bags, lunch boxes, etc.) when there is a reasonabte ground for
suspecting that the search will produce evidence the particular student has violated or is violating either the
law or the school or district’s student rules and policies. The search will be conducted in a manner that is
reasonably related to its objective of the search and not excessively intrusive in light of the student’s age and
sex, and the nature of the infraction. School officials may require a student to cooperate in an investigation if
there is specific information about activity on the student’s account on a social networking website that
violates the school’s disciplinary rules or school district policy. In the course of the investigation, the student
may be required to share the content that is reported in order for the school to make a factual
determination. School officials may not request or require a student or his or her parent/guardian to provide
a password or other related account information to gain access to the student’s account or profile on a social
networking website.

e Seizure of Property
If a search produces evidence that the student has violated or is violating either the law or the school or
district’s policies or rules, evidence may be seized and impounded by school authorities, and disciplinary
action may be taken. When appropriate, evidence may he transferred to law enforcement authorities.

e Questioning of Students Suspected of Committing Criminal Activity

Before a law enforcement officer, school resource officer, or other school security person detains and
questions on school grounds a student under 18 years of age who is suspected of commitling a criminal act,
the building principal or designee will: (a) Notify or attempt to notify the student’s parent/guardian and
document the time and manner in writing; (b} Make reasonable efforts to ensure the student’s
parent/guardian is present during questioning or, if they are not present, ensure that a school employee
(including, but not limited to, a social worker, psychologist, nurse, guidance counselor, or any other mental
health professional) is present during the questioning; and (c} If practicable, make reasonable efforts to
ensure that a law enforcement officer trained in promoting safe interactions and communications with youth
is present during the guestioning.

H. Lost and Found
Lost articles should be reported to the office immediately. Found articles must be turned in to the office.

I Physical Education Participation/Dress

Students in all Physical Education classes (except Senior PE) will be required to wear a physical education t-shirt
made available by the PE department and gym shoes. All articles of clothing should be marked for identification.
Students must have a padlock available in order to lock street clothes in a PE locker while in class. Clothing and other
property should never be left unattended in the locker room or instructional areas. Tri-Valley is not responsible for
lost or stolen property.

J. Physicals
All athletes must have current year physicals on file prior to being allowed to practice. All 9th grade students must
present a physical certificate prior to starting school.

K. Automobiles Parked on School Property

Certificated personnel and school administrators may search any automobile, motor vehicle, bicycle, or other
implement of transportation, either driven or ridden by a student onto school property or parked, stopped, or left
unattended on school property when there is a reasonable suspicion that the search will produce evidence that a

36




particular student has violated or is violating either the law or the District’s student conduct rules. The search itself
must be conducted in a manner which is reasonably related to its objectives and not excessively intrusive in relation
to the infraction.

Students may park their vehicles in the high school parking lot or designated spots at the middle school and unit
office. Vehicles must be parked between the painted lines, and must be driven under the speed limit of 10 miles per
hour while in the lot. Vehicles should be driven safely and must yield to pedestrians. Vehicles parked outside
painted lines or designated parking spots may be ticketed or towed at the discretion of the school, and the vehicle
owner's expense. Students caught driving recklessly in the parking lot may be subject to disciplinary action.

The school is not responsible for student vehicles, any possession left in them, or anything attached to the vehicles.
STUDENTS PARK THEIR VEHICLES ON OR NEAR SCHOOL PROPERTY AT THEIR OWN RISK. Students should be aware

their vehiclas are not protected in any way while in the parking lot, and items of value should not be left in or near
the vehicle while unattended.

Students have ho reasonable expectation of privacy in cars parked on school grounds. School lots are regularly
searched by contraband dogs, administration, and police officers. Students should be aware that items and spaces
on school grounds are subject to search and view by others, and that prohibited items discovered during the course
of a search may result in discipline, including, but not limited to, expulsion from school.

Vehicles MAY NOT be parked or located in the bus lanes or fire at ANY TIME. Bus lanes and fire lanes are clearly
marked. Vehicles located in these locations may be ticketed and/or towed by the police.

Video cameras may be active in parking lots and may be used for the purposes of investigation into student
misconduct. Discipline for misconduct includes all disciplinary measures in the student discipline code and/or
withdrawal of parking privileges.

L. Student Medication

Taking medication during school hours or during school-related activities is prohibited unless it is necessary for a
student’s health and well-being. When a student’s licensed health care provider and parent/guardian believe that it
is necessary for the student to take a medication during school hours or school-related activities, the
parent/guardian must request that the school dispense the medication to the child by completing a “School
Medication Authorization Form.”

No school or district employee is allowed to administer to any student, or supervise a student’s self-administration
of, any prescription or non-prescription medication until a completed and signed School Medication Authorization
Form is submitted by the student’s parent/guardian. No student is allowed to possess or consume any prescription
or non-prescription medication on school grounds or at a school-related function other than as provided for in this
procedure,

Self-Administration of Medication

A student may possess and self-administer an epinephrine injector {e.g., EpiPen®) and/or an asthma inhaler or
medication prescribed for use at the student’s discretion, provided the student’s parent/guardian has completed and
signed a School Medication Authorization Form.

students who are diabetic may possess and self-administer diabetic testing supplies and insulin if authorized by the
student’s diabetes care plan, which must be on file with the schoal.

Students with epilepsy may possess and self-administer supplies, equipment and medication, if authorized by the
student’s seizure action plan, which must be on file with the school.

Students may self-administer (but not possess on their person} other medications required under a qualified plan,
provided the student’s parent/guardian has completed and signed a School Medication Authorization Form.

The school district shall incur no liability, except for willful and wanton conduct, as a result of any injury arising from

a student’s self-administration of medication, including asthma medication or epinephrine injectors, or medication

37



required under a qualifying plan. A student’s parent/guardian must indemnify and hold harmless the school district
and its employees and agents, against any claims, except a claim based on willful and wanton conduct, arising out of
a student’s self-administration of an epinephrine injector, asthma medication, and/or a medication required under a
gualifying plan.

Administration of Medical Cannabis

In accordance with the Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program, qualifying students are allowed to utilize
medical cannabis infused products while at school and school events. Please contact the building principal for
additional information. Discipline of a student for being administered a product by a designated caregiver pursuant
to this procedure is prohibited. The District may not deny a student attendance at a school solely because he or she
requires administration of the product during school hours.

Undesignated Medications

The school may maintain the following undesignated prescription medications for emergency use: {1} Asthma
medication; (2) Epinephrine injectors; (3) Opioid antagoniéts; and (4} Glucagon. No one, including without limitation,
parents/guardians of students, should rely on the school or district for the availability of undesignated medication.
This procedure does not guarantee the availability of undesignated medications. Students and their
parents/guardians should consult their own physician regarding these medication(s).

Emergency Aid to Students

Nothing in this policy shall prohibit any school employee from providing emergency assistance to students, including

administering medication.

M. Communicable Diseases
The schoo! will observe recommendations of the Hlinois Department of Public Health regarding communicable
diseases.
1. Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has a communicable disease.
2. In certain cases, students with a communicable disease may be excluded from school or sent home from school
following notification of the parent or guardian.
3. The school will provide written instructions to the parent and guardian regarding appropriate treatment for the
communicable disease.
4. A student excluded because of a communicable disease will be permitted to return ta school only when the
parent or guardian brings to the <chool a letter from the student’s doctor stating that the studentis no longer
contagious or at risk of spreading the communicable disease.

" N. Head Lice
The school will observe recommendations of the American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) regarding head lice.

1. Parents are required to notify the school nurse if they suspect their child has head lice.

9. Infested students will be sent home following notification of the parent or guardian.

3. The school will provide written instructions to parent or guardian regarding appropriate treatment for
infestation.

4. Astudent excluded because of head lice will be permitted to return to school only when the parent or guardian
brings the student to school to be checked by the school nurse or building principal and the child is determined
to be free of head lice and eggs (nits). Infested children are prohibited from riding the bus to school to be
checked for head lice. -

38




XVI. Student Privacy Protections

A. Student Privacy

The District has adopted and uses several policies and procedures regarding student privacy, parental access to
information and administration of certain physical examinations to students. Copies of these policies are available
upon request.

B. Student Records

A school student record is any writing or other recorded information concerning a student and by which a student
may be identified individually that is maintained by a school or at its direction or by a school employee, regardless of
how or where the information is stored, except for certain records kept in a staff member’s sole possession; records
maintained by law enforcement officers working in the school; video and other electronic recordings {including
electronic recordings made an school busses) that are created in part for law enforcement, security, or safety
reasons ar purposes, though such electronic recordings may become a student record if the content is used for
disciplinary or special education purposes regarding a particular student,

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the lllinois Student Records Act afford parents/guardians
and students over 18 years of age (“eligible students”) certain rights with respect to the student’s school records.
They are:

1. The right to inspect and copy the student’s education records within 10 business days of the day the
District receives a request for access, The degree of access a student has to his or her records depends on
the student’s age. Students less than 18 years of age have the right to inspect and copy only their permanent
record. Students 18 years of age or older have access and copy rights to both permanent and temporary
records. A parent/guardian or student should submit to the building principal a written request that
identifies the record(s) he or she wishes to inspect. Within 10 business days, the building principal will make
arrangements for access and notify the parent/guardian or student of the time and place where the records
may be inspected. In certain circumstances, the District may request an additional 5 business days in which
to grant access. The District charges $.35 per page for copying but no one will be denied their right to copies
of their records for inability to pay this cost.These rights are denied to any person against whom an order of
protection has been entered concerning the student.

2. The right to have one or more scores received on college entrance examinations included on the student’s
academic transcript. Parents/guardians or eligible students may have one or more scores on college
entrance examinations included on the student’s academic transcript. The District will include scores on
college entrance examinations upon the written request of the parent/guardian or eligible student stating
the name of each college entrance examination that is the subject of the request and the dates of the scores
that are to be included.

3. The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent/ guardian or
eligible student believes are inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. A parent/guardian or eligible student may
ask the District to amend a record that is believed to be inaccurate, irrelevant, or improper. Requests should
be sent to the building principal and should clearly identify the record the parent/guardian or eligible
student wants changed and the specific reason a change is being sought.If the District decides not to amend
the record, the District will notify the parent/guardian or eligible student of the decision and advise him or
her of their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding the
hearing procedures will be provided to the parent/guardian or eligible student when notified of the rightto a
hearing.

39




The right to permit disclosure of personally identifiable information contained in the student’s education
records, except to the extent that the FERPA or lllinois School Student Recards Act authorizes disclosure
without consent. Disclosure without consent is permitted to school officials with legitimate educational or
administrative interests. A school official is a person employed by the District as an administrator, supervisor,
instructor, or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); a
person serving on the School Board; a person or company with whom the District has contracted to perform
a special task {such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist); or any parent/guardian or
student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another
school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a jegitimate educational interest if the
official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her professional responsihility.Upon
request, the District discloses education records without consent to officials of another school district in
which a student has enrolled or intends to enroll, as well as to any person as specifically required by State or
federal law. Before information is released to these individuals, the parents/guardians or eligible student will
receive prior written notice of the nature and substance of the information, and an opportunity to inspect,
copy, and challenge such records.Academic grades and references to expulsions or out-of-school suspensions
cannot be challenged at the time a student’s records are being forwarded to another school to which the
student is transferring.Disclosure is also permitted without consent to: any person for research, statistical
reporting or planning, provided that no student or parent/guardian can be identified; any person namedina
court order; appropriate persons if the knowledge of such information is necessary to protect the health or
safety of the student or other persons; and juvenile authorities when necessary for the discharge of their
official duties who request information before adjudication of the student.

The right to a copy of any schoo! student record proposed to be destroyed or deleted. The permanent
record is maintained for at least 60 years after the student transfers, graduates, or permanently withdraws.
The temporary record is maintained for at least 5 years after the student transfers, graduates, or
permanently withdraws. Temporary records that may be of assistance to a student with a disability who
graduates or permanently withdraws, may, after 5 years, be transferred to the parent/guardian or to the
student, if the student has succeeded to the rights of the parent/guardian. student temporary records are
reviewed every 4 years or upoh a student’s change in attendance centers, whichever occurs first.

The right to prohibit the release of directory information. Throughout the school year, the District may
release directory information regarding students, limited to::

e Name

e Address

« Grade leve!

o Birth date and place

« Parent/guardian names, addresses, electronic mail addresses, and telephone numbers

« Photographs, videos, or digital images used for informational or news-related purposes (whether bya
media outlet or by the school) of a student participating in school or school-sponsored activities,
organizations, and athletics that have appeared in school publications, such as yearbooks, newspapers, or
sporting or fine arts programs

« Academic awards, degrees, and honors

« Information in relation to school-sponsored activities, organizations, and athletics

» Major field of study

» Period of attendance in schoolAny parent/guardian or eligible student may prohibit the release of any or all
of the above information by delivering a written objection to the building principal within 30 days of the date
of this notice.

The right to request that military recruiters or institutions of higher learning not be granted access to your
student’s information without your prior written consent. Federal law requires a secondary school to grant
military recruiters and institutions of higher learning, upon their request, access to secondary school
ctudents’ names, addresses, and telephone numbers, unless the student’s parent/guardian, or student who

40




is 18 years of age or older, submits a written request that the information not be released without the prior
written consent of the parent/guardian or eligible student. If you wish to exercise this option, notify the
building principal.

8. The right contained in this statement: No person may condition the granting or withholding of any right,
privilege or benefits or make as a condition of employment, credit, or insurance the securing by any
individual of any information from a student’s temporary record which such individual may obtain through
the exercise of any right secured under State law.

9. Therighttofilea complaint with the U.5. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the
District to comply with the requirements of FERPA.

The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA is:Family Policy Compliance Office
U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue, SW
Washington DC 20202-4605

C. Student Biometric Information

Before collecting biometric information from students, the school must seek the permission of the student’s
parent/guardian of the student, if over the age of 18, Biometric information means information that is collected
from students based on their unique characters, such as a fingerprint, voice recognition or retinal scan.

YVIL Co-Curriculars & Athletics

A. Tri-Valley High School Co-Curricular Philosophy

Co-curricular activities are privileges extended by the District to students who wish to participate and who agree {0
comply with the code as well as the rules and regulations established for the respective activity. Compliance allows
for ongoing participation in the particular activity. The failure to comply with the rules and regulations shatl resultin
appropriate sanctions as listed in the following pages. Because these activities are regarded as privileges and not
property interests of the students, only those procedural and substantive considerations as provided for in this
handbook shall be afforded the student when a disciplinary sanction must be considered.

The co-curricular program at Tri-Valley High School is a part of the total school program and thus comes under the
control and supervision of the Board of Education, superintendent, and Principal to the same degree as any other
part of the program. The Board is committed to support a diversified and balanced program of co-curricular
activities. It sees the goal of such activities as the life enrichment of each participant through development of skills,
health, strength, self-reliance, emotional maturity, social growth, and good sportsmanship. The Board intends that
co-curricular programs be designed to meet the needs and interests of students irrespective of sex, physical
endowment, developed skills, or natural aptitude. It also intends that resources be allocated in an equitable manner
relative to said needs and interests.

The Board recognizes the values which students derive from participation in athletics. Therefore, the Board will make
every effort to provide as wide a variety of athletic activities as is feasible. The Board further recognizes the value of
a successful program to the community, the student body and faculty, and the individual athlete; and, the value in
generating participation in and support of the athletic program. It also recognizes that there may be times in

compefition when not everyone will be able to play. Each athlete, however, who shows a positive work ethic, a

41




cooperative attitude, and a continual improvement in his/her physical skills will be given playing time as deemed
suitable by the coach. The rules and regulations created by the IHSA and the local school district are established for
the benefit of the participants and the school. Those who volunteer to participate are expected to follow all
regulations as outlined by the 1HSA and the local school district. Any <tudent that elects to participate inan IHSA
activity is offering implied consent to random drug testing during the IHSA state series competitions as per the IHSA
policy.

B. Application of this policy
1. students who participate do so on a voluntary basis, and they are constantly in the eye of the public and

represent the entire school as well as themselves. Since the participant represents the entire school, his or

her conduct in the activity and out of school must be such that it will reflect favorably upon the entire school
district. The participant’s academic standing must be such that he/she can afford the time necessary for
training and participation.

2. Co-curricular activities include but are not limited to all athletics, theater productions, music contests not
related to a student’s grade, and any other co-curricular group {for example student Council, National
Honor Saciety, FFA, etc.] All of these activities fall under the expectations of the Co-Curriculor Code of
Conduct as well as other positions of leadership including mentoring and teacher aides.

3. The following training rules apply during the entirety of a student’s enrollment in Tri-Valley schools, including
summer vacation periods.

C. Requirements for Participation in Co-curricular Activities:
1. Academic Eligibility:

a. It is the responsibility of the student to maintain an acceptable academic grade for participation.
by, To be eligible to participate inany co-curricular activity or class office, a student must maintain a passing

_ grade in all subjects. A student will be permitted to participate for one (1) week with one {only) failing grade.
if that failing grade is not removed by the following Friday, he/she will be declared ineligible. A student who
is ineligible for an activity may practice but may not compete inter-scholastically or performina school
activity until declared eligible again. Failing grades in two or more subjects, two consecutive failing grades in
the same subject, or two or more weeks of failing grades in different subjects will make him/her ineligible
immediately, and he/she will remain ineligible until all deficiencies are removed. In this case the student may
not practice or compete of perform until the deficiencies are removed. Any subsequent failing grades during
that same grading period will make him/her ineligible immediately, and they will remain ineligible for the
balance of the period.
c. A student who receives a failing grade on his/her report card will not be eligible to compete of perform for
two weeks, beginning the school day after the report cards are distributed, but may practice during that
fime. Two failing grades on a report card will eliminate that student from any participation for a period of
nine weeks following the report card distribution. He/She may begin participation the day following the
nine-week period, if they are eligible. At the end of the first semester, the semester grade on the report card
will be used to determine a student’s eligibility. This period of ineligibility will be served beginning the first
school day of the second semester for the first semester grades, and the first day of practice for fall sparts for
second semester grades.
d. Any failing grade on the weekly eligibility check in a subject in which the student received an F on their
report card will make him/her ineligible beginning the following Monday for another two weeks. Any
subsequent failing grade in that course on the weekly eligibility check will render the student ineligible for
the remainder of the nine-week grading period. The student will again be eligible the day following the next
report card distribution if there are no failing grades on that card.
e. In addition to the above, alf IHSA regulations concerning eligibility will be enforced.

2. School attendance:

42




a. To be eligible to participate in any scheduled event, a student must be present in school on the day of the
event, if on a school day. To fulfill this requirement, the student must be present for at {east half of the

school day, unless approved by the building administrator. A student may not attend any athletic contest or
co-curricular event on a day in which they are absent from school for the entire day.

Registration & Fees:

a. Students must register for the sport and pay student athletic sports fees on Tri-Valley’s 8 to 18 athletic
website:http:/ /il.8t018.com/TriVaHeyCUSD/

b. Athletes must secure a medical examination and file the completed form with the Athletic Director.

c. Athietes must secure school insurance or present a written statement from a parent indicating family
insurance coverage.

d. Athletes and their parents must sign and return the interscholastic Training Rule form.

Rules for participation;

a. Participants must attend all practice sessions as scheduled by the sponsors/coaches.

b. Participants must comply with the sponsor’s/coach’s rules as explained during the pre-season meefting.
c. Participants must comply with the 1HSA Interscholastic Training Rules as well as the school Athletic &
Co-Curricular Code of Conduct.

Code of Conduct:

As An Interscholastic Participant of Tri-Valley | Will Not:

a. Consume, possess, or distribute cigarettes, tobacco, or a tobacco substitute in any form {i.e.
smokeless tobacco, vaping).

b. Consume, possess, of distribute alcoholic beverages.

Consume, possess, or distribute illegal drugs or substances, including any substances that | believe or
tell others are illegal drugs or substances.

Passess or distribute drug paraphernalia.

Violate any criminal code or any jaw or ordinance of any jurisdiction, of violate school rufes.

f  Consume or offer to any other person any substance which 1| say or believe will improve or alter my
performance (this does not apply to any medication prescribed by a physician, or any other
substance, such as aspirin, approved by the coach or sponsor in advance).

g. Engageinany conduct which is intended to cause damage to school property or to the property of
school personnel, or be disruptive to school activities.

h. Participate or observe in the hazing and/or initiation of any person.

i. Engage in other acts of gross misconduct.

D. General Penalties for Violations:

1.

First offense - suspension from 50% of regular season contests {fractions will be rounded up; for

tournaments, each day equals one contest). If the entire suspension is not served in a single interscholastic
activity, the remainder of the suspension wilt be served in the next interscholastic activity.
Returning to No Offense Status - Following the first offense, if a student completes one calendar year with no

additional violations, the student may return to a no offense status. The opportunity to return to a no
offense status will only be granted to a student one time during their high school career.
Second offense - suspension for one calendar year from all interscholastic activities. The calendar year will

begin with the first day of the suspension.
Third offense - suspension from all interscholastic activities for the remainder of the student’s high school

career.

Reinstatement - Following the third offense, if the student completes one calendar year without any
additional violations, they may apply in writing at the discretion of the principat and athletic director, the
consideration regarding the seriousness of the prior offenses shall determine whether or not to reinstate the
participant to a second offense status. If any prior violation was dangerous to other persons or property,

including but not limited to hazing and/or initiation, or seriously disruptive to any school activity, then the

43




student shall not be reinstated. If a fourth offense occurs prior to reinstatement, then reinstaterment is not
available.
6. Fourth offense - If a fourth offense occurs prior to reinstatement, termination of privileges to participate in

any activity covered by this policy occurs without opportunity for reinstatement.
7. Qut of Season Violations - Out of season violations will apply to the next activity in which the student

participates for up to one calendar year. If a student is participating in numerous activities during a season,
the penalties will be assessed to all the activities.

8. Any student that is in violation of the athletic code out of season and facing an extra-curricular suspension
may not ioin a team that has already held official practices and begin serving the suspension. He or she must
wait until the official beginning of the next athletic season to begin serving the suspension.

E. Penalties for Serious or Disruptive Offenses:

The limited penalties for first and second offenses may be by-passed if the student’s conduct involved the
consumption, possession or distribution of alcohalic beverages, drugs or illegal substances; was dangerous to other
persons or property; or was seriously disruptive to any school activity. In case of such an offense, the penalty may be,
at the discretion of the principal and athletic director, suspension from all activities covered by this policy for the
remainder of the student’s career.

F. Procedure for Dealing with Major Violations

1. Upon evidence or information that a major training rule violation has occurred, the athletic director and
coach will meet to discuss the alleged violation.

3. The athletic director shall conduct an investigation concerning the alleged violation.

3. The athletic director and coach shall select a date and time to meet the student to discuss the alleged
violation. This shall be done as soon as possible.

4. The athletic director and coach shall meet to discuss the penalty as enumerated in the interscholastic
Training Rules. The student and parent{s)/guardian(s) will be informed of the decision concerning the penalty
and its administration within five (5) working days.

5, Rights of Review -

A. The student and parent(s)/guardian(s) may request in writing a hearing with the athletic director and
principal within seven (7) days of the administration of the penalty. A meeting will be held within five (5}
days of the notification, and an oral respanse must be made within five (5) days.

B. If a satisfactory solution is not reached, the grievant(s} may appeal the issue in writing to the office of
the superintendent within ten (10) days from the receipt of the response in step A. A meeting between
the parties will be held within ten (10} days and a written response made within {5) five days. A record of
this meeting shall be made.

C. If the issue is still not satisfactorily resolved in step B, the grievant(s) may appeal the issue in writing to
the Board of Education within five (5) days from the receipt of the written response. The Roard shall
consider the appeal within thirty (30) days and a written response shall be given within five (5) days.

G. Minor Violations

Any minor violations will be decided upon by the staff of the activity with the prior approval of the athietic director.
The guidelines for each team or activity will be shared with the parent/guardian of the participant prior to the
beginning of the season at the pre-season meeting. It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to attend this
meeting and receive the guidelines.

H. General Rules and Regulations for Schoo! Activities
1. Al rules which apply during school hours apply at school activities also.
2. Students who are required to pay admission to an activity must do so. Students failing to pay when required
will be removed and barred from all future school activities for the remainder of the semester.

A4




3. Students attending an activity must remain in the building.

|. Transportation

Any student attending a co-curricular event who arrives by school arranged transportation must go home by the
same mode of transportation unless a parent or guardian assumes direct control of the student at the co-curricular
event. All participants must ride school transportation to the event except in extreme circumstances which must be
approved by the parent or guardian and cleared with the principal or his designee.

1. Student Athlete Concussions and Head Injuries

A student athlete whao exhibits signs, symptoms, or behaviors consistent with a concussion in a practice or game will
be removed from participation or competition at that time. A student athlete who has been removed from an
intarscholastic contest for a possible concussion or head injury may not return to that contest unless cleared to do so
by a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in lllinois or a certified athletic trainer. If not cleared to
return to that contest, a student athlete may not return to play or practice until the student athlete has provided his
or her school with written clearance from a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in linois or a
certified athletic trainer working in conjunction with a physician licensed to practice medicine in all its branches in
lllinois.

K. Athletic Uniforms

The district allows a student to modify his or her athletic or team uniform for the uporose of modesty in clothing or
Sttire that is in accordance with the requirements of his or her religion or his or her cultural values or modesty
preferences. A student is not required to receive the prior approval of the school board for such modification.

¥VII. School Services

A. Book Rental/Lost Texthooks/Lost Library Books

Tri-Valley Community Unit #3, under the authority of the Board of Education, operates a rental system for books and
supplies in all grades. In requesting rental privileges, parents agree to accept responsibility to the extent of the value
of the books or other items which may be damaged or carelessly used by their children. If a student loses a rental
book or a library book which has been purchased by the district less than two years before the loss, the student is
charged the full schoo! price for the book. For each year over two, a student is charged the school price less 10%.
students will be held accountable for lost textbooks or library hooks. Before a student is permitted to receive credit
for semester and/or final exams, all responsibilities for lost books must be met.

B. Cafeteria - Lunch Period
Tri-Valley has a closed campus for lunch and students must remain on campus during the lunch period. All students,
whether purchasing school lunch or bringing lunch from home, must eat in the cafeteria.

C. Guidance Services

The guidance counselor is responsible for providing a variety of services and materials for the students; these
include:

1. Personal counseling - sometimes students find it desirable to discuss a problem with another person. Possible
solutions can be examined in a confidential manner.

2. Educational planning - the counselor is responsible for each student’s schedule. It is often heneficial for students
to plan their high school program for the entire four years. The counselor is available to assist each student in this
task.

45




3. Vocational counseling - the guidance office contains a variety of information concerning many vocations, Students
should begin to explore possible oppartunities early in their school experiences. Students are encouraged to use
these materials and discuss their vocational plans with the counselor.

4. College admission - there are many coliege catalogs for the students’ use in the guidance office. These include
business schools, technical schools, junior colleges, and four-year colleges and universities. Several representatives
from these institutions visit Tri-Valley during the school year. Interested juniors and seniors are invited to talk with
these representatives. it is necessary to make an appointment with the counselor for these meetings.

5, Scholarships - infarmation concerning various types of scholarships is available in the guidance office. These vary
from grants awarded by the state and Federal governments to competitive scholarships sponsored by corporations
and organizations.

6. Testing program — Tri-Valley administers all SAT based exams in order to prepare students for the SAT which is
taken during their junior year. During their freshman year students take the PSAT 8/9, and the PSAT 10 during their
Sophomaore year. These tests are used to measure student progress from year to year. Although these test scores do
nat affect grades, they are recorded as a part of each student’s permanent record. Students should always put forth
their best effort.

Juniors who are considering attending college are advised to take the PSAT/NMSQT. This test can qualify students for
a National Merit Scholarship, State Farm Foundation Scholarships, and it also provides valuable test taking
experience.

7 Parent conferences - the school and the home have a mutual interest in the total development of the student.
Only through working together can the student best be served. The counselor welcomes calls or visits from parents
on any matter of concern.

8. Scheduling student conferences - it is preferred that the students visit the counselor during their study hall period,
before or after school, or during lunch period. If a student comes to the guidance office during a scheduled class
period, they must have a pass from the teacher. ‘

D. Insurance Program

A low-cost insurance policy is offered to all Tri-Valley students. This is a limited policy with definite indemnities set for
each type of injury. Please understand that neither the school nor anyone connected with the schoot will profit in
any way from the insurance. For a small fee, a student can be insured during the school year for accidents which
occur while he/she is engaged in any school sponsored activity. Injuries resulting from brawling or fighting are not
covered by this policy. All injuries must be pramptly reported to the office or to the teacher in charge.

E. Library Services

The Instructional Materials Center (IMC) is designed to provide services and materials for faculty and students in
conjunction with the curriculum.

1. All students are eligible to use the IMC for study and to check out materials. This privilege may be suspended for
three reasons: a) the student has violated the rights of others to study or check out materials; b) the student has
overdue materials; c) the student owes fines.

2. All books, with the exception of those listed above, may be loaned for a period of three weeks. A fine of five cents
($0.10) per school day will be charged for late materials.

3. Students who borrow books and other materials are responsible for them. If a person borrows a book and then
Joans it to someone eise, he/she is still responsible for the book.

4. All materials leaving the IMC must be properly checked out. Failure to do so will be punishable.

46




XIX. Technology & Internet Services

A.1to 1 Computer Plan

Tri-Valley CUSD #3 will provide all students, 9-12 grade, with a laptop computer which students will be able to fully
possess for the entire school year, including nights, weekends, and summer months. Students will be required to
return the computer when (1) the school issues new computers every 2 years, or (2) the student graduates or
transfers from Tri-Valley High School.

Students, and their parents/guardians, are reminded that use of district technology is a privilege and not a right.
Everything done on any district-owned computer, network, or electronic communication device may be monitored
by school authorities. Inappropriate use of district technology can result in limited or banned computer use,
disciplinary consequences, receiving a failing grade, and/or legal action.

B. Cwnership of the Laptop

Tri-Valley CUSD #3 retains sole right of possession of the laptop. The laptops are lent to the students for educational
purposes only for the academic year. Mareover, Tri-Valley CUSD #3 administrative staff and faculty retain the right to
collect and/or inspect laptops at any time, including via electronic remote access and to alter, add, or delete installed
software or hardware. Tri-Valley will continue to filter the laptops while away from the district.

€. Student Responsibilities for the Laptop
Students are solely responsible for the laptops issued to them and must adhere to the following:
e Students must comply with the District’s Use of Technology Palicy and corresponding Use of Technology
Laptop Agreement {this document} when using their laptops.
e Students must bring their laptop to school every day and make sure it is fully charged. Failure to do so may
result in disciplinary action. (Note: A fully charged laptop should last at least 8 hours.)
Students must treat their device with care and never leave it in an unsecured location.
Students must promptly report any problems with their laptop to a teacher or IT staff.
Students may hot remove or interfere with the serial number and other identification tags.
Students may not attempt to remove or change the physical structure of the laptop, including the keys or
plastic casing.
e Students may not attempt to install or run any operating system on the laptop other operating system
supported by the district.
e Students must keep their device clean.

Students are not allowed to put any personal stickers on the district owned devices.
e Teachers will have the ability to monitor their students activity during class time.

D. Responsibility for Electronic Data

The students are solely responsible for any apps or extensions on their laptops that are not installed by a member of
the Tri-Valley CUSD #3 staff. Students are responsible for backing up their data to protect from loss. Users of district
laptops have no rights, ownership, or expectations of privacy to any data that is, or was, stored on the laptop, school
network, or any school-issued applications and are given no guarantees that data will be

retained or destroyed.

E. Digital Citizenship

47




students must follow the six conditions of being a good digital citizen:

1.

Respect Yourself. | will show respect for myself through my actions. | will select online names that are
appropriate, | will consider the information and images that | post online. | will consider what personal
information about my life, experiences, experimentation or relationships | post. | will not be obscene.
Protect Yourself. | will ensure that the information, images, and materials | post online will not put me at risk.
I will not publish my personal details, contact details or a schedule of my activities. | will report any attacks or
inappropriate behavior directed at me. | wiil protect passwords, accounts, and resources.

Respect Others. | will show respect to others. | will not use electronic mediums to antagonize, bully, harass,
or stalk other people. | will show respect for other people in my choice of websites, | will not visit sites that
are degrading, racist, or inappropriate. | will not abuse my rights of access and | will not enter other people's
private spaces or areas.

Protect Others. | will protect others by reporting abuse and not forwarding inappropriate materials or
communications. 1 wili not visit sites that are degrading, racist, or inappropriate.

Respect Intellectual Property. | will request permission to use resources. | will suitably cite any and all use of
websites, books, media, ete. | will acknowledge all primary sources. | will validate information. | will use and
abide by the Acceptable Use Policy.

Protect Intellectual Property. | will request to use the software and media others produce. | will use free and
open source alternatives rather than pirating software. | will purchase, license, and register all software. | will
purchase my music and media, and refrain from distributing these in a manner that violates their licenses. |
will act with integrity.

F. Copyright and File Sharing
Students are required to follow all copyright laws around all media including text, images, programs, music, and
video. Downloading, sharing, and posting online illegally obtained media is against the Acceptable Use Policy.

G. Spare Equipment and Lending
If a student’s laptop is inoperable, the school has a limited number of spare devices for use while the

student’s laptop is repaired or replaced. This agreement remains in effect for loaner computers. The student may not
opt to keep an inoperable laptop to avoid doing class work due to loss or damage. if a student does not bring his/her
laptop to school, the student may be required to borrow a device from the school based on the direction from

his/her teacher. Disciplinary action may result for failure to bring a fully charged laptop to school.

H. Warranty and Insurance

The District will repair or replace damaged equipment resulting from normal use. Damages that are due to

manufacturer defect or normal use will not be charged to a student’s account. However, a student’s account will be

charged for rates listed below due to negligent damage. Loss or theft of the device is also the student’s responsibility.
The student should report the loss or theft of the device immediately to district staff.

Screen Repair $10.00
Power Adapter replacement $25.00

I. Laptop Resources for Families

Laptop Setup Support: If you cannot connect the laptop to your home internet, call and leave a voicemail at this
number. Please include your name and phone number. 309-378-2511 EXT.1311

Laptop Email Support: If you cannot connect the laptop to your home internet, you may email ltol@tri-valley3.org

1. Internet Acceptable Use
All use of the District’s electronic networks shall be consistent with the District’s goal of promoting educational
excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication. These procedures do not attempt to

48



state all required or prohibited behavior by users. However, some specific examples are provided. The failure of any
user to follow these procedures will result in the loss of privileges, disciplinary action, and/or legal action.

Terms and Conditions: The term electronic networks includes all of the District’s technology resources,
including, but not limited to:

1. The District’s local-area and wide-area networks, including wireless networks (Wi-Fi),
District-provided Wi-Fi hotspots, and any District servers or other networking infrastructure;

2. Access to the Internet or other online resources via the District’s networking infrastructure or to any
District-issued online account from any computer or device, regardless of location;

3. District-owned and District-issued computers, laptops, tablets, phones, or similar devices.

Acceptable Use — Access to the District’s electronic networks must be: (a) for the purpose of education or
research, and be consistent with the District’s educational objectives, or (b) for legitimate business use.

Privileges — Use of the District’s electronic networks is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use may
result in a cancellation of those privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action. The system
administrator or Building Principal will make all decisions regarding whether or not a user has violated these
procedures and may deny, revoke, or suspend access at any time. His or her decision is final.

K. Unacceptable Uses of Internet

The user is responsible for his or her actions and activities involving the network. Some examples of unacceptable

use are:

1.

W

o N o

10.
11

12.
13.
14,
15,
16,

17.
8.

Using the electronic networks for any illegal activity, including violation of copyright or other intellectual
property rights or contracts, or transmitting any material in violation of any State or federal law;

Using the electronic networks to engage in conduct prohibited by board policy;

Unauthorized downloading of software or other files, regardless of whether it is copyrighted or scanned for
malware;

Unauthorized use of personal removable media devices (such as flash or thumb drives);

Downloading of copyrighted material for other than personal use;

Using the electronic networks for private financial or commercial gain;

Wastefully using resources, such as file space;

Hacking or attempting to hack or gain unauthorized access to files, accounts, resources, or entities by any
means;

Invading the privacy of individuals, including the unauthorized disclosure, dissemination, and use of
information about anyone that is of a personal nature, such as a photograph or video;

Using another uset’s account or password;

Disclosing any network or account password (including your own} to any other person, unless requested by
the system administrator; '

Posting or sending material authored or created by another without his/her consent;

Posting or sending anonymaous messages;

Creating or forwarding chain letters, spam, or other unsolicited messages;

Using the electronic networks for commercial or private advertising;

Accessing, sending, posting, publishing, or displaying any abusive, obscene, profane, sexual, threatening,
harassing, illegal, or knowingly false material;

Misrepresenting the user’s identity or the identity of others; and

Using the electronic networks while access privileges are suspended or revoked.

49



L.. Network Etiquetie
The user is expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of network etiquette. These include, but are not
limited to, the following:

1. Be polite. Do not become abusive in messages to others.

Use appropriate language. Do not swear, or use vulgarities or any other inappropriate language.

3. Do not reveal personal information, including the addresses or telephone numbers, of students or
colleagues.

4. Recognize that the District’s electronic networks are not private. People who operate District technology
have access to all email and other data. Messages or other evidence relating to or in support of illegal
activities may be reported to the authorities.

5. Do not use the networks in any way that would disrupt its use by other users.

6. Consider all communications and information accessible via the electronic networks to be private property.

M. No warranties

The schoo! and district make no warranties of any kind, whether expressed or implied, for the service it is providing.
The school and district are not responsible for any damages the user suffers. This includes loss of data resulting from
delays, non-deliveries, missed-deliveries, or service interruptions caused by its negligence or the user’s errors or
omissions. Use of any information obtained via the Internet is at the user’s own risk. The school and district
specifically deny any responsibility for the accuracy or quality of information obtained through its services,

N. Indemnification
The user agrees to indemnify the school and district for any losses, costs, or damages, including reasonable attorney
fees, incurred by the school or district relating to, or arising out of, any violation of these procedures.

O. Security

Network security is a high priority. If the user can identify a security prablem on the Internet, the user must notify
the system administrator or building principal. Keep your account and password confidential. Do not use another
individual’s account without written permission from that individual. Any user identified as a security risk may be

denied access to the network.

P. Vandalism

Vandalism will result in cancellation of privileges and other disciplinary action. Vandalism is defined as any malicious
attempt to harm or destroy data of another user, the Internet, or any other network. This includes, but is not limited
to, the uploading or creation of computer viruses.

Q. Copyright Weh Publishing Rules

Copyright law prohibits the republishing of text or graphics found on the Web without explicit written permission.

a. For each re-publication {on a Web site or file server} of a graphic or text file that was produced externally, there
must be a notice at the bottom of the page crediting the original producer and noting how and when permission was
granted. If possible, the notice should also include the Web address of the original source.

b. Students engaged in producing web pages must provide library media specialists with e-mail or hard copy
permissions before the Web pages are published. Printed evidence of the status of “public domain” documents
must be provided.

¢. The absence of a copyright notice may not be interpreted as permission to copy the materials. Only the copyright
owner may provide the permission. The manager of the Web site displaying the material may not be considered a
source of permission.

d. The “fair use” rules governing student reports in classrooms are less stringent and permit limited use of graphics
and text.

50



e. Student work may only be published if there is written permission from both the parent/guardian and student.

R. Use of Email

The District’s email system, and its constituent software, hardware, and data files, are owned and controlled by the
District. The District provides email to aid students in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities, and as an education
tool.

1. The District reserves the right to access and disclose the contents of any account on its system, without prior
natice or permission from the account’s user. Unauthorized access by any student to an email account is
strictly prohibited.

2. Each person should use the same degree of care in drafting an email message as would be put into a written
memorandum or document. Nothing should be transmitted in an email message that would be
inappropriate in a letter or memorandum.

3. Electronic messages transmitted via the District’s Internet gateway carry with them an identification of the
user’s Internet domain. This domain is a registered name and identifies the author as being with the District.
Great care should be taken, therefore, in the composition of such messages and how such messages might
reflect on the name and reputation of the District. Users will be held personally responsible for the content
of any and all email messages transmitted to external recipients.

4. Any message received from an unknown sender via the Internet, such as spam or potentiai phishing emails,
should either be immediately deleted or forwarded to the system administrator. Downloading any file
attached to any Internet-based message is prohibited unless the user is certain of that message’s authenticity
and the nature of the file so transmitied.

5. Use of the District’s email system constitutes consent to these regulations.

5. internet Safety

Internet access is limited to only those acceptable uses as detailed in these procedures. Internet safety is supported
if users will not engage in unacceptable uses, as detailed in these procedures, and otherwise follow these
procedures. Staff members will supervise students while students are using District Internet access to ensure that
the students abide by the Terms and Conditions for Internet access contained in these procedures.

Each District computer with Internet access has a filtering device that blocks entry to visual depictions that are: {1)
obscene, {2) pornographic, or (3) harmful or inappropriate for students, as defined by the Children’s Internet
Protection Act and as determined by the Superintendent or designee. The system administrator and Building
Principals shall monitor student Internet access.

XX, Permanent Records

The school maintains a permanent record for each student enrolled at Tri-Valley High School. The information found
in this record includes: standardized test results, grades and credits earned in courses taken by the student, the
number of days absent and tardy, limited family information including parents’ names, address, student’s date of
birth, telephone number, and other schools attended, extra-curricular activities. Parents of students under 18 years
of age may request to see the student’s permanent record while in the presence of a school official. A separate
health record for each student is maintained in the office.

51



XXI. Transportation

A, Transportation Services

The District shall provide free transportation for any student in the District who resides: (1) at a distance of one and
one-half miles or more from his or her assigned school, unless the School Board has certified to the lllinois State
Board of Education that adequate public transportation is available, or (2) within one and one-half miles from his or
her assigned school where walking to school or to a pick-up point or bus stop would constitute a serious hazard due
to vehicular traffic or rail crossing, and adequate public transportation is not available. A student’s
parent(s)/guardian{s) may file a petition with the Board requesting transportation due to the existence of a serious
safety hazard. Free transportation service and vehicle adaptation is provided for a special education student if
included in the student’s individualized educational program. The District may provide transportation to and from
school-sponsored activities. Non-public school students shall be transported in accordance with State law. Homeless
students shall be transported in accordance with Section 45/1-15 of the Education for Homeless Children Act.

If a student is at a location within the District, other than his or her residence, for child care purposes at the time for
transportation to and/or from school, that location may be considered for purposes of determining the 1.5 miles
from the school attended. Unless the Superintendent or designee establishes new routes, pick-up and drop-off
locations for students in day care must be along the District’s regular routes. The District will not discriminate among
types of locations where day care is provided, which may include the premises of licensed providers, relatives’
homes, or neighbors’ homes. Bus schedules and routes shall be determined by the Transportation Director and shall
be altered only with the Transportation Director’s approval and direction. In setting the routes, the pick-up and
discharge points should be as safe for students as possible.

No school employee may transport students in school or private vehicles unless authorized by the administration.
Every vehicle regularly used for the transportation of students must pass safety inspections in accordance with State
law and lllinois Department of Transportation regulations, The strobe light on a school bus may be illuminated only
when the bus is actually being used as a school bus and (1) is stopping or stopped for loading or discharging students
on a highway outside an urban area, or {2} is bearing one or more students. The Superintendent shall implement
procedures in accordance with State law for accepting comment calls about school bus driving.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a pre-trip and post-trip inspection procedure to ensure
that the school bus driver: (1) tests the two-way radio or cellular radio telecommunication device and ensures that it
is functioning properly before the bus is operated, and (2) walks to the rear of the bus before leaving the bus at the
end of each route, work shift, or work day, to check the bus for children or other passengers in the bus.

B. Instructions te School Bus Riders

A list of bus stops will be published at the beginning of the school year before student registration. Parents must, at
the beginning of the school year, select one bus stop at which a student is to be picked up, and one stop at which a
student is to be dropped off. Students are not permitted to ride a bus other than the bus to which they are assigned.
Exceptions must be approved in advance by the building principal. While students are on the bus, they are under the
supervision of the bus driver. In most cases, bus discipline problems can be handled by the bus driver. In the case of
a written disciplinary referral, student bus problems will be investigated and handled by the building principal.
Students are expected to follow all school rules while on the bus. Students may he suspended from riding the school
bus for up to 10 consecutive school days for violating school rules or for engaging in other gross disobedience or
misconduct. The schoal board may suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days
for safety reasons. The district’s regular suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a student’s privilege to ride

52



a school bus. A student who is suspended from riding the school bus and who does not have alternative
transportation to school shail be allowed the opportunity to make up all missed work for equivalent academic credit.
It is the responsibility of the student's parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have
alternative transportation to school. Video and audio cameras may be active on husses to record student conduct
and may be used for the purposes of investigation into misconduct or accidents on the bus.

In the interest of the student’s safety and in compliance with State law, students are also expected to observe the

following:
1. Dress properly for the weather. Make sure all drawstrings, ties, straps, etc. on all clothing, backpacks and
other items, are shortened or removed to lessen the likelihood of them getting caught in bus doors, railings
or aisles.
2. Arrive on time at the bus stop, and stay away from the street while waiting for the bus.
3. Stay away from the bus until it stops completely and the driver signals you to board. Enter in single file
without pushing. Always use the handrail.
4. Take a seat right away and remain seated facing forward. Keep your hands, arms, and head inside the hus.
5. Talk quietly on the bus. No shouting or creating loud noises that may distract the driver. Tablets, iPods,
iPads, smartphones, and other electronic devices must be silenced on the bus unless a student uses
headphones.
6. Help keep the bus neat and clean. Keep belongings out of the aisle and away from emergency exits. Eating
and drinking are not allowed on the bus.
7. Always listen to the driver’s instructions. Be courteous to the driver and other students. Sit with your
hands to yourself and avoid making noises that would distract the driver or bother other passengers.
Remain seated, keeping your hands, arms, and head inside the bus at all times.
8. Wait until the bus pulls to a complete stop before standing up. Use the handrail when exiting the bus.
9. Stay out of the danger zone next to the bus where the driver may have difficulty seeing you. Take five
giant steps away from the bus and out of the danger zone, until you can see the driver and the driver sees
you. Never crawl under a bus. |
10. If you must cross the street after you get off the bus, wait for the driver’s signal and then cross in front of
the bus. Cross the street only after checking both ways for traffic.
11. Never run back to the bus, even if you dropped or forgot something.
12. Treat bus equipment as you would valuable furniture in your own home. Never tamper with the bus or
any of its equipment.
13. Assist in keeping the bus safe and sanitary at all times.
14. Do not eat or drink on the bus.
15. Carry no animals on the bus without the permission of the school Transportation Director and the
Superintendent or Principal.
16. Keep books, packages, coats, and all other objects out of the aisles.
17. Leave no books, lunches, or other articles on the bus.
18. Be courteous to fellow pupils and the bus driver.
19. Help look after the safety and comfort of smaller children.
20. Do not ask the driver to stop at places other than the regular bus stop. The driver is not permitted to do
this, except by proper authorization from a school official.
21. Observe safety precautions at discharge points. When it is necessary to cross the highway, proceed to a
point at least 10 feet in front of the bus on the right shoulder of the highway where traffic may be observed
in both directions. Wait for a signal from the bus driver permitting you to cross.
22. Ohserve the same rules and regulations on other trips under school sponsorship as you observe between
home and school. Respect the wishes of the chaperone appointed by the school.
23. Athletic footwear equipped with cleats or spikes are not allowed on the bus.
24. Parents will be liable for any defacing or damage students do to the bus,

53



For questions regarding school transportation issues, please contact Cade Hasselbring, Transportation Director, at
(309) 378-2351.

C. “Can I ride home with my friend?”

School Board policy is very specific about riders changing routes, stops, or having friends ride. You need to be familiar
with the procedures and policy given below. Students are allowed to ride a bus to homes other than their own
regular bus route, providing a slip signed by parents is presented to the Principal a day in advance, orin an
emergency, a phone call is made to him/her. If space permits, students may be allowed to ride buses other than their
own provided a —transportation change request]| slip is secured from the principal’s office in advance. Examples of
approvable requests are iliness, employment, necessary parental absence from the home, or other situations
deemed to be necessities by the Principal or Transportation Director. Examples of non-approvable requests include
parties and overnight visits which are mere social conveniences.

XXI1. Canceling Activities for Emergency Reasons

When the schools are closed or dismissed early for emergency reasons, all school-sponsored activities and programs
will automatically be cancelled or postponed. This includes social events, club meetings, sports events at home or
away, and practices.

XXIII. Scheduling of Extra-Curricular Events

All extra-curricular events are scheduled to save transportation time and minimize energy costs. If an event is
scheduled to leave from Ellsworth and proceed to Downs, then the return schedule after the event will be the
reverse - first Downs and then to Ellsworth. This type of scheduling is used to get students home as quickly as
possible, and also to decrease the number of miles driven by our buses, thus decreasing energy costs.

XXIV. Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention

Youth suicide impacts the safety of the school environment. it also affects the school community, diminishing the
ability of surviving students to learn and the school’s ability to educate. Suicide and depression awareness and
prevention are important goals of the schoaol district.

The school district maintains student and parent resources on suicide and depression awareness and prevention.
Much of this information, including a copy of school district’s policy, is posted on the school district website.
information can also be obtained from the school office.

54



XXV. Parental Rights

A. Teacher Qualifications
A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a timely manner, the professional qualifications of
your student’s classroom teachers, including, at a minimum, whether:

1. The teacher has met the State qualifications and licensing criteria for the grade levels and subject areas in

which the teacher provides instruction.

7. The teacher is teaching under emergency or other provisional status.

3. The teacher is teaching in the field of discipline of the certification of the teacher.

4. Paraprofessionals provide services to the student and, if so, their qualifications.

B. Standardized Testing
Students and parents/guardians should be aware that the State and District require students to take standardized
tests throughout the year including the following: STAR assessments, lllinois Science Assessment, PSAT, and SAT.
Parents are encouraged to cooperate in preparing students for the standardized testing, because the quality of the
education the school can provide is partially dependent upon the school’s ability to continue to prove its success in
the state’s standardized tests. Parents can assist their students achieve their best performance by doing the
following:

1. Encourage students to work hard and study throughout the year;

2. Ensure students get a good night’s sleep the night before exams;

3. Ensure students eat well the morning of the exam, particularly ensuring they eat sufficient protein;

4. Remind and emphasize for students the importance of good performance on standardized testing;

5. Ensure students are on time and prepared for tests, with appropriate materials, including number 2

pencils;

6. Teach students the importance of honesty and ethics during the performance of these and other tests;

7. Encourage students to relax on testing day.

C. Homeless Child’s Right to Education

When a child loses permanent housing and becomes a homeless person as defined at law, or when a homeless child
changes his or her temporary living arrangements, the parent or guardian of the homeless child has the option of
either:

(1) continuing the child's education in the school of origin for as lang as the child remains homeless or, if the child
hecomes permanently housed, until the end of the academic year during which the housing is acquired; or

(2) enrolling the child in any school that non-homeless students who live in the attendance area in which the child or
youth is actually living are eligible to attend.

D, Sex Education Instruction

Students will not be required to take or participate in any class or courses in comprehensive sex education, including
in grades 6-12, instruction on both abstinence and contraception for the prevention of pregnancy and sexually
transmitted diseases, including HIV/AIDS; family life instruction, including in grades 6-12, instruction on the
prevention, transmission, and spread of AIDS; instruction on diseases; recognizing and avoiding sexual abuse; or
instruction on donor programs for organ/tissue, blood donor, and transplantation, if his or her parent or guardian
submits a written objection. The parent or guardian’s decision will not be the reason for any student discipline,
including suspension or expulsion. Nothing in this Section prohibits instruction in sanitation, hygiene or traditional

55



courses in biology. Parents or guardians may examine the instructional materials to be used in any district sex
education class ar course.

E. English Language Learners
The school offers apportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic subjects and to
meet the same challenging State standards that all children are expected to meet,

Parents/Guardians of English Learners will be informed how they can: {1) be involved in the education of their
children; (2) be active participants in assisting their children to attain English proficiency, achieve at high levels within
a well-rounded education, and meet the challenging State academic standards expected of all students; and (3}
participate and serve on the District’s Transitional Bilingual Education Programs Parent Advisory Committee,

For questions related to this program or to express input in the school’s English Learners program, contact the
building principal at (309} 378-2911.

F. School Visitation Rights

The School Visitation Rights Act permits employed parents/guardians, who are unable to meet with educators
because of a work conflict, the right to time off from work under certain conditions to attend necessary school
functions such as parent-teacher conferences, academic meetings, and behavioral meetings. Letters verifying
participation in this program are available from the school office upon reguest.

G. Mandated Reporters

All school personnel, including teachers and administrators, are required by law to immediately report any and all
suspected cases of child abuse or neglect to the lllinois

Department of Children and Family Services.

H. Sexual Preduator Notification Law
State law prohibits a convicted child sex offender from being present on school property when children under the
age of 18 are present, except for in the following circumstances as they relate to the individual’s child{ren):

1. To attend a conference at the school with school personnel to discuss the progress
of their child.

2. To participate in a conference in which evaluation and placement decisions may
be made with respect to their child’s special education services.

3. To attend conferences to discuss issues concerning their child, such as retention or
promotion.

In all other cases, convicted child sex offenders are prohibited from being present on school property unless they
obtain written permission from the superintendent or school board. Anytime that a convicted child sex offender is
present on schoot property for any reason — including the three reasons above - he/she is responsible for notifying
the principal's office upon arrival on school property and upon departure from school property. it is the
responsibility of the convicted child sex offender to remain under the direct supervision of a school official at all
times he/she is in the presence or vicinity of children. A violation of this law is a Class 4 felony.

1. Sex Offender & Violent Offender Community Notification Laws

State law requires schools to notify parents/guardians during school registration or parent-teacher conferences that
information about sex offenders and violent offenders against youth is available to the public on the Ill. Dept. of State
Police (ISP} website. The ISP website contains the following:

Hlinois Sex Offender Registry - www.isp.state.il.us/sor/

Ilinois Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Registry - www.isp.state.il.us/cmvo/

56



Frequently Asked Questions Concerning Sex Offenders - www.isp.state.il.us/sor/fag.cfm

J. Testing Transparency

The State and District requires students to take certain standardized tests. For additional information, see handbook
procedure 12:20 2 A parent/guardian may request, and the District will provide in a timely manner, information
regarding student participation in any assessments mandated by law or District policy, which shalt include
information on any applicable right you may have to opt your student out of such assessment.

K. Annual Report Card

Each year, the District is required to disseminate an annual report card that includes information on the District as a
whole and each school served by the District, with aggregate and disaggregated information for each required
subgroup of students including: student achievement on academic assessments {desighated by category), graduation
rates, district performance, teacher qualifications, and certain other information required by federal law. When
available, this information will be placed on the District’s website.

L. Unsafe School Choice Option

The unsafe school choice option allows students to transfer to another District school or to a public charter school
within the District under certain circumstances. For additional information, see handbook procedure 12:100. For
further information on any of the above matters, please contact the building principal.

M. Title | Programs .

The Superintendent or designee shall pursue funding under Title I, Improving the Academic Achievement of the
Disadvantaged, of the Eilementary and Secondary Education Act, to supplement instructional services and activities in
order to improve the educational opportunities of educationally disadvantaged or deprived children. All District
schools, regardless of whether they receive Title | funds, shall provide services that, taken as a whole, are
substantially comparable. Teachers, administrators, and other staff shall be assigned to schoals in a manner that
ensures equivalency among the District’s schools. Curriculum materials and instructional supplies shall be provided
in a manner that ensures equivalency among the District’s schools. The District maintains programs, activities, and
procedures for the involvement of parents/guardians of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under
Title I. These programs, activities, and procedures are described in District-level and School-level compacts.

N. Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds

The Superintendent shall take all reasonable measures to protect: (1) the safety of District personnel, students, and
visitors on District premises from risks associated with hazardous materials and (2) the environmental quality of the
District’s buildings and grounds. Before pesticides are used on District premises, the Superintendent or designee
shall notify employees and parents/guardians of students as required by the Structural Pest Control Act, 225 ILCS
235/, and the Lawn Care Products Application and Notice Act, 415 ILCS 65/.

0. Establishment of Local Scholarships

Community members, staff, and families may establish financial scholarships to benefit Tri-Valley students for
memorial, student achievement, or other acknowledgement purposes. In order to establish a new scholarship the
benefactors must (1) meet with the school counselor and the principal to discuss the creation of the scholarship,
then {2) formally present the scholarship to the Board of Education for final approval (if the school counselor and
principal deems such consideration appropriate). Should the Board of Education approve the scholarship, the
scholarship application and forms will be distributed to students at Tri-Valley High School. The presentation for all
local scholarships will be made at the annual Academic Awards ceremony by the principal or a district staff member
agreed upon by the benefactor and principal.

57




P. Equal Educational Opportunities and Sex Equity

Equal educational and extracurricular opportunities are available to all students without regard to race, color,
nationality, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, ancestry, age, religion, physical or mental disability, status as
homeless, immigration status, order of protection status, or actual or potential marital or parental status, including
pregnancy.

No student shall, based on sex, sexual orientation, or gender identity be denied equal access to programs, activities,
services, or benefits or be limited in the exercise of any right, privilege, advantage, or denied equal access to
educational and exiracurricular programs and activities,

Any student or parent/guardian with a sex equity or equal opportunity concern should contact the building principal,

XXVI. Parent Organizations and Booster Clubs

Parent organizations and booster clubs are invaluable resources to the District’s schools. While parent organizations
and booster clubs have no administrative authority and cannot determine District policy, the School Board welcomes
their suggestions and assistance.

Parent organizations and booster clubs may be recognized by the Board and permitted to use the District’s name, a
District school’s name, or a District school’s team name, or any logo attributable to the District provided they first
receive the Superintendent or desighee’s express written consent. Consent to use one of the above-mentioned
names or logos will generally be granted if the organization or club has by-laws containing the following:

1. The organization’s or club’s name and purpose, such as, to enhance students’ educational
experiences, to help meet educational needs of students, to provide extra athletic benefits to
students, to assist specific sports teams or academic clubs through financial support, or to enrich
extracurricular activities.

2. The rules and procedures under which it operates,

3. An agreement to adhere to all Board policies and administrative procedures.

4. A statement that membership is open and unrestricted, meaning that membership is open to all
parents/guardians of students enrolied in the school, District staff, and community members.

5. A statement that the District is not, and will not be, responsible for the organization’s or club’s
business or the conduct of its members, including on any organization or club websites or social
media accounts.

6. An agreement to maintain and protect its own finances.

7. A recognition that money given to a school cannot be earmarked for any particular expense. Booster
clubs may make recommendations, but cash or other valuable consideration must be given to the
District to use at its discretion. The Board's legal obligation to comply with Title IX by providing equal
athletic opportunity for members of both genders will supersede an organization or club’s
recommendation.

58



Permission to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos may be rescinded at any time and does not constitute
permission to act as the District’s representative, At no time does the District accept responsibility for the actions of
any parent organization or booster club regardless of whether it was recognized and/or permitted to use any of the
above-mentioned names or logos. The Superintendent shall designate an administrative staff member to serve as
the recognized liaison to parent organizations or booster clubs. The liaison will serve as a resource person and
provide information about school programs, resources, policies, problems, concerns, and emerging issues. Building
staff will be encouraged to participate in the organizations.

59



VIKING CARE ASSISTANT EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

This Contract made this 15th day of June 2022, by and between the Board of Education
of Tri-Valley Community Unit School District No, 3 (hereinafter referred to as “the Board”) and
Caroline Korowicki (hereinafter referred to as “the Viking Care Assistant”), pursuant to a Motion
of the Board at a meeting of the Board held on June 15, 2022, as found in the Minutes of that
meeting,.

WITNESSETH:

For and in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained, it is covenanted and
agreed by and between the parties as follows:

1. Employment. The Board hereby employs Caroline Korowicki as the Viking Care
Assistant in and for Tri-Valley Community Unit School District No. 3 for a period of one (1) year,
commencing August 18, 2022 and ending May 25, 2023. The work year of the Viking Care
Assistant shall be ten (10) months, including sick leave and personal leave. The work year shall
coincide with the school year calendar. The work day of the Viking Care Assistant shall be (8)
hours per day. The beginning and ending time of the Viking Care Assistant work day ana work
year shall be mutually agreed upon between the Superintendent and the Viking Care Assistant.

2, Duties. The duties and responsibilities of the Viking Care Assistant shall be all
those duties incident to the office of the Viking Care Assistant as promulgated by the Board and
as set forth in the job description attached hereto as Appendix A, and all duties and responsibilities
imposed by the laws of the State of Illinois upon the Viking Care Assistant; and in addition, the
Viking Care Assistant shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the
Viking Care Lead Teacher, Superintendent of Schools, the Elementary School Principal and/or

the Board. The Viking Care Assistant shall render full and regular service to the Board for the



entire term of this Contract, and shall devote such time and energy to her duties so as to satisfy the
terms and conditions of this Contract, The Tri-Valley Education Association, the exclusive
employee representative of certified and non-certified employees of the District, has agreed in a
Memorandum of Understanding dated October 21, 2014, that there is no community of interest
between employees of the Little Viking School and other employees of the District and, therefore,
the position of Viking Care Assistant is excluded from the bargaining unit.

3. Salary. In consideration of the performance of the duties of the Viking Care
Assistant, the Board shall pay to the Viking Care Assistant an hourly wage ($15.97), which
amount shall be payable in substantially equal installments in accordance with the payroll
procedures of the District. Any adjustment in salary made during the life of this Contract shall be
in the form of an Amendment and shall become part of this Contract. It is understood, however,
that by doing so, it shall not be considered that the Board has entered into a new Contract with the
Viking Care Assistant or that the termination of this Contract has in any way been extended.

4. Pension. From and out of the salary of the Viking Care Assistant as set forth
hereinabove in paragraph 3, the Board shall withhold and pay such amount as may be required by
law, on behalf of the Viking Care Assistant, to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund. The
purpose of such direct employer payment shall be to defer federal income taxation of such amount,
to the maximum extent permitted by law. In addition, the employee is eligible to receive a $450
contribution yearly district match through a participating 403b plan.

5. Evaluation. The Board agrees that prior to March 1% of each year during the term
or any extension of this Contract, the Superintendent of Schools and/or the Elementary School
Principal shall evaluate the Viking Care Assistant’s petformance in conformance with established

Board policy and provide said evaluation to the Board. The Superintendent of Schools and/or the



Elementary School Principal shall provide the Viking Care Assistant with a written copy of such
observations with regard to the Viking Care Assistant’s performance as the Superintendent of
Schools and/or the Elementary School Principal shall deem to be material within a reasonable time
after said evaluation.

6. Criminal Records Check. Pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9, boards of education
are prohibited from knowingly employing a person who has been convicted of committing or
attempting to commit the named crimes therein, If a fingerprint based criminal records check
required by Illinois law is not completed at the time this Contract is signed, and the subsequently
investigation report reveals there has been such a conviction, this Contract shall immediately
become null and void.

7. Licensure and Certification. The Viking Care Assistant shall furnish to the
Board, during the life of this Contract, any appropriate certificates and licenses which may from
time to time be required by the State of Illinois or the Board to perform the duties of the Viking
Care Assistant.

8. Benefits. The Board agrees to provide the Viking Care Assistant with the following
benefits:

A. Sick Leave. The Viking Care Assistant shall be entitled to twelve (12) days
of sick leave annually. Unused sick leave shall be cumulative to a total of one hundred eighty
(180} days.

B. Personal Leave. The Viking Care Assistant shall be entitled to two (2)

personal leave days annually. Unused personal leave may accumulate as sick leave.



9. Medical Insurance. The Board shall pay on behalf of the Viking Care Assistant
the monthly rate established in the collective bargaining agreement between the District and its
certified staff toward insurance premiums for the single major medical insurance coverage
available through the Board’s group insurance carrier.

10. F. Term Life. The Board shall provide and pay for Ten Thousand and
00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) of term life insurance during the term of this Contract. The Viking
Care Assistant shall have the option to purchase additional term coverage under this plan, at the
Viking Care Assistant’s expense.

10.  Extension at End of Term. The termination at the end of the term of this Contract
or any extension thereof shall be as provided by law. If the Board determines not to extend the
Coniract, the Board shall notify the Viking Care Assistant in writing, so that the Viking Care
Assistant receives the notice not later than March 1, 2023. Failure of the Board to provide said
notice by March 1, 2023 shall automatically extend this Contract for one (1) additional year, at
such salary and terms then in place.

11.  Termination by Agreement. During the term of this Contract, the Board and the
Viking Care Assistant may mutually agree, in writing, to terminate this Contract.

12.  Discharge for Cause. Throughout the term of this Contract, the Viking Care
Assistant shall be subject to discharge for cause provided, however, the Board shall not arbitrarily
or capriciously call for dismissal and the Viking Care Assistant shall have the right to service of
written charges, notice of hearing and a hearing before the Board. If the Viking Care Assistant
chooses to be accompanied by counsel at such hearing, all such personal expenses shall be paid by
the Viking Care Assistant. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Contract shall

also be sufficient cause for purposes of discharge as provided in this Contract.



13.  Disability. Should the Viking Care Assistant be unable to perform the duties and
obligations of this Contract by reason of illness, accident or other cause beyond the Viking Care
Assistant’s control, and such disability exists for a period of more than sixty (60} days after the
exhaustion of the Viking Care Assistant’s accumulated sick leave days, the Board, in its discretion,
may terminate this Contract, whereupon the respective duties, rights and obligations of the parties
shall terminate. In the case of termination, the Viking Care Assistant may request a hearing prior
to termination.

14.  Referrals to Viking Care Assistant. The Board and its individual members
collectively and individually shall refer promptly all criticisms, complaints and suggestions called
to their attention to the Viking Care Assistant for study and recommendation. However, this shall
not require the Board, or any of its members, to notify the Viking Care Assistant during the
pendency of any investigation into alleged illegal or immoral acts, or other wrongdoing, on the
part of the Viking Care Assistant if such notification would, in the opinion of the Board, or its
individual members, compromise such investigation.

15. Notice. Any notice required under this Contract shall be in writing and shall

become effective on the day of mailing thereof by first class, registered or certified mail, postage

prepaid, addressed:
To the Board: To the Viking Care Assistant:
President, Board of Education Caroline Korowicki
Tri-Valley C.U.S.D. No. 3
410 East Washington Street (The address listed in current
Downs, IL 61736 school district records)
16.  Content of Agreement. This Contract contains all the terms agreed upon by the

parties with respect to the subject matter of this Contract and supersedes all prior agreements,



arrangements and communications between the parties concerning such subject matter whether
oral or written.

17. Agreement Governed by Illinois Law. This Contract is executed in Illinois, and
shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois in every respect.

18.  Survival of Contract. This Contract shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their
successors and assigns.

19.  Savings Clause. If any portion of this Contract is deemed to be illegal or
unenforceable, the remainder thereof shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed in
their respective names; and in the case of the Board, by its President and Secretary, on the day and

year first written above.

Caroline Korowicki

BOARD OF EDUCATION
TRI-VALLEY COMMUNITY UNIT
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3

By:

Its President

ATTEST:

Its Secretary




tates Bus Sales, Ine.

¥ 30 Baseline Road. Oswego, IL 60543
630-656-3130 » FAX:866-300-8883 » 800-376-1644

“Phe Bus Enperts” www.centralstatesbus.com

Enira.

School Bus Lease Quotation
Tri-Valley CUSD 3

We appteciate the opportunity to assist you in your transportation needs. The following is a 5 year Jease
quote for (9) NEW 2024 Blue Bird school buses, AND.5 year Lease Purchase for (6) of the District’s
current buses. The District would own the (6) current buses following their 5® payment.

5 Year Lease Per Unit
(6) NEW 77 Passenger Conventional Route Buses
ANNUAL PAYINENL. ..o e st beeseess et seeseae s s esenas oo $ 19,539.84
(3) NEW 83 Passenger Transit Route Buses
ADMUAL PAYMEIIE. . overrirciirinsirissisies e et esseesesstossoasssbssssenssaeesesensessesessessesenes $ 22,483.06
(1) LEASE PURCHASE 77 Passengcr Conventional Bus
Annual Payment..., O OO UUUSEUPRUUPDUUI. i £ | - % 1 Ne 11
(1) LEASE PURCHASE 77 Passenger Specxal Needs Transit Lift Bus
Annual Payment.........oooeeenveevviesenenne. e ...5 8,938.48
(4) LEASE PURCHASE 83 Passenger Transit Buses
ANNUA] PAYIIEIL.c.c.ciriimerrrriieriireenire s rearess st rens s eaesesssestshoesenesssssesssasens $ 8,058.58
New Group Annual Payment .. . ..ueisrissssinsicnenseiminnesminnisiommmamme $ 238,701.32
Current Group Annual Payment.......c..coevvnranee vervrrrrrsresrernrrnrernnnend 273,970.35
Percentage Decrease........, cevereseneans ebrenraatssssnsirirsnreresttiserrnny avivee -12.8%

-Preparation, title, license and delivery, 12,500 miles/bus/year with $0.35/Mile overage fee.
-Mileage limitations do not apply to Lease Purchase buses.

-Premium extended warranty for entire lease term on all NEW buses.

-Includes all equipment listed on the Equipment Summary.

-Delivery estimated December 15, 2622 for NEW buses,

-Annual payment locked in for 5 year term.

Sincerely, O N L g;_—"“
. a —
Jeff Martin b O()

Regional Sales Manager
Central States Bus Sales




